STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING
8/1/2017 10:00 A.M.

26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

AGENDA

MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
JACK MCGUFFEY
VICE-CHAIRMAN
LANCE GILMAN VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Members of the Board of County Commissioners also serve as the Board of Fire Commissioners for
the Storey County Fire Protection District, Storey County Brothel License Board, Storey County
Water and Sewer System Board and the Storey County Liquor and Gaming Board and during this
meeting may convene as any of those boards as indicated on this or a separately posted agenda.

All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Pursuant to
NRS 241.020 (2)(d)(6) Items on the agenda may be taken out of order, the public body may combine
two or more agenda items for consideration, and the public body may remove an item from the
agenda or delay discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time. Any member of the Board
or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and acted
upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak.

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise. :

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

B DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:
Approval of the Agenda for August 1, 2017.




DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:
Approval of minutes for June 20, 2017.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:
Approval of minutes for June 30, 2017.

CONSENT AGENDA

I For possible action, approval of First Reading for General Business License.
Applicants is Turk Cobell, managing member of Electric Avenue Hotel LLC located
at 795 USA Pkwy., McCarran, Nevada. (Submitted by the Sheriff's Office.)

Il For possible action: Approval of payroll claims in the amount of $869,429.60 and
accounts payable claims in the amount of $976,650.81.

Il For possible action, approval of the Assessor's Log of Changes made to the 2017-18
Secured Roll pursuant to NRS 361.310.

IV For possible action, approval of the Storey County Investment Policy.

V  For possible action, appoint Austin Osborne to replace Dean Haymore to represent
Storey County on the Western Nevada Development District Board.

VI For possible action, approval of Business Licenses First Readings:
A. FOREVER CHRISTMAS - General / 88 N C Street ~ VC, NV(Retail)
B. ADL CONSTRUCTION, INC - Contractor / 5301 Longley Lane # H -116 ~ Reno,
NV(Framing Contractor)
C. UNIVERSAL PROTECTION SERVICE, LLC - General/ PO Box 8000 ~ Monsey, NY
(Security Guards)
D. ATSI ROBOTICS NEVADA, LLC -Professional /4625 W Neso Dr STE 2 &3, Las
Vegas, NV (Computer Prog.)
E. B's ANTIQUES - General /~ 145 S C Street, VC, NV (Antique Retail)
F. BARON GROUPE -Professional / 969 Rue Louis Breguet- ZAC, France
(Commissioning)
G. COMAU, LLC - Contractor / 2100 Telegraph Road ~ Sothfield, MT (Automotive)
H. INNOVATIVE LIGHTWEIGHT - Contractor / 8850 Terabyte Ct, Reno, NV
(Contractor )
I. MACKAY MANSION MUSEUM -General/ 291S. D Street VC, NV(Tours,
Weddings)
J. ECS GROUP, LLC - General / po box 50923, Sparks, NV(Consulting)
K. SILVER PEAK CONSTRUCTION SERVICES, LLC -Contractor /748 S.Meadows
Pkwy ~ Reno, NV(Contractor)
L. KUMA ENGINEERING, CO., LTD - Professional /OSAKA, Japan ~ (Engineering)
M. GROVES CONSTRUCTION, INC. -Contractor / 636 Eureka Ave, Reno
NV(Construction)
N. CHART LIFECYCLE, INC. - Professional / 2328 Walsh Ave # L, Santa Clara,
CA(Contractor)




O. XION TECHNOLOGY, LLC - Contractor / 8665 New Trails Dr.#100, Woodlands,
TX (Installation)

P. CHOLLAR MINE 1859, LLC - General / 615 F Street, VC, NV (Mine Tours)

Q. LABORWORKS, INDUSTRIAL STAFFING, INC - General / po box 1755, Gig
Harbor WA (Staffing)

R.S & STOOL & SUPPLY, INC. - General/ 2700 Maxwell Way, Fairfield , CA ( Sales)
S. LEONI ENGINEERING PRODUCTS - Professional / 100 Kay Industrial Dr., Lake
Orion, Ml (Management)

T. CUSTOM PAINTING & DECORATIONG, INC - Contractor / 254 E Glendale,
Sparks, NV (Contractor)

U. SEYI-AMERICA, INC. - Professional/ 17534 Von Karman Ave, Irvine, CA (Metal
Stamping)

V. HEXAGON METROLOGY, INC - Professional / 250 circuit Dr. North Kingstown
RI (Installation)

W. MILES ARCHITECTURAL GROUP - Professional /10800 Sand Hollow Ct. ~ Reno,
NV (Architectural)

X. GURR’S ROOFING HEATING & SHEET MEATAL, INC. -Contractor /PO Box 637 .,
Sparks, NV (Contractor)

Y. CASHE VALLEY ELECTRIC -Contractor- PO Box 405, Logan, UT (Contrator)

Z. VIS-TECH, LLC - Professional /833 Maple Ave. Holland, MI (Programming)
AA.SPRINGER INDUSTRIAL EQUIPMENT, INC - General / 3164 N. Colorado St. ~
Mesa ,AZ (Distributor )

BB. SPIROFLOW AUTOMATION SOLUTIONS, INC. -Professional / 1609 Airport Rd
,Monroe , NC (Programing)

CC. CNA ENGINEERING, INC - Professional / 2575 Valley Rd.., Sacramento, CA
(Engineering)

DD. MIME USA, LLC - Professional 560Meadows Lark Lane, belle Mead , NJ (Supplier)
EE. MOTOR CITY PROGRAMING- Professional/ 21272 Danbury, Clinton MI (Robotics)
FF. PEAK TECHNICAL SERVICES - Professional - 583 Epsilon Dr., ~ Pittsburgh PA
(Staffing)

GG. DATF, INC. dba JIMBOY’S TACOS -General - 4825 Idlewood Dr. Reno, NV\
(Food Truck

HH. ONE SOURCE WATER, LLC -General / 3143 W Post Rd. ~ Farmington, CT (Sales
)

II. ].B HUNT TRANSPORT, INC - Transporation / PO Box 130 Sparks, NV
(Transportation )

J]. CENTERAL STRIPING SERVICE, INC - Contractor / 3489 Luyung Dr.,Rancho
Cordova, CA(Roadway Stripping)

KK. BLACK & VEATCH CORPORATION - Pro / 425 Apollo Dr. ~ Lino Lakes MN (
sales)

LL. HOMEGROWN GASTROPUB - General / 719 D. Virginia St., Reno, NV (Mobile
Food Truck)

MM. AUTOMATION ELECTRIC, INC. - Professional / 3983 S MCCarran Blvd., #491,
Reno, NV (Troubleshooting)

NN. ALPHA ASSEMBLY SOLUTIONS - Contractor / 39 Main Street ~ Scottsville NY
(Manufacturer)




%

8.

OO. NORTH AMERICAN MILLWORK, INC. - Contractor / 105 Catron Dr., Reno, NV
(Contractor)

PP. ARMAC CONSTRUCTION, LLC - Contractor / 343 Fairview Dr. #103 , Carson
City, NV ( Excavation)

QQ. CONCEPT SYSTEMS, INC. - Professional /1957 Fescue St. SE, Albany, OR (Field
Service Tech.) ,

RR. RENO TAHOE ADVENTURES, LLC - Transpiration/ 18224 Fontana Ct.,~ Reno,
NV (Tour Operations)

SS. US GRANITE- NEVADA, INC - Contractor / 5350 Capital Ct., #100, Reno, NV
(Fabrication)

TT. COAST MACHINERY MOVERS OF NV, INC. -Transpiration/2431 Chico Ave, So
El Monte,CA (Machinery Moving)

UU. R & E AUTOMATED SYSTEMS- Professional /17500 23 Mile Rd . Macomb MI(
Engineering)

VV. ABC EMPLOYMENT HOLDINGS, LLC General/ 6610 N Shadeland Ave.,
Indianapolis, IN (Staffing)

WW. MILLWRIGHTS 4 HIRE, LLC - General/ 237 Lexington St. Lancaster, KY (
Staffing)

XX. QUALITY COMMUNICATIONS, INC Contractor/ 212 Murray Street ~ Garden
City, ID (Cabling Contractor)

YY. RKI INSTRUMENTS, INC Professional/ 33248 Central Ave, Union City, CA (

Training)

ZZ. HUMAN RESOURCES UNLTD, INC. General - 3451 Dunckel Rd #200 Lansing, MI
( Staffing)

AAA. LEVEL ONE ROBOTICS & CONTROLS, INC - Pro- 401 Ryland St. #200A, Reno,
NV (Software)

BBB. J].E.SIMAS FLOORS,INC. - Contractor/ 9400 S Virginia St. Reno, NV (Floor
Covering - Sales, Install)

CCC. ENTEGEE, INC. - Professional /10151 Deerwood Park Blvd # 200, Jacksonville,
FI ( Robot Programing )

DDD. TOX -PRESSOTECHNIK L.L.C - Contractor - 4250 Weaver Prkwy, Warrenville,
IL (Manufacturing )

EEE. YOUNG FAIRBANKS NTERPRISES, LLC- dba - Kim's Kool Treats- General -~
2725 E 9th St., Silver Springs, NV ( Mobile Food Truck)

FFF. COMPRESSOR-PUMP & SERVICE, INC. - Professional- 3333 W. 2400 South., Salt
Lake City, UT ( Sales)

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:
Acceptance and Approval of the contract for Professional Services between Storey
County and Farr West Engineering for the USDA loan funded 5-Mile Waterline
Replacement Project.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:
Recommendation to award contract to successful bidder for the construction of the
Virginia City Sewer Improvement Project Phase II.




9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action):
Honorable United States Congressman Mark Amodei discussing updates on federal
matters of interest in general and specific to Storey County.

WORKSHOP/DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action):
Discussion and comments from the Commissioners, staff and the public regarding the
possibility of participating in an Economic Development Financing Proposal pursuant
to Senate Bill 1 of the 2015 Nevada Legislative Special Session (SB 1). Also
participating will be Jeremy Aguero with Applied Analysis and Cory Hunt with the
Governor's Office of Economic Development. Project parameters include
constructing an effluent water pipeline from the Truckee Meadows Water
Reclamation Facility to the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center (TRI). The estimated cost of
the pipeline ($35 million) will be paid for from the proceeds of bonds issued by the
State of Nevada pursuant to SB 1. The bonds would be repaid from incremental tax
revenues generated within TRI. A tax increment area may be created pursuant to
NRS Chapter 278C which would incorporate all of TRI within which a portion of
increased tax revenues would be dedicated to repayment of the bonds.

DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:
Consideration and possible action to approve Resolution No. 17-467 by which the
Board of County Commissioners prohibits the discharge of firearms in the wildland
areas upon the determination by the Chief of the Storey County Fire Protection
District that the action is warranted

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:
Consideration and possible approval of appointment of Anne Delahay as the
appraiser to appraise the value of the parcel of real property located at 10 S. B Street in
Virginia City.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:
For possible action, approve Resolution 17-466 Designating the County Courthouse as
the public location for auctions conducted pursuant to NRS 107.080.

RECESS TO CONVENE THE STOREY COUNTY LIQUOR LICENSE BOARD

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:
First reading for On-sale Liquor License. Applicants is Turk Cobell, managing
member of Electric Avenue Hotel LLC locates at 795 USA Pkwy., McCarran, Nevada.

ADJOURN TO RECONVENE THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS




19.

20.

21y

22.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:
Discussion and possible action on Resolution 17-468 regarding the request by the
Director of the State of Nevada Department of Business and Industry to approve the
Findings of Fact pertaining to the issuance of industrial development revenue bonds
in an amount not to exceed $150,000,000 for the purpose of assisting in the financing
of a biorefinery facility to be used for the disposal of solid waste and conversion to
renewable fuel products to be located on a 19.4-acre site in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial
Center in Storey County, Nevada. The project will be owned Fulcrum Sierra BioFuels,
LLC, and operated by Fulcrum BioEnergy, Inc. Approval of the County is required
pursuant to NRS 349.580(2).

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:
Special Use Permit 2017-020 request by the applicant Asia Union Electronic Chemicals
- Reno, Inc. (property owner Waltham Road Industrial, LLC) to retrofit an existing
property and building to allow for the production, distribution and use of hazardous
and non-hazardous chemical products associated with the microelectronics industry.
The subject property is located at 1400 Waltham Way, McCarran, Storey County,
Nevada, Assessor's Parcel Number (APN) 004-091-81.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:
Variance 2017-008 by Insurance Auto Auctions. The applicants requests a use
variance allowing a previously permitted non-conforming use to remain in-place
under its existing ownership conditions. The proposed use subject to the variance
request is outdoor storage of inoperable motor vehicles and auctioning of those
inoperable vehicles at portions of subject property located at 4086 Peru Drive,
McCarran (Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center), Storey County, Nevada, APN 005-071-16.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:
Approval of Business Licenses Second Readings:
A. ALUMAG AUTOMOTIVE - Contractor / 5421 Kietzke Lane ~ Reno,
NV(Installation)
B. DESALITECH, INC - Contractor / 1 Gateway Center ~ Newton, MA(Water
Treatment System)
C. LYNX CONTROL SYSTEMS - Contractor / PO Box 138 ~ Israel (Control Systems)
D. ENCORE AUTOMATION, LLC -Contractor /50Corporate Dr. Auburn Hills, MI
(Installation)
E. ROE PAINTING, INC - Contractor /~ PO Box 7351 Boise, ID (Painting Contractor)
F. DAN MILLS CONSTRUCTION NEVADA, INC -Contractor / Po Box 19760~Reno,
NV (Framing Sub-Contractor)
G. HESCO SERVICES, INC. - Contractor / 862 West Fine Drive ~ Salt lake City, UT
(Contractor)
H. CHAMPION EMPLOYMENT GROUP - General / 10358 Gratiot Ave, Columbus
MI (Staffing )
I. VERUS ASSOCIATES NEVADA, LLC -Professional/ 9210 Prototype Dr. #101
Reno, NV(Engineering)




J. M & L ELECTRICAL, INC - Contractor / 6060 Scottsville Rd, Bowling Green KY
(Electrical Contractor)

K. SLE ELECTRONIC GMBH - Contractor /5421 Kietzke Lane ~ Reno, NV( (Design)
L. HIRATA ENGINEERING INCORPORATED - Professional /5421 Kietzke Lane ~
Reno, NV (Design)

M. GIROUX GLASS, INC -Contractor / 850 W. Washington Blvd. #200, Los Angeles,
CA (Safety Evaluation)

N. BELAY ENGINEERING CO. - Professional / 2328 Walsh Ave # L, Santa Clara,
CA(Contractor)

O. XION TECHNOLOGY, LLC - Contractor / 4650 Wedekind Rd #2 , Sparks NV
(Installation)

P. AMADA MACHINE TOOLS AMERICA, INC. - Contractor / 2324 Palmer Dr.,
Schaumbung, IL (Installation)

Q. NORBLAST, LLC - Contractor / 4650 Wedekind Rd #2, Sparks NV (Installation)
R. CTH INDUSTRIAL SERVICES, LLC - Professional/ 7550 Bluewater Hwy, Saranac,
MI (Engineering)

S. PRECISION CONTROL SYSTEMS GROUP, LLC - Professional / 29355 W 9 Mile
Rd, Farmington, MI (Computer Programming)

T.] & R TADROS, INC. - Professional / 130950Trail Dust Ave, San Diego, CA
(Consultant)

U. SEYI-AMERICA, INC. - Professional/ 17534 Von Karman Ave, Irvine, CA (Metal
Stamping)

V. CDWDIRECT, LLC - Professional / 200 N. Milwaukee Ave, Vernon Hills IL
(Direct Marketer)

W. BETS SERVICIOS PROFESSIONALES - Professional /5421 Kietzke Lane ~ Reno,
NV (Engineering)

X. BECK FACILITY SERVICES, LLC -Contractor / 147 Jackson St.,, Newnan, GA
(Janitorial)

Y. ACCLAIMED INSPECTION SERVICES, INC -Professional- 598 Damonte Ranch
Prkwy # B112, Reno, NV (Inspector)

Z. TOOLING SYSTEMS GROUP - Contractor /4315 3 Mile Rd, Grand Rapids, MI
(Manufacturing)

AA. R.E LEWIS REFRIGERATION, INC. - Contractor / PO BOX 92 ~ Creston, 1A (
Refrigeration Contractor )

BB. PINNACLE HEATING & AIR CONDITIONING - Contractor / 5301 Longley
Lane Bldg. #201,Reno, NV(HVAC)

CC. EMPLOYBRIDGE - General / 5580 Mill St., Reno, NV (Staffing)

DD. SUMMIT FIRE PROTECTION OF MN CO. - Contractor / 575 Minnehaha Ave
W, St. Paul, MI (Design)

EE. STEYER ASSOCIATES, INC General/ 115 Hall Brothers Loop #104, Bainbridge
Island, WA (Staffing)

FF. 3R AUTOMATION, INCOPORATED- Contractor/5421 Kietzke Lane ~ Reno,
NV(Automation)

GG. COMPLETE ROBOTICS, INC - Professional - 3509 Elizabeth lake Rd~
Waterford , MI (Computer Programing)




HH. CBR ENTERPRISES, LLC - Professional /5421 Kietzke Lane ~ Reno, NV (Project
Management )

II. TECNOEFFE, LLC - Contractor / 4650 Wedekind Rd. # 2, Sparks, NV
(Installation)

JJ. CENTERAL STRIPING SERVICE, INC - Contractor / 3489 Luyung Dr.,Rancho
Cordova, CA(Roadway Stripping)

KK. BLACK & VEATCH CORPORATION - Pro / 425 Apollo Dr. ~ Lino Lakes MN (
sales)

LL. HOMEGROWN GASTROPUB - General / 719 D. Virginia St., Reno, NV (Mobile
Food Truck)

MM. AUTOMATION ELECTRIC, INC. - Professional / 3983 S MCCarran Blvd., #491
, Reno, NV (Troubleshooting)

NN. ALPHA ASSEMBLY SOLUTIONS - Contractor / 39 Main Street ~ Scottsville NY
(Manufacturer)

O0O. NORTH AMERICAN MILLWORK, INC. - Contractor / 105 Catron Dr., Reno,
NV (Contractor)

PP. ARMAC CONSTRUCTION, LLC - Contractor / 343 Fairview Dr. #103 , Carson
City, NV ( Excavation)

QQ. CONCEPT SYSTEMS, INC. - Professional /1957 Fescue St. SE, Albany, OR (Field
Service Tech.)

RR. RENO TAHOE ADVENTURES, LLC - Transpiration/ 18224 Fontana Ct.,~ Reno,
NV (Tour Operations)

SS. US GRANITE- NEVADA, INC - Contractor / 5350 Capital Ct., #100, Reno, NV
(Fabrication)

TT. COAST MACHINERY MOVERS OF NV, INC. ~Transpiration/2431 Chico Ave, So
El Monte,CA (Machinery Moving)

UU. R & E AUTOMATED SYSTEMS- Professional /17500 23 Mile Rd . Macomb MI(
Engineering)

VV. ABC EMPLOYMENT HOLDINGS, LLC General/ 6610 N Shadeland Ave.,
Indianapolis, IN (Staffing)

WW. MILLWRIGHTS 4 HIRE, LLC - General/ 237 Lexington St. Lancaster, KY (
Staffing)

XX. QUALITY COMMUNICATIONS, INC Contractor/ 212 Murray Street ~ Garden
City, ID (Cabling Contractor)

YY. RKIINSTRUMENTS, INC Professional/ 33248 Central Ave, Union City, CA (
Training)

ZZ. HUMAN RESOURCES UNLTD, INC. General - 3451 Dunckel Rd #200 Lansing,
MI ( Staffing)

AAA. LEVEL ONE ROBOTICS & CONTROLS, INC - Pro- 401 Ryland St. #2004,
Reno, NV (Software)

BBB. J.E.SIMAS FLOORS,INC. - Contractor/ 9400 S Virginia St. Reno, NV (Floor
Covering - Sales, Install)

CCC. ENTEGEE, INC. - Professional /10151 Deerwood Park Blvd # 200,
Jacksonville, Fl ( Robot Programing )

DDD. TOX -PRESSOTECHNIK L.L.C - Contractor - 4250 Weaver Prkwy,
Warrenville, IL (Manufacturing )




EEE. YOUNG FAIRBANKS NTERPRISES, LLC- dba - Kim'’s Kool Treats- General -
2725 E 9th St., Silver Springs, NV ( Mobile Food Truck)

FFF. COMPRESSOR-PUMP & SERVICE, INC. - Professional- 3333 W. 2400 South.,
Salt Lake City, UT ( Sales)

23.  CORRESPONDENCE:
Thank you letter from St. Mary’s Art Center.

24,  PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)
25.  ADJOURNMENT

NOTICE:

¢ Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.

e Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.

e Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

¢ Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited
to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon
which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

e Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

e In accordance with Federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil
rights regulations and policies, the USDA, its Agencies, offices, and employees, and
institutions participating in or administering USDA programs are prohibited from
discriminating based on race, color, national origin, religion, sex, gender identity (including
gender expression), sexual orientation, disability, age, marital status, family/ parental status,
income derived from a public assistance program, political beliefs, or reprisal or retaliation for
prior civil rights activity, in any program or activity conducted or funded by USDA (not all
bases apply to all programs). Remedies and complaint filing deadlines vary by program or
incident.

Persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication for program
information (e.g., Braille, large print, audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.) should contact
the responsible Agency or USDA’s TARGET Center at (202) 720-2600 (voice and TTY) or
contact USDA through the Federal Relay Service at (800) 877-8339. Additionally, program
information may be made available in languages other than English.

To file a program discrimination complaint, complete the USDA Program Discrimination
Complaint Form, AD-3027, found online at

http:/ /www.ascr.usda.gov/complaint_filing_cust.html and at any USDA office or write a
letter addressed to USDA and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form.
To request a copy of the complaint form, call (866) 632-9992. Submit your completed form or
letter to USDA by:




(1) mail: U.S. Department of Agriculture
Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights
1400 Independence Avenue, SW
Washington, D.C. 20250-9410;

(2) fax: (202) 690-7442; or

(3) email: program.intake@usda.gov.
USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and lender.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners’ Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440.

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING
I, Vanessa Stephens , Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before 7/27/2017; Virginia City Post
Office at 132 S C St, Virginia City, NV, the Storey County Courthouse located at 26 S B St, Virginia City,
NV, the Virginia City Fire Department located at 145 N C St, Virginia City, NV, the Virginia City
Highlands Fire Department located a 2610 Cartwright Rd, VC Highlands, NV and Lockwood Fire
Department located at 431 Canyon Way, Lockwood, NV.

By &/(ZJ 16y M ;[%F LZ:A:j
Vanessa Stephens Clerk-Treasurer




Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: August 1, 2017 Estimate of Time Required: 0-5 min.
Agenda Item Type: Regular Agenda

1.

2.

Title: Approval of minutes for June 20, 2017.

Recommended motion: Approve as submitted.

Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens

Department: Clerk Contact Number: 775.847.0969

Staff Summary: Minutes of the June 20, 2017 Storey County Commissioners Board.

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: O

Legal review required: No

Reviewed by:

@ Department Head Department Name: Clerk

County Manager Other Agency Review:

Board Action:

[ ] Approved ] Approved with Modification

[
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued




STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS MEETING
TUESDAY, JUNE 20, 2017 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA
MINUTES
MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
JACK MCGUFFEY VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

ROLL CALL: Chairman McBride, Vice-Chairman McGuffey, Commissioner Gilman, Clerk &
Treasurer Vanessa Stephens, County Manager Pat Whitten, Comptroller Hugh Gallagher, District
Attorney Anne Langer, Sheriff Gerald Antinoro, Fire Chief Gary Hames, Community Relations
Director Cherie Nevin, Justice of the Peace Eileen Herrington, Tourism Director Deny Dotson,
Emergency Management Director Joe Curtis, Community Development Director Dean Haymore,
Fire Chief Appointee Jeff Nevin, Director of Security Melanie Keener, Public Works Director Jason
VanHavel, Administrative Officer/Planning Director Austin Osborne, Communications Director
Dave Ballard, Recorder Jen Chapman, Outside Counsel Robert Morris

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
Meeting was called to order by Chairman McBride at 10:00 A.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Chairman McBride led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for June 20, 2017

County Manager Whitten requested continuance of item #24 to August 15, 2017, and to move item
#22 following item #6.

Public Comment:
None.

Motion: Approve Agenda for June 20, 2017 with changes noted, Action: Approve, Moved by:
Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3




4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for May 16, 2017.

Motion: Approve Minutes for May 16, 2017, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3

5. CONSENT AGENDA
[ For possible action: Approval of the Treasurer’s Report for May 2017.

I For possible action: Approval of payroll claims in the amount of $503,614.06 and accounts payable
claims in the amount of $6,501,584.41.

IIT For possible action, approval of Business Licenses First Readings:

A. DORNER MFG. CORP - Contractor / 975 Cottonwood Ave ~ Hartland, WI(Installation)

B. ABEINSA ABENER TEYMA GENERAL PARTNERSHIP - Contractor /3030 N Central Ave Ste 808
~ Phoenix, AZ (Engineering)

C. PIGLER AUTOMATION, LLC - Contractor / 724 Main Street Ste F ~ Longmonty, Co
(Programming Service)

D. ADVANCED MACHINES & TOOL CORPORATION -Contractor /5421 Kietzke Lane
Ste100~Reno, NV (Engineering)

E. SPECIALTY WELDING SUPPLY (dba)- Contractor /~ PO Box 504 Sparks, NV (Sales &
Distribution)

F. SMALL MINE DEVELOPMENT, LLC. -Contractor / 967 E ParkCenter Blvd PMB 396 ~ Boise , ID
(Contracting Service)

G. PROGRESSIVE PEST MANAGEMENT - Pro / PO Box 50117 ~ Reno, NV (Pest & weed control)
H. COATING UNLIMITED, INC - Contractor / 4325 Bridgeton Industrial Dr. Bridgeton MO
(Painting Contractor )

I. WESTER ENVIROMENTAL TESTING LABORATORY -Contractor/ 475 E Greg Street #119
Sparks, NV(Testing Service)

J. SMC CORPORATION OF AMERICA. - Contractor / 10100 SMC Blvd ~ Noblesville, IN

(Distribution)

K. APPLIED INNOVATION GROUP, INC. - Contractor / 2365 Paragon Dr. Ste C ~ San Jose, CA
(Installation)

L. INTEGRATED SAFETY CONCEPTS, INC. - Pro / 2200 N D’ Andrea Parkway Ste1726 ~ Sparks,
NV (Safety Consulting)

M. COMPOINTE CORPORATION -Pro / 1128 Keene Land Ct ~ Indianapolis ,IN (Software)
N. HARELSON MECHANICAL, INC. - Contractor / 3899 Security Park Dr. ~ Rancho Cordova,
CA(Contractor)
O. APPLIED ENERGY SYSTEMS - Contractor / 180 Quaker Lane ~ MalVern, PA (Manufacturer)
P. LASER DEPTH DYNAMICS, INC - Contractor / 176 Railway Street ~ Kingston ON , Canada
(Monitoring Instruments)
Q. HUMANUS SOLUTIONS, LLC - Contractor / 9835 N Desert Rose Dr. ~ Fountain Hills
AZ(Consultant)
R. OCEANEERING INTERNATIONAL, INC - Contractor / 11911 FM 529 Houston, TX
(Engineering)
S. NORTHERN NEVADA FIRE PROTECTION, INC - Contractor / PO Box 1921 ~ Fernley, NV (Fire
Protection)

2




T. NEWARK CORPORATION - Pro/ 481 Renaissance Dr ~ St. Joseph, MI (Distribution)

U. R.S. HUGHES COMPANY, INC - General / 1162 Sonora Ct. Sunnyvale, CA (Wholesaler)

V. AVNET, INC - Pro / 2211 S 47th Street ~ Phoenix, AZ(Wholesaler)

W. KISTLER INSTRUMENT CORP - Pro / 75 John Glenn Dr., Amherst, , NY (Distributor)

X. S&A SOLUTIONS, INC - General / 38600 Van Dyke Ave Ste 350 ~ Sterling Heights, MI (Staffing)
Y. VALKYRIE METAL WORKS, LLC - GeneralPO Box 1040 Virginia City, NV~VC Blacksmith
reenactment & Sales)

Z. PHANTOM TECHNICAL SERVICES, INC - Contractor /5421 Kietzke Lane Ste100 ~ Reno, NV
(Software Installation)

AA. IBG PRUFCCOMPUTER GMBH - Contractor / 5421 Kietzke Lane Ste100 ~ Reno,

NV(Manufacturer)

BB. CHEMETALL US, INC - Contractor / 675 Central Ave ~ New Providence NJ (Sales &
Manufacture)

CC. MOTION CONTROLS ROBOTICS, INC - Contractor / 1500 Walter Ave ~ Fremont, OH (Robotic
Service)

DD. MICHIGAN CUSTOM MACHINES - Contractor / 22750 Heslip Dr. Novi, MI (Machine
Construction)

EE. PSARA TECHNOLOGIES, INC - Pro/ 10925 Reed Hartman hwy Ste220 Cincinnati OH
(Consulting)

FF. PHOENIX CONSULTING, LLC- Contractor/ 3201 Stellhorn Road ~ Ft Wayne, IN Programing
Support)

GG. AUTOMATION & MODULAR COMPONENTS, INC. - Contractor / 10301 Enterprise Dr. ~
Davisburg, MI (Installation)

HH. PARTNER PERSONNEL, INC. - General / 2222 Franklin Rd~ Bloomfield Hills, MI (Staffing)
II. INTERROLL CORPORATION - Contractor / 3000 Corporate Dr ~ Wilmington, NC Manufacturer)
JJ. LANCE JOHNSON, INC. - Contractor / 2152 Reno hwy #E ~ Fallon , NV( Earthwork )

KK. NOL-TEC SYSTEMS, INC - Pro / 425 Apollo Dr. ~ Lino Lakes MN ( sales)

LL. AVERNA - Contractor / 3500 Hasselt ~ Belgium , Poland (Engineering Consulting)

MM. CALVARY DESIGN TEAM, INC - Pro / 855 Publishers Parkway, Webster, NY (Installation)
NN. AMBRELL CORPORATION - Contractor / 39 Main Street ~ Scottsville NY (Manufacturer)
0O0. IBG NDT SYSTEMS CORPORATION - Contractor / 5421 Kietzke Lane ~ Reno NV (Designer)
PP. EXACT LASER MEASUREMENTS USA - Contractor /

QQ. FULLER ENGINEERING CO., LLC - Contractor /43334 Seven Mile Rd ~Northville, MI
(Automotive & Aerspace)

RR. WISE CONSULTING & TRAINING, INC. - Contractor / 500 Ryland Street Ste250 ~ Reno, NV
(Consulting)

SS. NEVADA TAP MASTER - Contractor / 1647 Willow Pass Road #131, Concord CA (Industrial
Plumbing)

TT. AIR WAY AUTOMATION - Contractor / PO Box 563, Grayling MI ( Tool Designer)

UU. LOGOMAT AUTOMATION SYSTEMS, INC- Contractor/2595 Arbor Tech Dr. Hebron KY (
Installation)

VV. AJSSTOVES- Contractor/ 1267 A Hwy 395 N Gardnerville NV ( Chimney Cleaning)

WW. AITA CONSULTING SERVICE- Pro/ 6-80 Towne Center Dr. North Brunswick NJ (
Professional service)

XX. COPPER STATE BOLT & NUT CO., INC.-Contractor/ 3622 N 34th Ave~ Phoenix AZ
(Distributor)

YY. ABICOR BINZEL US- Contractor/ 650 Medimmune Ct. #110 Fredrick MD

3




ZZ. STTRUCTURES, INC.- Contractor/5224 US Hwy 50 East ~ Carson City, NV ( Steel
Fabrication)

AAA. DWFRITZ AUTOMATION, INC.- Contractor/ 27200 SW Parkway Ave~ Wilsonville OR (
Installation)

BBB. DIVERSE AUTOMATION, INC. - Contractor/ 3271 Brushy Creek Road~ Greer SC (
Automation)

CCC. GUDELINC. - Contractor/ 4881 Runway Blvd ~ Ann Arbor MI ( linear Automation)

DDD. ROBOT SUPPORT, INC. - Contractor/ 20506 Hall Rd. Clinton Township, MI (Software service

)
EEE. CARSON MFG.,, INC- General /5001 Grumman Dr.~ Carson City, NV ( Manufacturing)

FFF. ASIAN UNION CHEMICALS RENO - General/ 1400 Waltham Way ~ McCarran , NV (Office
Use Only)

Public Comment:
None

Motion: Approve Consent Agenda for June 20, 2017, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice
Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

6. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Presentation by the Nevada Department of Transportation
and acceptance of the 2017 Transportation Report for Storey County.

Bill Hoffman, NDOT Deputy Director, presented the 2017 Transportation Report with a goal to build
a long-range plan.

Mr. Hoffman reviewed the County’s list from last year and what has been worked on. NDOT is
asking direction for priorities to be included in the long-range plan. Issues from last yeat’s workshop
are being validated.

In rural counties across the State, the four main issues seen by NDOT include the need for passing
lanes, intersections, shoulder widening, and issues with wild animal collisions - one of the top
concerns with a cost of 18.5 million to residents.

In Storey County, 14.1% of all collisions are animal related.

Mr. Hoffman discussed the “One Nevada Plan” - an update to the Federally required long-range
transportation plan creating more informed transportation decisions.

Current updates:

USA Parkway ribbon cutting is scheduled for September 2017;
Kudos to NDOT staff /workers for the hard work this winter;
SR342 - completed and open

SR341 - being paved due to “blowing up” this winter.

Top County concerns from this year’s workshop being addressed:
o Electric Avenue traffic signal - this is being taken care of;

4




e 1-80/Lockwood Interchange
» Wildhorses on roadways, SR341 and 342
e Lockwood/Patrick Interchange

Mr. Hoffman said the work program for next year needs to be discussed and approved.

Chairman McBride: At the December (NDOT) workshop many other concerns were addressed,
including:
o Flashing-illuminated signs to make people slow down at both ends of town. Especially at the
north-end where during the school year school buses turn left across C Street.

Commissioner Gilman:
e Is there a timeline for the Lockwood interchange ramp to be improved? With the amount of
traffic on I-80 and the speed, the short merging lane is a clear and present danger. Thisis a
major, senior residential area and there are serious difficulties with this ramp.

Mr. Hoffman: Does not have an answer, but will send Commissioner Gilman an email with that
information and concurs that work does need to be done there.

Vice Chairman McGuffey: Surprised that Mr. Hoffman does not have more information as this is one
of the County’s top two concerns.

Lee Bonner, NDOT Local Government Liaison:

e The ramp is actually in Washoe County. Washoe RTC is looking at this situation which
involves right-of-way, adding a few years to a project. Comprehensive solutions for both this
interchange and USA Parkway are being looked at - there are a lot of plans but it is up to
Washoe RTC. Mr. Bonner believes they are working together with other entities involved.

Commissioner Gilman: USA Parkway works. But Lockwood is so sub-standard and so short.
Mr. Bonner: There are similarities with the Lockwood and Patrick merge lanes.
Commissioner Gilman: Should (Storey) County be talking with Washoe County or the RTC?
Mr. Bonner: Will see if this can’t be speeded along.

Chairman McBride: Storey County has a really good working with relationship with NDOT and
appreciates all the work NDOT does. Some of the items the County is disappointed in also need to be
talked about. An extreme disappointment is the Seymour property at the north-end of town. It does
not look like NDOT is doing anything.

Mr. Hoffman: NDOT is not done. Mr. Hoffman has personally spent 4 or 5 hours researching, in
meetings, and talking with the homeowners. There is no evidence that NDOT built the wall. A
document circulated through the right-of-way division shows that NDOT exhausted every avenue
available - and that wall is not shown anywhere on plan sheets from 1936 to 1949. The steps are
shown. NDOT would like to negotiate an agreement on how to move forward. NDOT cannot spend




public money on private property when there is no proof - no evidence that the wall was built by
NDOT.

Chairman McBride: Has a photo of the property before the road was built.
Mr. Hoffman: Has invested time and wants to help. But, legally (NDOT) cannot give any money.

Chairman McBride: If the Nevada Highway Department had authority to build the road and the
bulkhead/retaining wall, how come they do not have the authority to maintain it.

Mr. Hoffman: (NDOT) does not have any proof that they built the wall.

Chair McBride: There are lost records - every department in the State and the country has lost
records.

Mr. Hoffman: This is needed to justify spending money. NDOT cannot spend money without the
proof.

Chair McBride: The (situation) is obvious. The highway could not have been built without retaining
that corner.

County Manager Whitten: Has given suggestions to Mr. Bonner to run past the AG (Attorney
General). Mr. Whitten believes the Seymour’s would be happy to give that portion of the property to
NDOT so that NDOT and taxpayer funds can be spent on that. There is a concern of not only how
catastrophic this could be on the owners but also on passing motorists.

Mr. Hoffman: Spoke with the AG and was told money could not be spent on this situation.

Mr. Whitten: But if the Seymour’s granted to NDOT and it was State property - would the answer be
the same?

Mr. Hoffman: Would have to ask (the AG). The situation is not dead, work just needs to be kept
going. There are things that can be done - there are options.

Mr. Whitten: Appreciates that. Mr. Bonner has been given several options to keep this alive. Can
this be set as a priority goal? There is fire and ambulance support from Virginia City to the
Highlands and back - if that wall fails, the County will be unable to provide emergency services to
the level that is being done. Legal counsel can be brought in if it helps expedite solutions.

Mr. Bonner: This situation on C Street is going to be worked on. It should not be confused with
where to go in the future - as far as future transportation needs and safety. The County has provided
a formal request which has been sent to the Attorney General’s office. A meeting could probably
happen within the next month. Two issues that do not to be on the list that (NDOT) is working on
would be the Seymour retaining wall issue and the curbs and gutters - so as not to be confused with
where to go in the future to help with transportation needs.

Mr. Whitten: Agrees.




Commissioner Gilman: To be clear, it appears NDOT cannot find the records, in archives, that would
prove one way or the other that NDOT or the State built that roadway and retaining wall.

Mr. Hoffman: This cannot be found within NDOT’s own department. (NDOT) would be open to
any evidence from anywhere.

Commissioner Gilman: If this community can show sufficient/substantial evidence that it was built
by the highway department - the probability is that NDOT could accept that.

Mr. Hoffman: Yes. NDOT could work from that point forward.

Public Comment:
Virginia City resident, Bob Seymour: Thank you for the time and effort put in to this.

Regarding the comment that after this winter if it didn’t fall it never will. The wall is much
worse now than it was a year ago.

The house is still sinking, doors cannot be closed - the winter had a hard effect.

The wall is failing daily.

No means is a favor being asked for. Pictures prove that a retaining wall would never have
been needed on the property if the highway had not been put in. There was direct highway
access.

Storey County and NDOT are being asked to step-up and fix the situation they created 80
years ago.

Virginia City resident, Patricia Burns Seymour, commented:

She was born and raised in this home.

No one would like that bank in front of their home.

The house was level with C Street before this was done.

Ms. Seymour’s father was the only objection. He was able to maintain the sidewalk in front of
the home. He was a small man and there is no way he would have been able to build that
wall. He was concerned that someday the house would go down to C Street.

If the house does go, someone is likely to be killed.

At the time this was done, the County sold the Seymour’s two lots for an entrance from B
Street and agreed to plow those lots in the winter.

The State worked on the steps and the bulkhead at the time Virginia City men were working
for the highway. This was done every year to make sure it was safe. When they left, nothing
was done - it deteriorated and fell apart.

Dirt has been hauled in to put under the house and the sewer line has had to be worked on
many times.

Ms. Seymour doesn’t think (the bank) is her property. The property went to “livable” C Street.
The mining company says owners own only surface rights, so how does she own the property
where the retaining wall is.

The Seymour’s did not cause the problem - the highway did. It's time to be fixed.

Last year at this time, this issue was discussed and this was one of the projects that (NDOT)
was going to do. It has been looked at but nothing has been done. It is time.

Commissioner Gilman: Ms. Seymour, you were very young when the highway went through.
Would you remember the construction or who might have been doing the building?

7




Ms. Seymour: Her father talked about it throughout the years - that is where the information came
from. He maintained the sidewalk which gave them a little more land which has probably prevented
the house from being in the street right now.

County Manager Whitten: Would the family consider giving that property to the State or the County
to pass through to the State?

Ms. Seymour: As far as she’s concerned, it’s theirs now.
Mr. Whitten: Did the State tear out the stairs that went from C Street up to the house?

Ms. Seymour: No. The (stairs) were not torn down, they are just lying there now and have been
blocked off. Thank you Mr. Whitten for all the help.

Lockwood Resident Martin Reeves:
¢ Regarding the Lockwood over-pass, instead of the on-ramp, Mr. Reeves would like to urge
that the over-pass be re-built with three lanes in either direction. It’s backing the highway up
back to the world's largest (industrial center) and 10,000 to 20,000 more people are going to be
added to that highway. It takes hours to get to town. Consider re-building all three over-
passes moving the tax revenue in and out of the world’s largest (industrial center).

Vice Chairman McGuffey:

» Some time ago there were monuments approved to be installed at each end of USA Parkway.

¢ AtHighway 50 and USA Parkway, there are metal sculptures going in similar to those in
Carson City and Reno.

» Storey County is getting what is being called a “burning man” statute.

o This sculpture doesn't fit the industrial park theme and the County has been opposed to it.
NDOT is well aware of this. It was approved before the County was notified and therefore did
not have a say in the matter.

e According to NDOT, it appears the County has to go the Governor to change or not have this
monument.

Mr. Whitten: Did go to the Governor and has discussed this with Lee Bonner. The Governor will not
step into NDOT'’s day-to-day operations. It is acknowledged there was invitation to attend a
meeting, but did not see the specificity that monument design would be discussed - Storey County
did not attend and the monument was done without Storey County input. USA Parkway is a work of
art, but would not say the monument is. If there is any way to reconsider moving or not having this
monument, is a question that has been on the table for some time.

Mr. Hoffman: There are no plans to change that sculpture at this point. NDOT has conferred with
the Governor’s office who feels the public meeting last August sufficed for a vote. There were more

(attendees) in favor of the sculpture than were not.

Chairman McBride: How many Storey County residents attended?




Mr. Hoffman: Does not know. The meeting was called and included the sculpture as well as an
unveiling of the actual corridor and landscaping. Mr. Whitten said invitations were received but the
County did not attend. How can NDOT be blamed?

Mr. Whitten: Multiple invitations are received from NDOT regarding anything from . . .
Mr. Hoffman: Mr. Haymore attended the March meeting.

Mr. Whitten: The message is not whether or not the County attended - the message is the County
finds the monument “horrible, reprehensible”. The County owns from the County line to Peru Drive.
NDOT has the professional maintenance agreement. Is the monument going on right-of-way owned
by the County and maintained by NDOT or further back?

Mr. Hoffman: Does not know where it’s going, but this will be determined and the County will be
notified.

Mr. Whitten: The County will probably resist placing it on County property.

Vice Chairman McGuffey: Was at that meeting and found out that the monument was already
approved. It was all Lyon County people in attendance - the only known Storey County people were
Mr. McGuffey and Mr. Haymore.

Mr. Hoffman: Mr. Haymore was at the March meeting where the concept was discussed.

Vice Chairman McGuffey: None of those meetings indicated there would be a vote for a monument.
In looking at the records, there is no statement regarding voting on a monument.

Mr. Hoffman: That is a fair statement. This will be looked into.

Chairman McBride: Storey County is adamantly opposed to this monument anywhere on USA
Parkway.

Public Comment:

Public Works Director, Jason VanHavel: During the significant weather earlier this year, the
(NDOT) Virginia City maintenance station was short-staffed but did an incredible job. As the County
crews turned 100 hour weeks, they did the same - putting the County’s safety and mobility as a
priority - doing a fantastic job. Thank you.

Pat Whitten: Subject to approval, is heartened to see that the light at Electric Avenue and USA
Parkway made the list. This is not a commitment, but would NDOT be willing to consider entering
into a loan agreement, if the (County) Comptroller could find the $3 million, to get this done sooner
rather than later. Is it a funding or a design issue?

Mr. Hoffman: It's both. Would be happy to sit down and work on that. Mr. Hoffman said he would
like to apologize to Mr. Seymour and didn’t mean to upset him if he did.




Kris Thompson, TRI Project Manager: It is worth noting the great job NDOT and Ames
Construction have done on USA Parkway. Pedro Rodriguez, NDOT Project Manager, has been
superb and responsive. The (project) is well managed by NDOT and Ames Construction is one of the
best highway contractors ever seen. Thank you for the hard, professional work.

Lee Bonner: Thank you to Dean Haymore for everything he has done for not only Storey County but
for the State of Nevada.

Motion: I make a motion to accept the presentation by the Nevada Department of Transportation
and acceptance of the 2017-18 Transportation Report for Storey County, Action: Approve, Moved
by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

22. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Per NRS 354.624 selection of auditor for fiscal year ending
June 30, 2017.

Chairman McBride stated, although he has no pecuniary interest in the accounting firm of DiPietro &
Thornton, he has had a long business relationship with this firm dating back prior to Mr. DiPietro
and Mr. Thornton being principles in the firm. Chair McBride was not involved in this selection
process, did not make recommendations of anyone being considered for this contract, and therefore
will vote on this matter.

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher discussed the selection of DiPietro & Thornton. The audit committee
spent several hours meeting with four perspective firms, each very qualified. After considerable
review and discussion, the audit committee selected the CPA firm of DiPietro & Thornton of Reno.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I make a motion, per NRS 354.624 the Storey County Commissioners do hereby select
DiPietro &Thornton CPA as the auditor for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2017, Action: Approve,
Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion
carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

7. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
Sheriff Gerald Antinoro:
e The Sheriff's Office is rolling out a new electronic citation and accident reporting system which
should be on-line in two weeks. This system will transmit information directly to the court and
allows for direct interface with the State on crash reporting,.

St. Mary’s Art Center Executive Director A. Perry:
e Thank you to Storey County staff for considerable support, including;:
Assistance in paving of the driveway - elevating the appearance of the Art Center;
Demolition and replacement of the sign;
Bringing Hot August Nights to the property for a photo shoot;
Bringing in a tour of wedding planners;
Being invited to participate in the Comstock Kids Club

10

ANl




6. IT support and solutions;

7. Help in facilitating many projects including the Courthouse museum mural;

8. Support from the Commissioners;

9. Support with the grant process for renovating and restoration of the balcony and porch.

10. St. Mary’s will benefit from this complete, comprehensive up-grade which will be
beneficial and inviting to the community. Also enabling continuance of events such as
the Easter egg hunt, the pumpkin patch, children’s art program.

Vice Chairman McGuffey: A security system is finally being installed. This will open the door to
bringing in higher-quality artists. Everyone should check out all of the changes and updates. Erika is
doing a great job.

Chairman McBride: Thanks for the very informative update, a testament to “team Storey” - a phrase
developed by Dean Haymore, indicating the cooperation between departments. Erika and team are
doing a terrific job.

Community Chest Director Shaun Griffin:
o Echos what Erika said about County staff.
e Thank you to Jason VanHavel. The lot has been paved which has made life easier.
 Regarding the new building: ground has been compacted and leveled, specs for the metal
building will be reviewed tomorrow. A structure should be seen by mid-August.
e Anaward has been received from the Snow Foundation for approximately $5,000, to be used
for the purchase of an electronic database at the library.

Community Development Director Dean Haymore:

e Alot of single family houses are coming in to Mark Twain, the Highlands, and Virginia City
with a lot of plans being submitted. Approximately a 100 to 200% growth over preceding
years.

o Growth continues in TRI. Studio Six plumbing and foundations are going in; grading plans
are being permitted for work to start on the Marriott.

» Meetings continue with other clients and new properties. There is also a lot of moving into
larger buildings.

e Gary Hames has been working with staff and the Fire Department. Gary met with Tesla, did
tours and interviews. Tesla is hiring two or three new inspectors to be on-site due to the work
load being put on Storey County. Tesla will pay the new inspectors who will report to Storey
County. Operations are going very well down there.

Recorder Jen Chapman:

e There were several Recorder bills passed through the Legislative session. As a result various
recording fees will be increased over the next several months. The new fees will be on the
website which will be updated as the fees go into effect.

« The fees go to different programs, including foster care, indigent care, and some to the
general/tech fund.

Communications Dave Ballard:
e Looking at bringing “fiber” into the Courthouse building for an IT project. At the same time,
voice-over IP phone systems will be brought in which should be considerably less expensive.

11




Equipment has to be purchased “up front”. This should save money in the long run and allow
all phone lines in the County to be tied together.

e Fiber should be in this building within 60 to 90 days.

» Eventually the internet will be all fiber also.

Tourism Director Deny Dotson:
o The 4t of July fireworks will be set off from the old location behind the Silverland Hotel.
e Met with SHPPO regarding the Crystal Bar. Light maintenance and painting will be done, as
well as a mural on Taylor Street.
e Anadditional 400 bleacher seats have been added at the fairgrounds.

Public Works Director Jason VanHavel:

e Received notification that Federal Highways has approved a proposal for work in Six Mile
Canyon. The $1.4 million project consists of rebuilding the “blown out” culvert to a 25 year
standard - a significant upgrade of what is there now, restoring the shoulders to 4 feet where
possible and guard rails where it is not. It also includes local expenses to restore emergency
services in getting Six Mile repaired and open to the public.

e NDEP is requiring a plan for Gold Hill now that it is not part of the sewer project. This plan
will be in

e place by the end of the month,

e The swimming pool is open and has been receiving heavy use.

Administrative Officer/Planning Director Austin Osborne:

e Working on the Lands Bill for portions of Virginia City and Mark Twain. The County is doing
it's best despite hang-ups in Washington DC with changes in Administration, Congress, and
staffing. Working with Congressman Amodei’s office as well as the Porter Group in
Washington trying to get the bill simplified or attached to another bill. It is possible, but will
take some time.

County Manager Pat Whitten:

e Nothing substantial is happening on the zip code issue in Washington. It is in committee and
looking good, but has to go through the process.

e Progress is being made on a partial solution. Bill HR2193, Remote Transactions Parity Act of
2017 is gaining some bi-partisan support.

e The next Commission meeting will be July 18%, It is hoped that Jon Porter and his team will be
here to give updates on the Lands Bill, zip-code issue, as well as insight in to Washington DC.

e There are 49 Justices of the Peace, including Justice Herrington, in town for a Judicial
Conference.

Chairman McBride called for recess at 11:40 AM
Meeting reconvened at 11:51 AM

8. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment):
Vice Chairman McGuffey:
1. V&T Railroad ridership is up. Thanks to the efforts of VCTC Director Deny Dotson, and Joel
Dunn of the Carson City Convention Authority - there is already an impact with their
involvement.

12




2. Thank you to Joe Curtis for his assistance with FEMA regarding damage to the V&T.

3. The Virginia City Highlands annual Homeowners Association meeting was held last Saturday.
There was a great turnout. Attendees had a lot of questions with follow-up by the Sheriff,
Austin Osborne, and Vice Chair McGuffey.

4. Issues regarding parking at the mailboxes, the park, private road issues and community center
were discussed at the monthly meeting with Homeowners Associations’ Board Chairmen.

5. In the past, the possibility of lowering property tax rates were discussed. This was part of Mr.
McGuffey’s campaign when running for Commissioner.

iis
p

6.
7.

Mr. Gilman has previously placed this issue on the agenda, but it fell on “deaf ears”.
The County is receiving taxes from Switch, whose abatements were not as heavy as
Tesla.

Several more companies are moving including two hotels. There are 25 or more
business licenses being issued per month.

Funds need to be put aside for items voting machines, body cameras, and replacement
of the County’s AS400 accounting system.

Vice Chair McGuffey, with the support of fellow Commissioners, insists and demands
that this be addressed immediately and there should be no excuses for this not to
happen now. Whether it is 10 or 30 cents per hundred dollars of assessed value - this
needs to happen now. This is a great opportunity for Storey County to take the lead in
Nevada'’s future.

Mr. Whitten and Mr. Gallagher, I want you to take care of this now - let’s get it done.
Would like to hear what the impact will be at the next meeting.

Commissioner Gilman: Thank you Mr. McGuffey for bringing this to the attention of the floor. On
behalf of the residents of Storey County, this has been talked about for some time - you have my
100% support.

Chairman McBride: Recommends that Vice Chairman McGuffey have this (matter) agendized. It
was not agendized for this meeting.

Chairman McBride:

¢ The “Comstock billygoats” climbed the mountain and replaced all of the incandescent lights in
the “V” with new, red LED lights - which should hold up better. Funding for the new lights
came from the 601 Vigilance Committee.

o The annual 4% of July celebration is coming up. There is usually a great turnout, terrific
parade, lots of entertainment - including David John & the Comstock Cowboys performing in
the Bucket of Blood parking lot at 6 PM, followed by fireworks at approximately 9PM. C
Street will be closed between Sutton and Union during the concert at 6PM. Everyone is
encouraged to participate in the parade and other activities.

9. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution 17-456 Honoring Gary Hames

County Manager Whitten presented and read Resolution 17-456 honoring Gary Hames:
WHEREAS, GARY HAMES has faithfully served Storey County for over 29 years from 1988-2017; and

WHEREAS, GARY HAMES is dedicated to his job and the citizens of Storey County; and

13




WHEREAS, GARY HAMES has served with distinction, earning the respect of all he works with both
locally and statewide; and

WHEREAS, GARY HAMES's professional skills in several capacities have served to make Storey
County a better place to live, work and play.

THEREFORE LET IT BE KNOWN to all present that the Board of County Commissioners of Storey
County do hereby resolve to commend and honor GARY HAMES for exemplary service to the people
of Storey County, Nevada this 20t day of June 2017,

PASSED and ADOPTED the 20th day of June 2017.
Gary Hames talked about his 30 years of service with the County, and thanked his family.

Commissioner Gilman: When one door closes another opens - that is true with Gary. On behalf of
the Committee for Economic Development and Diversification for Storey County, we are sad to see
Dean retire, he will be greatly missed. Along with Dean, Gary and [ have had the opportunity to
attend more than one meeting with major relocating companies. Gary represented the County
professionally. We say goodbye on the “fire side” and welcome and thank you for what is being
done for the County’s economic side and development for the future.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: In honor of 30 years of service to Storey County in multiple capacities, I make a motion to
approve Resolution 17-456 honoring Gary Hames, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman

McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

10. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve Resolution 17-457 Honoring Dean Haymore.

County Manager Whitten said there are no words to describe what Dean does and means to this
County. The County would not be where it is today without Dean Haymore.

Mr. Whitten read the following Resolution:
WHEREAS, DEAN HAYMORE has faithfully served Storey County for 30 years from 1987-2017; and
WHEREAS, DEAN HAYMORE is dedicated to his job and the citizens of Storey County; and

WHEREAS, DEAN HAYMORE has served with distinction, earning the respect of all he works with
both locally and statewide; and

WHEREAS, DEAN HAYMORE's professional skills in several capacities have served to make Storey
County a better place to live, work and play.

14




THEREFORE LET IT BE KNOWN to all present that the Board of County Commissioners of Storey
County do hereby resolve to commend and honor DEAN HAYMORE for exemplary service to the
people of Storey County, Nevada this 20% day of June 2017.

PASSED and ADOPTED the 20th day of June 2017.

Mr. Haymore thanked the County for the opportunity to serve for 30 years, to meet with companies
to explain the opportunities of locating in Storey County. “Team Storey” has made Storey County
what it is. Mr. Haymore had a vision and a dream - never believed it would happen but it did.

Public Comment:

Shaun Smith, President-Black Eagle Consulting: Technical Engineers who have worked a long
time with Dean Haymore. Thank you to Storey County, the Commission, and particularly, Mr.
Haymore for vision and persistence that has opened the door for the flood of world class projects to
the County and State. This company has had the honor of working with Mr. Haymore for many
years. Mr. Smith thanked and congratulated Dean for his service and professionalism.

Mr. Whitten: There are thousands of other businesses that could make the same testimony from
Tesla to the smallest home builder.

Kris Thompson: Dean Haymore would be at TRI in the middle of the night - watching a concrete
pour, in the morning checking trenches being dug, amongst other things. This is hard on a person.
Mr. Haymore did this for decades. Mr. Haymore had the commitment to do this for years, sacrificing
his body and family time. On behalf of TRI and its owners, no one in this County has done more for
industrial and economic development.

Mike Burgess, Pension Fund Representative: Mr. Haymore was an exceptional ambassador for
Storey County. Comments Mr. Burgess received about Dean were, “is he for real”, “can this really
happen in the time frame he says” and a handshake guarantee is truthful. Many projects didn’t go to
other Counties, and even out of Nevada, because of Dean. The County, and Mr. Haymore, have put
in so much time and effort to make the park (TRI) happen. Thank you to Mr. Haymore for well-
representing the County.

Motion: In honor of 30 years of service to Storey County in multiple capacities, I make a motion to
approve Resolution 17-457 honoring Dean Haymore, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

11. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Authorize the County Manager to approve a contract with
the United States Geological Survey (USGS) up to $30,000 for the voluntary and limited monitoring of
groundwater levels and quality, aquifer conditions, and other geotechnical matters in the Virginia
City Highlands, Highland Ranches, and Virginia Ranches area of Storey County during the 2017-2018
fiscal year.

Planning Director Austin Osborne presented this item. David Smith from the United States
Geological Survey is present.

15




Mr. Osborne: Residents of the Highlands have expressed over the years that there are issues with
underground water quality and quantity in that area.

The County and the State Engineer’s office recognize there is a problem.

The USGS, working with the County, will be able to “hone down” and study the problem in
order to assist in planning for the future.

This contract would allow a comprehensive study of the Highlands area aquifer - in
consideration of the 2016 Storey County Master Plan.

The overall budget for this study is $254,300. This is not the bill to Storey County - this is a
total project amount to be divided over 5 years, split 50/50, equaling $26,000 per year. This
will be a year by year contract in order for the County to take into consideration the (yearly)
budget over the next 5 years.

This item was presented to the public. There have been several meetings in the Highlands
with two comprehensive presentations.

Commissioner McGuffey asked for a full “Town Hall” process, asking residents if the study
was wanted and if the funds should be expended for the study. It was overwhelmingly
supported.

This is a volunteer study. If Highlands residents would like USGS to do a study of their well,
they volunteer. If residents do not want USGS involved in a study on their property - do not
volunteer.

USGS is not a regulatory agency - but are surveyors.

This study will help the County plan for the Highlands, help to be eligible for grant money
and Federal assistance that might come along to help the homeowners associations and
residents create a General Improvement District, import water, come up with alternatives such
as more development with municipal services.

The study is not a “water grab”, it is not metering wells, or any of things that were concerning
with the Legislature about critical management.

If, in the next 10 to 20 years where the State was to say this area was a critical area of concern
and wanted to limit residents ability to use wells, this type of study would enable the County
to plan ahead of time and be proactive before such a move would be made by the State.

David Smith, US Geological Survey representative:

Previous presentations have been made available on the Storey County website.

This project would start July 15t on a year-to-year contract.

First year focus will be on exactly where to monitor since little has been done out there.

The second year will be testing the aquifer properties.

Third year will be looking at geo-physics - specifically the fractured aquifer and the viability
of the aquifer system.

Fourth year - develop a water table map from data collected and compare to a 1984 map to see
how water table has declined.

In specific sections of the Highlands, 30% of the wells have been re-drilled. The water table
decline in some areas is up to 150 feet.

Vice Chairman McGuffey: Why the delay in measuring the water level now?

Mr. Smith: Part of the problem was trying to figure out what the County’s priorities were. Then
aligning those with USGS as the research side, in combination with funding questions for USGS.
Two wells are currently being monitored. This year they have come up at least 25 feet - from

16




analysis, that’s about 3 years worth of water supply. Timing with budgetary requirements is
probably a delay.

Vice Chairman McGuffey: The money requested, is it mostly for testing and measuring of the wells?

Mr. Smith: A combination of that. USGS is looking at a re-charge of Lousetown creek and the
connection through dry years, as well as measuring precipitation in different areas to “hone in” on
water budget items. The final product will be a report, with a yearly presentation to the County. The
project will start July 1st.

Chairman McBride: All three (Commissioners) have seen USGS presentations at the Planning
Commission. This is a good idea and the information received is going to be vital. Have any of the
wells that have gone dry, been recharged? Some residents are bringing water in. Do wells that have
gone dry, recharge naturally?

Mr. Smith: Not aware of any specific wells. Multiple people have advised USGS that wells have
gone dry and water is being delivered. In weather like this year, wells recharge with up to 20 feet.
This depends on characteristics, uses, and how well connected it is to fractures. Longevity of the
recharge can be short-lived.

Public Comment:
None

Austin Osborne: Note that the contract is to be signed by County Manager Pat Whitten rather than
Austin Osborne as indicated on the contract.

Motion: Based on the recommendation by staff, I, Commissioner Jack McGuffey, authorize the
County Manager to approve a contract with the United States Geological Survey (USGS) up to
$30,000 for the voluntary and limited monitoring of groundwater levels and quality, aquifer
conditions, and other geotechnical matters in the Virginia City Highlands, Highland Ranches, and
Virginia Ranches area of Storey County during the 2017-18 fiscal year, Action: Approve, Moved
by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Second Reading Ordinance No. 17-275 amending Storey
County Code (Title 17 Zoning) 17.10 and 17.12 pertaining to marijuana and medical marijuana
establishments, including prohibition of allowed uses, special uses, accessory uses, or temporary uses
within all zoning districts, and other properly related matters.

Austin Osborne presented this item. Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis gave a comprehensive
analysis and description of this ordinance at the First Reading. Per Mr. Loomis, the words
“commercial cultivation” are to be added to prohibited uses in the Ordinance.

Chairman McBride: Can changes be made after the First Reading?

Outside Counsel, Robert Morris: Specific changes can be made as long as included in the motion
with a caveat that it is subject to the District Attorney’s approval.

17




Public Comment:
None

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, I,
Commissioner Jack McGuffey, motion to approve Second Reading of Ordinance No. 17-275
amending Storey County Code (Title 17 Zoning) 17.10 and 17.12 pertaining to marijuana and medical
marijuana establishments, including prohibition of allowed uses, commercial cultivation, special
uses, accessory uses, or temporary uses within all zoning districts, and other properly related matters,
Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman,
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

13. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Transfer of Appropriations in the General Budget in the
amount of $513,500.

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher: NRS 354.5978005 gives the County authority to augment the budget
with excess revenues, higher-than-anticipated ending fund balances, or decrease of expenditures

within funds.

A total of $338,000.00 from Contingency will be transferred to various General Fund Departments
and Special Revenue Funds. Mr. Gallagher reviewed amounts going to each department.

$175,000.00 will be transferred between various Functions/Funds. Mr. Gallagher reviewed transfers
in each department.

Vice Chairman McGuffey: On the Community Development overtime - the $30,000 is because of
Tesla? Shouldn’t Tesla be picking up that tab?

Mr. Whitten: It is not just because of Tesla, things are popping all over the place - the County agreed
to a fixed price for the use of third-party inspectors to take pressure off the County inspectors.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I move to approve the transfers of appropriations within General Fund Departments and
Special Revenue Funds pursuant to NRS 354.598005 in the amount of $513,500.00, Action: Approve,
Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion
carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

14. RECESS TO CONVENE THE 474 FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD

15. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Transfer of Appropriations in the 474 Fire District in the
amount of $54,500.

Mr. Gallagher reviewed 474 Fire District Transfer of Appropriations in the amount of $54,500 from
Contingency to various accounts.

18




Public Comment:
None

Motion: I move to approve the transfers of appropriations within 474 Fire District General Fund
Department pursuant to NRS 354.598005 in the amount of $54,500, Action: Approve, Moved by:
Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

16. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution 17-460 an augmentation of the 474
Fire District Mutual Aid Fund in the amount of $58,000.

Mr. Gallagher: The Mutual Aid Fund was designed to account for labor, assets on all projects outside
of the 474 Fire District. This is always an estimated amount, this year there was more than
anticipated. There will always be an augmentation in the Mutual Aid Fund.

Mr. Gallagher reviewed the transfers from contingency in the amount of $54,500. This amount will
bring the budgeted amounts closer to actual.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I move to approve Resolution 17-460 which accepts the Augmentation for the 474 Fire
District Mutual Aid Fund pursuant to NRS 354.598005 in the amount of $58,000, Action: Approve,
Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion
carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

17. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Storey County Fire Protection District Cooperative
Agreement and Annual Operating Plan with the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District.

Fire Chief Jeff Nevin stated this an annual renewal of an agreement along with a 5-year cooperative
agreement with Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District.

The agreement provides service to either agency free of charge for the first 24 hours with the ability
after that to be able to bill (for services). These documents update the rates and the legal-ese.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: | move to approve the approve the Cooperative Agreement and Annual Operating Plan
between the Storey County Fire Protection District and the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
and authorize the Chairman to sign, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey,
Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary:
Yes=3)

18. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Storey County Fire Protection District 2017 Operating Plan
between the USDA, Forest Service Humbolt-Toiyabe National Forest and the USDI Bureau of land
Management Carson City District.

19




Fire Chief Nevin: This is an annual update of the five-year plan signed last year with the Federal
agencies, giving the County the ability to assist these agencies as well as enabling those agencies to
contact Storey County Fire for assistance.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I move to approve the approve Operating Plan between the Storey County Fire Protection
District and the USDA, Forest Service Humbolt-Toiyabe National Forest and the USDI Bureau of
Land Management Carson City District and authorize the Chairman to sign and Fire Chief to sign,
Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman,
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

19. ADJOURN TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY WATER AND SEWER BOARD -

20. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Transfer of appropriations in the Water and Sewer Funds
in the amount of $3,000.

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher: This transfer of appropriations is for salaries of $3,000 for
unanticipated increases in staff.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: [ move to approve the transfers of appropriations within Storey County Water Fund
pursuant to NRS 354.598005 in the amount of $3,000, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

21. ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS

23. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution 17-461, setting the Tax Rate Levy
for 2017/2018

Commissioner Gilman requested this item be pulled for future discussion in the face of the coming
change. Setting the tax rate levy would not be in keeping with the request to lower the tax rates. Mr.
Gilman feels it would not be appropriate in face of the up-coming change.

Chairman McBride: Isn’t there a timeframe issue when this needs to be done?

Mr. Gallagher: Yes, it was in February - or March. This is for authorization of the tax rate for this

coming year. I believe Commissioner McGuffey is implying a change for the year 18-19. The 17-18
year has already been done and filed with Department of Taxation. This is clean-up in the form of a

20




Resolution. 1 understood that workshops to be held in July were to discuss a change for the 18-19
year.

Commissioner Gilman: Does not understand this, and will be taking a firm position to not approve
this tax rate and wants to see it lowered for this 17-18 year.

Clerk/Treasurer Vanessa Stephens: In order to open the fiscal year and start the tax role, that tax rate
needs to be approved. Because the first (meeting) date in July is cancelled, that date is not available
to set the rate. Tax bills cannot be done and sent out, and the tax roll cannot be completed until this
resolution is passed.

Mr. Whitten: A special meeting could be held on July 5% or 6t. The answers can be received from
the Department of Taxation by then. It is suggested this be continued and this item discussed at a
special meeting.

Commissioner Gilman: Will be drawing a line in the sand and takes the position that he wants to see
the tax rate for the residential community lowered in 2017-18.

Mr. Gallagher: It will not only be for residential but also for all businesses.

Mr. Whitten: Believes this is an accurate statement. Rolling the tax rate back has been discussed in
the last few months. Once the analysis is complete it can be presented at a special meeting.

Commissioner Gilman: Can something be set for the end of next week?

Mr. Gallagher: A letter was received from the Department of Taxation in February regarding change
in tax rate. The letter was returned to the Department indicating that the rate was not going to be
changed and is not sure what the Department of Taxation will do. This will be given the best shot it
can if this is what the Commission wants.

Mr. Whitten: The letter to the Department of Taxation in March is typically the staff’s
recommendation and not officially changing the tax rate. That is what this process is. A special
meeting will be scheduled.

Commissioner Gilman: Mr. Gallagher has indicated in the past that there may be alternatives
regarding this.

Mr. Gallagher: The possibility of giving rebates has been previously discussed. This has been
addressed with Tom Gransbury and the Department of Taxation. According to Taxation it doesn’t
appear this has ever been done. The hesitation is that last year the County abated $5 million in taxes.
And there is concern about the tremendous amount of infrastructure out there (TRI).

There was discussion regarding a date for a special meeting.

Mr. Whitten recommends 10:00 AM on Friday, June 30t

21




Motion: I move to re-schedule Resolution 17-461 setting the tax rate levy for fiscal year 2017-18 to
June 30t at 10:00AM in this Courtroom, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey,
Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary:
Yes=3)

24. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Variance 2017-008 by Insurance Auto Auctions. The
applicant requests a use variance allowing a previously permitted non-conforming use to remain in-
place under existing ownership conditions. The proposed use subject to the variance request is
outdoor storage of inoperable motor vehicles and auctioning of those inoperable vehicles at portions
of subject property located at 4086 Peru Drive, McCarran (Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center), Storey
County, Nevada, APN 005-071-16.

Item continued to August 15, 2017,

Chairman McBride called for recess at 1:27 PM
Meeting reconvened at 1:38 PM

25. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: 2010-011-A1-2017 Special Use Permit Amendment by
Encore DEC, Mike Burgess. The applicant requests an Amended Special Use Permit to convert an
existing diesel fuel production facility to a renewable plant-based oil feedstock diesel fuel production
facility. Modifications to the existing facility include installation of hydrotreatment process unit,
hydrogen reformer, additional storage tanks, an operations building, a fire protection building, new
roadway access and a rail spur. The project includes a request for additional height, up to 90 feet in
height for proposed structures/equipment onsite. All improvements will be located at 611 Peru
Drive, McCarran (Tahoe Reno Industrial Center), Storey County, Nevada, APN 005-031-14

Planner Kathy Canfield presented this request for an amended Special Use Permit which will include
amendments and rehabilitation of the site.
e A different fuel process will be utilized than was previously used.
e This will still be diesel fuel production but will use plant-based fuels.
e [t was determined that an amended SUP is needed due to use of different and hazardous
materials in the processing.
e The two hazardous materials used will be methane and hydrogen - generated in one area and
immediately used in another.
e The State of Nevada has determined that 10,000 1bs for each of these materials reaches the
threshold requirements of hazardous materials.
e Applicant has worked with the Fire District and a review was conducted by a third party.
e After reviewing all proposed mitigation procedures, the Fire Department is looking at this as
more for combustible concerns not necessarily the hazardous materials.
e With the mitigation procedures, the Fire Department is comfortable with the applicant is
proposing to do.
e A condition was added calling for participation in the Fire Apparatus Program in TR], to be
determined at the building permit stage.
e The Planning Commission recommended approval with inclusion of the foregoing condition.

Mr. Whitten: Thank you to applicant, Mike Burgess, for cooperating with the Fire Department. The

County looks forward to the re-purposing of a building that has been long vacant.
22




Public Comment:
None

Kathy Canfield read the Findings of Fact:

The applicant requests an Amended Special Use Permit to convert an existing diesel fuel
production facility to a renewable plant-based oil feedstock diesel fuel production facility.
Modifications to the existing facility include installation of hydrotreatment process unit,
hydrogen reformer, additional storage tanks, an operations building, a fire protection building,
new roadway access and a rail spur. The project includes a request for additional height, up to
90 feet in height for proposed structures/equipment onsite. All improvements will be located
at 611 Peru Drive, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada, APN 005-031-14.

The Amended Special Use Permit conforms to the 2016 Storey County Master Plan for the
McCarran planning area in which the subject property is located. A discussion supporting this
finding for the Special Use Permit is provided in Section 2.E of this staff report and the
contents thereof are cited in an approval of this Special Use Permit.

The subject property is located within an existing industrial neighborhood in the McCarran
area of Storey County. The zoning is based on the 1999 Storey County Zoning Ordinance
which identifies this property as I-2 Heavy Industrial. The proposed diesel fuel production
facility requires an Amended Special Use Permit.

Granting of the Amended Special Use Permit, with the conditions of approval listed in Section
4 of this report, will not under the circumstances of the particular case adversely affect to a
material degree the health or safety of persons/property in the neighborhood of the subject
property. The project is expected to meet the safety and health requirements for the subject
area. The use will also be subject to building and fire plan review in order to ensure
compliance with federal, state and other codes.

The Special Use Permit will not impose substantial adverse impacts or safety hazards on the
abutting properties or the surrounding area, and it will comply with all federal, state and

county regulations.

The conditions under the Special Use Permit do not conflict with the minimum requirements
in the 1999 Storey County Zoning Ordinance Sections 17.37 I-2 Heavy Industrial and 17.62
Special Uses.

Granting of the Special Use Permit will not, under the circumstances of the particular case,
adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of persons working in the
neighborhood or area of the subject property and will not be materially detrimental to the
public welfare or materially injurious to property improvements in the neighborhood or area
of the subject property.

This Amended Special Use Permit allows for additional height up to a maximum of 90 feet for
proposed structures/equipment onsite.

23




Motion, In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission,

the Findings of Fact under Section 3.A of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate by the
Board, and in compliance with the conditions of approval, I, Commissioner Jack McGuffey,
move to approve Amended Special Use Permit 2010-011-A1-2017 to convert an existing diesel
fuel production facility to a renewable plant-based oil feedstock diesel fuel production facility.
Modifications to the existing facility include installation of hydrotreatment process unit,
hydrogen reformer, additional storage tanks, an operations building, a fire protection building,
new roadway access and a rail spur. The project includes a request for additional height, up to
90 feet in height for proposed structures/equipment onsite. All improvements will be located
at 611 Peru Drive, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada, APN 005-031-14.

Kathy Canfield read the Fire Department Recommended Conditions of Approval: The use on the
subject property must comply with special requirements of Storey County and the Storey
County Fire Protection District for accessing buildings and structures exceeding 55 feet in
height, including requirements to mitigate financial and other impacts caused by the increased
building and structure height, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey,
Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary:
Yes=3)

26. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Discussion and comments on possible amendments to
Storey County Code (SCC) including comprehensive update to Title 16 Subdivisions; SCC 17.10
definitions related to zoning; SCC 17.12 setbacks and special use permitting for certain accessory
structures in the R1 residential zone; removing certain building and site design standards from SCC
17.56 Planned Unit Developments; amending the process for planned unit development applications
and approvals in SCC 17.56, and creating a building and design standards manual applicable to
certain subdivision maps, parcel maps, planned unit developments, multi-family residential
complexes, uses located within the Industrial Professional zone, and certain shopping center
complexes, and other related matters.

Senior Planner Austin Osborne gave an update on the possible amendments to Title 16 and Title17
correcting language regarding how to apply for a planned unit and subdivision. The purpose of
having this item on the agenda is to let the public once again know that these amendments are being
worked on. At this point, this item is out for anyone to ask the Commission and staff questions about
where this is going, otherwise the amendments will continue to be drafted.

Public Comment:
Nicole Barde, Storey County Resident: Currently, are there any applications for these residential

areas in the industrial area? Are there any anywhere in the County?

Mr. Osborne: There are no applications for planned unit developments or subdivisions. None are
occurring in Storey County at this time.

Ms. Barde: The planned unit development in Painted Rock is not going to happen?

Mr. Osborne: At this time there are no applications for this and nothing is going on. It is known
there is interest in the area.

24




Ms. Barde: It has been mentioned that you might be looking at ways to minimize high density if a
developer wants to do a project - say, in the Painted Rock area - that perhaps (that developer) could
be acreage in the Highlands and keep it in reserve, or in a conservancy. Is that in any way part of the
Master Plan?

Mr. Osborne: Yes, in the Master Plan - through public workshops - the public indicated an interest
in this concept, called transfer development rights. The Master Plan does provide for ordinances that
would allow for transfer development rights and how the County would like to structure it.

27. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Licensing Board Second Readings:

A. CHIPBLASTER, INC. - Contractor / 13605 S. Mosiertown ~ Meadville, PA (Contractor)

B. SCHOELER OF AMERICA, INC. - Contractor / 11220 Elm Lane ~ Charlotte, NC (machinery)
C. CONSTRUCTION SAFETY EXPERTS - Pro / 7032 Copperleaf Place ~ Cary, NC (safety
consultant)

D. SOUTHEASTERN SEATING - Contractor / 903 E 17th Ave ~ Tampa, FL (bleacher assembly)

E. CAIRE - Contractor / 4 Rue Nicolas Copernic ~ 41100 Vendome FRANCE (machine installation)
F. COTMAC ELECTRONICS, INC. - Pro / 830 Kirts Blvd ~ Troy, MI (engineer)

G. THE BRUNCH BOX, LLC - General / 450 McClur Circle ~ Sparks (food truck)

H. SIMAC TECH S.R.L. - Contractor / via Delindustria 24/26 Fiorano Modenese ITALY (machine
installation)

I. SILVER QUEEN SISTERS dba Cobb Mansion Bed & Breakfast - General / 18 S A (bed and bkfst)
VvC

J. QUALITY DESIGN SERVICES, INC. - Pro / 3914 Highwood Pl ~ Okemas, MI (engineering)

K. TYRELL RESOURCES, INC. - Contractor / 275 Hilltop Drive ~ Redding, CA (contractor)

L. BEE CLEEN CARPET & GLASS - General / PO Box 21932 ~ Carson City (office cleaning)

M. TEST RESEARCH USA, INC. - General / 832 Jury Ct ~ San Jose, CA (sales and service of
equipment)

N. PRECISION CRANE & HOIST SVCS. - Contractor / 2047 Pabco Rd ~ Henderson, NV (crane
service)

O.JJRT, LLC - General / 1284 Cedar Book Court ~ Gardnerville (contractor)

P. ZIMMER GROUP US, INC. - Contractor / 1095 7th Street ~ Hickory, NC (machinery)

Q. HEMI SYSTEMS - Contractor / 126 Industrial Drive ~ Maysville, GA (rigging contractor)

R. ANDERSON LOCK AND KEY - Contractor / 601 Pyramid ~ Sparks (locksmith)

S. CALHOUN & POXON CO., INC. - Contractor / 5330 Alhambra Ave ~ Los Angeles (machinery)
T. EDGEWATER AUTOMATION, LLC - Contractor / 481 Renaissance Dr ~ St. Joseph, MI (equip
install)

U. TEC GROUP, INC. - General / 850 Stephenson Hwy ~ Troy, MI (staffing)

V. KINETIC SYSTEMS, INC. - Contractor / 4900 Prospectus Dr ~ Durham, NC (contractor)

W. WHR DESIGN PC - Pro / 201 Fuller Road, FL5, Albany, NY (architect)

X. JETT SOLUTIONS, LLC - Contractor / 7322 N Hwy 8a ~ Duncan, OK (contractor)

Y. NOZATO ELECTRICAL ENG & CONST - Contractor / 2-4-1 Kashiwazato Osaka JAPAN
(Contractor)

Z. VALIANT INTERNATIONAL, INC. - Contractor / 6555 Hawthorne Dr ~ Windsor CANADA
(equip install)

AA. KURTEC, INC. - Contractor / 10449 Copper Cove Dr ~ Ft. Wayne, IN (automation)

BB. GIGAIMPLIANTI, LLC - Contractor / 4650 Wedekind Rd ~ Sparks, NV (equipment installation)
CC. WACHTER, INC. - Contractor / 16001 W 99th St ~ Lenexa, KS (contractor)

25




DD. OOKSAN IMT CO., LTD - Contractor / 1316 Hammadero Gyeongurn KOREA (equipment
installation)

EE. ZOLLERN GMBH & CO KG - Contractor / Hitzkofer Strasse Sigmaringen GERMANY (equip
installation)

FF. CLOCKWORK - General / 423 Delaware Street ~ Kansas City, MO (staffing)

GG. OSE / VALEO - Contractor / 2 chemin du Pullousard, 49130 Los Ponts-de-ca FRANCE
(machine install)

HH. NEXTGEN SRO - Contractor / 24ES Cadca SLOVAKIA (equipment installation)

11. SEBASTIAN SOBOTA - HB / 414 Ave de la Bleu de Clair ~ Lockwood (handyman)

J]. SPARK TALENT ACQUISITION, INC. - General / 701 S Carson Street ~ Carson City (staffing)
KK. SHAHEEN BEAUCHAMP BUILDERS, LLC - Contractor / 318 N Carson St ~ Carson City
(contractor)

LL. SIGNAL X TECHNOLOGIES, LLC - Contractor / 15800 Centennial Dr ~ Northville, MI
(equipment install)

MM. HINO SYSTECH CORPORATION - Pro / 1-20-2 Minamirokugo, Otaku, Tokyo JAPAN
(engineer)

NN. UNDERGROUND VIDEO TECHNOLOGY, INC. - Contractor / 65 McCart ~ Fernley (sewer
cleaning)

OO. TESLA, INC. - General / 201 Ireland Drive (warehouse material storage) TRI

PP. GEMA USA, INC. - Contractor / 4141 W 54th St ~ Indianapolis, IN (equipment installation)
QQ. EVAPCO, INC. - Contractor / PO Box 1300 ~ Westminster, MO (warranty work)

RR. MTM-CS LP - Contractor / 1170 Howell Hill Rd ~ Atlanta, GA (equipment installation)

SS. ANGUIL ENVIRONMENTAL SYSTEMS, INC. - Contractor / 8855 N 55th St ~ Milwaukee, W1
(equip install)

TT. DL AUTOMATION & CONTROL SYSTEMS - Contractor / 13/14 PremBhgyan Bundar
MUMBAI (cont.)

On behalf of Community Development, Pat Whitten recommended approval of all items A through
TT.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: [ move to approve Items A through TT., Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

28. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher: Spoke with Kelly Langley, a supervisor at the Department of
Taxation, regarding the tax rate issue. When the tax rate was submitted in February - it was the tax
rate that was going to be used with next year’s budget. That budget, with that tax rate, has been
approved. Consequently, as long as the final budget has been approved, it is Ms. Langley’s opinion
that nothing can be done until the 17-18 year. That budget will begin in February and at that time,
the tax rate can be changed. Mr. Gallagher will meet with District Attorney Langer to see where the
legal side is. Ms. Langley is not with the Attorney General’s Office. It is likely that this Resolution is

26




merely a formality and probably should have been done when the information was sent to
Department of Taxation in February or March.

Mr. Whitten: Recommends getting this information from the Department of Taxation in writing so
that a legal foundation for any action can be determined. The February action was, to the best of his
knowledge, not done by the Commission - it was simply (Taxation’s) question about whether or not
the County was going to raise the rate or keep it the same. Historically, the answer has been the
same. Mr. Whitten was told that in Legislative years, there is an opportunity to re-open the budget
by the end of June. This may be related to Legislative issues only.

Chairman McBride: This gives the County a 10-day window for the Comptroller to do the research
and analysis.

Gold Hill Resident, Sam Toll: Once again asked that Public Comment be moved to the beginning of
the meeting rather than at the end.

29. ADJOURNMENT
The meeting was adjourned by the Chair at 2:06 PM

30. CLOSED SESSION

Call to Order Closed Session meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose of conferring with
County management and legal counsel regarding labor negotiations with the Storey County
Firefighters Association IAFF Local 4277 and Storey County Sheriff's Office Employees Assocation
NAPSO Local 9110. This meeting will commence immediately following the regular commission
meeting.

Respectfully submitted,

1044 IJ?

Vanessa Stephens

2




Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: August 1, 2017 Estimate of Time Required: 0-5 min.
Agenda Item Type: Regular Agenda

1. Title: Approval of minutes for June 30, 2017.

2. Recommended motion: Approve as submitted.

3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk Contact Number: 775.847.0969

4. Staff Summary: Minutes of the June 30, 2017 Storey County Commissioners Board
meeting.

5. Supporting Materials: See attached

6. Fiscal Impact: 0

7. Legal review required: No

8. Reviewed by:
@ Department Head Department Name: Clerk

County Manager Other Agency Review:

9. Board Action:

[ 1 Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied [ ] Continued




STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING

TUESDAY, JUNE 30, 2017 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

MINUTES
MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
JACK MCGUFFEY VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

ROLL CALL: Chairman McBride, Vice-Chairman McGuffey, Commissioner Gilman, Comptroller
Hugh Gallagher, Clerk & Treasurer Vanessa Stephens, Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis,
Administrative Officer/Planning Director Austin Osborne, Sheriff Gerald Antinoro, Community
Relations Director Cherie Nevin, Management Analyst Jessie Fain, Director of Security Melanie
Keener, Erik Schoen with Community Chest, and Virginia City Senior Center Director Stacey
Gilbert.

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
Meeting was called to order by Chairman McBride at 10:00 A.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Chairman McBride led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for June 30, 2017

Administrative Officer Austin Osborne requested item 41 of the Consent Agenda be heard as part of
the regular agenda.

Public Comment:
None.

Motion: Approve Agenda for June 30,2017, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

4. CONSENT AGENDA
I Approval of Memorandum of Understanding between Storey County and the Storey

County Senior Center.
I




Community Outreach Cherie Nevin: The County is owner of the real estate known as the Storey
County Senior Center. In 2005, the Senior Center was established as a non-profit organization with a
Board of Directors. Last year there were many changes with the Senior Center, including
appointment of a new director - Stacey Gilbert. Ms. Gilbert got the Center back on-track and where it
should be. During this time, a Memorandum of Understanding was developed and is presented
today. The Memorandum clarifies what the County does, what the Senior Center does, and how both
entities can work together to provide the best services to the seniors in Storey County.

Ms. Gilbert will assist with the Lockwood Senior Center.

In the budget process, the Commission approved that the Senior Center Director would be a County
employee. This will bring continuity to the operation of senior services - providing effective services.

Ms. Nevin reviewed changes to the Memorandum:

e Item #2: Strike the last sentence - “the funds so appropriated shall be retained by the County
Treasurer for the benefit of the corporation.” Funds are sent quarterly to the Senior Center.

e Page 2, #5: Strike the first paragraph relating to the Comptroller - the Senior Center does all of
its own accounting for the funds given to them. The paragraph will now state: “the
Comptroller will provide all payroll processing for the Senior Center Director and other future
County employees employed to work at the Senior Center.

Motion: Approve Memorandum of Understanding, as amended, between Storey County and the
Storey County Senior Center, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded
by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

5. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
Erik Schoen, Community Chest:
e Regarding the construction, the dirt work has been completed and the foundation has been
started. Wall construction will begin in August.
e A “farmers market” is held every Wednesday which is run by the children attending the
summer program.

Keith Loomis, Deputy District Attorney:
e A published opinion has been received from the Nevada Supreme Court upholding the Board
of County Commissioners’ action denying liquor licenses to the Delta and Bonanza Saloons.

6. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)
Vice Chairman McGuffey:

e The monthly NACO meeting was held last week. An interesting item discussed was
“marijuana day”. Storey County has opted out - therefore will not be receiving tax revenue
from sales. However, the County will receive $88,000 per year from taxes collected. Itis
recommended that these funds be used for law enforcement.

7. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action): Approval of Resolution 17-463 in support of Fulcrum Bio-
Energy’s efforts to obtain bonding and funding support through the Nevada Department of Business
& Industry.




Austin Osborne: Fulcrum Bio-Energy has obtained a Special Use Permit to operate a waste, fuel
energy production facility and have been working to get USDA funding in place. Fulcrum has been
in good standing with the County since started in 2008 and has been communicating on a regular
basis regarding things that are going on at the proposed facility.

Staff is recommending approval of this Resolution which is saying to the Nevada Department of
Business & Industry that Fulcrum is in good standing with the County, has been a good economic
development partner, and has gone through all of the County’s requirements.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I, Commissioner McGuffey, make a motion to approve Resolution 17-463 in support of
Fulcrum Bio-Energy’s efforts to obtain bonding and funding support through the Nevada
Department of Business & Industry, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey,
Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary:
Yes=3)

8. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution 17-461 setting the Tax Rate Levy for
the 2017 /2018 fiscal year.

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher: This item was continued from the last meeting where there was
discussion as to whether or not the tax rate could be changed for the next fiscal year, beginning
tomorrow (July 15). It has been determined that this cannot be done as the final budget has been
approved by the Tax Commission. The tax rate for the 2017-2018 fiscal year will be 3.4607.

Mr. Osborne: The team (Mr. Gallagher, Mr. Osborne, Jessie Fain, and Deputy District Attorney Keith
Loomis) recognizes the request and proclamation by the Board that a tax rate reduction be made
immediately.

e Unfortunately for this year, the required time in which the tax rate can be set has passed.

e The Board can direct staff to look at setting this in motion for the 2018-19 year per the previous
requests.

e A resolution will be prepared for the July 18t Commission meeting, stating something of the
sort that within 30 days the Comptroller’s Office will recommend to the Commission a
property tax reduction plan with proposed tax rates for each year during the ten year period.

e The rates should be lowered each and every year.

e Itis understood that the reduction in tax rate during the early years may be smaller, with
larger reductions perhaps over a period of time.

e Within 120 days of this resolution, the Comptroller will report to the Commission an estimate
of revenues from real and personal property taxes, franchise fees, and major income sources
for each year during the ten year period.

e A decision and report must be made to the Department of Taxation in February 2018, in order
to begin July 1, 2018.

Chairman McBride: Will there be a presentation at the next meeting or will a workshop be scheduled
at that meeting (July 18t)? '




Mr. Osborne: Between now and then, work will be done with the Comptroller and District
Attorney’s office to look at what the structure will be. It would be an item - it could be a workshop
with potential action.

Commissioner Gilman: At the July 18t meeting, would the intent be to establish framework to be
followed in the future?

Mr. Osborne: That's correct.
Commissioner Gilman: Is a formal request needed?

Chairman McBride: Believes this was done last Tuesday. Everyone is on the same page regarding
this issue of the tax rate.

Public Comment:

Sam Toll, Gold Hill Resident: It is interesting that this topic has been discussed for years, what is it -
Commissioner McGuffey- that has been learned recently that prompted the call for this special
meeting?

Chairman McBride: That question is not appropriate as this meeting is being held to discuss the
Resolution setting the tax rate - what Mr. Toll is asking is not an agendized item.

Mr. Toll: In that case, thank you for coming forth on something that has been heard about for years
and I am looking forward to seeing this take place.

Mr. Osborne: Today’s meeting is not a special meeting to discuss a special item but is being held to
get a Resolution to set and approve a tax rate which has to be done by now.

Motion: I, Commissioner Jack McGuffey, move to approve Resolution 17-461 setting the Tax Rate
Levy for fiscal year 2017/2018, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey,
Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary:
Yes=3)

9. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Transfer of Appropriations in the General Budget in the
amount of $178,961.00.

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher reviewed transfer of appropriations from contingency in the amount of
$178,961 to various General Fund accounts.

Public Comment:
Sam Toll: The $45,000 being transferred for the Sheriff’s Office - is this a potential action or one that
has already happened? Doesn’t the County the POOL insurance to potentially cover this?

Chairman McBride: Depends on how it’s handled. If the County is sued and loses, the POOL will
pay. If an agreement is made prior, where determination is made to settle - on advice from legal
counsel, and it is suggested that it will cost less than to go to Court, that's what is done. The




deductible can be less than what is being paid out, but the premium can go up should the County
lose in court.

Mr. Toll: Mr. Gallagher mentioned at the last meeting there were two items, approximately $50-
60,000 for Mr. Hames and Mr. Haymore. We are hearing now about an additional $20,000. Can that
be clarified?

Mr. Gallagher: The items for Community Development were for PERS and Medicare.

Motion: I move to approve transfer of appropriations in the General Budget in the amount of
$178,961.00, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by:
Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

10. RECESS TO CONVENE THE STOREY COUNTY BROTHEL LICENSE BOARD
11. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Work Card appeal by Monica Ryan.
Commissioner Gilman recused himself from discussion and vote on this item.

Applicant Monica Ryan stated she has worked for the Mustang Ranch for 15 years and has never had
arevocation. Ms. Ryan reviewed background information.

Sheriff Antinoro discussed the background checks for Ms. Ryan. Nothing would preclude Ms. Ryan
from obtaining a work card.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: [ motion to reinstate work card to Monica Ryan, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice
Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

12. ADJOURN TO CONVENE AS THE 474 FIRE DISTRICT BOARD

13. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Transfer of Appropriations in the 474 Fire District in the
amount of $23,000.00

Mr. Gallagher: This is an additional transfer of appropriations from contingency. Mr. Gallagher
reviewed the accounts affected by the transfers.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I make a motion to approve the transfer of appropriations within the 474 Fire District
General Fund Department pursuant to NRS 354.598005 in the amount of $23,000, Action:
Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote:
Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

S




14. ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
15. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

Sam Toll: Once again asking to move the Public Comment section of the meeting from the end to the
beginning. Mr. Toll had a discussion with Ms. Langer who indicated she would talk to Chairman
McBride regarding this. It sends the right message to the Public, that they come first.

Hugh Gallagher: Sincere thanks to Jessie Fain and Jennifer McCain for assistance with the
appropriations. Steps will be taken in the future to insure these items (appropriations) will be done
sooner.

16. ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned by the Chair at 10:49 AM

Respectfully submitted,

By:m&!&&?fwb&
Vanessa Stephens €lerk-Treasurer




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 8/1/17 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ |

1. Title: First reading for General License. Applicant is Turk Cobell, managing member of
Electric Avenue Hotel LLC located at 795 USA Pkwy., McCarran, Nevada.

2. Recommended motion: | motion to approve as part of the consent agenda the first reading,
General License for Electric Avenue Hotel LLC located at 795 USA Pkwy., McCarran,

Nevada.
3. Prepared by: Brandy Gavenda, Administrative Assistant %/W

Department: SCSO Telephone: 775-847-0959

4. Staff summary: First reading for General License. Applicant is Turk Cobell, managing
member of Electric Avenue Hotel LLC located at 795 USA Pkwy., McCarran, Nevada.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda letter

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

X Department Head DepartmentName: Gera%ntinor}_/,
/—r/ / o C g i
=
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—_——
[ S——

Agenda Item No.



STOREY COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE

Gerald Antinoro
Sheriff

July 18, 2017

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office
Pat Whitten, County Manager

Fr: Brandy Gavenda %

Please add the following item(s) to the August 1, 2017 Commissioners Consent
Agenda:

LICENSE BOARD

First Reading:

A. General Business License - Turk Cobell, Managing Member, 795 USA Pkwy.,
McCarran

LIQUOR BOARD

First Reading:

B. On & Off Sale Liquor License — Turk Cobell, Managing Member, 795 USA
Pkwy., McCarran

PO Box 498
205 South C Street
Virginia City, NV 89440
Office: (775) 847-0959 Fax: (775) 847-0924



Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: August 1, 2017 Estimate of Time Required: 0 min
Agenda Item Type: Consent Agenda

1. Title: For possible action: Approval of payroll claims in the amount of $869,429.60 and
accounts payable claims in the amount of $976,650.81.

2. Recommended motion: Approve as part of the Consent Agenda.

3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens

Department: Treasurer Contact Number: 775.847.0969

4. Staff Summary: Attached.

5. Supporting Materials: See attached
6. Fiscal Impact: Attached

7. Legal review required: No

8. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name: Treasurer

County Manager Other Agency Review:

9, Board Action:

[ 1 Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied | ] Continued




z

0Z°0L6°LT

0Z°0L6 LT

IVLOL

abeg

B6°S6T
0T°092°T
96°L¥Z T
SE"EL

LI 92
00°00T
¥8°00T
00°66T
60°0T
19°9Le
69785
§5°09%
8T 22t
Ze"z9t
SE°T9

LNDOWY

aIva

YANOISSIWWOD

NOTIVZIYOHLNV ANV MITAZY J0 INIWIOQITMONNDY

ovIT
[t} A0
0PTT
SETT
SETT
SETT
SETT
LETT
SETY
SETT
SETITY
SETY
SETT
SETT
SETT

H#SNVAL

Lr/1e/L
LT/1e/L
L1/tz/L
Lt/tz/L
Lr/1z/L
LI/1e/L
LI/1Z/L
LT/12/L
LI/1e/L
LI/IZ/L
LT/1Z/L
LT/12/L
LT/1Z/L
LI/1Z/L
Lr/tz/L

aiva

SLNNOW 3NIDNZ -S068S0S
SEATL-pPBISUL

SHIIL -6Z099¥a

T304 QVIHNVIYE

IVEW SdId OVIHNYINE
TaNd TIId QVIHNVINE
SHAITA4NS OI¥ DE MAN
ONILSEL Ld3D

HANOD ¥vLd

TINA TYI3 NIMIO0D
SUIVAAA WAZO0Q

1404 F¥Id INOLSHLVE
TaNd SAI4 NIMAOOD
TaNd FTHIA INOLSHINVHA
FOWLSOd

NOIILdI¥DSHa

YHLSIOIY QYWD FASWYHOUNA

ALNOOD AZJOLS

ATIIZHO- LNIHL

FAIL OW-INIAL

HIIL OW -INIUL

TOVE WIATIS HOSITIIL
WW¥d SAFTIAIY HOSITIIL
NO¥ASHO HOSITTIIL
SEMOT NISWOHL
SILdND L

ATDNIVHED 2ZL13dS
LO1I4 ¥EAANS

OLOY VAVN ¥HAUAANS
AWLNNOD SEAOT YIAANS
dLVD NIAT0D ¥AAANS
AMINNOD SHAOT HLIWS
LTETLO SdSn TTISSNY

# EDIOANI

+1®30L pIeds

LdSd-aNNd

JOANIA

Lr/oz/Lo
1508¥SEd ‘oN 3xoday

UIEWON
od

ajeQ uny

P ]



ELYQ

ASYNEWIAN NOILINL

NOILdI¥DSEa

abeg

#IDIOANI

YANOISSINWOD

NOILVZI¥OHLOY UNV MITASY J0 INIWIOAITMONMOV

00°0L6°T TYLOL SADEHD dI&AL

LT/02/L 00°0LE'T
00°0LE'T

JLva TYLOL

MDEHD MOEHD

YIALSIOFA SHOFHD CQAAXL
ALNNOD AJAOLS

LNNOWY

Y¥DISSHL ‘SNEHAILS
65L 8102

60568

AWYN YOONZA #CQ¥0DEN NWYVEA ¥AEWAN
TYOSIE NDHHD

LT/02/L0 : 93eq@ uny

06€THd *ON 3x0d3¥

.~
—



YENOISSTIWNOD

41%a NOTIWZI¥OHLOY ANV MIIATY S0 LNIWIDAITMONUOY

S0°Z%0 '€ TYLOL SHIFHD JIdAL
LT/TZ/L SO°Z%0'E OTT EDAN0S TANIXFTL TNV 0T1S68
IJ0ddNS TTIYM NIVIAND LT/O0E/S 92ZE¥S S0°Zv¥0'E ZS60T L102
NOILJI¥DS3A #FDIOANI dLva IYLOL LNOOWY HWYN ¥YOANIA #Qu0DHd MVEA ATEWIN
ADFHD  MOEHD TYOSIA MDIHD
YIALSTIOAN SMOFHD AHJAL LI/T2/L0 ¢ @eq uny

abeq AINNOD AH¥OIS 06€TEd :ON 3x0day




AJANSVYHEYL

CYITTIOYIAWOD

YINOISSIWWOD UINOISSIWWOD

NYWATWHD

9% EPE €61

00"

Iunowy

LT/60/L0 2320 Y23YD

TUNI S asastbay xoaup
z abed WALSAS TIOYAVd ALNNOD AFHUOLS

:SIBUCTSSTWWOD JO pieog Ajuno)

Ka1o02g a3yl Aq pasoxddy

1SX02yD I030NpPag TRIOL

154133 03 133jsuea]l A9s) [BIOL

aadea # paqg # Qa
/4 dwd  /X09yd

x030onpag :adA] Troxkeg

YLiLS:LO LT/60/L0 :uny
¥0TS0dd :aday



FIANSVAUL

VI TTOELIWOD

YINOCISSTINWOD YANOCISSIIWWOD NYWAIVHO

1SI3UOTSSTWWO) IO paeog Ajuno) Asx03s ayl Agq paasoxddy

2T T2O0'TITT :g)o9YD I030oMpPag [e3ol
00" 184148 X0 I33sSuei] I8S) [E2CL
Junowy 93ked # paad # aa
/# dua  /303ud
LT/60/L0 338 22D a030npeq :adAL T10aked
TYNTJ 1a3stbay oayD $0°%0:80 LT/60/L0 :uny

4 abeg WELSAS TIO¥AVd ALNNOD AHOLS Y0TS0¥d :aday



YHINSYEAL

YITTOLLIWOD

YENOISSTHINOD WENOISSIWWOD NV IVHD

:SI3UOTSSTUWO) JO paxeog Kjune) Aaxols ayl Agq paaozddy

26 %90 °S9S :pasINgsSTC [EeIOL
ZE"6Z9°9T :1030NpIC 01 IIJSUBIL TSN TRIOL
SL ZEO'PL :971Td deg ITQ uo paadix spag 2AoTduzy TeIOL
66°858 ‘€E€E :3Tsodag 30211tq @2AoTdum TejoL
00°ZLL T :s303yD aakoTdug TBIOL
S8 Z¥TLIT :S3D3YD IO3DNPId [RPIOL
T0°625°18 $8dLJ8 103 IsISUBIL I9S) [e30L
Junowy 924Aed # pea # a4d

/# dug /3o2ud

6 8 L 9 S v £ 2z 1 :sdnoag (roxdeg
L1/60/L0 :33ed pPua-poTIdd LT/%T/L0 :@3eQ XO3UD Jernbsy :8dA1 TTOIARg
TYNII 2238163y ¥osUD 6S:LOFET LT/TT/LO :uny

S abeg WILSXS TIO¥AVd ALNNOD AHAOLS YOTS0¥d :3day



SEEd ¥ELSO4

AQ/XMYETO T

a/Ad0d 1¥dD ¥IAEOOITA TN
SHEIA FDEOAIA

ASSV NIWAV IO IDINILSIA

INZQIDOVY LINEDIANI
TYOTIAIN ILNEOIANT
XYL AL¥Fd0¥E TV
XVL AL¥IGO¥d TUNOSJIL
FIAVWINOH JEOVIASIA
NOIIDY TIAID
SHEDNEDIT HOVINAVN
0T" L'L°d"¥d

§§ "L'L"4d"¥

0E'T "L°L°d"¥

J3d SNSNIAD JTHSNMOL

NOILAI¥OSAa

I abeg

L
L
L
L
L

L102
L1002
LTO0Z
LTO0Z
LT0C
LT02

[Ax4
LT0C
LT02
LT0Z
LT02

T0Z
T0ZT
102
102
T0Z

¥10
¥10
¥10
- Afe]
¥10
q10
q1D
¥10
¥10
¥ID
yID

#IOT

aNne

HLY
HL?
HLV
HLY
HLVY
HLY
HLY
HLY
HLY
HL?
HLY

OANT

€Z°981°SZZ TYLOL SMDFHD JEJAL

LT/0T/L TL ¥LY
00°9%T
o0rose
00°Ss
00°0T
TT°ET

LT/OT/L TT TIL'VET
9Z°¥80°9
00°088°Z
ZE'9SS’6
€€£°898°91
00709
00" ¥8E
00°82T
oL ZvL'6
S8°¥8S’ES
99°88E'GZT
00°S€E

JI¥a TYIOL LNOOWY
JADFHD  MDEHO
YEISIDIY SMOEHOD dEIAL
ALNNOD AF¥OLS

EITIOYLAKOD AIN
6Z¢
62¢
6Z¢E
62t
62¢

FITIOELAWOD AAN
8Z¢t
BZE
8Z¢
BZ¢t
82t
8Z¢t
8Z¢
BCE
8ZE
8zt
82t

ZLE6EB
8102
8102
8T0Z
810T
8102

TLEEB
8102
B10Z
8102
8102
8102
8102
8102
BTI0T
8102
8102
8102

JWYN JOONIA #QUODEA MUVEA ATEWAN

TYISIA MDIHD

LT/0T/LO * 23eQ uny

06£T8d ON 3JIxoday



ONI ILSEHD ALINNKWOD E6E6E

00°00T 007001 S0¥18 Lu/e/L ST A1I0r
0FT 'TIIMITD z6€68
00°02Z 00°02 Z8ZIB  LI/0E/S SdE4 ILINOD OO¥A 0D XFAOLS
VHANSVIAL NOSUVD 40 ALID T6E6R
06°8T2C 06°81Z ZLETS LT/T2/L SAITIdNS NOOY ISTA
A1dd0S XYYLINVS IVHLNID 06€68
PSUEES‘T 0E°0€EE 9EPT8  LT/0E/9 INTWAOTIAEA ALINAWKOD
0Z EV0'T 9EV18 LT/OE/9 AYHATTOILIWOD
¥0° 09T 9€v1i8  LT/0E/9 SNOIIVTEN AIINNWWOD
dIHSUANIAYE ODTTIAD 6BE6R
L7 LZ9 TL° L2 LBZT8 LL/0E/S SLIASYO-JIAAVOT
d¥0D INYWIINDE NVWHSYD BBEGH
00 zoZ 00202 TSET18 LT/TZ/L I¥0ddns ONv
ONI HTIESWD LBE6EB
9z° 012 88° 0% £0¥18 LT/te/L L1856 d¥=E5 -Z552¥%ud
6209 £0VT8 LT/TT/L YANIVINW OLOY 0L-2€
60°60T €0v18 Lt/1z/L qOVND ‘ASSY FSOH -90€950S
SI¥Wd OLOV ALID MWLIAWD 98€68
65°06Z'T 6570621 TLETB  LT/TZ/L
ONI STVYINS¥ ALIYd LOTIWVD S8E68
z9°ZS1 z9°2st BZELS Lr/te/L AISANESTA INIWHSINNYD
TYNOISSEIONd ¥ SSENISNE PBE6S
95°0€2Z 35°0€Z 6EET8 L1/12/L 1DE0Y OLOV -0L-D€
DNI H¥Id S,NOLiN€g £8€68
0s-LZL 0S°26S 6918 L/te/L
00°S¥ 0vELS LT/0E/9
05°SE 69€T8 LT/1Z/L LTOZ ‘ZT-T ATINL
0S¥ OVET8  LTI/0E/S LTOZ ‘0E-6T INAL
SIMIT LLODS ‘TTa¥ANE ZBEEB
00709 00°09 YEPT8  LT/TZ/L NOILVELSINIWAY DITENd
a 1T73S5N¥  ‘NOANVIE T8€68
¥8 £V ¥8° €V ovrvis Lt/te/L INIFWAVAYEAO XV.I
NONVHS ‘(¥VNYIE 08E6R
00°09 00°09 B9ETE8 LT/12/L LT0Z ‘ZI-T X100
HVNO€3d ‘¥IANIE 6LEEB
85°6€0'2 B8S°6€0°Z 0ZET8 L1/0€/9 Z X S¥ESYL
ONI 'ESI¥d¥ILINT NOXV 8LE6R
00°9%9°¥ 00°9%9°% 98218 LT/0E/3 ONIATHELS LHOTAMINVD
ONIAVd ® ONIQVED XIdV LLEES
9L 152 ST 1Y 6VETB L1/Te/L HO
vv 18 6VELS Lu/tE/L dOHS
¥eoTL 6VET8  LI/TZ/L dOHS
25701 T9€18 Lr/1e/L A¥ANOYT ¥L 1S
85 8T TIET8 LT/te/L A¥ANOVT SL 1S
LL'8 T9€18 LT/12/L A¥ANOYT ZL 1S
08" €T T9€T8 Li/xe/L X4ANONVYT TL IS
91" 9 T9€18 Lt/1z/L X¥ANNVT SL LS
ONI 0DSTW 9LEER
0E"0€ 0€°0€E LEETB L1/12/L SATN dLMM
ONI MO0OT EANIdTY SLE6B
00°00S§'¥® 00°00S'% 91ET8 L1/te/L L0-Z6 [£O¥d HAOUAWI JILVM
OTT MDOLSHWOD TV vLEES
9% LZL 9L° 00T OLETS LT/0E/9 SITTddNS SWH
oL 9z 0LETS LT/0E/S SHITIANS SWI
ONI NON SYONIV ELE6S
TYLOL LINNOWY #SNWAL FLva # 0/4d NOTIAT¥DSEA IDIOANI JOANIA HIENNN
XDFHD ADIHD
LT/02/L WEALSIOFY ADEHD LT/02/L0 * ®3ed uny

T ebea KINNOD AFHOLS STETEd :ON 310day



[4

8°19
L 1S
207881
00°62B°ZE

¢0°S9L

00°00S°2T

LB ZEO'E

£E0°c8
0S°LT

Sv'626

00" 862z

ST 8TIL

85°129°'1

TYIOL
ADIHD

abeg

00"00%‘2
00°SES
BELIS’ET
00°0¥0'¢
€0'66E“8Y
0S°L68B°E

T8°19
LTS
Z0° 88T
00°628°C¢E

S0°ST
oL zZEZ
Z6°L
8Z°ST
LY vy
20701
08" 39
90°vE
0S°1
ZT 0T
00°8T
SS° IV
¥8 E0T
0T 0€
€6° 9%
08°66T1
-~Z1 €01

00700521
007 96¢€
L8 9E9°2
€0°Z8
06°LT

L6 EEE
8% S6S

00°2T
00" 3sZ
00" ve
00°9
00"S6T
ST LOT
00" LvZ
00" 69T
8571291

INNOWY

06z18
L6Z18
L6Z18
L6Z18
LEZ1R
06Z18

LTIETR
60718
BEPIB
68Z18

80%18
88ZTR
80vI8
8OVvVIS
80%18
Bo¥»18
80v1I8
8ovie
80¥18
8cvis
80vis
80v1Ie
BOY1I8
BBZI8
88Z18
BBZTIE
80718

JEET8

£9¢T8
€9€TB

BLET8
90¥%18

6SETE
6SETB

YLETS
VLETE
TYETR
IvET8

TTivie
zovie
Sivie
ETETB
SEPIR

#SNWAL

LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/S

LT/1z/L
Lr/te/e
LT/12/L
LI/0E/S

L/iz/e
LT/0€E/9
Lr/te/L
LY/12/L
LT/TZ/L
Lr/tz/L
LT/TZ/L
Lu/tz/L
LT/1Z/L
Lt/Te/L
Lt/te/L
Lr/te/L
LT/1Z/L
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9
Lr/1z/L

Lr/tz/e

Lt/te/L
Lt/tz/L

LT/1e/L
L1/TZ/L

Li/iz/L
L1/te/L

LT/T2/L
L1/12/L
LT/0€E/9"
LT/0E/9

LT/0€E/9
L1/0€/9
L1/tz/L
LI/TZ/L
L1/0E/9
ALVQ

t1/0z/L

z/t 8T1-LT02 XIIdO AVW
SEOIA¥ES S5IO

INTWIAOUINWI HAMIS OA
SI1S0D 1DILO¥d GYHIEN VWIJI
LNTWIAQUIWI ¥IMIS DA
d40X0INX LOIALodd

HYHINSD dOOMXDOT -3IJA40D
NOILVDI¥NI

dSVET ¥IId0D

UALVM ‘HA'T dVMS ' LAIT-AO0H

LNIOD N -Z¥LEOMS
YOSSTFAWOD -90€9508
YAMOd-A TL-d ¥

YALTIIA FENT-€Z09905
ITIE N¥d -S099SA¥AS
AVII¥-90E9S0S

ZYALLNY ‘OMYEHL -0PE9Syud
AVId3d SZ0990S

ATA NVAXI S0€9S08

TV¥AS dId¥d 9E09S08
SONI¥LS FYIL -90£9S0S
STTIJAZN ‘SONI¥O -90€9S0S
LIASYD 90E9S0S

INIOL N ZPLESMG

STVYES IO -SPS9EMd
SYITAVLS - NVEANENS DSOA
WOoJ¥Ed 174

SYIVATYE ¥vL ¥ITIVEL
FONVNAINIVM ¥L ¥3Z20Q

LNED OMMDT HONWY IN3d 008
LNYINOONI 1O0¥
SNOISSEDONOD T00d
SNOISSIDONOD 71004

L10Z ‘ZT-1 A10L

LI0Z ‘0€£-6Z INQC

dd¥ ETI4 INZINI 30 SOILON

INTWNIOTIAEA WWOD
SLd¥ AYVAMHNS TYNNNY

SLZ-LT Q¥0 dON

LTOZINAL INVAD TSdOLS NSA

NOILdIADSEA FDTOANI

YALSTOTY ADEHD
ALNNOD AZAIOLS

DNI¥FINIONE 1LSIAM ¥UVI

0D S0¥d ¥aAWAEVA

SLONAO¥d NOILYDINVI ONIMI
NI TVIDYEAWWOD XNVEHIAT

OTT SZIULSNANI NIAONT

ONI X714dNS OLNY LLOITTII

ALTYOHLOV ASQ DIWONODI

ONI 01-X{
NOTIILVIOJd¥0D S€9d HSIA

ONI A¥ES NOILONAO¥d d0¥D

Q¥VD TVIDYAWOD S¥H 0DIS0D

OTT TIIW Q709 MDOLSWOD

(OA) FTOINONHD MADOLSWOD

HOANTA

LT/oe/Lo

90v68
Soves
voves
E0Y68

zZoves8

T0v68

00¥68

66€68
86€68

LEEGB

96€68

S6EEB

v6E68

ATEWNON
ADEHD
83eq uny

STETEd :ON 2xcday



BZ LEL S6Z18 LT/0E/9 YIANES FANSSIWd SV¥O SL-L
OTT d&ar SZves

€9°1Z¥% L ZL 928’1 osvie Lt/te/L AFAWOD 9T0Z FDIJII0
S8 Z¥0’S 0s¥18  L1/tZ/L AFAWOD TAUL YOI STHOIIMS
8% 112 0Ss¥18  LI/TZ/L NIASN D ¥OJ I3VD ¥ENOL
LB 69S 0S¥YI8  LI/IT/L MS ONINOLINOR SANIMIVIOS
TLTOL ZZEI8  LT/0E/9 YILNI¥A dI ¥0d SANYD
DT FDANOS TLI YZv68
99" LZL LL- 892 66218  LT/0E/9 Z/T ET0SNOD NIH QIUHS
6885V 9vvyI8  LT/1Z/L LT ATOL ATVOLS/LYTLIN
NI IOW O4NI NIVLNANOW NOXI £ZV68
00" 9€T 00" 9€T ESYI8  LT/O0E/S
ONI LdFOYEINI zzZvee
05°28 0528 LS¥I8  LT/T2/L LINYEINI ZLLS
ONI QONVEaWO¥E 1OdS IOH TZ¥68
98" 6L €8 ¥L 85%18  LTI/TZ/L MIO0D NVOHSYAEL SITHIALIVE
L6 Y 8s¥18  LT/1Z/L JINLS ¥EIMOd LNOS 9
FDIA¥ES LICFED LOdHA FAWOH 0Zv68
0S°S6S 05 9%E 9LETE  LT/TZ/L
0oLz LO¥T8  LT/0€E/9 LT0Z ‘0£-6Z FNAL
00°v2Z 9LET8  LI/TZ/L
00" 68T 9LET8  LI/TE/L LT0Z ‘ZT-T AI0L
00°6 9LETB  LI/TZ/L
OHOS (NVM HINNOI DI¥OLSIH 6T¥68
L6°z10'2 L6°210'T 6SYI8  LI/TZ/L JLOA
SSHENISNE VNYEIS HOIH 81768
88 VIL T ¥POLSE'T v6Z18  LT/0E/9 Savoy
YPOLSE'T zzy1ies  L1/te/L savod
arT ‘L¥H LTIYEB
9L° 086 £6° V85 6vvI8  LI/TZ/L ALNNOD a¥Nd XvdAd ANOA
00" 0% 86£T8  LT/TZ/L SEILITILA
€8°SSE 86€18  LTI/1Z/L AVEd (NOd
071 SINTWLSIANI dLD 91¥686
00°0€9 00°09€ 61T¥18  LT/TT/L (3 2¢]
Qo oLz 6T¥T8  LT/1Z/L S¥X9
WOL ‘AATGSNVED G168
95°6€8 95" 6EB ozyie LI/TZ/L HOIWd DSIKW
02 NOILONWLSNOD HALINVAD vI¥68
0S°S€Z 05°S€Z E6ZTI8  LT/0E/9 SHYITddNS TVINOLINYL
AIONIVHED (24 77:]
SE°965°€E 99°TIST 8T¥18  LT/TZ/L 16 TSa I¥l
S¥°¥SS 8T¥I8  LI/TT/L 00T I8Q / 96T ‘INO-MT
8Z°9LL 8TYI8  LTI/TZ/L S6 150 / €0€ TIND M1
96" ETTZ BTIYI8 Lt/tz/e ZBS TINN / ZSS NS TdL
WNITOYLAd LHS/ALVYO NIATOD ZIv68
00°BE6 00" 8E6 EI¥I8  LT/0E/9 ¥E LINDYID OV -WOOHIANOD
HOONI NIV ¥ ONILVIH 1814 TI¥%68
00°G6% 00°S6% B6ZIB  LI/0E/9 LITALS D dOI
FHL-DNI AN 40 FHOLS OV'1d 01v68
EL 6VY L6 69€E ¥9¥I8  LT/CE/9 TLOTLO960T - D T¥T
9L 6L ¥SETB  LT/0E/9 ANYIOdd ¥L IS
d7 SYDTIINIAI 60768
L0°0S8°T LO"0S8‘T ¥I¥I8  L1/TZ/L STVIYEIVW ¥ALVM XDOLS
ONI SISIVANIINT NOSNOHTI BOY6R
€2°00S°0T €Z2°00S°0T ELETH Lu/te/L AVISZYVLS LISOJ9A %0S
D11 ‘SNOLLYOINOWWOD D24 Lov6R
16°8€8°0L
TYLOL INOOWY #SNVAL aLva % 0/4 NOILJI¥OSHA HADIOANI NOONIA HIEWAN
XDHHD MOFHD
LT/0Z/L WALSIDEY MDIHD LT/0T/L0 : @3eQ uny

abeg AINNOD AZN¥OLS STETHEd :ON 3xo0day



4

TS ETIT‘E

EE'BLO’S

Z1°0ST’6
00°0S

6Z'89S

0B°8ZT'T

86°61E

8y Zve’e

05" 9€ES

00°00S“0E€T

00°szr'e

TE 62ZT°0T

BE"96L'T

007 00T

00" €9%

00° 000’9
8T LEL
TYLOL
XDHHD

abeg

00°09T’T
ZSTETIT'E

EE“LEB'E
00°9LY
00°0T%
00002
oo°oz
00°S¢L

ZI°0ST’6
00°0s

607012
¥s°18
£6°221
66°8
FLOVYT
9% LZ
ZLTYYE
8Z° 21
297 e¥ve
Tv-CEE
TE"B91

66°6L
€6 6EZ

8y ZvE‘Z
00°29%
oo-zz
08°2Zs
00°00S‘0ET

00"00L'T
00" SZ¥
1€°622°01T
00" LL

087 0€E
Ze"z9zT

9z 92Z¥'1
007 00T

00° 0S¥
00" ET

0070009

LNOOWY

ECET8
beETs

¥SYI8
vSyis
PSY18
PSHPI8
¥Svie
ySvI8

T0ET8
YIEls

96218
seztie
96z1e
SSETR
SSETIB

9Tvie
96tE1I8
Zsvie
8EET8
S9ET8
€EVIB

S6ETL8
S6ET8

TS%18
00vT8
EPETB
00%T8
BLETS

T9v18
19v18

[4 48]
v9e18
vIte18
vIETH
vIeE18
gzvie

LLETB
LLETB

ZTETH

#SNVAEL

LT/0€E/9
LT/0E/S

LT/0E/S
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/S
LT/0€/9
LT/0E/9

LT/0E/S
LI/tz/L

L1/0€E/9
L1/0€/9
LI/0€/9
LT/0E/S
LT/0€/9

Lr/12/L
LT/re/L
LT/12/L
Lt/12/L
LT/IT/L
LT/1Z/L

Lr/te/e
Lr/tz/e

L1/tZ/L
LI/TC/L
LT/0E/9
Lt/re/L
LT/rT/L

L1/0€/9
LT/0E/9

LT/0E/9
LT/TZ/L
Lt/tz/L
Lt/tz/L
LT/tZ/L
LI/12/L

L1/1Z/L
LT/TT/L

LT/0€/9

aLva

Ly/oz/e

ANOO¥OXDVE ¥ SININJEIONISL
HOLWW ALNNOD LTIO0Z AWH
S3ad

ST

934 FONZ

ISVHOANd JALYM ANNL
SENA TVNNNY

1004

SYIVAaY dEEd WEAHO T00d
d33d WHHD -7100d
S3ITddNS DNIILVIEdO
SHITddNS ONILVNILO

STHEVT EILI¥M TIEW]
SdI17d4d0S FDIIS0

SYAQTOL ? ¥HAIVA

ddnNs #0I440 dIV¥Y TVILLOW
dWV INIWEOVI1day
SLISAVAH LNWADVIddEY
YIEIL 00TX00T

LT0Z “Z1-1 AIOL
LTIOZ ‘0E-6Z ANNL

SE11ddNS SWE

SHITddNS SWE

SHITddNS SW3

SH174dNS DICEW ENITINIA
8 A10r0

LT0Z ‘ZTI-T A1I0C

ONAL SLLS® TIYM NYIQIOODVY

NOILAI¥DSEA FDIOANI

YIALSIDINE MOHHD
ALNNOD AT¥OLS

AL3IVS DITENd 1d3A AIN

SADUNOSTY NVHOH 1430 AIN

YIATTOULAWOD AZAN
SANNOYD ¥ OATH NIWIY AIN

VOOUN

ANTIVA FNAL FSNOH ANNOW

NI SNOIINTOS SEDIJd30 OULIKW

NI SNOILWDINNWWOD LLINHW

¥SIT ¥ LLODS ‘NOSIAVK

NOISNVWN AWADVW

D717 SLNIAF 3NTE dINDIT

OTT SINIAE dNTE dINdIT

D711 SLNIAZ INTE aIndIT

ONI LSISSV-34I7

IONYD ¥O LIVW ‘QuVIQaT

¥ NYILSTHHD ‘¥ETHOEIN
SYOTIWAINI TVIDYINWOD THYX
YOaANIA

Lt/0z/Le
STETHd

cvves

18443}

ovves
6EVED

BEYER

LEVES

9€EvEB

StEves

veEves

EEVER

ZEv68

TEveR

ocves

6Zv68

8Zv68

LZVER
9Tves

HIGWON

ADEHD
83RQ uny
ON 21xodey



S

£6°SLT

00° o082

61°989°2
SL*9ZT'LBT

00" S9%

Ssv°9

ocrozez

00"0sL’'z

00°691"9

00°260°T
6V VEV

89°18%

8B GEZ
LY 88T
20" st
00°0TT
00" 6¢€
00°0¢S
0008
00° 00T
00°'SZ1T
0001
00'09T’'T
TYIOL
ADEHO

abegq

25 €8S

0¥° 98T
£S"68

00" 0¥%T
00"0vT

61°989'2
SL*9ZT LBT
00" SL
oo° ozt
00 S¢
00" 021
00-SL
Sv°9

00* #ST
oo‘ev
00" BT
00-0sL’z

00°'000'¢€
00°691'¢€

00° 2601
6% VEY

00° 06
89° 16¢€

88" SEZ
LV BBT
Z0° ST
007 0TI
00*6€
00'0S
00° 0S
00° 00T
00*SZT

00° 0T

LNNOWY

ZOETR

09v18
09718

8Zv%18
BZY1S8

SEET8
€918
16ET8
T6ET8
T6t18
T6ETH
S9v18
v8zZ18e
ZBETB
YYELS
THETB
TIBETR

V0ETS
voeTs

ELEAY:]
Z29%18

08€I8
0BET8

SOETH
LEYTB
TEPTIR
vZeETB
08Z18
0TvTB
SSv18
GLETR
6EPTE

LYPL8

#SNVEL

L1/0E/9

LT/te/L
LT/te/L

Lr/yz/e
L1/te/L

LT/tz/L
LT/0E/9
LT/T2/L
LT/1Z/L
L1/1z/L
LI/Tz/L
LT/0E/9
Lt/te/L
LY/TZ/L
LT/0€/9
Li/te/L
LI/TZ/L

LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9

L1/0€/9
LT/0€/9

LT/1Z/L
L1/te/L

L1/0€/9
L1I/12T/L
L1/0€/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0€/9
LI/re/L
LT/0€/9
Lt/1z/L
LT/te/L

LT/0€E/9

arLva

Ltt/oz/L

# 0/d

Fapanis dimM INOL

dXd INIVW XTId ¥II4S0D TIVL
YEIJ0D ¥WOI0D TLLS

TVINTY WOOULSIY-1kW
TYINSY WOOMLS3N -HDA

1 ‘¥DId4VY

ONIYOLINOW ¥WIND INOD
ONIYOLINOW SL 1S
ONI¥OLINOW SXYOmM OITdnd
DNIYOLINOW FSNOH LAN0D
UOLINOW NOILVLS TVUINID
SILLOd -LNIWAYJYZAO XV.L
LTO0Z ‘0€-6T ANOL

LI0Z ‘ZT-T ATI0C

NOOd 1SO FWIHM HOHVL ONIN

ONIUIINE ¥a/0S NO 400d3d
ONIATING VA/0S NO d00uEN

STITAANS YOLINOW S¥O ¥

LT0Z/SZ/9-L1/6Z/S

HDIJI0 MAITO

5d17dd0S FDIJ40 '¥ANOL
ONIX O 'sTvEs
TIYOISAHd IIWWNI
aE1d317I0D sd3Id

TVLIOd ATHLNOW

NOILWNLSIODZEY IWVN TAVAL
8TAd TVMANEN DVN

AZYOLS / A3 WOd ONINIW

NOILATIOSIA FDIOANIT

WALSTIOTA NDFIHD
AINNOD AFJOLS

ONI ‘gsnagy

(¥D) ONI 0D NVOUOW AVY

1T HOVWdS aIdv¥
INIWANILAE ATdAWE DI17TdNd

OILLVSNIdNOD XONIOVW DITENd

ONI S3DJIAIC NOILOHELO¥d

WAITINNAL ‘SLLOG

a OTEONV ‘ININLId

ONI OLSdd

ONIJOOY zaHIAd
ANVANOD 3 SHIMONM AET0Ed

OT7 ¥IASW INO¥ALNO

IS % SOIH4WY¥O HAIS FHL NO
O17 ‘LOdAQ V¥1VAQ dLIS4J0
ONI 10430 dDI440
ONI‘S1DNaO¥d dFMOd VAVAEN
HITH TYNOILVANDDO VAVAIN
ONI FDIA¥ES TYDET VUVAEN
(ON¥) LT 3078 YAOVAIN
AHANSVIAL AIN
HILVIS 40 AWVIIYDIS AEN
TASNNOD FAIIVTISIDIT AIN
STVEENIWN 40 AIQ AEN
JYOANZIA

Lr/oz/Lo

sovee

v9ve8

E9¥68
z9v68

T9v68

09768

65v68

BSves

LSV6S

95768
S5v68

PSveES8

ESves
ZSv68
ISv68
0sve8
6¥vER
8vv68
LYP6EB
Ivves
Syv68
yyves
1344}
AIEWON

ADEHD
83eq uny

STETEd ‘ON 310d9Y



ZZ°¥LY 80ET8 LT/0€/9 L¥0ddNs INAL
ORI SEDIA¥SS ALITILN €4S ZBV6B

ov-sz8 ovy-szs 98ET8 LT/12/L ASTANVHOMER dOHS 1dID
S % ENIM SYIZVID NYFHLOOS 18¥68
0S"LBE'T 05" LB6'T LOETS LT/0E/9 NOITING LY ¥SLAW MOTd
SWALSAS "TOMLNOD VWNISIS 08v68
007008 00°00S SBETIS LT/T1Z/L
W NIETHLYN ‘NATOHS 6LVER
05°2s 06°2S ¥8ET8  LT/TZ/L LTOZ 'ZT-T A100
NATIV NVYI¥E ‘4VOHS 8Lv68
0%°90T 0Z°€S 1€ET8  LTI/T2Z/L XTIW HLVNNI
0Z €S TEETB LT/1z/L MITW FLVRNT
ONI SV¥OLNEIVLSIA AEVWIIHS LLYEB
00°66€ 00°66€E 09€E18 LT/0E/9 YHHSTYITE D IATWVAYE
AVH ‘YWSES 9LYES
SY EC6'E 55759 STETS LT/1z/L dOor z960-L¥8
T€'8GL'E STETS Lr/tz/L SNOTLVOINAWWOD-ZT¥%9-25Z
6S°6L STETS LT/tz/L 21DA 00SL-L¥8
ONI SEDIA¥ES TYEQTD D€S SLveg
TT LYT z26°S2Z 1Zv18 LT/12/L 2I0A
99" 1Zv18 LT/t2/L ONINNYId
€ET°T TZVi8 LI/T2/L (0n) 2¥Ia
£EV°6 1Zv18 LI/te/L AINOISS IHWOD
z0- zris LI/TZ/L va
9¥%°S2Z TZP18  L1/TZ/L HOLVASIA TYUINID
60°Z€ Zvie LT/T2/L YOSSESSY
LY 6 1zvie Lr/te/L INEWdOTIATd ALINOWWOD
0z vt 1zZvie LT/TZ/L (DA) #ETd
LE" TZPI8  LI/TZ/L aOOMADOT/FVII
86°01 IZV18 Lr/TZ/L NIRAY /I TTOULINOD
¥9'¢ 1Zvie  LI/TZ/L JdTYIHS
TLE 1€421:] LI/TZ/L ar
99° 1 TZ¥1e LT/te/L JJTHIHS
56" TZ918 LT/TT/L SYYOM JIT€E0d
stz 1Zvis Lr/ie/L (OA) SdId
¥S°T 1Zv18 LT/12/L WIATAODHA
Tt 2 12%18  LI/TZ/L MEITD
€072 4 2¢:] LT/TT/L I¥L/E¥IS
dT NI SHEDIA¥ES TVHOTID DHS yL768
00°6 00°s SVETS LT/OE/S LT0Z ‘0E-6Z ENNL
00" ¥ SPETS LT/0E/9
ONI YALNHOLAV SAVYM LNIVS €LY68
oo-Loz 00" L0T LSETS LT/0E/S SAITddNS SWIE
ONI 0ddany ZLyéB
¥LLEE PL'LEE 90€£18 LT/0E/9 AIVAEY YAZIIUA 77004
ONI ‘NOILVNIOINIAN SNOY TLYES
00°00T 00°00T ZEVIB8  LTI/TZ/L ZYBEEBSY L1DDOV HA¥ISHY
LNOODDV FANISHA 0LY68
00291 00291 €BETS8 Lt/TZ/L ISIONVHONEW JOHS IJID
ONI ALTVIDAdS HOHVL ONIY 69v68
SO"6¥%1 SO"6¥T vZvie LI/TZ/L INIVd IDIJ40 HSIWWOD
LMVN LNIVd ON&Y 89768
00" €ELE 00 ELE SZPI8  LI/TZ/L INIVA N¥8d SOLT
NI ONIGVOSONVT NIZYD ONZY LIV6R
SZ IBT 1% SZ TIBT'T¥ 9S€T8  LT/0E/9 AONAL OF
D11 dNO¥D dIHSHITIVEA ONIYU 99¥68
ZS €8S
TVLOL LNOOHY #SNVAEL ELYA # 0/4 NOILJINDSHA FDIOANI JOANIA ATTWNON
ADFEHD MDEHD
LT/0Z/t NILSIOIA MDIHD LT/0Z/L0 : @3RQ uny

abeg ALNNOD AJHOLS STETEd ON 3z0dsy



L

8BS 09T

00" 0L
2T €S9

TS ZES

zZ'¥LO'T

00°60¥%'€

00°ST
po-oot‘e

B0 BET

00°STIZ‘¥®

LB E6

ST1°192

ZL LLY
00°€E

IS ¥¥L'6

ZT°YLS
AOFHD

abeg

00°2Z9%
00-zz
0S°T
0070V

£6° €
S9°9
00°0S
00°00T

00°0L
ZT1° €59

L' v62
08" LEZ

6S°SYY
£9°8Z9°1

00-"89z’z
00°839T
00°STT
0o0°3
oo0-zZL
go-ozy
00 0EE
00°0€E

00°ST
00°0Q0T‘Z

S0°S6
EQ EYT

00" veE2
0o0-z3v
00°€L0'E
00° %S
00" LSE
00°St

LB E6

0z 8L
S6°ZBT

ZLtLLs
00" €
00731

00°¢€
1S°SZL’s

LNOOWY

LEETS
LEETE
L6ELS
LEETS

v6ELS
Y6ETE
PEETS
Y6ETE

0EETS
06€ETE

60€18
E0ET8

LZvis
LZv1ie

68ETH
0SETS8
0SETB
0SETIB
0seTe
6BETE
68BETE
68ETH

9svis
TTET8

sZvris
gzvie

88ET8
8veEle
88ET8
8¥ET8
88ETE
8BEIE

ovrie

LYETE
LPETS

16218
9¥ETR
L8ET8

L8ele
18218

#SNYAL

LT/1Z/L
LT/T2/L
Lt/12/L
LT/12/L

LT/12/L
L1/1z/L
Lr/tz/L
LT/12/L

LT/1Z/L
Lt/te/L

LT/0€E/9
LT/0E/9

LI/ie/L
LT/TT/L

LT/ie/L
L1/0€E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/S
LTI/0E/9
LT/1e/L
LT/TZ/L
LI/TZ/L

LT/0E/9
LT/0€/9

Lr/ie/e
Lr/te/e

Lr/te/e
LI/0E/9
LI/1Z/L
LT/0€/9
Lr/te/e
LI/Ie/L

LT/0€/9

LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9

LT/0E/9
LT/0€/9
LT/1Z/8

LT/12/L
LT/0E/9

aI¥a

LT/0zZ/L

# 0/4d

LT0Z ‘2T-T AI0C
RLS 2€ JTINOHS 15d qI0S
WIS ¥€ QINOHS TSA TI0S

ONIME ¥
YEAAVd O
TEMINTY

STILIOG VWI¥Od AT10L HLY

WII- O¥I4 SOLT
S/M- N¥Ed SOLT

0SZ "TSA HOA
Z0Z 18d / 109 OIY Md

LTO0Z ‘2I-T A1InrL

LT0Z ‘0E-62Z ANAC

HOSSASSY ¥WOA

d40T “dISOH
INTO ‘aNT HA

€10Z 'ZT-T AIN0
LT0Z '0E-6Z INOL

€/2 IJIVFHS

10d3d HO
JLOA

TTITOTS AL ¥ad
LT0Z ‘0E-6Z INOC
LT0Z ‘ZTI-1 A1InrC

QIATEDAN XVWI AI¥IJ0ud

NOILJT¥DSEA ADIOANI

YALSIDAY MDOIHD
ALNNOD AFHOLS

0D ¥¥ FIAONYL T VINIDYVIA

J1OA
(DA)  EDIJI0LSOd SN

N J0 SEOIA¥ES ILIS CHLINN

LNEWISACHdWI TVHINED 1AL

OT1 WNZTOYLAd SYWOHL

SAOEMOD HNOLSEMWOL ZFHL
OTT EDILON LSHL

ONI DOSSV INAWIADYNVW XV.L

S1ONAa0¥d 1004 ¥OIHIAANS

SESTAJYILNT IVHI NNS

'SNOILVDINOWNOD ¥VISZUYLS

WALSAS YALYM 0O IS
ITINSVYALL 0D 1S

LOIVLSIA TOOHDS 0D LS

JOTIVLSIA TOOHDS 00 1S
YOANZA

L1/0Z/L0
STETEd

v

86968

L6768
96968

S6v68

v6¥v68

€6¥v68

(43434
16v68

06v68

68¥68

28v68

LBYES

98vee
Seves

vevesn

£8968

UTEWON
ADFHD

83BQ uny
ON 110d8y



€E"ZBY ‘B2L TYLOL SHOHHD

S6°62 56°6Z 0EVYIE LT/1Z/L ASANGWIFA
NOSYP 'IMOIGZNAIM 80568
09°80T 09785 6zvie LI/1Z/L AVNL INWND
00°05S 0TET8  LTI/0E/9 WHOJIT00 TLL
HYT TVINTWNONIANA NYFALSAM L0S68
00° %02 00°%02 €BZI8  LT/0€/9 ST60°9LT SAN ONILSAL ¥NA
VAVAEN ‘ALNNOD ZOHSWM 90568
88°GET'T 88°SET'T 6TET8  LI/0E/9 LT0Z ENAC -STIVEW QOOMND0T
A¥ES WOINES ALNNOD FOHSYM 50568
0S°8E8'ZE 00°9ZL°6Z 6ZETE  LI/TZ/L LOVEINOD JDISNIAOL
00°sLZ SZETB  LT/0€£/9 ONILSEL ADOTODIXOL
0S5 LEB’'Z SZETSB LT/0E/9 NOILVDILSIANI DISNIHOA
HDI430 SIATYEHS 0D HOHSYM Y0568
SL°60S°T 5L°605°C 9Z€ET8  LTI/0E/9 Asdornv
HANONOD 0D HOHSVM £0568
00°LST'2Z 00°L9T’Z EEET8  LT/1Z/L SEOIAYES LSIAEEOT
SEILVIDOSSY 2 ¥IATUM Z0568
00" %TET 00" %9 99€ET8  LT/TZ/L WHOAINN SVY3IS NIXAW
00°062°T BSETB  LT/0E/9 I¥0ddNS ¥IILNNTOA
QdA SANVIHOIH YINIDVIA 10568
oo-2zLy’z 00-o0ze ESET8  LT/0E/9 LT0Z '0€E-6Z INAL
00°28 66€18 Lr/te/e
00°9LS T 66ET18 LT/TZ/L
00°2zZ EGET8 LT/0E/9
00°82ZS 66ETB  LI/TZ/L
00" %% 66€ET8  LT/TZ/L LTOZ 'ZT-T X100
ONI S¥NOL ALID VYINISAIA 00568
Z6°L000S Z6°L00D’0S 99%18  LTI/0Z/L FLON NO TYdIDNINd
SANVTHOTH ALID VINIONIA 66768
00°9%1'9 00" %T¥ L6ETB LT/12/L
00" T8L LEETB L1/12/L
00°'%6S ZSET8  LT/0E/9 L10Z ‘0E-6Z ANOL
00°28S’€E L6ETB  LT/1Z/L
0S"6ET ZSET8  LI/0E/9
00°0TT LEETB Lr/te/L
TYLOL LNNOWY #SNUL dIva # o/a NOILdTHOSEQ EDIOANT WOANIA VIEWAN
ADHAHD AOFTHD
LT/02/L MALSIOFTI ADEHD LT/0Z/L0 ajeg uny

] abeg ALNNOD XZIOLS STETEd :ON 3jI0day



HINOISSTWWOD

L1/0Z/L HL¥A ADIHD tE"Z8Y'8BZL TYLOL SADFHD

NOILVZI¥OHLOVY ONV MIIAEY 0 INIWIDATTMONNIY




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: August 1, 2017 Estimate of time required: | min

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [ ]| Public hearing required [ |

1. Title: For possible action approval of the Assessor’s Log of Changes made to the 2017-18
Secured Roll pursuant to NRS 361.310

2. Recommended motion Approve the Assessor’s Log of Changes made to the 2017-18 Secured
Roll

3. Prepared by: Jessie Fain for Jana Seddon
Department: Assessor Telephone: 847-0961

4. Staff summary: Procedural matter per NRS 361-310
5. Supporting materials: 2017-18 Log of Changes

6. Fiscal impact: Assessed Value increase of $84,048,127
Funds Available: n/a Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

Department Name: Assessor’s

Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

fre— pr—
(S .

Agenda Item No



7/24/2017 NRS: CHAPTER 361 - PROPERTY TAX

NRS 361.310 Time and manner for completion of assessment roll; closing and reopening of roll as to changes; appeal of
changes; log of changes to secured roll.

1. On or before January 1 of each year, the county assessor of each of the several counties shall complete the assessment roll, and
shall take and subscribe to an affidavit written therein to the effect that he or she has made diligent inquiry and examination to
ascertain all the property within the county subject to taxation, and required to be assessed by the county assessor, and that he or she
has assessed the property on the assessment roll equally and uniformly, according to the best of his or her judgment, information and
belief, at the rate provided by law. A copy of the affidavit must be filed immediately by the assessor with the Department, The failure
to take or subscribe to the affidavit does not in any manner affect the validity of any assessment contained in the assessment roll.

2. The county assessor shall close the roll as to all changes on the day he or she delivers it for publication. The roll may be
reopened beginning the next day:

(a) For changes that occur before July 1 in:

(1) Ownership;
(2) Improvements as a result of new construction, destruction or removal;
(3) Land parceling;
(4) Site improvements;
(5) Zoning or other legal or physical restrictions on use;
(6) Actual use, including changes in agricultural or open space use;
(7) Exemptions; or
(8) Items of personal property on the secured roll;
(b) To correct assessments because of a clerical, typographical or mathematical error; or
(c¢) To correct overassessments because of a factual error in existence, size, quantity, age, use or zoning, or legal or physical
restrictions on use.

3. Any changes made after the roll is reopened pursuant to subsection 2 may be appealed to the county board of equalization in
the current year or the next succeeding year.

4. Each county assessor shall keep a log of all changes in value made to the secured roll after it has been reopened. On or before
October 31 of each year, the county assessor shall transmit a copy of the log to the board of county commissioners and the Nevada Tax
Commission.

[15:344:1953] — (NRS A 1963, 210; 1975. 1657; 1979, 81; 1987, 816; 1991, 1426; 1993, 92, 176, 182; 2005. 2657)

https://iwww.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-361.htmI#NRS361Sec310

11



LOG OF CHANGES MADE TO THE SECURED ROLL PURSUANT TO NRS 361.310

I CERTIFY THAT THE ASSESSMENTS >zu\Qmmmw INFORMATION PROVIDED HEKEIN AKE IN BCCORDANCE WITH
THE NEVADA REVISER ST2 THE REGULATIONS OF NEVADA TAX COMMISSION.

COUNTY: Storey County
ROLL: 2017-18

..ﬂdblu l’l\b./

, Assessor For Storey County

DATE =t

DRTE PRARCEL NUMBER CODE ASSESSED VALUE CHANGE

nmmmmm OLD NEW r>zu_szwﬁv.v.; EX oLD _ NEW e
12727716 | 002-141-18 |  SAME | Hafr 1 11 20,198| 14, 440| CORRECT VALUE TO MATCH LIKE SURROUNDING PROPERTIES
12/27/16 | 001-054-11 SAME H-4 13,656 8,779 |CHANGE LAND USE FROM RES TO COMM

1/03/17 001-246-13 SAME G-1 2,640|NEW VET EXEMPT, USE ON HOME

1/17/17 | 001-086-19 SAME J-1 55,495 37,482 | STIPULATED AGREEMENT PER PROFIT AND LOSS STMNT
1/20/17 | 001-056-01 SAME H-4 463 175 | CORRECTION FOR NON-BUILDABLE PROPERTY

1/20/17 | 002-023-08 SAME H-4 1,990 500 |CHANGE LUC TO 160 SPLINTER OR UNBUILDABLE

1/20/17 002-021-01 SAME H-4 3,604 500 | CHANGE LUC TO 160 UNBUILDABLE PROP

1/25/17 001-057-01 SAME H-3 45,015 45,003 | CORRECT FOR AGE OF PORCH ROOF

1/26/17 | 002-041-18 SAME J-1 10,062 5,785 | CORRECTION ON USEABLE SIZE OF PARCEL

1/26/17 | 001-071-01 SAME J-1 5,545 4,025| CORRECT USEABLE SF AND VALUE ACCORDINGLY

1/26/17 | 002-041-20 SAME J-1 753 500 | CBOE CORRECTION FCOR UNBUILDABLE PROPERTY

1/26/17 | 002-052-24 SAME J-1 10,832 8,190 | CBOE CORRECTION OF USUABLE LAND SF AND VALUE
1/26/17 | 002-052-25 SAME J-1 1,154 175|CBOE CORRECT VALUE FOR LAND LOCKED AND UNDERSIZED
1/26/17 | 002-041-20 SAME H-4 500 175| ENTRY ERROR CORRECTION

1/26/17 | 002-061-01 SAME J-1 3,291 175|CBOE PROB UNBUILDABLE AT THIS TIME

1/26/17 | 002-061-12 SAME J-1 1,298 175|CBOE SPLINTER PROP WITH NO ACCESS

1/26/17 | 002-062-02 SAME J-1 8,518 2,512 |CBOE CORRECT USEABLE LAND AND ADJUST VALUE ACCORD
1/26/17 | 002-062-03 SAME J-1 1,780 175|CBOE CORRECTION FOR TOPQ

1/26/17 002-062-42 SAME J-1 3,248 500| CBOE CORRECTION FOR TOPO

1/26/17 | 002-062-44 SAME J-1 655 175 |CBOE CORRECTION FOR TOPO

1/26/17 002-062-59 SAME J-1 990 175 | CORRECT LUC TO ROAD EASEMENT

1/26/17 002-071-01 SAME J-1 9,042 4,521|CBOE AT MOD FACTOR FOR TOPO OF PROPERTY

1/27/17 | 002-071-38 SAME J-1 2,333 175|CBOE TOPO AND VALUATION CORRECTION

1/27/17 | 002-071-39 SAME J-1 3,145 175|CBOE TOPO AND VALUATION CORRECTION

1/27/17 | 002-072-02 SAME J-1 5,951 175|CBOE TOPO AND VALUATION CORRECTION ALL MINE TAILIN
1/27/17 | 002-082-07 SAME J-1 837 175|CBOE TOPO AND VALUATION CORRECTION MINE TAILING
1/27/17 | 002-083-05 SAME J-1 2,215 175|CBOE TOPO AND VALUATION CORRECTION

1/27/17 002-083-08 SAME J-1 7,241 175|CBOE TAILING STEP DOWNS ACCESS ROADS STEEP GRADE
1/27/17 | 002-141-08 SAME J-1 19,900 14,925 |CBOE REDUCTION DUE TO POWERLINE/EASEMENT PLACEMNT
1/27/17 002-141-07 SAME H-4 24,877 18, 676 | CORRECTION FOR TOPO OF PROPERTY

1/27/17 002-141-08 SAME H-4 14,925 11,206 | TOPO CORRECTION SHOULD HAVE BEEN MADE B4 25% REDUC
1/27/17 | 002-141-09 SAME J-1 19,050 16,345 |CBOE TOPO CORRECTION

1/27/17 | 002-141-10 SAME J-1 14,927 11,206 |CBOE CORRECTION FOR ACCESS THRU TAILINGS

F-2

PAGE 1



LOG OF CHANGES MADE TO THE SECURED ROLL PURSUANT TO NRS 361.310

I CERTIFY THAT THE ASSESSMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION WWO<HUmU HEREIN ARE IN ACCORDANCE WITH
THE NEVADA REVISED STATUTES AND THE REGULATIONS OF NEVADA TAX COMMISSION.

COUNTY: Storey County

, Assessor For Storey County
ROLL: 2017-18

P-2

DATE
DATE PARCEL , NUMBER CO: ASSESSED VALUE CTHANGE
OF COMMENT
CHANGE oLD NEW LAND|IMPR|P.P, | EX OLD NEW
1/30/17 002-181-06 SAME J-1 800 175| CBOE CORRECTION NON BUILDABLE MINING PIT WALL
1/30/17 002-181-09 SAME J-1 1,518 175|CBOE DEEP MINING PIT AND WALLS
1/30/17 002-191-01 SAME J-1 6,084 175|CBOE CORRECT FOR STEEP PIT WALLS AND ROADS
1/30/17 002-201-12 SAME J-1 536 175|CBOE NON BUILDABLE DUE TO RR TRACKS
1/30/17 002-201-32 SAME J-1 870 175 | CBOE CORRECT FOR TOPO AND RR TRACKS
1/30/17 002-211-02 SAME J-1 552 175|CBOE CORRECTION FOR MINING PIT WALLS
1/30/17 002-231-01 SAME J-1 3,652 1,890|CBOE CORRECTION FOR TOPO AND BUILDABLE AREA
1/30/17 002-241-01 SAME J-1 691 175|CBOE ON EDGE OF PIT WITH EROSION ISSUES
2/02/17 002-141-05 SAME J-1 15,775 11,831 |ADD 25% REDUCTION FOR CRMS CLEANUP FOR RES PROP
2/02/17 002-141-08 SAME J-1 11,206 8,405|ADD 25% REDUC FOR CRMS CLEANUP ON RES PROP
2/02/17 002-141-09 SAME J-1 16,345 12,259|ADD 25% REDUCTION FOR CRMS CLEANUP ON RES PROP
2/02/17 002-141-10 SAME J-1 11,206 8,405|ADD 25% REDUCTION FOR CRMS CLEANUP ON RES PROP
2/02/17 001-054-13 SAME J-1 16,320 13,052 | CORRECTION DUE TO COMPACTION ISSUES & COST TO CURE
2/28/17 004-171-09 SAME c-3 33,554 | PARCEL REACTIVATED
2/28/17 004-171-09 c-3 33,554 PARCEL erva
005-011-39 C-3 18,576 PARCEL KILL
005-011-13 Cc-3 175 PARCEL KILL u
005-011-29 C-3 10,286 PARCEL KILLED
005-011-14 Cc-3 5,082 PARCEL KILLED
004-171-12 Cc-3 9,182 PARCEL KILLED
004-171-11 Cc-3 24,169 PARCEL KILLED
2/28/17 004-171-13 005-011-51 c-2 67,470 | PARCELS COMBINED
004-171-13 005-011-51 c-2 67,470 | PARCELS COMBINED
2/28/17 005-011-51 c-3 67,470 PARCEL KILLED
005-011-51 c-3 67,470 PARCEL KILLED
2/28/17 005-011-51 004-171-14 Cc-1 24,151 | PARCEL CREATED BY SPLIT
2/28/17 005-011-51 004-171-15 c-1 9,132 | PARCEL CREATED BY SPLIT
2/28/17 005-011-51 005-011-52 Cc-1 175| PARCEL CREATED BY SPLIT
005-011-51 005-011-52 Cc-1 175| PARCEL CREATED BY SPLIT
2/28/17 005-011-51 005-011-53 Cc-1 18,556 | PARCEL CREATED BY SPLIT
2/28/17 005-011-51 005-011-54 c-1 10,224 | PARCEL CREATED BY SPLIT
2/28/17 005-011-51 005-011-55 Cc-1 175 | PARCEL CREATED BY SPLIT
2/28/17 005-011-51 005-011-56 C-1 4,951 | PARCEL CREATED BY SPLIT
2/28/17 005-011-52 175 PARCEL KILLED
005-011-52 c-3 175 PARCEL KILLED
803033 31 c3| €72 330 PARCEL KILLED
= = - ED
003-023-05 c-3 300 PARCEL KILLED
3/10/17 003-033-21 003-033-47 c-2 25,829| PARCELS COMBINED
003-033-21 003-033-47 c-2 10,500 | PARCELS COMBINED



LOG OF CHANGES MADE TC THE SECURED ROLL PURSUANT TO NRS 361.310

COUNTY: Storey County

I CERTIFY THAT THE ASSESSMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION PROVIDED HEREIN ARE IN ACCORDANCE WITH

THE NEVADA REVISED STATUTES AND THE REGULATIONS OF THE NEVADA TAX COMMISSION.

, Assessor For Storey County

ROLL: 2017-18
DATE
DATE PARCEL  NUMBEKR TO ASSESSED VALUE CHANGE
OF COMMENT

CHANGE OLD NEW r>zu_Hzmx m‘m._ EX oLD NEW

73710717 | 005-101-10 | “samME | J-1 281,221 1] CROE IMPROVEMENT CHANGE

3/10/17 003-543-02 SAME F-1 5,577 22,710|MH TO REAL

3/20/17 | 003-162-02 c-3 39,408 PARCEL KILLED
003-162-02 c-3 21200 PARCEL KILLED
003-162-01 c-3 47200 PARCEL KILLED

3/20/17 | 003-162-02 | 003-162-17 c-2 39,408 | PARCELS COMBINED
003-163-02 | 003-162-17 | c-2 5,600 | PARCELS COMBINED

3/20/17 | 003-141-21 c-3 100,256 PARCEL KILLED
003-141-21 c-3 4200 PARCEL KILLED
003-132-13 c-3 4,200 PARCEL KILLED
003-132-12 ¢-3 4,200 PARCEL KILLED

3/20/17 | 003-141-21 | 003-141-27 c-2 100, 256 | PARCELS COMBINED
003-141-21 | 003-141-27 | c-2 9.450| PARCELS COMBINED

3/21/17 | 003-111-32 c-3 57,424 PARCEL KILLED
003-081-65 c-3 4,200 PARCEL KILL
003-111-02 ¢-3 41200 PARCEL KILLED
003-111-32 ¢-3 51250 PARCEL KILLED

3/21/17 | 003-081-65 | 003-081-76 | C-2 13,650 | PARCELS COMBINED
003-081-76 SAME H-4 57.424|RES VALUES LEFT OFF DURING SPLIT

3/27/17 | 005-011-56 c-3 4,951 PARCEL KILLED
005-011-55 G-3 175 PARCEL KILLED
002-171-15 ¢-3 9,132 PARCEL KILLED

3/27/17 | 005-011-56 | 005-011-57 | C-2 14,083 | PARCELS COMBINED

3/27/17 | 005-011-57 c-3 14,083 PARCEL KILLED

3/27/17 | 005-011-57 | 004-171-16 | C-1 6,757| PARCEL CREATED BY SPLIT

3/27/17 | 005-011-57 | 005-011-58 | C-1 2,522 | PARCEL CREATED BY SPLIT

3/27/17 | 005-011-57 | 005-011-59 | c-1 2,467| PARCEL CREATED BY SPLIT

3/27/17 | 005-011-57 | 005-011-60 | C-1 2,438| PARCEL CREATED BY SPLIT

3/27/17 | 005-011-59 c-3 2,467 PARCEL KILLED

3/27/17 | 005-011-59 | 005-011-61 | C-1 2,087| PARCEL CREATED BY SPLIT

3/27/17 | 005-011-59 | 005-011-62 | C-1 175| PARCEL CREATED BY SPLIT

3/27/17 | 005-011-59 | 005-011-63 | C-1 278| PARCEL CREATED BY SPLIT

3/28/17 | 003-122-06 SAME G-1 2,640|NEW VET EXEMPT

3/28/17 | 003-271-07 SAME G-1 1,320|NEW EXEMPTION, WILL USE ON PROPERTY

4/04/17 | 001-254-03 SAME H-2 14,277 14,250|ROS ON PROPERTY CHANGED

4/04/17 | 001-254-02 SAME H-2 24,272 27,025|ROS CHANGED PROPERTY SF

4/04/17 | 005-111-59 c-3 234,823 DARCEL KILLED

4/04/17 | 005-111-59 | 005-111-61 | C-1 234,823 | PARCEL CREATED BY SPLIT
005-111-61 SAME H-2 234,823 207,060 | CORRECTION DUE TO SPLIT ERROR

4/05/17 | 001-254-02 c-3 14,078 PARCEL KILLED
001-254-02 c-3 27,025 PARCEL KTLLED

F-2

PAGE 3



LOG OF CHANGES MADE TO THE SECURED ROLL PURSUANT TO NRS 361.310

I CERTIFY THAT THE_ASSESSMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION PROVIDED HEREIN ARE IN ACCORDANCE WITH
THE NEVADA REVISED STATUTES AND THE REGULATIONS OF THE NEVADA TAX COMMISSION.

COUNTY: Storey County

T , Assessor For Storey County

DATE
—DATE PARCEL  NUMBER TO! ESSES E
oF COMMENT
CHANGE OLD NEW r»zu_uzmw m.m._ EX OLD NEW
T4/05/17 | 001-254-02 | 001-254-04 c-1 14, 078] PARCEL CREATED BY SPLIT
001-254-02 001-254-04 c-1 12,766 | PARCEL CREATED BY SPLIT
4/05/17 001-254-02 001-254-05 c-1 14,286 | PARCEL CREATED BY SPLIT
4/06/17 | 001-195-05 Cc-3 2,143 PARCEL KILLED
001-155-06 C-3 3,212 PARCEL KILLED
4/06/17 | 001-195-05 001-195-11 | C-2 13,584 | PARCELS COMBINED
4/13/17 004-171-16 SAME H-4 6,757 6,300 | CORRECTION OF SPLIT
4/14/17 003-314-06 SAME F-1 5,935 24,684 |MH TO REAL
4/17/17 001-015-07 SAME G-1 1,320 PROPERTY SOLD REMOVING SELLERS PERSONAL EXEMPTION
4/17/17 003-015-18 SAME G-1 2,640 PROPERTY SOLD REMOVE SELLERS PERSONAL EXEMPTION
4/26/17 | 003-555-02 SAME G-1 3,960 | EXEMPTION RENEWAL RECVD
4/27/17 | 001-024-05 SAME H-4 32,708 32,683 |REMOVING LUMP SUM ERROR
4/27/17 | 001-132-22 SAME H-2 92,419 92,213 | CORRECTING SIZE OF CONCRETE
4/27/17 | 001-148-02 SAME H-2 37,610 38,861 | CORRECT SQ FT OF RESIDENCE
5/01/17 | 003-191-49 SAME B-1 67,492 73,330 | ADDITIONAL LIVING AREA IN GARAGE
5/02/17 005-061-37 c-3 2,682,750 PARCEL KILLED
005-061-36 c-3 248,581 PARCEL KILLED
005-061-37 Cc-3 186,764 PARCEL KILLED
5/02/17 | 005-061-36 005-061-44 c-2 435,345 | PARCELS COMBINED
5/02/17 | 005-061-44 c-3 435,345 PARCEL KILLED
5/02/17 005-061-44 005-061-45 c-1 2,682,750 | PARCEL CREATED BY SPLIT
005-061-44 005-061-45 c-1 241,459 PARCEL CREATED BY SPLIT
5/02/17 005-061-44 005-061-46 c-1 210,296 | PARCEL CREATED BY SPLIT
5/02/17 005-061-45 c-3 2,682,750 PARCEL KILLED
005-061-45 c-3 241,459 PARCEL KILLED
005-061-38 Cc-3 121,842 PARCEL KILLED
5/02/17 005-061-45 005-061-47 c-2 2,682,750 | PARCELS COMBINED
005-061-45 005-061-47 Cc-2 36,331 | PARCELS COMBINED
005-061-47 SAME Cc-2 36,331 359,920 LOT CONSOLIDATION
5/05/17 | 003-012-06 SAME G-1 19,800 | NEW EXEMPTION FOR 2017-18
5/17/17 003-161-15 SAME B-1 20,579 78,361 |NEW RES 100% COMPLETE
5/17/17 004-271-43 SAME B-1 39,174 46,783 |NEW DET GARAGE
5/17/17 | 003-393-05 SAME B-1 105,965 108,726 | NEW CARPORT
5/17/17 | 003-014-47 SAME B-1 32,217 52,888 |NEW ADDITION AND DET GAR
5/17/17 003-172-08 SAME B-1 93,360 112,003 |NEW METAL BLDG
5/17/17 | 003-182-01 SAME B-1 55,071 63,313|2 STORY ENCL PCH
5/17/17 003-411-10 SAME B-1 69,409 73,155|RES 100% COMPLETE

F-2
PAGE 4



LOG OF CHANGES MADE TO THE SECURED ROLL PURSUANT TO NRS 361.310

I CERTIFY THAT THE ASSESSMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION PROVIDED HEREIN ARE IN ACCORDANCE WITH
THE NEVADA REVISED STATUTES AND THE REGULATIONS OF THE NEVADA TAX COMMISSION.

COUNTY: Storey County
ROLL: 2017-18

DATE

|ldew PARCEL NUMBER rcﬂm ASSESSED VALUE CHANGE
CHANGE OLD NEW v»Zd_Hzmw m.m._ EX OLD NEW
"5/17/17 | 003-261-3a | samE || B-1] rr T 1,677|
5/17/17 003-321-34 SAME B-1 29,744 30,513
5/18/17 003-283-14 SAME H-4 29,116 17,046
5/19/17 003-381-17 SAME B-2 90,173 83,559
5/19/17 003-461-04 SAME H-4 111,138 112,067
5/22/17 003-052-49 SAME B-1 42,354 45,345
5/22/17 003-321-31 SAME B-1 102,342 103,197
5/22/17 003-321-47 SAME B-1 119,014 120,305
5/22/17 003-351-43 SAME B-1 50,131 49,313
5/22/17 003-431-11 SAME B-1 4,677
5/22/17 003-442-15 SAME B-1 4,677
5/22/17 003-282-19 SAME B-1 6,446
5/22/17 001-211-01 SAME B-1 27,366
5/22/17 001-204-08 SAME B-1 60,181 67,272
5/22/17 001-024-14 SAME B-1 56,583 49,232
5/22/17 001-032-04 SAME H-4 87,962 87,567
5/22/17 001-083-03 SAME B-1 34,511 49,069
5/22/17 001-091-18 SAME B-1 28,439 28,620
5/22/17 001-095-03 SAME H-4 25,888 28,629
5/22/17 001-184-03 SAME H-4 10,472 10,490
5/22/17 001-184-07 SAME B-1 45,738
5/22/17 002-052-02 SAME B-1 17,953 19,517
5/22/17 001-255-05 SAME B-1 9,473
5/22/17 001-246-13 SAME B-1 34,233 34,706
5/22/17 001-073-20 SAME B-1 11,597 13,110
5/22/17 003-283-20 SAME B-1 3,902 45,345
5/22/17 003-283-19 SAME B-1 284 39,574
5/22/17 003-313-02 SAME B-1 2,324 49,072
5/22/17 003-281-12 SAME B-1 2,903 36,633
5/22/17 003-313-02 SAME H-4 49,072 50,289
5/23/17 001-256-06 SAME B-1 96,628 124,282
5/23/17 002-061-13 SAME B-1 17,276 17,375
5/23/17 001-312-09 SAME B-1 40,790 43,326
F-2

PAGE S

, Assessor For Storey County

COMMENT

NEW WELL

NEW SHED

CORRECT FOR ONLY 55% CCMPLETE
GARAGE BURNED

CORRECTING SIZE: WOD, ROOF, ADDING OMITTED ROOF OH
NEW WELL

NEW WELL

ADD AC

HEAT NOW GEOTHERMAL PUMP

NEW WELL

NEW WELL

MH SET UP

NEW RES 30% COMPL

PORCHES AND CONC

ADDITION AND REMOVAL OF PORCHES
CORRECT FNC TYPE AND ROOF TYPE
NEW ROOF OVER OLD ROOF

SLAT BD ROOF

CORRECT DECKS

CORRECT ROOF OVER HANG

NEW RES @ 55% COMPL

ADDITIONS

NEW RES 15% COMPL

CH LINK FNC

FENCING IN BACK YARD

MH SETUP AND CONVERSION

MH SETUP & CONVERSION

MH SET UP AND CONVERSION

MH SETUP & CONVERSION
CORRECTION FND LEFT OFF
BASEMENT IS NOW PARTITION FINISHED
EXT STAIRS

CONC



LOG OF CHANGES MADE TO THE SECURED ROLL PURSUANT TO NRS 361.310

I CERTIFY THAT THE ASSESSMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION PROVIDED HEREIN ARE IN ACCORDANCE WITH
THE NEVADA REVISED STATUTES AND THE REGULATIONS OF THE NEVADA TAX COMMISSION.

COUNTY: Storey County

, Assessor For Storey County
ROLL: 2017-18

DATE

DATE PARCEL NUMBER TO! ASSESSED VALUE THANGE

nmwmam OLD NEW thd_Hzmmﬂwwm._ EX OLD NEW COMMENT
"5/23/17 | 001-262-08 | saMe | | w-a] | 1 49,694 43,113 PP IMPROVEMENTS REMOVED FROM ROLL
5/23/17 | 001-251-14 SAME B-1 76,380 | NEW RES 100% COMPLETE

5/23/17 | 001-244-07 SAME B-1 11,905 24,308 |ADDITIONS TO 2 RES PLUS 2 GARAGES

5/23/17 | 001-247-12 SAME B-1 30,951 32,440 | CONCRETE

5/24/17 | 001-148-01 SAME B-1 71,970 71,989 |NEW RET WALL AND FNC

5/24/17 | 001-141-08 SAME B-1 26,762 32,536 | NEW GARAGE

5/24/17 | 001-246-11 SAME B-1 5,242 |NEW RES 15% COMPL

5/24/17 | 001-183-10 SAME B-1 55,567 65,588 |ADD FINISH TO TOP FLOOR

5/24/17 | 001-188-03 SAME B-2 9,542 8,613 | REMOVAL OF DECKS AND FENCING

5/24/17 | 001-061-04 SAME B-1 68,641 72,583 | REMODEL 100% COMPL

5/24/17 001-052-12 SAME B-1 1,336 3,015 | NEW DECKS AND FENCING

5/24/17 | 001-058-11 SAME H-2 60,429 60,552 | CORRECT SIZE OF GARAGE

5/24/17 | 001-132-15 SAME B-1 2,871 5,749 | REMODEL STARTED ON STRIPPED DOWN HSE 58% COMPL
5/24/17 | 003-161-25 SAME B-1 4,748 |NEW WELL

5/24/17 | 003-381-02 SAME B-1 16,112 |NEW BLDG COSTED AS RES BUT NO PERMITS OR WELL
5/24/17 | 005-041-24 SAME H-2 7,410,313 7,427,134 | BLDG LEFT OFF OF SYSTEM ENTRY FOR IND PARK
5/24/17 | 004-271-58 SAME B-1 4,677 6,203 | NEW SHED & WCP

5/25/17 | 003-081-49 SAME B-1 60,838 63,738 |GARAGE IS 50% COMPL

5/25/17 | 003-081-38 SAME B-1 9,752 14,088 |GAR 100% NO RES YET

5/25/17 | 003-392-02 SAME B-1 18,404 111,428 |NEW RES 100% COMPL

5/25/17 | 003-371-26 SAME B-1 4,748 | NEW WELL

5/25/17 | 004-221-54 SAME B-1 68,075 75,118 | NEW GARAGE 100% COMPL

5/25/17 | 003-361-06 SAME B-1 85,223 85,609 | NEW DECKS AND ROOF @ 50% COMPL

5/25/17 | 003-331-05 SAME B-1 167,299 186,585 |NEW STEEL BLDG 100% COMPL

5/26/17 | 003-361-21 SAME B-1 42,368 45,366 | NEW SHEDS

5/26/17 | 003-022-12 SAME B-1 86,104 90,357 |RES 100% COMPL

5/26/17 | 003-022-89 SAME B-1 42,714 59,694 |NEW MTL BLDG AND SHEDS

5/26/17 | 003-061-47 SAME B-1 83,173 87,894 | NEW BARN

5/26/17 | 003-121-06 SAME B-1 57,738 65,265|ADDITION @ 80% COMPLETE

5/26/17 004-241-55 SAME B-1 100,664 106,695|NEW LARGE SHED

5/26/17 | 003-552-16 SAME G-1 2,640 NEW EXEMPTION FOR SECURED

5/26/17 | 003-295-03 SAME G-1 2,640 NEW EXEMPTION TO SECURED

5/26/17 | 003-273-12 SAME G-1 26,400/2017-18 EXEMPTION

F-2

PAGE €



LOG OF CHANGES MADE TO THE SECURED ROLL PURSUANT TO NRS 361.310

I CERTIFY THAT THE ASSESSMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION PROVIDED HEREIN ARE IN ACCORDANCE WITH
THE NEVADA REVISED STATUTES AND THE REGULATIONS OF THE NEVADA TAX COMMISSION.

COUNTY: Storey County

, Assessor For Storey County
ROLL: 2017-18

DATE

DATE PARCEL  NUMBER TO! ASSESSED VALUE CHANGE

n:mmom OLD NEW ﬁyzu_HzmwﬂM.m._ EX OoLD NEW COMMENT
“s/31/17 | 001-091-01 | saMe || 1 (el TTTT]TTTTTT1)320[ CHG EXEMPTION TO SECURED oo
5/31/17 | 003-301-04 SAME G-1 1,320|NEW EXEMPTION

6/01/17 | 003-141-17 SAME G-1 1,320 DECEASED REMOVING EXEMPTION
6/02/17 | 003-092-60 SAME B-1 85,653 92,083 |RES 100% COMPL

6/02/17 | 003-011-09 SAME B-1 5,763 28,464 |NEW RES IS 35% COMPL

6/02/17 | 003-092-22 SAME B-1 139,971 185,748 |RES IS 100% COMPL

6/02/17 | 003-421-18 SAME B-1 95,425 126,964 |DET GAR W/LARGE REC ROOM 100%
6/02/17 | 003-431-02 SAME B-1 80,838 85,202 |ADDITION AND DECK @ 35% COMPL
6/02/17 | 003-431-13 SAME B-1 4,677 175,712 |NEW RES IS 100% COMPL

6/02/17 | 003-441-02 SAME B-1 116,551 120,307 |DECK AND LOG ROOF ARE 100% COMPL
6/02/17 | 003-442-16 SAME B-1 5,536 90,248 |NEW MODULAR RES @ 100% COMPL
6/02/17 | 003-442-09 SAME B-1 128,883 167,555|RES IS 95% COMPL

6/02/17 | 003-361-24 SAME B-1 3,893 5,034 | DECK

6/02/17 | 003-313-03 SAME B-1 25,967 27,757 |ADD BATH BACK IN

6/02/17 | 001-251-06 SAME B-1 5,802|RES IS 15% COMPL

6/02/17 | 004-291-22 SAME B-1 6,746 48,430|RES IS 62% COMPL

6€/02/17 | 005-091-45 SAME B-1 7,556 15,287 | NEW MICROLAB

6/02/17 | 004-141-09 SAME B-1 23,885 27,064 | NEW GARAGE 100% COMPL

6/02/17 003-272-15 SAME G-1 3,960| EXEMPTION RENEWAL RETURNED
6/06/17 | 003-162-16 SAME B-1 4,107 34,978|RES IS 35% COMPLETE

6/06/17 | 003-551-01 SAME B-1 29,556 30,953 | NEW ENCLOSED PORCH

6/06/17 | 004-321-39 SAME H-4 84,716 84,370 | CORRECT ATTACHED GARAGE TO BUILTIN
6/06/17 | 001-134-01 SAME B-1 16,892 20,248 |NEW SHEDS AND ADD BACK ON OLD MILL SITE BLDGS
6€/08/17 | 001-081-05 SAME B-2 4,289 REMOVAL OF IMPROVEMENTS

6/09/17 | 001-034-06 SAME G-1 2,640|NEW VET EXEMPTION

6/12/17 | 003-314-20 SAME G-1 13,200|CHG VET EXEMPTION TO SECURE
6/13/17 | 003-191-23 SAME G-1 2,640 CHANGE TO DMV

6/19/17 | 003-282-17 SAME G-1 2,640 3,960 | ADDING EXEMPTION

6/19/17 | 004-221-56 SAME G-1 2,640|CHG EXEMPTION TO SECURE

6/20/17 | 004-321-55 SAME B-1 52,300 87,386 |RES IS 90% COMPLETE

6/20/17 | 005-011-48 SAME B-1 31,438,753| 35,857,351|NEW CONSTR BLDG @ 60% COMPL
6/21/17 | 003-162-13 SAME G-1 26,400 | NEW EXEMPTION

6/21/17 | 005-011-48 SAME D-1 1,567,943 1,979,585|SITE IMPROVEMENTS

F-2

PAGE 7



LOG OF CHANGES MADE TO THE SECURED ROLL PURSUANT TO NRS 361.310

I CERTIFY THAT THE ASSESSMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION PROVIDED HEREIN ARE

COUNTY: Storey County
ROLL: 2017-18

6722717
6/22/17
6/22/17

6/22/17
6/23/17

6/23/17
6/23/17
6/23/17
6/23/17
6/23/17

6/23/17

6/26/17
6/27/17

6/27/17

6/28/17
6/28/17
6/28/17
F-2

IN ACCORDANCE WITH

THE NEVADA REVISED STATUTES AND THE REGULATIONS OF THE NEVADA TAX COMMISSION.

, Assessor For Storey County

PAGE 8

DATE
I PARCEL NUMBEK CO ASSESSED VALUE CHANGE
OLD NEW bvzu_Hzmw m.w._ EX OLD NEW

| 005-071-40 | samE | _ | B-1] ] ] 7T T7,a13] 10,432,889
005-071-40 SAME B-1 738,174 922,718
005-011-48 SAME H-4 35,857,351 35,717,827
005-011-22 SAME B-1 73,973,231|153,972,352
005-011-22 SAME B-1 4,759,131 6,345,508
005-011-48 SAME H-4 35,717,827| 22,076,395
001-205-11 C= 5,352
001-205-06 c-3 286
001-205-11 001-205-13 c-2 11,428
001-212-01 c-3 23,771
001-212-01 001-212-03 Cc-1 21,200
001-212-01 001-212-04 C-1 850
003-092-54 Cc-3 4,605
003-0392-54 C-3 4,200
003-0892-55 Cc-3 4,200
003-092-54 003-092-98 c-2 4,605
003-092-54 003-092-98 c-2 6,300
004-271-38 SAME B-1 28,254 35,587
003-161-51 c-3 3,960
003-161-51 c-3 56,704
003-161-51 C-3 5,250
003-161-44 C-3 4,200
003-161-51 003-161-56 c-2 3,960
003-161-51 003-161-56 c-2 56,704
003-161-51 003-161-56 Cc-2 6,825
003-161-56 SAME H-4 6,825 9,450
001-073-07 SAME H-2 7,930 7,871
001-017-03 SAME H-4 13,043 13,068
001-083-13 SAME H-2 109,564 104,776

NEW CONSTRUCTION
NEW CONSTRUCTION

CORRECT VALUE OF ASPHALT DUE TO QUANTITY

NEW CONSTRUCTION
NEW CONSTRUCTION

CORRECTION DUE TO PERCENT COMPLETE LEFT OFF

PARCEL KILLED
PARCEL KILLED

PARCELS COMBINED

PARCEL KILLED
PARCEL CREATED BY SPLIT
PARCEL CREATED BY SPLIT
PARCEL KILLED
PARCEL KILLED
PARCEL KILLED

PARCELS COMBINED
PARCELS COMBINED

RES IS NOW 70% COMPL
PARCEL KILLED

PARCELS COMBINED
PARCELS COMBINED
PARCELS COMBINED

ENTRY ERROR

CORRECTING DECK SIZE
ITEM OMITTED PREVIOUSLY

CORRECT SQ FT AND WT YR



ASR271 6/28/17 Assessor's Log Totals by Change Code Page

Code 0ld Amount New Amount Difference
B-1 114,110,643 212,032,524 97,921,881
B-2 104,004 92,172 11,832~
C-1 3,516,421 3,516,421
c-2 36,331 3,828,608 3,792,277
Cc-3 7,387,379 33,554 7,353,825~
D-1 1,567,943 1,979,585 411,642
F-1 11,512 47,394 35,882
G-1 10,560- 117,480- 106,920~
H-2 7,756,814 7,772,682 15,868
H-3 45,015 45,003 12-
H-4 72,397,605 58,614,229 13,783,376~
J-1 555,038 165,159 389,879~

LIE TS 203,961,724 288,009,851 84,048,127 ** GRAND TOTALS **



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: August 1, 2017 Estimate of time required: 0-5 min.

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: For possible action, approval of the Storey County Investment Policy.

2. Recommended motion: Approve as part of the Consent Agenda.

3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Treasurer Telephone: 775.847.0969
4. Staff summary: A copy of the proposed policy is attached. Storey County does not currently
have a policy in place; we have been operating under the policy adopted by the State
Treasurer. The Storey County Treasurer and Comptroller’s Office have worked together
to develop this policy.

5. Supporting materials: Policy is attached.

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Treasurer

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1] Approved
[1] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

e d

Agenda Item No.



STOREY COUNTY INVESTEMENT POLICY

Philosophy

It is the philosophy of the Storey County Treasurer to invest with safety, liquidity and
yield, in that order of priority, to take advantage of safe investment opportunities. All
investments made by this office are strictly governed by written policy and are in accordance
with Nevada Revised Statutes 355.170 and 355.171.

Investment of funds is made with the judgment and care under current prevailing
circumstances that persons of prudence, discretion, and intelligence would exercise in the
management of their own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the
probable safety of capital, as well as probable income to be derived, and optimum liquidity
required for operation.

Investment Planning

A. Payment of County Obligations
1. The foremost consideration of the investment plan is to ensure that
adequate funds are available to meet the County’s financial obligations as
they become due.

B. Term of Investment
1. The length of investment is generally dictated by the number
of the County’s obligations and the time at which they will come due.

2 Maximum maturity of investments is 5 years (except for mortgages which
will be bought with a maximum average life of 3 years)

Delegation of Authority

Under authority delegated by the Board of County Commissioners, in accordance with
NRS 355.175, the investment of County funds is the responsibility of the County Treasurer. This
responsibility includes the authority to open accounts with financial institutions and
broker/dealers, to arrange for the custody of securities and to execute such documents as may be
necessary to carry out this responsibility.

Permitted Investments and Utilization

A. The State of Nevada Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) managed by the office
of the State Treasurer

B. U.S. Treasury obligations which carry the full faith and credit guarantee of the United
States government (State Law allows maturity up to 10 years).

C. U.S. government agency and instrumentality obligations that have a liquid market with a
readily determinable market value (State Law allows maturity up to 10 years);

D. Certificates of deposit and other evidences of deposit which are issued by commercial



banks or insured savings and loan associations rated in the highest tier by a nationally
recognized rating agency. Maturities of any CD cannot exceed 5 years from the date of
purchase.

E. Commercial paper, rated in the highest tier (e.g., A-1, P-1, F-1, or D-1 or higher) by a
nationally recognized rating agency;

F. Investment-grade obligations of state, provincial and local governments and public
authorities;

G. Repurchase agreements whose underlying purchased securities consist of the
aforementioned instruments;

H. Money market mutual funds regulated by the Securities and Exchange Commission and
are rated by a nationally recognized rating service as “AAA” or its equivalent and only in
securities issued by the Federal Government or agencies of the Federal Government or in
repurchase agreements fully collateralized by such securities.

. Corporate Bonds that are rated by a nationally recognized rating service at “A” (or its
equivalent) or better and may not exceed fifteen percent (15%) of the Investment
Portfolio.

Utilization of Financial Institutions, Local Governments and Investment Advisors

A. It is the policy of the Storey County Treasurer to utilize the services of in-state
financial institutions whenever possible, but is not limited to those institutions.

B. The County Treasurer is authorized to hire an investment manager and delegate
investment discretionary authority to a third party or investment manager. The
investment manager is to make investments for Storey County only in
investments as allowed by Nevada Revised Statutes and also under the guidelines
of the current investment policy. The purpose of this authority is to enhance
yields using longer term U.S. Treasury and Agency securities through a
professional broker-manager.

Other Considerations

A. Financial Institution Limitations and Restrictions
1. It is the policy of the Storey County Treasurer to reserve the right to place
a limit on the amount of investments placed with any one financial institution.
Each situation must and will be considered individually.

B. Delivery of Collateral
1. In the interest of adequate protection of public funds, it is the policy of this
office to require delivery of all securities on all deposits made by the County.

Marshall McBride, Chairman Date



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 8-01-17 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License First Readings -- Approval

2. Recommended motion: None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda) I move to
approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request).

3. Prepared by: Sarah Dillon
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966
4, Staff summary: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next

Commissioners’ meeting for approval.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

Department Name:

e
County Manager Other agency review:
9. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No.



Storey County @nmmunitp Bebvelopment

3

Buginess el Licensing

P O Box 526 * Virginia City NV 89440 « (775) 847-0966 * Fax (775) 847-0935 * buslic@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office July 10, 2017
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email
Fr: Sarah Dillon

Please add the following item(s) to the August 1st, 2017 COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:

LICENSING BOARD
FIRST READINGS:

N XIS CRSPRQURQOZErRpET"ZQAEELOR Y

FOREVER CHRISTMAS - General /88 N C Street ~ VC, NV(Retail)

ADL CONSTRUCTION, INC - Contractor / 5301 Longley Lane # H -116 ~ Reno, NV(Framing Contractor)
UNIVERSAL PROTECTION SERVICE, LLC - General/ PO Box 8000 ~Monsey, NY (Security Guards)
ATSI ROBOTICS NEVADA, LLC -Irofcssional /4625 W Ncso Dr STE 2 &3, Las Vegas, NV (Computer 'rog.)
B’s ANTIQUES — General /~ 145 S C Street, VC, NV (Antique Retail)

BARON GROUPE —Professional / 969 Rue Louis Breguet- ZAC, France (Commissioning)

COMAU, LLC - Contractor/ 2100 Telegraph Road ~ Sothfield, MT (Automotive)

INNOVATIVE LIGHTWEIGHT - Contractor / 8850 Terabyte Ct, Reno, NV (Contractor )

MACKAY MANSION MUSEUM —General/ 291 S. D Street VC, NV(Tours, Weddings)

ECS GROUP, LLC - General / po box 50923, Sparks, NV(Consulting)

SILVER PEAK CONSTRUCTION SERVICES, LL.C —Contractor /748 S.Meadows Pkwy ~ Reno, NV(Contractor)
KUMA ENGINEERING, CO., LTD — Professional /OSAKA, Japan ~ (Engineering)

GROVES CONSTRUCTION, INC. —Contractor / 636 Eureka Ave, Reno NV(Construction)

CHART LIFECYCLE, INC. - Professional / 2328 Walsh Ave # L, Santa Clara, CA(Contractor)

XION TECHNOLOGY, LLC - Contractor / 8665 New Trails Dr.#100, Woodlands, TX (Installation)
CHOLLAR MINE 1859, LLC — General / 615 F Street, VC, NV (Mine Tours)

LABORWORKS, INDUSTRIAL STAFFING, INC — General / po box 1755, Gig Harbor WA (Staffing)

S & S TOOL & SUPPLY, INC. — General/ 2700 Maxwell Way, Fairfield , CA ( Sales)

LEONI ENGINEERING PRODUCTS - Professional / 100 Kay Industrial Dr., Lake Orion, MI (Management)
CUSTOM PAINTING & DECORATIONG, INC - Contractor / 254 E Glendale, Sparks, NV (Contractor)
SEYI-AMERICA, INC. — Professional/ 17534 Von Karman Ave, Irvine, CA (Metal Stamping)

HEXAGON METROLOGY, INC — Professional /250 circuit Dr. North Kingstown RI (Installation)

. MILES ARCHITECTURAL GROUP — Professional /10800 Sand Hollow Ct. ~ Reno, NV (Architectural)

GURR’S ROOFING HEATING & SHEET MEATAL, INC. —Contractor /PO Box 637 ., Sparks, NV (Contractor)
CASHE VALLEY ELECTRIC —Contractor- PO Box 405, Logan, UT (Contrator)
VIS-TECH, LLC - Professional /833 Maple Ave. Holland, MI (Programming)

AA.SPRINGER INDUSTRIAL EQUIPMENT, INC - General / 3164 N. Colorado St. ~ Mesa ,AZ (Distributor )

BB.
CC.
DD.
EE.

FF.

GG.
HH.

SPIROFLOW AUTOMATION SOLUTIONS, INC. -Professional / 1609 Airport Rd ,Monroe , NC (Programing)
CNA ENGINEERING, INC — Professional / 2575 Valley Rd.., Sacramento, CA (Engineering)

MIME USA, LLC — Professional 560Meadows Lark Lane, belle Mead , NJ (Supplier)

MOTOR CITY PROGRAMING- Professional/ 21272 Danbury, Clinton MI (Robotics)

PEAK TECHNICAL SERVICES - Professional — 583 Epsilon Dr., ~ Pittsburgh PA (Staffing)

DATF, INC. dba JIMBOY’S TACOS -General — 4825 Idlewood Dr. Reno, NV\ (Food Truck

ONE SOURCE WATER, LLC -General /3143 W Post Rd. ~ Farmington, CT (Sales )



Storey County Community Bevelopment
Buginess €3

P OBox 526 * Virginia City NV 89440 + (775) 847-0966 + Fax (775) 847-0935 * buslic@storeycounty.org

II. J.B HUNT TRANSPORT, INC — transportation / PO Box 130 Sparks, NV (Transportation )

JJ. SINGLE-PLY SYSTEMS, INC — Contractor / 909 Apollo Rd., Eagan , MN (Roofing)

KK. THERMA-TRON-X, INC. - Contractor / 1155 S. Neenah Ave. Sturgeon Bay, WI (Installation)

LL. ZION ROBOTICS & CONTROLS, LLC -Professional / 924 N Blacks Corners Rd., Inmlay City , MI (Programming)

ec: Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office
Assessor’s Office Fire Department Commissioners’ Office
Tourism Office Comptroller’s Office Dispatch



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: August 1, 2017 Estimate of time required: 10 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ |

1. Title: DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Acceptance and Approval of the contract for
Professional Services between Storey County and Farr West Engineering for the USDA loan
funded 5-Mile Waterline Replacement Project.

2. Recommended motion: | move to approve the contract for Professional Services between Storey
County and Farr West Engineering for the USDA loan funded 5-Mile Waterline Replacement
Project and authorize the Chairman of the Board or his designee to sign the contract documents.

3. Prepared by: Cherie Nevin
Department: Community Services Telephone: 847-0986

4. Staff summary:

Storey County received a loan through the USDA-Rural Development Utilities Program for financing the
5- Mile Waterline Project to meet the present and future needs of the Virginia City Water System demands
for the Virginia City/Gold Hill communities. This project will replace approximately 14,000 linear feet of
existing transmission main between the 5-Mile Reservoir and a location 1.3 miles west of the Virginia City
Water Treatment Plant. The total cost of the project is approximately $2.13 million.

The contract for professional engineering services for this project through Farr West Engineering is a total
of $300,002.00.

5. Supporting materials: Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services
USDA Contract Concurrence
Letter of Conditions

6. Fiscal impact: YES
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

\L(" District Attorney
8. Reviewe

Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

ounty Manager Other agency review:

C
9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[S———

Agenda Item No.



This document has important legal consequences; consultation with an attorney is encouraged with respect to its
use or modification. This document should be adapted to the particular circumstances of the contemplated
Project and the controlling Laws and Regulations.

AGREEMENT
BETWEEN OWNER AND ENGINEER
FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Prepared by

EJCDC=

ENGINEERS JOINT CONTRACT
DOCUMENTS COMMITTEE

Issued and Published Jointly by
AMERICAN CouUNCIL OF ENGINEERING COMPANIES

ASCE

AMERICAN SOCIETY OF CIVIL ENGINEERS

National Society of
= Professional Engineerse

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services,
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.




This Agreement has been prepared for use with EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction
Contract, 2013 Edition. Their provisions are interrelated, and a change in one may necessitate a change in the
other. For guidance on the completion and use of this Agreement, see EJCDC® E-001, Commentary on the EJCDC
Engineering Services Agreements, 2013 Edition.

Copyright © 2014:

National Society of Professional Engineers
1420 King Street, Alexandria, VA 22314-2794
(703) 684-2882
WWW.Nspe.org

American Council of Engineering Companies
1015 15th Street N.W., Washington, DC 20005
(202) 347-7474

www.acec.org

American Society of Civil Engineers
1801 Alexander Bell Drive, Reston, VA 20191-4400
(800) 548-2723

WWW.dsCe.org

The copyright for this EJCDC document is owned jointly by the three sponsoring organizations listed
above. The National Society of Professional Engineers is the Copyright Administrator for the EJCDC
documents; please direct all inquiries regarding EJCDC copyrights to NSPE.

NOTE: EJCDC publications may be purchased at www.ejcdc.org, or from any of the sponsoring
organizations above.




TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

ARTICLE 1 — SERVICES OF ENGINEER isvivsssisssovsnaanssnionsomssesonsnssssa st ss dimaassnsa s adas it smuunssisass coanssaisssnasing 1
) R R R B NPTt 1
ARTICLE 2 — OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES. ....ceceeviereeuireeissresesaisessessesesssseessssessesssssesinssessessssessassiessassssssessessesssses 1
P 0 R =TT - T e 1
ARTICLE 3 = SCHEDULE FOR RENDERING SERVICES. ..ot 2
3.0 COMIMEBNCEIMENT . 1eiiueieierieisrertreesaesaesesisneasseassaeesesiasseesssessssesssssssessssesnssssnesessseeessesssensssssnssranesmesss 2

3.02 Time for COMPIEtioN ......wssmaramssmismsmimimmiaysns s s a s e e s e T T oo s s ss iy 2
ARTICLE 4 — INVOICES AND PAYIMENTS woteuievuererieeenisrenseessmansesessesssissssesssssssesssassensassessasssssssmsesssrsssisssssessssassseans 2
Q.01 INVOICES ixasuessssiaoivassosassoviisasissssesawsenssss s asssssio s e evussads o o isa ssaisaseash abis v anssasessiblnsiaonsavasos 2

4,02  Payments ... st i e e i v i i S T e e R s s e 2
ARTICLE S — OPINIONS OF COST . ieviiurieiaeriaeessasierssiessarssssssssssssisenssesssesesiesssissssessssrsssissesissssssessssssesssessssssnssresns 3
5.01 Opinions of Probable Construction COSt......cccouiiiiieierieie i er et st sr et ees 3

S0 |DesiEniNE olCONS Il G OGO ST L N —————————————————v————— 3

5.03 Opinions of Total Project COSES........c.cun wisissisimsmsaisavsdssississioiesissiamarossimaissosmissnimssssissiosamesss 3
ARTICLE 6 — GENERAL CONSIDERATIONS... i ivevsscaciossssovassssnsonssosssiorssdonssnssivonsssisn sovssasmssosioisosiassasivoosansinmivoms 4
6.01  Standards Of PErfOrMANCE .......couicceieiiiiieeeieisiiraeieescraesressiesssiesesseesaesssssssssessssasssessnssnsarsesessssssns 4

6.02 Design Without Construction Phase SErViCeS ........ccvuuimiiiieiiniieiisesieisiressiessies e snssssssssnssssenenns 5

6.03 Use of DoCUMENtS s i e i s e SR e dsnsnevvevasiaesassowianas 6

L0 A = U= Yor (o o 1ol -1 K a1 = OO 6

6.05  INSUFBNCE ssissinvsassissvisinssssvissssaisasnsssabisoVissssesossvss o vois s v as o s o s Has BV a v oo e Bas oios Srob v asbwassi sy 7

6.06  SUSPENSION aNA TEIMINGTION ..eeiieieeeeeciecciece e ser et et a e ae b e sas s eraesresessensasssnsenstsssamaneseenes 8

6.07 CoNtrolling LaW:ieissssesssissssssisavansssssnsissmsnssmssssssanssssossasssivmietisriesssssassssnsissnsspmssissssssmassasasiuesiunsn 9

6.08 Successors, Assigns, aNd BeNEFICIArIiESs ... cccueiriiiiieeeieiiieaiiseeciirnirsessassissasisssssssssssssissssssssssasssnsens 9

6100 ID S U ] R S O O T s ST et eAas ST AR S ESS 10

6.10 Environmental Condition Of SIte.........ccuiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiiis s s s e s a s s araas e b 10

6.11 Indemnification aNd MULUAI WEIVEL ......c..ceierieriieeriieranreesssessisessesassessesssssiesssessssssssessssesasaesssnns 11

6.12  RECOTAS RELENTION......ocvrerueerirennsaeronssnreasiasnsingsasipsipsssinds i ssiisissiaa o vassesusomsmpsassessimimissiamamiios 12

6.13 Miscallaneous ProVisSiONS iicniiiisssssnesissaissssiivsisismismmms susavs e ssiissssiis s dsssasisrsmav e sivaigiiae 12
R B 1 b TN L N S e e sy A RGeS AR PO AN 13
701  Defined TermMS .. s smsvssiiissmsssisssnse s s oited e s s i is s s i e aii oo s ssssansvaveaises 13
ARTICLE 8 — EXHIBITS AND SPECIAL PROVISIONS .....oeeeieeeeee ettt e 17
8.01 Exhibits INCIUCEA: wassssmasansssusamsnmmmmsnssissnssriosrsisiaestsbsismivsisssisea s s s s oSS A 17

8.02 Total AGreemMent: «iziviiisseinisssisiuimseis i iR G T b s TR 17

8.03 Designated RePreSENtatiVES: .. u i iriiiiriiics it ss et st st sassassresbatesbstassse st aressassesssas 17

8.04 Engineer's Certifications: ....cisummiismnimamissimmimiimiaiiraaismsiaisiissinatamensiamsis 18

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.




AGREEMENT
BETWEEN OWNER AND ENGINEER
FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

THIS IS AN AGREEMENT effective as of May 1, 2017 (“Effective Date”) between
Storey County (“Owner”) and
Farr West Engineering (“Engineer”).

Owner's Project, of which Engineer's services under this Agreement are a part, is generally identified as follows:

Storey County 5 Mile Water Line Project ("Project").

Other terms used in this Agreement are defined in Article 7.

Engineer's services under this Agreement are generally identified as follows:
Design, Bidding, Field Engineering, Construction Management, Inspection, Environmental/Archaeological
Monitoring and Reporting,

Owner and Engineer further agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1 — SERVICES OF ENGINEER
1.01  Scope

A. Engineer shall provide, or cause to be provided, the services set forth herein and in
Exhibit A,

ARTICLE 2 — OWNER'’S RESPONSIBILITIES
2.01  General
A. Owner shall have the responsibilities set forth herein and in Exhibit B.
B. Owner shall pay Engineer as set forth in Article 4 and Exhibit C.
C. Owner shall be responsible for all requirements and instructions that it furnishes to
Engineer pursuant to this Agreement, and for the accuracy and completeness of all
programs, reports, data, and other information furnished by Owner to Engineer pursuant
to this Agreement. Engineer may use and rely upon such requirements, programs,
instructions, reports, data, and information in performing or furnishing services under this
Agreement, subject to any express limitations or reservations applicable to the furnished

items.

D. Owner shall give prompt written notice to Engineer whenever Owner observes or
otherwise becomes aware of:

1. any development that affects the scope or time of performance of Engineer’s services;

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 1




the presence at the Site of any Constituent of Concern; or

any relevant, material defect or nonconformance in: (a) Engineer’s services, (b) the
Work, (c) the performance of any Constructor, or {d) Owner’s performance of its
responsibilities under this Agreement.

ARTICLE 3 — SCHEDULE FOR RENDERING SERVICES

3.01 Commencement

A.

Engineer is authorized to begin rendering services as of the Effective Date.

3.02  Time for Completion

A

Engineer shall complete its obligations within a reasonable time, Specific periods of time
for rendering services, or specific dates by which services are to be completed, are
provided in Exhibit A, and are hereby agreed to be reasonable.

If, through no fault of Engineer, such periods of time or dates are changed, or the orderly
and continuous progress of Engineer’s services is impaired, or Engineer’s services are
delayed or suspended, then the time for completion of Engineer’s services, and the rates
and amounts of Engineer’s compensation, shall be adjusted equitably.

If Owner authorizes changes in the scope, extent, or character of the Project or Engineer's
services, then the time for completion of Engineer’s services, and the rates and amounts
of Engineer’s compensation, shall be adjusted equitably.

Owner shall make decisions and carry out its other responsibilities in a timely manner so
as not to delay the Engineer’s performance of its services.

If Engineer or Owner fails, through is their own fault, to complete the performance
required in this Agreement within the time set forth, as duly adjusted, then Owner and
Engineer shall be entitled, as its sole remedy, to the recovery of direct damages, if any,
resulting from such failure.

ARTICLE 4 — INVOICES AND PAYMENTS

4.01 Invoices

A

Preparation and Submittal of Invoices: Engineer shall prepare invoices in accordance with
its standard invoicing practices and the terms of ExhibitC. Invoices must include a
breakdown of services provided. Engineer shall submit its invoices to Owner on a
monthly basis. Invoices are due and payable within 30 days of receipt.

402  Payments

A. Application to Interest and Principal: Payment will be credited first to any interest owed to

Engineer and then to principal.

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 2




B. Failure to Pay: If Owner fails to make any undisputed payment due Engineer for services
and expenses within 30 days after receipt of Engineer’s invoice, then:

1. amounts due Engineer will be increased at the rate of 1.0% per month {or the maximum
rate of interest permitted by law, if less) from said thirtieth day; and

2. Engineer may, after giving seven days written notice to Owner, suspend services under
this Agreement until Owner has paid in full all amounts due for services, expenses, and
other related charges. Owner waives any and all claims against Engineer for any such
suspension.

C. Disputed Invoices: If Owner disputes an invoice, either as to amount or entitiement, then
Owner shall promptly advise Engineer in writing of the specific basis for doing so, may
withhold only that portion so disputed, and must pay the undisputed portion subject to
the terms of Paragraph 4.01.

D. Sales or Use Taxes: If after the Effective Date any governmental entity takes a legislative
action that imposes additional sales or use taxes on Engineer’s services or compensation
under this Agreement, then Engineer may invoice such additional sales or use taxes for
reimbursement by Owner. Owner shall reimburse Engineer for the cost of such invoiced
additional sales or use taxes; such reimbursement shall be in addition to the
compensation to which Engineer is entitled under the terms of Exhibit C.

ARTICLE 5 - OPINIONS OF COST
5.01  Opinions of Probable Construction Cost

A. Engineer’s opinions (if any) of probable Construction Cost are to be made on the basis of
Engineer's experience, qualifications, and general familiarity with the construction
industry. However, because Engineer has no control over the cost of labor, materials,
equipment, or services furnished by others, or over contractors’ methods of determining
prices, or over competitive bidding or market conditions, Engineer cannot and does not
guarantee that proposals, bids, or actual Construction Cost will not vary from opinions of
probable Construction Cost prepared by Engineer. If Owner requires greater assurance as
to probable Construction Cost, then Owner agrees to obtain an independent cost
estimate.

5.02  Designing to Construction Cost Limit

A. If a Construction Cost limit is established between Owner and Engineer, such Construction
Cost limit and a statement of Engineer’s rights and responsibilities with respect thereto
will be specifically set forth in Exhibit F to this Agreement.

5.03  Opinions of Total Project Costs
A. The services, if any, of Engineer with respect to Total Project Costs shall be limited to

assisting the Owner in tabulating the various categories that comprise Total Project Costs.
Engineer assumes no responsibility for the accuracy of any opinions of Total Project Costs.

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 3




ARTICLE 6 — GENERAL CONSIDERATIONS

6.01

Standards of Performance

A

F.

Standard of Care: The standard of care for all professional engineering and related
services performed or furnished by Engineer under this Agreement will be the care and
skill ordinarily used by members of the subject profession practicing under similar
circumstances at the same time and in the-same-tocality Northern Nevada. Engineer

ne e siiarrantiac ounrace ar ieanliad  cmdar thic Aaraoraan O

Technical Accuracy: Owner shall not be responsible for discovering deficiencies in the
technical accuracy of Engineer’s services. Engineer shall correct deficiencies in technical
accuracy without additional compensation, unless such corrective action is directly
attributable to deficiencies in Owner-furnished information.

Consultants: Engineer may retain such Consultants as Engineer deems necessary to assist
in the performance or furnishing of the services, subject to reasonable, timely, and
substantive objections by Owner.

Reliance on Others: Subject to the standard of care set forth in Paragraph 6.01.A, Engineer
and its Consultants may use or rely upon design elements and information ordinarily or
customarily furnished by others, including, but not limited to, specialty contractors,
manufacturers, suppliers, and the publishers of technical standards.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations, and Policies and Procedures:
Engineer and Owner shall comply with applicable Laws and Regulations.

Engineer shall comply with any and all policies, procedures, and instructions of Owner
that are applicable to Engineer's performance of services under this Agreement and that
Owner provides to Engineer in writing, subject to the standard of care set forth in
Paragraph 6.01.A, and to the extent compliance is not inconsistent with professional
practice requirements.

This Agreement is based on Laws and Regulations and Owner-provided written policies
and procedures as of the Effective Date. The following may be the basis for
modifications to Owner’s responsibilities or to Engineer’s scope of services, times of
performance, or compensation:

a. changes after the Effective Date to Laws and Regulations;

b.  the receipt by Engineer after the Effective Date of Owner-provided written policies
and procedures;

c. changes after the Effective Date to Owner-provided written policies or procedures.
Engineer shall not be required to sign any document, no matter by whom requested, that

would result in the Engineer having to certify, guarantee, or warrant the existence of
conditions whose existence the Engineer cannot ascertain. Owner agrees not to make

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers, All rights reserved.
Page 4




resolution of any dispute with the Engineer or payment of any amount due to the
Engineer in any way contingent upon the Engineer signing any such document.

The general conditions for any construction contract documents prepared hereunder are
to be EJCDC® C-700 “Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract” (2013
Edition), prepared by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee, unless
expressly indicated otherwise in Exhibit J or elsewhere in this Agreement.

Engineer shall not at any time supervise, direct, control, or have authority over any
Constructor’s work, nor shall Engineer have authority over or be responsible for the
means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction selected or used
by any Constructor, or the safety precautions and programs incident thereto, for security
or safety at the Site, nor for any failure of a Constructor to comply with Laws and
Regulations applicable to that Constructor’s furnishing and performing of its work.
Engineer shall not be responsible for the acts or omissions of any Constructor.

Engineer neither guarantees the performance of any Constructor nor assumes
responsibility for any Constructor’s, failure to furnish and perform the Work in accordance
with the Construction Contract Documents.

Engineer shall not be responsible for any decision made regarding the Construction
Contract Documents, or any application, interpretation, clarification, or modification of
the Construction Contract Documents, other than those made by Engineer or its
Consultants.

Engineer is not required to provide and does not have any responsibility for surety
bonding or insurance-related advice, recommendations, counseling, or research, or
enforcement of construction insurance or surety bonding requirements.

Engineer’s services do not include providing legal advice or representation.

Engineer’s services do not include (1) serving as a “municipal advisor” for purposes of the
registration requirements of Section 975 of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and
Consumer Protection Act (2010) or the municipal advisor registration rules issued by the
Securities and Exchange Commission, or (2) advising Owner, or any municipal entity or
other person or entity, regarding municipal financial products or the issuance of
municipal securities, including advice with respect to the structure, timing, terms, or
other similar matters concerning such products or issuances.

While at the Site, Engineer, its Consultants, and their employees and representatives shall
comply with the applicable requirements of Contractor's and Owner's safety programs of
which Engineer has been informed in writing.

6.02  Design Without Construction Phase Services

A.

Engineer shall be responsible only for those Construction Phase services expressly
required of Engineer in Exhibit A, Paragraph A1.05. With the exception of such expressly
required services, Engineer shall have no design, Shop Drawing review, or other
obligations during construction, and Owner assumes all responsibility for the application

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 5




and interpretation of the Construction Contract Documents, review and response to
Contractor claims, Construction Contract administration, processing of Change Orders and
submittals, revisions to the Construction Contract Documents during construction,
construction observation and review, review of Contractor’s payment applications, and all
other necessary Construction Phase administrative, engineering, and professional services.

6.03  Use of Documents

A. All Documents are instruments of service, and Engineer shall retain an ownership and
property interest therein (including the copyright and the right of reuse at the discretion
of the Engineer) whether or not the Project is completed.

B. If Engineer is required to prepare or furnish Drawings or Specifications under this
Agreement, Engineer shall deliver to Owner at least one original printed record version of
such Drawings and Specifications, signed and sealed according to applicable Laws and
Regulations.

C. Owner may make and rctain copics of Documents for information and reference in
connection with the use of the Documents on the Project. Engineer grants Owner a
limited license to use the Documents on the Project, extensions of the Project, and for
related uses of the Owner, subject to receipt by Engineer of full payment due and owing
for all services relating to preparation of the Documents, and subject to the following
limitations: (1) Owner acknowledges that such Documents are not intended or
represented to be suitable for use on the Project unless completed by Engineer, or for use
or reuse by Owner or others on extensions of the Project, on any other project, or for any
other use or purpose, without written verification or adaptation by Engineer; (2) any such
use or reuse, or any modification of the Documents, without written verification,
completion, or adaptation by Engineer, as appropriate for the specific purpose intended,
will be at Owner’s sole risk and without liability or legal exposure to Engineer or to its
officers, directors, members, partners, agents, employees, and Consultants; (3) Owner
shall indemnify and hold harmless Engineer and its officers, directors, members, partners,
agents, employees, and Consultants from all claims, damages, losses, and expenses,
including attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from any use, reuse, or modification of
the Documents without written verification, completion, or adaptation by Engineer for
liability which arises after completion of the Project and then only to the extent of
Owner’s percentage of fault in the incident giving rise to liability; and (4) such limited
license to Owner shall not create any rights in third parties.

D. If Engineer at Owner’s request verifies the suitability of the Documents, completes them,
or adapts them for extensions of the Project or for any other purpose, then Owner shall
compensate Engineer at rates or in an amount to be agreed upon by Owner and Engineer.

6.04  Electronic Transmittals

A.  Owner and Engineer may transmit, and shall accept, Project-related correspondence,
Documents, text, data, drawings, information, and graphics, in electronic media or digital

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 6




format, either directly, or through access to a secure Project website, in accordance with a
mutually agreeable protocol.

If this Agreement does not establish protocols for electronic or digital transmittals, then
Owner and Engineer shall may jointly develop such protocols.

When transmitting items in electronic media or digital format, the transmitting party
makes no representations as to long term compatibility, usability, or readability of the
items resulting from the recipient’s use of software application packages, operating
systems, or computer hardware differing from those used in the drafting or transmittal of
the items, or from those established in applicable transmittal protocols.

6.05 Insurance

A.

Engineer shall procure and maintain insurance as set forth in Exhibit G. Engineer shall
cause Owner to be listed as an additional insured on any applicable general liability
insurance policy carried by Engineer.

Owner shall procure and main

) nEaE -Ta ata -

tain insurance as set forth in Exhibit G. Gwrershat-cause

-~ - o - - - a¥e an - cane -

Owner shall require Contractor to purchase and maintain policies of insurance covering
workers' compensation, general liability, motor vehicle damage and injuries, and other
insurance necessary to protect Owner's and Engineer's interests in the Project. Owner
shall require Contractor to cause Engineer and its Consultants to be listed as additional
insureds with respect to sueh insurance covering general liability, motor vehicle damage
and injuries and other insurance necessary to protect Owner’s and Engineer’s interests
in the Project but not including workers compensation insurance purchased and
maintained by Contractor for the Project.

Owner and Engineer shall each deliver to the other certificates of insurance evidencing the
coverages indicated in Exhibit G. Such certificates shall be furnished prior to
commencement of Engineer’s services and at renewals thereafter during the life of the
Agreement.

ah - ACOMOL . - 0 - o hoaraunao - net Enoinmao

Owner and Engineer waive all rights against each other, Contractor, the Consultants, and
the respective officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and
subcontractors of each and any of them, for all losses and damages caused by, arising out
of, or resulting from any of the perils or causes of loss covered by any builder’s risk policy
and any other property insurance relating to the Project. Owner and Engineer shall take
appropriate measures in other Project-related contracts to secure waivers of rights
consistent with those set forth in this paragraph.

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 7




F.  All policies of insurance except Owners shall contain a provision or endorsement that the
coverage afforded will not be canceled or reduced in limits by endorsement, and that
renewal will not be refused, until at least 10 days prior written notice has been given to
the primary insured. Upon receipt of such notice, the receiving party shall promptly
forward a copy of the notice to the other party to this Agreement. Owner agrees to
provide at least ten days written notice that it has chosen not to pay any premium due
for its insurance policy.

G. Atanytime, Owner may request that Engineer or its Consultants, at Owner’s sole expense,
provide additional insurance coverage, increased limits, or revised deductibles that are
more protective than those specified in Exhibit G. If so requested by Owner, and if
commercially available, Engineer shall obtain and shall require its Consultants to obtain
such additional insurance coverage, different limits, or revised deductibles for such
periods of time as requested by Owner, and Exhibit G will be supplemented to incorporate
these requirements.

6.06  Suspension and Termination
A. Suspension:

1. By Owner: Owner may suspend the Project for up to 90 days upon seven days written
notice to Engineer.

2. By Engineer: Engineer may, after giving seven days written notice to Owner, suspend
services under this Agreement if Owner has failed to pay Engineer for invoiced services
and expenses, as set forth in Paragraph 4.02.B, or in response to the presence of
Constituents of Concern at the Site, as set forth in Paragraph 6.10.D.

B. Termination: The obligation to provide further services under this Agreement may be
terminated:

1. Forcause,

a. by either party upon 30 days written notice in the event of substantial failure by the
other party to perform in accordance with the terms hereof through no fault of the
terminating party.

b. by Engineer:

1) upon seven days written notice if Owner demands that Engineer furnish or
perform services contrary to Engineer's responsibilities as a licensed
professional; or

2) upon seven days written notice if the Engineer’s services for the Project are
delayed or suspended for more than 90 days for reasons beyond Engineer’s
control, or as the result of the presence at the Site of undisclosed Constituents
of Concern, as set forth in Paragraph 6.10.D.

3) Engineer shall have no liability to Owner on account of such termination.

EICDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 8




2

c. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Agreement will not terminate under
Paragraph 6.06.B.1.a if the party receiving such notice begins, within seven days of
receipt of such notice, to correct its substantial failure to perform and proceeds
diligently to cure such failure within no more than 30 days of receipt thereof;
provided, however, that if and to the extent such substantial failure cannot be
reasonably cured within such 30 day period, and if such party has diligently
attempted to cure the same and thereafter continues diligently to cure the same,
then the cure period provided for herein shall extend up to, but in no case more
than, 60 days after the date of receipt of the notice.

For convenience, by Owner effective upon Engineer’s receipt of notice from Owner.

Effective Date of Termination: The terminating party under Paragraph 6.06.B may set the
effective date of termination at a time up to 30 days later than otherwise provided to
allow Engineer to demobilize personnel and equipment from the Site, to complete tasks
whose value would otherwise be lost, to prepare notes as to the status of completed and
uncompleted tasks, and to assemble Project materials in orderly files.

Payments Upon Termination:

In the event of any termination under Paragraph 6.06, Engineer will be entitled to
invoice Owner and to receive full payment for all services performed or furnished in
accordance with this Agreement and all Reimbursable Expenses incurred through the
effective date of termination. Upon making such payment, Owner shall have the limited
right to the use of Documents, at Owner’s sole risk, subject to the provisions of
Paragraph 6.03.

In the event of termination by Owner for convenience or by Engineer for cause, Engineer
shall be entitled, in addition to invoicing for those items identified in Paragraph 6.06.D.1,
to invoice Owner and receive payment of a reasonable amount for services and
expenses directly attributable to termination, both before and after the effective date of
termination, such as reassignment of personnel, costs of terminating contracts with
Engineer’s Consultants, and other related close-out costs, using methods and rates for
Additional Services as set forth in Exhibit C.

6.07  Controlling Law

A,

This Agreement is to be governed by the Laws and Regulations of the state in which the
Project is located.

6.08  Successors, Assigns, and Beneficiaries

A.

Owner and Engineer are hereby bound and the successors, executors, administrators, and
legal representatives of Owner and Engineer (and to the extent permitted by Paragraph
6.08.B the assigns of Owner and Engineer) are hereby bound to the other party to this
Agreement and to the successors, executors, administrators and legal representatives
(and said assigns) of such other party, in respect of all covenants, agreements, and
obligations of this Agreement.

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 9




Neither Owner nor Engineer may assign, sublet, or transfer any rights under or interest
(including, but without limitation, money that is due or may become due) in this
Agreement without the written consent of the other party, except to the extent that any
assignment, subletting, or transfer is mandated by law. Unless specifically stated to the
contrary in any written consent to an assignment, no assignment will release or discharge
the assignor from any duty or responsibility under this Agreement.

Unless expressly provided otherwise in this Agreement:
Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create, impose, or give rise to any duty
owed by Owner or Engineer to any Constructor, other third-party individual or entity, or

to any surety for or employee of any of them.

All duties and responsibilities undertaken pursuant to this Agreement will be for the sole
and exclusive benefit of Owner and Engineer and not for the benefit of any other party.

Owner agrees that the substance of the provisions of this Paragraph 6.08.C shall appear
in the Construction Contract Documents.

6.09 Dispute Resolution

A

Owner and Engineer agree to negotiate all disputes between them in good faith for a
period of 30 days from the date of notice prior to invoking the procedures of Exhibit H or
other provisions of this Agreement, or exercising their rights at law.

If the parties fail to resolve a dispute through negotiation under Paragraph 6.09.A, then
either or both may invoke the procedures of Exhibit H. If Exhibit H is not included, or if no
dispute resolution method is specified in Exhibit H, then the parties may exercise their
rights at law.

6.10  Environmental Condition of Site

A

Owner represents to Engineer that as of the Effective Date to the best of Owner’s
knowledge no Constituents of Concern, other than those disclosed in writing to Engineer,
exist at or adjacent to the Site.

If Engineer encounters or learns of an undisclosed Constituent of Concern at the Site, then
Engineer shall notify (1) Owner and (2) appropriate governmental officials if Engineer
reasonably concludes that doing so is required by applicable Laws or Regulations.

It is acknowledged by both parties that Engineer’s scope of services does not include any
services related to unknown or undisclosed Constituents of Concern. If Engineer or any
other party encounters, uncovers, or reveals an undisclosed Constituent of Concern, then
Owner shall promptly determine whether to retain a qualified expert to evaluate such
condition or take any necessary corrective action.

If investigative or remedial action, or other professional services, are necessary with
respect to undisclosed Constituents of Concern, or if investigative or remedial action
beyond that reasonably contemplated is needed to address a disclosed or known
Constituent of Concern, then Engineer may, at its option and without liability for

EICDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 10




consequential or any other damages, suspend performance of services on the portion of
the Project affected thereby until such portion of the Project is no longer affected.

If the presence at the Site of undisclosed Constituents of Concern adversely affects the
performance of Engineer’s services under this Agreement, then the Engineer shall have
the option of (1) accepting an equitable adjustment in its compensation or in the time of
completion, or both; or (2) terminating this Agreement for cause on seven days notice.

Owner acknowledges that Engineer is performing professional services for Owner and that
Engineer is not and shall not be required to become an "owner," “arranger,” “operator,”
“generator,” or “transporter” of hazardous substances, as defined in the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA), as amended, which
are or may be encountered at or near the Site in connection with Engineer’s activities
under this Agreement.

6.11  Indemnification and Mutual Waiver

A.

Indemnification by Engineer: To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations,
Engineer shall indemnify and hold harmless Owner, and Owner’s officers, directors,
members, partners, agents, consultants, and employees, from losses, damages, and
judgments (including reasonable consultants’ and attorneys’ fees and expenses) arising
from third-party claims or actions relating to the Project, provided that any such claim,
action, loss, damages, or judgment is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, or
death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property (other than the Work itself),
including the loss of use resulting therefrom, but only to the extent caused by any
negligent act or omission of Engineer or Engineer’s officers, directors, members, partners,

agents employees or Consultants Fhis—indemnification—provision—is—subject—to—and

Indemnification by Owner: Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless Engineer and its
officers, directors, members, partners, agents, employees, and Consultants as required by
Laws and Regulations and-te-the—extent-{if-any)}required-in-Exhibitt—Limitations—of
Liability~

Environmental Indemnification: To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations,
Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless Engineer and its officers, directors, members,
partners, agents, employees, and Consultants from all claims, costs, losses, damages,
actions, and judgments (including reasonable consultants’ and attorneys fees and
expenses) caused by, arising out of, relating to, or resulting from a Constituent of Concern
not disclosed to Engineer in writing pursuant to Section 2.01.D.2 at, on, or under the Site,
provided that (1) any such claim, cost, loss, damages, action, or judgment is attributable to
bodily injury, sickness, disease, or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property
(other than the Work itself), including the loss of use resulting therefrom, and (2) nothing
in this paragraph shall obligate Owner to indemnify any individual or entity from and
against the consequences of that individual's or entity's own negligence or willful
misconduct.

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 11




No Defense Obligation: The indemnification commitments in this Agreement do not
include a defense obligation by the indemnitor unless such obligation is expressly stated.

Percentage Share of Negligence: To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations,
a party’s total liability to the other party and anyone claiming by, through, or under the
other party for any cost, loss, or damages caused in part by the negligence of the party
and in part by the negligence of the other party or any other negligent entity or individual,
shall not exceed the percentage share that the party’s negligence bears to the total
negligence of Owner, Engineer, and all other negligent entities and individuals.

Mutual Waiver: To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, Owner and
Engineer waive against each other, and the other’'s employees, officers, directors,
members, agents, insurers, partners, and consultants, any and all claims for or entitiement
to special, incidental, indirect, or consequential damages arising out of, resulting from, or
in any way related to this Agreement or the Project, from any cause or causes.

6.12 Records Retention

A.

Engineer shall maintain on file in legible form, for a period of five years following
completion or termination of its services, all Documents, records (including cost records),
and design calculations related to Engineer’s services or pertinent to Engineer’s
performance under this Agreement. Upon Owner’s request, Engineer shall provide a copy
of any such item to Owner at cost.

6.13  Miscellaneous Provisions

A.

Notices: Any notice required under this Agreement will be in writing, addressed to the
appropriate party at its address on the signature page and given personally, by registered
or certified mail postage prepaid, or by a commercial courier service. All notices shall be
effective upon the date of receipt.

Survival: All express representations, waivers, indemnifications, and limitations of liability
included in this Agreement will survive its completion or termination for any reason.

Severability: Any provision or part of the Agreement held to be void or unenforceable
under any Laws or Regulations shall be deemed stricken, and all remaining provisions shall
continue to be valid and binding upon Owner and Engineer, which agree that the
Agreement shall be reformed to replace such stricken provision or part thereof with a
valid and enforceable provision that comes as close as possible to expressing the intention
of the stricken provision.

Waiver: A party’s non-enforcement of any provision shall not constitute a waiver of that
provision, nor shall it affect the enforceability of that provision or of the remainder of this
Agreement.

Accrual of Claims: To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, all causes of
action arising under this Agreement shall be deemed to have accrued, and all statutory
periods of limitation shall commence, no later than the date of Substantial Completion.

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 12




ARTICLE 7 — DEFINITIONS
7.01  Defined Terms

A.  Wherever used in this Agreement (including the Exhibits hereto) terms (including the
singular and plural forms) printed with initial capital letters have the meanings indicated in
the text above, in the exhibits, or in the following definitions:

1. Addenda—Written or graphic instruments issued prior to the opening of bids which
clarify, correct, or change the bidding requirements or the proposed Construction
Contract Documents.

2. Additional Services—The services to be performed for or furnished to Owner by Engineer
in accordance with Part 2 of Exhibit A of this Agreement.

3. Agreement—This written contract for professional services between Owner and
Engineer, including all exhibits identified in Paragraph 8.01 and any duly executed
amendments.

4. Application for Payment—The form acceptable to Engineer which is to be used by
Contractor during the course of the Work in requesting progress or final payments and
which is to be accompanied by such supporting documentation as is required by the
Construction Contract.

5. Basic Services—The services to be performed for or furnished to Owner by Engineer in
accordance with Part 1 of Exhibit A of this Agreement.

6. Change Order—A document which is signed by Contractor and Owner and authorizes an
addition, deletion, or revision in the Work or an adjustment in the Construction Contract
Price or the Construction Contract Times, or other revision to the Construction Contract,
issued on or after the effective date of the Construction Contract.

7. Change Proposal—A written request by Contractor, duly submitted in compliance with
the procedural requirements set forth in the Construction Contract, seeking an
adjustment in Construction Contract Price or Construction Contract Times, or both;
contesting an initial decision by Engineer concerning the requirements of the
Construction Contract Documents or the acceptability of Work under the Construction
Contract Documents; challenging a set-off against payments due; or seeking other relief
with respect to the terms of the Construction Contract.

8. Constituent of Concern—Asbestos, petroleum, radioactive material, polychlorinated
biphenyls (PCBs), hazardous waste, and any substance, product, waste, or other material
of any nature whatsoever that is or becomes listed, regulated, or addressed pursuant to
(a) the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act, 42
U.S.C. §§9601 et seq. (“CERCLA”); (b) the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, 49
U.S.C. §§5501 et seq.; (c) the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. §§6901
et seq. (“RCRA”); (d) the Toxic Substances Control Act, 15 U.S.C. §§2601 et seq.; (e) the
Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. §§1251 et seq.; (f) the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. §§7401 et seq_;
or (g) any other federal, State, or local statute, law, rule, regulation, ordinance,

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 13




resolution, code, order, or decree regulating, relating to, or imposing liability or
standards of conduct concerning, any hazardous, toxic, or dangerous waste, substance,
or material.

9. Construction Contract—The entire and integrated written contract between the Owner
and Contractor concerning the Work.

10. Construction Contract Documents—Those items designated as “Contract Documents” in
the Construction Contract, and which together comprise the Construction Contract.

11. Construction Contract Price—The money that Owner has agreed to pay Contractor for
completion of the Work in accordance with the Construction Contract Documents.

12. Construction Contract Times—The number of days or the dates by which Contractor
shall: (a) achieve milestones, if any, in the Construction Contract; (b) achieve Substantial
Completion; and (c) complete the Work.

13. Construction Cost—The cost to Owner of the construction of those portions of the entire
Project designed or specified by or for Engineer under this Agreement, including
construction labor, services, materials, equipment, insurance, and bonding costs, and
allowances for contingencies. Construction Cost does not include costs of services of
Engineer or other design professionals and consultants; cost of land or rights-of-way, or
compensation for damages to property; Owner’s costs for legal, accounting, insurance
counseling, or auditing services; interest or financing charges incurred in connection
with the Project; or the cost of other services to be provided by others to Owner.
Construction Cost is one of the items comprising Total Project Costs.

14. Constructor—Any person or entity (not including the Engineer, its employees, agents,
representatives, and Consultants), performing or supporting construction activities
relating to the Project, including but not limited to Contractors, Subcontractors,
Suppliers, Owner’s work forces, utility companies, other contractors, construction
managers, testing firms, shippers, and truckers, and the employees, agents, and
representatives of any or all of them,

15. Consultants—Individuals or entities having a contract with Engineer to furnish services
with respect to this Project as Engineer’s independent professional associates and
consultants; subcontractors; or vendors.

16. Contractor—The entity or individual with which Owner enters into a Construction
Contract.

17. Documents—Data, reports, Drawings, Specifications, Record Drawings, building
information models, civil integrated management models, and other deliverables,
whether in printed or electronic format, provided or furnished in appropriate phases by
Engineer to Owner pursuant to this Agreement.

18. Drawings—That part of the Construction Contract Documents that graphically shows the
scope, extent, and character of the Work to be performed by Contractor.

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 14




19. Effective Date—The date indicated in this Agreement on which it becomes effective, but
if no such date is indicated, the date on which this Agreement is signed and delivered by
the last of the parties to sign and deliver.

20. Engineer—The individual or entity named as such in this Agreement.

21. Field Order—A written order issued by Engineer which requires minor changes in the
Work but does not change the Construction Contract Price or the Construction Contract
Times.

22. Laws and Regulations; Laws or Regulations—Any and all applicable laws, statutes, rules,
regulations, ordinances, codes, and orders of any and all governmental bodies, agencies,
authorities, and courts having jurisdiction.

23. Owner—The individual or entity named as such in this Agreement and for which
Engineer's services are to be performed. Unless indicated otherwise, this is the same
individual or entity that will enter into any Construction Contracts concerning the
Project.

24. Project—The total undertaking to be accomplished for Owner by engineers, contractors,
and others, including planning, study, design, construction, testing, commissioning, and
start-up, and of which the services to be performed or furnished by Engineer under this
Agreement are a part.

25. Record Drawings—Drawings depicting the completed Project, or a specific portion of the
completed Project, prepared by Engineer as—an—Additienal-Service and based on
Contractor's record copy of all Drawings, Specifications, Addenda, Change Orders, Work
Change Directives, Field Orders, and written interpretations and clarifications, as
delivered to Engineer and annotated by Contractor to show changes made during
construction.

26. Reimbursable Expenses—The expenses incurred directly by Engineer in connection with
the performing or furnishing of Basic Services and Additional Services for the Project.

27. Resident Project Representative—The authorized representative of Engineer assigned to
assist Engineer at the Site during the Construction Phase. As used herein, the term
Resident Project Representative or "RPR" includes any assistants or field staff of
Resident Project Representative. The duties and responsibilities of the Resident Project
Representative, if any, are as set forth in Exhibit D.

28. Samples—Physical examples of materials, equipment, or workmanship that are
representative of some portion of the Work and that establish the standards by which
such portion of the Work will be judged.

29. Shop Drawings—All drawings, diagrams, illustrations, schedules, and other data or
information that are specifically prepared or assembled by or for Contractor and
submitted by Contractor to illustrate some portion of the Work. Shop Drawings, whether
approved or not, are not Drawings and are not Construction Contract Documents.

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 15




30. Site—Lands or areas to be indicated in the Construction Contract Documents as being
furnished by Owner upon which the Work is to be performed, including rights-of-way
and easements, and such other lands furnished by Owner which are designated for the
use of Contractor.

31. Specifications—The part of the Construction Contract Documents that consists of
written requirements for materials, equipment, systems, standards, and workmanship
as applied to the Work, and certain administrative requirements and procedural matters
applicable to the Work.

32. Subcontractor—An individual or entity having a direct contract with Contractor or with
any other Subcontractor for the performance of a part of the Work.

33. Substantial Completion—The time at which the Work (or a specified part thereof) has
progressed to the point where, in the opinion of Engineer, the Work (or a specified part
thereof) is sufficiently complete, in accordance with the Construction Contract
Documents, so that the Work (or a specified part thereof) can be utilized for the
purposes for which it is intended. The terms “substantially complete” and “substantially
completed” as applied to all or part of the Work refer to Substantial Completion thereof.

34. Supplier—N\ manufacturer, fabricator, supplier, distributor, materialman, or vendor
having a direct contract with Contractor or with any Subcontractor to furnish materials
or equipment to be incorporated in the Work by Contractor or a Subcontractor.

35. Total Project Costs—The total cost of planning, studying, designing, constructing, testing,
commissioning, and start-up of the Project, including Construction Cost and all other
Project labor, services, materials, equipment, insurance, and bonding costs, allowances
for contingencies, and the total costs of services of Engineer or other design
professionals and consultants, together with such other Project-related costs that Owner
furnishes for inclusion, including but not limited to cost of land, rights-of-way,
compensation for damages to properties, Owner’s costs for legal, accounting, insurance
counseling, and auditing services, interest and financing charges incurred in connection
with the Project, and the cost of other services to be provided by others to Owner.

36. Work—The entire construction or the various separately identifiable parts thereof
required to be provided under the Construction Contract Documents. Work includes
and is the result of performing or providing all labor, services, and documentation
necessary to produce such construction; furnishing, installing, and incorporating all
materials and equipment into such construction; and may include related services such
as testing, start-up, and commissioning, all as required by the Construction Contract
Documents.

37. Work Change Directive—A written directive to Contractor issued on or after the effective
date of the Construction Contract, signed by Owner and recommended by Engineer,
ordering an addition, deletion, or revision in the Work.

38. Agency—The Rural Utilities Service or any designated representative of Rural Utilities
Service, including USDA, Rural Development.

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 16




B.

1.

Day:

The word “day” means a calendar day of 24 hours measured from midnight to the next
midnight.

ARTICLE 8 — EXHIBITS AND SPECIAL PROVISIONS

8.01  Exhibits included:

A.

B.

K.

Exhibit A, Engineer’s Services.
Exhibit B, Owner’s Responsibilities.
Exhibit C, Payments to Engineer for Services and Reimbursable Expenses.

Exhibit D, Duties, Responsibilities and Limitations of Authority of Resident Project
Representative.

Exhibit E, Notice of Acceptability of Work.
Exhibit F, Construction Cost Limit — NOT USED.
Exhibit G, Insurance.

Exhibit H, Dispute Resolution.

Exhibit |, Limitations of Liability. — NOT USED
Exhibit J, Special Provisions — NOT USED.

Exhibit K, Amendment to Owner-Engineer Agreement.

8.02  Total Agreement

A.

This Agreement, (together with the exhibits included above) constitutes the entire
agreement between Owner and Engineer and supersedes all prior written or oral
understandings. This Agreement may only be amended, supplemented, modified, or
canceled by a written instrument duly executed by both parties. Amendments should be
based whenever possible on the format of Exhibit K to this Agreement.

8.03 Designated Representatives

A.

With the execution of this Agreement, Engineer and Owner shall designate specific
individuals to act as Engineer’s and Owner’s representatives with respect to the services to
be performed or furnished by Engineer and responsibilities of Owner under this
Agreement. Such an individual shall have authority to transmit instructions, receive
information, and render decisions relative to this Agreement on behalf of the respective
party whom the individual represents.

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 17




8.04  Engineer's Certifications

A.

Engineer certifies that it has not engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, or coercive practices in
competing for or in executing the Agreement. For the purposes of this Paragraph 8.04:

"corrupt practice” means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting of any thing of value
likely to influence the action of a public official in the selection process or in the
Agreement execution;

"fraudulent practice" means an intentional misrepresentation of facts made (a) to
influence the selection process or the execution of the Agreement to the detriment of
Owner, or (b) to deprive Owner of the benefits of free and open competition;

"coercive practice" means harming or threatening to harm, directly or indirectly, persons
or their property to influence their participation in the selection process or affect the
execution of the Agreement.

8.05  Federal Requirements

A.

Agency Concurrence. Signature of a duly authorized representative of the Agency in the
space provided on the signature page of EJCDC form E-500 hereof does not constitute a
commitment to provide financial assistance or payments hereunder but does signify
that this Agreement conforms to Agency’s applicable requirements. This Agreement
shall not be effective unless the Funding Agency’s designated representative concurs.
No amendment to this Agreement shall be effective unless the Funding Agency’s
designated representative concurs.

Audit and Access to Records. Owner, Agency, the Comptroller General of the United
States, or any of their duly authorized representatives, shall have access to any books,
documents, papers, and records of the Engineer which are pertinent to the Agreement,
for the purpose of making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions. Engineer
shall maintain all required records for three years after final payment is made and all
other pending matters are closed.

Restrictions on Lobbying. Engineer and each Consultant shall comply with “Restrictions
on Lobbying” if they are recipients of engineering services contracts and subcontracts
that exceed $100,000 at any tier. If applicable, Engineer must complete a certification
form on lobbying activities related to a specific Federal loan or grant that is a funding
source for this Agreement. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has
not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, or
an employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal
contract, grant, or any other applicable award. Each tier shall disclose any lobbying with
non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal award.
Certifications and disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the Owner.
Necessary certification and disclosure forms shall be provided by Owner.

Suspension and Debarment. Engineer certifies, by signing this agreement, that neither it
nor its principals are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared
ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 18




department or agency. Engineer will not contract with any Consultant for this project if
it or its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal
department or agency. Necessary certification forms shall be provided by the owner.
The Engineer will complete and submit a form AD-1048, “Certification Regarding
Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion — lower tier transactions,”
to the Owner who will forward it the USDA, Rural Development processing office.

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved,
Page 19




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement, the Effective Date of which is

indicated on page 1.
Owner: Storey County

By:

Print name:

Title:

Date Signed:

Address for Owner’s receipt of notices:
Storey County Commissioner’s Office

Engineer: Farr West Engineering

e

By: /§;1M
Print name: {/Brent Farr’

Title:  President

Date Signed: T8 17

Engineer License or Firm's Certificate No. (if required):
14234

State of: Nevada

Address for Engineer’s receipt of notices:
Farr West Engineering

P.0.Box 176 [26 South B St.]

5510 Longley Lane

Virginia City, NV 89440

Designated Representative (Paragraph 8.03.A):

Title:

Phone Number:

E-Mail Address:

Reno, NV 89511

Designated7Represe;\tajcive (Paragraph 8.03.A):

Title: Brent Farr, P.E.

Phone Number:  (775) 851-4788

E-Mail Address:  brent@farrwestengineering.com

EICDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright ©® 2014 Natlona! Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Soclety of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Page 20




This is EXHIBIT A, consisting of 18 pages,
referred to in and part of the Agreement
between Owner and Engineer for Professional
Services dated May 1, 2017.

Engineer’s Services

Article 1 of the Agreement is supplemented to include the following agreement of the parties.

Engineer shall provide Basic and Additional Services as set forth below.

PART 1 — BASIC SERVICES

Exhibit A — Engineer’s Services
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 1




Exhibit A - Engineer's Services
EICDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 2




A1.02 Preliminary Design Phase

A.

After acceptance by Owner and concurrence by Agency of the Report and any other Study
and Report Phase deliverables; selection by Owner of a recommended solution; issuance by
Owner of any instructions of for use of Project Strategies, Technologies, and Techniques, or
for inclusion of sustainable features in the design; and indication by Owner of any specific
modifications or changes in the scope, extent, character, or design requirements of the
Project desired by Owner, (1) Engineer and Owner shall discuss and resolve any necessary
revisions to Engineer's compensation (through application of the provisions regarding
Additional Services, or otherwise), or the time for completion of Engineer’s services, resulting
from the selected solution, related Project Strategies, Technologies, or Techniques,
sustainable design instructions, or specific modifications to the Project, and (2) upon written
authorization from Owner, Engineer shall:

1. Prepare Preliminary Design Phase documents consisting of final design criteria,
preliminary drawings, outline specifications, and written descriptions of the Project.

2. Inpreparing the Preliminary Design Phase documents, use any specific applicable Project
Strategies, Technologies, and Techniques authorized by Owner and Agency during or

Exhibit A — Engineer’s Services
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page3




following the Study and Report Phase, and include sustainable features, as appropriate,
pursuant to Owner’s instructions.

3. Provide necessary field surveys and topographic and utility mapping for Engineer’s
design purposes. Comply with the scope of work and procedure for the identification
and mapping of existing utilities selected and authorized by Owner pursuant to advice
from Engineer based on ASCE 38, “Standard Guideline for the Collection and Depiction
of Existing Subsurface Utility Data,” as set forth in Paragraph A1.01.A.12 above. If no
such scope of work and procedure for utility mapping has been selected and authorized,
then at a minimum the utility mapping will include Engineer contacting utility owners
and obtaining available information.

4. Visit the Site as needed to prepare the Preliminary Design Phase documents.

5. Advise Owner if additional reports, data, information, or services of the types described
in Exhibit B are necessary and assist Owner in obtaining such reports, data, information,
or services.

6. Continue to assist Owner with Project Strategies, Technologies, and Techniques that
Owner has chosen to implement.

7. Based on the information contained in the Preliminary Design Phase documents,
prepare a revised opinion of probable Construction Cost, and assist Owner in tabulating
the various cost categories which comprise Total Project Costs.

8. Obtain and review Owner’s instructions regarding Owner’s procurement of construction
services (including instructions regarding advertisements for bids, instructions to
bidders, and requests for proposals, as applicable), Owner’s construction contract
practices and requirements, insurance and bonding requirements, electronic
transmittals during construction, and other information necessary for the finalization of
Owner’s bidding-related documents (or requests for proposals or other construction
procurement documents), and Construction Contract Documents. Also obtain and
review copies of Owner’s design and construction standards, Owner’s standard forms,
general conditions (if other than EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the
Construction Contract, 2013 Edition), supplementary conditions, text, and related
documents or content for Engineer to include in the draft bidding-related documents (or
requests for proposals or other construction procurement documents), and in the draft
Construction Contract Documents, when applicable. Engineer must also incorporate all
Agency regulations, forms, and design and construction standards applicable to the
project in development of the documents indicated in this Article.

9. Perform or provide the following other Preliminary Design Phase tasks or deliverables:
[List any such tasks or deliverables here.]

10. Furnish N/A review copies of the Preliminary Design Phase documents, opinion of
probable Construction Cost, and any other Preliminary Design Phase deliverables to
Owner within N/A days of authorization to proceed with this phase, and review them
with Owner. Within N/A days of receipt, Owner shall submit to Engineer any comments
regarding the furnished items.

Exhibit A — Engineer’s Services
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 4




o 1

Revise the Preliminary Design Phase documents, opinion of probable Construction Cost,
and any other Preliminary Design Phase deliverables in response to Owner’s comments,
as appropriate, and furnish to Owner N/A copies of the revised Preliminary Design Phase
documents, revised opinion of probable Construction Cost, and any other deliverables
within N/A days after receipt of Owner’s comments.

Engineer’s services under the Preliminary Design Phase will be considered complete on the
date when Engineer has delivered to Owner the revised Preliminary Design Phase documents,
revised opinion of probable Construction Cost, and any other Preliminary Design Phase
deliverables.

A1.03  Final Design Phase

A.

After acceptance by Owner of the Preliminary Design Phase documents, revised opinion of
probable Construction Cost as determined in the Preliminary Design Phase, and any other
Preliminary Design Phase deliverables, subject to any Owner-directed modifications or
changes in the scope, extent, character, or design requirements of or for the Project, and
upon written authorization from Owner, Engineer shall:

1.

Prepare final Drawings and Specifications indicating the scope, extent, and character of
the Work to be performed and furnished by Contractor.

Visit the Site as needed to assist in preparing the final Drawings and Specifications.

Provide technical criteria, written descriptions, and design data for Owner’s use in filing
applications for permits from or approvals of governmental authorities having
jurisdiction to review or approve the final design; assist Owner in consultations with such
authorities; and revise the Drawings and Specifications in response to directives from
such authorities, as appropriate.

Advise Owner of any recommended adjustments to the opinion of probable
Construction Cost.

After consultation with Owner, include in the Construction Contract Documents any
specific protocols for the transmittal of Project-related correspondence, documents,
text, data, drawings, information, and graphics, in electronic media or digital format,
either directly, or through access to a secure Project website. Any such protocols shall be
applicable to transmittals between and among Owner, Engineer, and Contractor during
the Construction Phase and Post-Construction Phase, and unless agreed otherwise shall
supersede any conflicting protocols previously established for transmittals between
Owner and Engineer.

Assist Owner in assembling known reports and drawings of Site conditions, and in
identifying the technical data contained in such reports and drawings upon which
bidders or other prospective contractors may rely.

In addition to preparing the final Drawings and Specifications, assemble drafts of other
Construction Contract Documents based on specific instructions and contract forms,
text, or content received from Owner.

Exhibit A - Engineer’s Services
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 5




8. Prepare or assemble draft bidding-related documents (or requests for proposals or other
construction procurement documents), based on the specific bidding or procurement-
related instructions and forms, text, or content received from Owner.

9. Perform or provide the following other Final Design Phase tasks or deliverables:
a. The Engineer will provide site surveying, water line design, details.

b. The Engineer shall identify the building codes and accessibility standards used in
the design and indicate them on the drawings and specifications and certify that the
final drawings and specifications comply with those standards.

10. Furnish for review by Owner, its legal counsel and Agency, and other advisors, 3 copies
of the final Drawings and Specifications, assembled drafts of other Construction Contract
Documents, the draft bidding-related documents (or requests for proposals or other
construction procurement documents), and any other Final Design Phase deliverables,
within 365 days of authorization to proceed with the Final Design Phase, and review
them with Owner. Within 30 days of receipt, Owner shall submit to Engineer any
comments regarding the furnished items, and any instructions for revisions.

11. Revise the final Drawings and Specifications, assembled drafts of other Construction
Contract Documents, the draft bidding-related documents (or requests for proposals or
other construction procurement documents), and any other Final Design Phase
deliverables in accordance with comments and instructions from the Owner, as
appropriate, and submit 3 final copies of such documents to Owner within 30 days after
receipt of Owner’s comments and instructions.

12. Provide the Owner and Agency with a written certification that the final Drawings and
Specifications, other assembled Construction Contract Documents, bidding-related
documents (or requests for proposals or other construction procurement documents),
and any other Final Design Phase deliverables comply with all requirements of Agency.
Use the Engineer’s Certification of Final Plans and Specifications (Attachment GC-B) for
this purpose.

B. Engineer’s services under the Final Design Phase will be considered complete on the date
when Engineer has delivered to Owner the final Drawings and Specifications, other
assembled Construction Contract Documents, bidding-related documents (or requests for
proposals or other construction procurement documents), and any other Final Design Phase
deliverables and all final phase deliverables have been accepted by Owner.

C. Inthe event that the Work designed or specified by Engineer is to be performed or furnished
under more than one prime contract, or if Engineer’s services are to be separately sequenced
with the work of one or more prime Contractors (such as in the case of fast-tracking), Owner
and Engineer shall, prior to commencement of the Final Design Phase, develop a schedule for
performance of Engineer’s services during the Final Design, Bidding or Negotiating,
Construction, and Post-Construction Phases in order to sequence and coordinate properly
such services as are applicable to the work under such separate prime contracts. This
schedule is to be prepared and included in or become an amendment to Exhibit A whether or
not the work under such contracts is to proceed concurrently.

Exhibit A — Engineer’s Services
EICDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
) and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 6




The number of prime contracts for Work designed or specified by Engineer upon which the
Engineer’s compensation has been established under this Agreement is 1. If more prime
contracts are awarded, Engineer shall be entitled to an equitable increase in its compensation
under this Agreement.

A1.04  Bidding or Negotiating Phase

A.

After acceptance by Owner of the finai Drawings and Specifications, other Construction
Contract Documents, bidding-related documents (or requests for proposals or other
construction procurement documents), and the most recent opinion of probable
Construction Cost as determined in the Final Design Phase, and upon written authorization by
Owner to proceed, Engineer shall:

1.

Assist Owner in advertising for and obtaining bids or proposals for the Work, assist
Owner in issuing assembled design, contract, and bidding-related documents (or
requests for proposals or other construction procurement documents) to prospective
contractors, and, where applicable, maintain a record of prospective contractors to
which documents have been issued, attend pre-bid conferences, if any, and receive and
process contractor deposits or charges for the issued documents.

Prepare and issue Addenda as appropriate to clarify, correct, or change the issued
documents. Obtain Agency concurrence on any addenda that modify the bidding
documents. Obtain prior concurrence where possible.

Provide information or assistance needed by Owner in the course of any review of
proposals or negotiations with prospective contractors.

Consult with Owner as to the qualifications of prospective contractors.
Consult with Owner as to the qualifications of subcontractors, suppliers, and other

individuals and entities proposed by prospective contractors, for those portions of the
Work as to which review of qualifications is required by the issued documents.

evaluate and determine the acceptability of “or equals” and substitute materials and
equipment proposed by prospective contractors prior to award of contracts for the
Work. Engineer shall issue a bid addendum for any and all approved “or equals” and
substitutes. Review of substitutes and “or equals” shall be in accordance with the
General Conditions of the Construction Contract and applicable Agency regulations.
Services under this paragraph are subject to the provisions of Paragraph A2.02.A.2 of
this Exhibit A.

Exhibit A — Engineer’s Services
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 7




Attend the bid opening, prepare bid tabulation sheets to meet Owner’s schedule, and
assist Owner in evaluating bids or proposals, assembling final contracts for the Work for
execution by Owner and Contractor, and in issuing notices of award of such contracts.

If Owner engages in negotiations with bidders or proposers, assist Owner with respect to
technical and engineering issues that arise during the negotiations.

Perform or provide the following other Bidding or Negotiating Phase tasks or
deliverables: Upon award of the Construction Contract, the Engineer shall furnish to
Owner Five Executed copies of the Contract Documents and one electronic copy of the
signed documents, including Drawings and Specifications.

B. The Bidding or Negotiating Phase will be considered complete upon commencement of the
Construction Phase or upon cessation of negotiations with prospective contractors (except as
may be required if Exhibit F is a part of this Agreement).

A1.05 Construction Phase

A, Upon successful completion of the Bidding and Negotiating Phase, and upon written
authorization from Owner, Engineer shall:

1.

General Administration of Construction Contract: Consult with Owner and act as
Owner’s representative as provided in the Construction Contract. The extent and
limitations of the duties, responsibilities, and authority of Engineer shall be as assigned
in EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract (2013
Edition), prepared by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee, or other
construction general conditions specified in this Agreement. If Owner, or Owner and
Contractor, modify the duties, responsibilities, and authority of Engineer in the
Construction Contract, or modify other terms of the Construction Contract having a
direct bearing on Engineer, then Owner shall compensate Engineer for any related
increases in the cost to provide Construction Phase services. Engineer shall not be
required to furnish or perform services contrary to Engineer’s responsibilities as a
licensed professional. All of Owner’s instructions to Contractor will be issued through
Engineer, which shall have authority to act on behalf of Owner in dealings with
Contractor to the extent provided in this Agreement and the Construction Contract
except as otherwise provided in writing.

Resident Project Representative (RPR): Provide the services of an RPR at the Site to assist
the Engineer and to provide more extensive observation of Contractor’s work. Duties,
responsibilities, and authority of the RPR are as set forth in Exhibit D. The furnishing of
such RPR’s services will not limit, extend, or modify Engineer’s responsibilities or
authority except as expressly set forth in Exhibit D.

Selection of Independent Testing Laboratory: Assist Owner in the selection of an
independent testing laboratory to perform the services identified in Exhibit B, Paragraph
B2.01.

Pre-Construction Conference: Participate in and chair a pre-construction conference
prior to commencement of Work at the Site.

Exhibit A — Engineer’s Services
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 8




5.  Electronic Transmittal Protocols: If the Construction Contract Documents do not specify
protocols for the transmittal of Project-related correspondence, documents, text, data,
drawings, information, and graphics, in electronic media or digital format, either directly,
or through access to a secure Project website, then together with Owner and Contractor
jointly develop such protocols for transmittals between and among Owner, Contractor,
and Engineer during the Construction Phase and Post-Construction Phase.

6. Original Documents: ¥+eguested-by-Ownerto-do-s6, Maintain and safeguard during the

Construction Phase at least one original printed record version of the Construction
Contract Documents, including Drawings and Specifications signed and sealed by
Engineer and other design professionals in accordance with applicable Laws and
Regulations. Throughout the Construction Phase, make such original printed record
version of the Construction Contract Documents available to Contractor and Owner for
review.

7. Schedules: Receive, review, and determine the acceptability of any and all schedules
that Contractor is required to submit to Engineer, including the Progress Schedule,
Schedule of Submittals, and Schedule of Values.

8. Baselines and Benchmarks: As appropriate, establish baselines and benchmarks for
locating the Work which in Engineer’s judgment are necessary to enable Contractor to
proceed.

9. Visits to Site and Observation of Construction: In connection with observations of
Contractor’s Work while it is in progress:

a. Make visits to the Site at intervals appropriate to the various stages of construction,
as Engineer deems necessary, to observe as an experienced and qualified design
professional the progress of Contractor's executed Work. Such visits and
observations by Engineer, and the Resident Project Representative, if any, are not
intended to be exhaustive or to extend to every aspect of the Waork or to involve
detailed inspections of the Work beyond the responsibilities specifically assigned to
Engineer in this Agreement and the Construction Contract Documents, but rather
are to be limited to spot checking, selective sampling, and similar methods of
general observation of the Work based on Engineer’s exercise of professional
judgment, as assisted by the Resident Project Representative, if any. Based on
information obtained during such visits and observations, Engineer will determine
in general if the Work is proceeding in accordance with the Construction Contract
Documents, and Engineer shall keep Owner informed of the progress of the Work.

b. The purpose of Engineer’s visits to the Site, and representation by the Resident
Project Representative, if any, at the Site, will be to enable Engineer to better carry
out the duties and responsibilities assigned to and undertaken by Engineer during
the Construction Phase, and, in addition, by the exercise of Engineer’s efforts as an
experienced and qualified design professional, to provide for Owner a greater
degree of confidence that the completed Work will conform in general to the
Construction Contract Documents and that Contractor has implemented and
maintained the integrity of the design concept of the completed Project as a
functioning whole as indicated in the Construction Contract Documents. Engineer

Exhibit A - Engineer’s Services
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 9




shall not, during such visits or as a result.of such observations of the Work,
supervise, direct, or have control over the Work, nor shall Engineer have authority
over or responsibility for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, or
procedures of construction selected or used by any Constructor, for security or
safety at the Site, for safety precautions and programs incident to any Constructor’s
work in progress, for the coordination of the Constructors’ work or schedules, nor
for any failure of any Constructor to comply with Laws and Regulations applicable
to furnishing and performing of its work. Accordingly, Engineer neither guarantees
the performance of any Constructor nor assumes responsibility for any
Constructor’s failure to furnish or perform the Work, or any portion of the Work, in
accordance with the Construction Contract Documents.

c. The visits described in Articie A1.05.A.9.a shall be at least weekly and the
Engineer shall document all visits to the project with copies furnished to the
Owner and Agency.

10. Defective Work: Reject Work if, on the basis of Engineer’s observations, Engineer
believes that such Work is defective under the terms and standards set forth in the
Construction Contract Documents. Provide recommendations to Owner regarding
whether Contractor should correct such Work or remove and replace such Work, or
whether Owner should consider accepting such Work as provided in the Construction
Contract Documents.

11. Compatibility with Design Concept: If Engineer has express knowledge that a specific
part of the Work that is not defective under the terms and standards set forth in the
Construction Contract Documents is nonetheless not compatible with the design
concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole, then inform Owner of such
incompatibility, and provide recommendations for addressing such Work.

12. Clarifications and Interpretations: Accept from Contractor and Owner submittal of all
matters in question concerning the requirements of the Construction Contract
Documents (sometimes referred to as requests for information or interpretation—RFls),
or relating to the acceptability of the Work under the Construction Contract Documents.
With reasonable promptness, render a written clarification, interpretation, or decision
on the issue submitted, or initiate an amendment or supplement to the Construction
Contract Documents.

13. Non-reviewable Matters: If a submitted matter in question concerns the Engineer’s
performance of its duties and obligations, or terms and conditions of the Construction
Contract Documents that do not involve (1) the performance or acceptability of the
Work under the Construction Contract Documents, (2) the design (as set forth in the
Drawings, Specifications, or otherwise), or (3) other engineering or technical matters,
then Engineer will promptly give written notice to Owner and Contractor that Engineer
will not provide a decision or interpretation.

14. Field Orders: Subject to any limitations in the Construction Contract Documents,
Engineer may prepare and issue Field Orders requiring minor changes in the Work.

Exhibit A - Engineer’s Services
EICDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 10




15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

Change Orders and Work Change Directives: Recommend Change Orders and Work
Change Directives to Owner, as appropriate, and prepare Change Orders and Work
Change Directives as required.

Differing Site Conditions: Respond to any notice from Contractor of differing site
conditions, including conditions relating to underground facilities such as utilities, and
hazardous environmental conditions. Promptly conduct reviews and prepare findings,
conclusions, and recommendations for Owner’s use.

Shop Drawings, Samples, and Other Submittals: Review and approve or take other
appropriate action with respect to Shop Drawings, Samples, and other required
Contractor submittals, but only for conformance with the information given in the
Construction Contract Documents and compatibility with the design concept of the
completed Project as a functioning whole as indicated by the Construction Contract
Documents. Such reviews and approvals or other action will not extend to means,
methods, technigues, sequences, or procedures of construction or to safety precautions
and programs incident thereto. Engineer shall meet any Contractor’s submittal schedule
that Engineer has accepted.

Substitutes and “Or-equal”: Evaluate and determine the acceptability of substitute or
“or-equal” materials and equipment proposed by Contractor, but subject to the
provisions of Paragraph A2.02.A.2 of this Exhibit A. Review of substitutes and “or
equals” shall be in accordance with the General Conditions of the Construction
Contract and applicable Agency regulations.

Inspections and Tests:

a. Receive and review all certificates of inspections, tests, and approvals required by
Laws and Regulations or the Construction Contract Documents. Engineer’s review
of such certificates will be for the purpose of determining that the results certified
indicate compliance with the Construction Contract Documents and will not
constitute an independent evaluation that the content or procedures of such
inspections, tests, or approvals comply with the requirements of the Construction
Contract Documents. Engineer shall be entitled to rely on the results of such
inspections and tests.

b. As deemed reasonably necessary, reguest that Contractor uncover Work that is to
be inspected, tested, or approved.

c. Pursuant to the terms of the Construction Contract, require special inspections or
testing of the Work, whether or not the Work is fabricated, installed, or completed.

Change Proposals and Claims: (a) Review and respond to Change Proposals. Review
each duly submitted Change Proposal from Contractor and, within 30 days after receipt
of the Contractor’s supporting data, either deny the Change Proposal in whole, approve
it in whole, or deny it in part and approve it in part. Such actions shall be in writing, with
a copy provided to Owner and Contractor. If the Change Proposal does not involve the
design (as set forth in the Drawings, Specifications, or otherwise), the acceptability of the
Work, or other engineering or technical matters, then Engineer will notify the parties

Exhibit A - Engineer’s Services
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 11




that the Engineer will not resolve the Change Proposal. (b) Provide information or data
to Owner regarding engineering or technical matters pertaining to Claims.

21. Applications for Payment: Based on Engineer's observations as an experienced and
qualified design professional and on review of Applications for Payment and
accompanying supporting documentation:

a. Determine the amounts that Engineer recommends Contractor be paid.
Recommend reductions in payment (set-offs) based on the provisions for set-offs
stated in the Construction Contract. Such recommendations of payment will be in
writing and will constitute Engineer’s representation to Owner, based on such
observations and review, that, to the best of Engineer’s knowledge, information
and belief, Contractor’s Work has progressed to the point indicated, the Work is
generally in accordance with the Construction Contract Documents (subject to an
evaluation of the Work as a functioning whole prior to or upon Substantial
Completion, to the results of any subsequent tests called for in the Construction
Contract Documents, and to any other qualifications stated in the
recommendation), and the conditions precedent to Contractor’s being entitled to
such payment appear to have been fulfilled in so far as it is Engineer’s responsibility
to observe the Work. In the case of unit price Work, Engineer’s recommendations
of paymentl will include final determinations of quantities and classifications of the
Work {subject to any subsequent adjustments allowed by the Construction Contract
Documents).

b. By recommending payment, Engineer shall not thereby be deemed to have
represented that observations made by Engineer to check the quality or quantity of
Contractor’s Work as it is performed and furnished have been exhaustive, extended
to every aspect of Contractor’s Work in progress, or involved detailed inspections of
the Work beyond the responsibilities specifically assighed to Engineer in this
Agreement. Neither Engineer’s review of Contractor’s Work for the purposes of
recommending payments nor Engineer’s recommendation of any payment
including final payment will impose on Engineer responsibility to supervise, direct,
or control the Work, or for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, or
procedures of construction or safety precautions or programs incident thereto, or
Contractor’s compliance with Laws and Regulations applicable to Contractor’s
furnishing and performing the Work. It will also not impose responsibility on
Engineer to make any examination to ascertain how or for what purposes
Contractor has used the money paid to Contractor by Owner; to determine that
title to any portion of the Work, including materials or equipment, has passed to
Owner free and clear of any liens, claims, security interests, or encumbrances; or
that there may not be other matters at issue between Owner and Contractor that
might affect the amount that should be paid.

22. Contractor’s Completion Documents: Receive from Contractor, review, and transmit to
Owner maintenance and operating instructions, schedules, guarantees, bonds,
certificates or other evidence of insurance required by the Construction Contract
Documents, certificates of inspection, tests and approvals, and Shop Drawings, Samples,
and other data approved as provided under Paragraph A1.05.A.17. Receive—from

o0 o - - o & aavata

7 S

Exhibit A — Engineer’s Services
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 12




23.

24,

25.

26.

’ .

Ord o

O - - - =avata hoaxton ot Enonaa

: Receive from Contractor and review
the annotated record documents which are to be assembled by Contractor in
accordance with the Construction Contract Documents to obtain final payment. The
Engineer shall prepare Record Drawings, and furnish such Record Drawings to Owner.

Substantial Completion: Promptly after notice from Contractor that Contractor
considers the entire Work ready for its intended use, in company with Owner and
Contractor, visit the Site to review the Work and determine the status of completion.
Follow the procedures in the Construction Contract regarding the preliminary certificate
of Substantial Completion, punch list of items to be completed, Owner’s objections,
notice to Contractor, and issuance of a final certificate of Substantial Completion. Assist
Owner regarding any remaining engineering or technical matters affecting Owner's use
or occupancy of the Work following Substantial Completion.

Other Tasks: Perform or provide the following other Construction Phase tasks or
deliverables:

a. Upon Substantial Completion, the Engineer shall provide a copy of the Certificate
of Substantial Completion to the Agency.

Final Notice of Acceptability of the Work: Conduct a final visit to the Project to
determine if the Work is complete and acceptable so that Engineer may recommend, in
writing, final payment to Contractor. Accompanying the recommendation for final
payment, Engineer shall also provide a notice to Owner and Contractor in the form
attached hereto as Exhibit E (“Notice of Acceptability of Work”) that the Work is
acceptable (subject to the provisions of the Notice and Paragraph A1.05.A.21.b) to the
best of Engineer’s knowledge, information, and belief, and based on the extent of the
services provided by Engineer under this Agreement.

Standards for Certain Construction-Phase Decisions: Engineer will render decisions
regarding the requirements of the Construction Contract Documents, and judge the
acceptability of the Work, pursuant to the specific procedures set forth in the
Construction Contract for initial interpretations, Change Proposals, and acceptance of
the Work. In rendering such decisions and judgments, Engineer will not show partiality
to Owner or Contractor, and will not be liable to Owner, Contractor, or others in
connection with any proceedings, interpretations, decisions, or judgments conducted or
rendered in good faith.

Duration of Construction Phase: The Construction Phase will commence with the execution
of the first Construction Contract for the Project or any part thereof and will terminate upon
written recommendation by Engineer for final payment to Contractors. If the Project involves
more than one prime contract as indicated in Paragraph A1.03.D, then Construction Phase
services may be rendered at different times in respect to the separate contracts. Subject to
the provisions of Article 3, Engineer shall be entitled to an equitable increase in compensation
if Construction Phase services (including Resident Project Representative services, if any) are
required after the original date for completion and readiness for final payment of Contractor
as set forth in the Construction Contract.

Exhibit A — Engineer’s Services
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 13




A1.06 Post-Construction Phase

A.  Upon written authorization from Owner during the Post-Construction Phase, Engineer shall:

ke

Together with Owner, visit the Project to observe any apparent defects in the Work,
make recommendations as to replacement or correction of defective Work, if any, or the
need to repair of any damage to the Site or adjacent areas, and assist Owner in
consultations and discussions with Contractor concerning correction of any such
defective Work and any needed repairs. At completion of construction, from as-built
drawings provided by the contractor to the engineer, produce record drawings.

Together with Owner, visit the Project within one month before the end of the
Construction Contract’s correction period to ascertain whether any portion of the Work
or the repair of any damage to the Site or adjacent areas is defective and therefore
subject to correction by Contractor.

Perform or provide the following other Post-Construction Phase tasks or deliverables:
[None]

B. The Post-Construction Phase services may commence during the Construction Phase and, if
not otherwise modified in this Exhibit A, will terminate twelve months after the
commencement of the Construction Contract’s correction period.

PART 2 — ADDITIONAL SERVICES

A2.01  Additional Services Requiring Owner’s Written Authorization

A. If authorized in writing by Owner, Engineer shall provide Additional Services of the types
listed below. These services are not included as part of Basic Services and will be paid for by
Owner as indicated in Exhibit C.

1

Preparation of applications and supporting documents (in addition to those furnished
under Basic Services) for private or governmental grants, loans, or advances in
connection with the Project; preparation or review of environmental assessments and
impact statements not including preparation of the Environmental Report defined
under Basic Services; review and evaluation of the effects on the design requirements
for the Project of any such statements and documents prepared by others; and
assistance in obtaining approvals of authorities having jurisdiction over the anticipated
environmental impact of the Project.

Services to make measured drawings of existing conditions or facilities, to conduct tests
or investigations of existing conditions or facilities, or to verify the accuracy of drawings
or other information furnished by Owner or others.

Services resulting from significant changes in the scope, extent, or character of the
portions of the Project designed or specified by Engineer, or the Project’s design
requirements, including, but not limited to, changes in size, complexity, Owner's
schedule, character of construction, or method of financing; and revising previously
accepted studies, reports, Drawings, Specifications, or Construction Contract Documents

Exhibit A - Engineer’s Services
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services,

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 14




when such revisions are required by changes in Laws and Regulations enacted
subsequent to the Effective Date or are due to any other causes beyond Engineer's
control.

4. Services resulting from Owner’s request to evaluate additional Study and Report Phase
alternative solutions beyond those agreed to in Paragraph A1.01.A.1 and 2, but only if
the Owner’s request is made after completion of the Study and Report Phase.

5. Services required as a result of Owner’s providing incomplete or incorrect Project
information to Engineer.

6. Providing renderings or models for Owner’s use, including services in support of building
information modeling or civil integrated management.

7. Undertaking investigations and studies including, but not limited to:
a. detailed consideration of operations, maintenance, and overhead expenses;

b. the preparation of feasibility studies (such as those that include projections of
output capacity, utility project rates, project market demand, or project revenues)
and cash flow analyses, provided that such services are based on the engineering
and technical aspects of the Project, and do not include rendering advice regarding
municipal financial products or the issuance of municipal securities;

¢c. preparation of appraisals;

d. evaluating processes available for licensing, and assisting Owner in obtaining
process licensing;

e. detailed quantity surveys of materials, equipment, and labor; and

f. audits or inventories required in connection with construction performed or
furnished by Owner.

8. Furnishing services of Consultants for other than Basic Services.

9. Providing data or services of the types described in Exhibit B, when Owner retains
Engineer to provide such data or services instead of Owner furnishing the same.

10. Providing the following services:

a. Services attributable to more prime construction contracts than specified in
Paragraph A1.03.D.

b. Services to arrange for performance of construction services for Owner by
contractors other than the principal prime Contractor, and administering Owner’s
contract for such services.

11. Services during out-of-town travel required of Engineer, other than for visits to the Site
or Owner’s office as required in Basic Services (Part 1 of Exhibit A).

Exhibit A - Engineer’s Services
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Page 15




12. Preparing for, coordinating with, participating in and responding to structured
independent review processes, including, but not limited to, construction management,
cost estimating, project peer review, value engineering, and constructibility review
requested by Owner; and performing or furnishing services required to revise studies,
reports, Drawings, Specifications, or other documents as a result of such review
processes.

13. Preparing additional bidding-related documents (or requests for proposals or other
construction procurement documents) or Construction Contract Documents for
alternate bids or cost estimates requested by Owner for the Work or a portion thereof.

14. Assistance in connection with bid protests, rebidding, or renegotiating contracts for
construction, materials, equipment, or services, except when such assistance is required
to complete services required by Paragraph 5.02.A and Exhibit F.

15. Preparing conformed Construction Contract Documents that incorporate and integrate
the content of all Addenda and any amendments negotiated by Owner and Contractor.

16. Providing Construction Phase services beyond the original date for completion and
readiness for final payment of Contractor, but only if such services increase the total
quantity of services to be performed in the Construction Phase, rather than mcrely
shifting performance of such services to a later date.

18. Supplementing Record Drawings with information regarding the completed Project, Site,
and immediately adjacent areas obtained from field observations, Owner, utility
companies, and other reliable sources.

19. Conducting surveys, investigations, and field measurements to verify the accuracy of
Record Drawing content obtained from Contractor, Owner, utility companies, and other
sources; revise and supplement Record Drawings as needed.

20. Preparation of operation, maintenance, and staffing manuals.

21. Protracted or extensive assistance in refining and adjusting of Project equipment and
systems (such as initial startup, testing, and balancing).

22. Assistance to Owner in training Owner’s staff to operate and maintain Project
equipment and systems.

23. Assistance to Owner in developing systems and procedures for (a) control of the
operation and maintenance of Project equipment and systems, and (b) related
recordkeeping.

24. Preparing to serve or serving as a consultant or witness for Owner in any litigation,
arbitration, lien or bond claim, or other legal or administrative proceeding involving the
Project.

25. Overtime work requiring higher than regular rates.

Exhibit A - Engineer’s Services
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 16




26. Providing construction surveys and staking to enable Contractor to perform its work
other than as required under Paragraph A1.05.A.8; any type of property surveys or
related engineering services needed for the transfer of interests in real property; and
providing other special field surveys.

27. Providing more extensive services required to enable Engineer to issue notices or
certifications requested by Owner.

28. Extensive services required during any correction period, or with respect to monitoring
Contractor’s compliance with warranties and guarantees called for in the Construction
Contract (except as agreed to under Basic Services).

29. Other additional services performed or furnished by Engineer not otherwise provided for
in this Agreement.

A2.02 Additional Services Not Requiring Owner’s Written Authorization

A. Engineer shall advise Owner that Engineer is commencing to perform or furnish the
Additional Services of the types listed below. For such Additional Services, Engineer need not
request or obtain specific advance written authorization from Owner. Engineer shall cease
performing or furnishing such Additional Services upon receipt of written notice to cease
from Owner.

1. Services in connection with Work Change Directives and Change Orders to reflect
changes requested by Owner.

Contract. Services in making revisions to Drawings and Specifications occasioned by
the acceptance of substitute materials or equipment other than “or equal” items;
evaluation and determination of an excessive number of proposed "or equals" or
substitutions, whether proposed before or after award of the Construction Contract.

3. Services resulting from significant delays, changes, or price increases occurring as a
direct or indirect result of materials, equipment, or energy shortages.

4. Additional or extended services arising from (a) the presence at the Site of any
Constituent of Concern not disclosed to Engineer in writing pursuant to Section
2.01.D.2 or items of historical or cultural significance, (b) emergencies or acts of God
endangering the Work, (c) damage to the Work by fire or other causes during
construction, (d) a significant amount of defective, neglected, or delayed Work, (e)
acceleration of the progress schedule involving services beyond normal working hours,
or (f) default by Contractor.

Exhibit A - Engineer’s Services
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 17




Services (other than Basic Services during the Post-Construction Phase) in connection
with any partial utilization of the Work by Owner prior to Substantial Completion.

Evaluating unreasonable or frivolous requests for interpretation or information (RFls),
Change Proposals, or other demands from Contractor or others in connection with the
Work, or an excessive number of RFls, Change Proposals, or demands.

Reviewing a Shop Drawing or other Contractor submittal more than three times, as a
result of repeated inadequate submissions by Contractor.

While at the Site, compliance by Engineer and its staff with those terms of Owner's or
Contractor's safety program provided to Engineer subsequent to the Effective Date that
exceed those normally required of engineering personnel by federal, State, or local
safety authorities for similar construction sites.

Exhibit A - Engineer’s Services
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 18




This is EXHIBIT B, consisting of 3 pages, referred
to in and part of the Agreement between
Owner and Engineer for Professional Services
dated May 1, 2017.

Owner’s Responsibilities

Article 2 of the Agreement is supplemented to include the following agreement of the parties.

B2.01 In addition to other responsibilities of Owner as set forth in this Agreement, Owner shall at its
expense:

A.

Provide Engineer with all criteria and full information as to Owner’s requirements for the
Project, including design objectives and constraints, space, capacity and performance
requirements, flexibility, and expandability, and any budgetary limitations.

Give instructions to Engineer regarding Owner’s procurement of construction services
(including instructions regarding advertisements for bids, instructions to bidders, and
requests for proposals, as applicable), Owner’s construction contract practices and
requirements, insurance and bonding requirements, electronic transmittals during
construction, and other information necessary for the finalization of Owner’s bidding-related
documents (or requests for proposals or other construction procurement documents), and
Construction Contract Documents. Furnish copies (or give specific directions requesting
Engineer to use copies already in Engineer’s possession) of all design and construction
standards, Owner’s standard forms, general conditions (if other than EJCDC® C-700, Standard
General Conditions of the Construction Contract, 2013 Edition), supplementary conditions,
text, and related documents and content for Engineer to include in the draft bidding-related
documents (or requests for proposals or other construction procurement documents), and
draft Construction Contract Documents, when applicable. Owner shall have responsibility for
the final content of (1) such bidding-related documents (or requests for proposals or other
construction procurement documents), and (2} those portions of any Construction Contract
other than the design (as set forth in the Drawings, Specifications, or otherwise), and other
engineering or technical matters; and Owner shall seek the advice of Owner’s legal counsel,
risk managers, and insurance advisors with respect to the drafting and content of such
documents.

Furnish to Engineer any other available information pertinent to the Project including reports
and data relative to previous designs, construction, or investigation at or adjacent to the Site.

Following Engineer’s assessment of initially-available Project information and data and upon
Engineer’s request, obtain, furnish, or otherwise make available (if necessary through title
searches, or retention of specialists or consultants) such additional Project-related
information and data as is reasonably required to enable Engineer to complete its Basic and
Additional Services. Such additional information or data would generally include the
following:

1. Property descriptions.

2. Zoning, deed, and other land use restrictions.

Exhibit B - Owner's Responsibilities
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Pagel




3. Utility and topographic mapping and surveys.

4. Property, boundary, easement, right-of-way, and other special surveys or data, including
establishing relevant reference points.

5. Explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at or adjacent to the Site; geotechnical
reports and investigations; drawings of physical conditions relating to existing surface or
subsurface structures at the Site; hydrographic surveys, laboratory tests and inspections
of samples, materials, and equipment; with appropriate professional interpretation of
such information or data.

6. Environmental assessments, audits, investigations, and impact statements, and other
relevant environmental, historical, or cultural studies relevant to the Project, the Site,
and adjacent areas.

7. Data or consultations as required for the Project but not otherwise identified in this
Agreement.

Arrange for safe access to and make all provisions for Engineer to enter upon public and
private property as required for Engineer to perform services under the Agreement.

Recognizing and acknowledging that Engineer's services and expertise do not include the
following services, provide, as required for the Project:

1.  Accounting, bond and financial advisory (including, if applicable, “municipal advisor”
services as described in Section 975 of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and
Consumer Protection Act (2010) and the municipal advisor registration rules issued by
the Securities and Exchange Commission), independent cost estimating, and insurance
counseling services.

2. lLegal services with regard to issues pertaining to the Project as Owner requires,
Contractor raises, or Engineer reasonably requests. In no event can Owner be required
to retain outside counsel to provide the legal services.

3. Such auditing services as Owner requires to ascertain how or for what purpose
Contractor has used the money paid.

Provide the services of an independent testing laboratory to perform all inspections, tests,
and approvals of samples, materials, and equipment required by the Construction Contract
Documents (other than those required to be furnished or arranged by Contractor), or to
evaluate the performance of materials, equipment, and facilities of Owner, prior to their
incorporation into the Work with appropriate professional interpretation thereof. Provide
Engineer with the findings and reports generated by testing laboratories, including findings
and reports obtained from or through Contractor.

Provide reviews, approvals, and permits from all governmental authorities having jurisdiction
to approve all phases of the Project designed or specified by Engineer and such reviews,
approvals, and consents from others as may be necessary for completion of each phase of
the Project.

Exhibit B - Owner's Responsibilities
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright @ 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 2




. Advise Engineer of the identity and scope of services of any independent consuitants
employed by Owner to perform or furnish services in regard to the Project, including, but not
limited to, cost estimating, project peer review, value engineering, and constructibility
review.

J.  If Owner designates a construction manager or an individual or entity other than, or in
addition to, Engineer to represent Owner at the Site, define and set forth as an attachment to
this Exhibit B the duties, responsibilities, and limitations of authority of such other party and
the relation thereof to the duties, responsibilities, and authority of Engineer.

K. If more than one prime contract is to be awarded for the Work designed or specified by
Engineer, then designate a person or entity to have authority and responsibility for
coordinating the activities among the various prime Contractors, and define and set forth the
duties, responsibilities, and limitations of authority of such individual or entity and the
relation thereof to the duties, responsibilities, and authority of Engineer as an attachment to
this Exhibit B that is to be mutually agreed upon and made a part of this Agreement before
such services begin.

L. Inform Engineer in writing of any specific requirements of safety or security programs that
are applicable to Engineer, as a visitor to the Site.

M. Examine all alternative solutions, studies, reports, sketches, Drawings, Specifications,
proposals, and other documents presented by Engineer (including obtaining advice of an
attorney, risk manager, insurance counselor, financial/municipal advisor, and other advisors
or consultants as Owner deems appropriate with respect to such examination) and render in
writing timely decisions pertaining thereto.

N. Inform Engineer regarding any need for assistance in evaluating the possible use of Project
Strategies, Technologies, and Techniques, as defined in Exhibit A.

O. Advise Engineer as to whether Engineer’s assistance is requested in identifying opportunities
for enhancing the sustainability of the Project.

P. Place and pay for advertisement for Bids in appropriate publications.

Q. Furnish to Engineer data as to Owner’s anticipated costs for services to be provided by others
(including, but not limited to, accounting, bond and financial, independent cost estimating,
insurance counseling, and legal advice) for Owner so that Engineer may assist Owner in
collating the various cost categories which comprise Total Project Costs.

R. Attend and participate in the pre-bid conference, bid opening, pre-construction conferences,
construction progress and other job related meetings, and Site visits to determine Substantial
Completion and readiness of the completed Work for final payment.

S. Authorize Engineer to provide Additional Services as set forth in Part 2 of Exhibit A of the
Agreement, as required.

Perform or provide the following: [List any other Owner responsibilities here.]

Exhibit B — Owner's Responsibilities
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 3




This is EXHIBIT C, consisting of 6 pages, referred
to in and part of the Agreement between
Owner and Engineer for Professional Services
dated May 1, 2017.

Payments to Engineer for Services and Reimbursable Expenses
COMPENSATION PACKET BC-1: Basic Services — Lump Sum

Article 2 of the Agreement is supplemented to include the following agreement of the parties:

ARTICLE 2 — OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES

C2.01 Compensation for Basic Services (other than Resident Project Representative) — Lump Sum Method
of Payment

A.  Owner shall pay Engineer for Basic Services set forth in Exhibit A, except for services of
Engineer’s Resident Project Representative, if any, as follows:

1l

A Lump Sum amount of $209,774.00 based on the following estimated distribution of
compensation:

a. Study and Report Phase S 0.00
b. Preliminary Design Phase S  60,442.00
c. Final Design Phase S 100,420.00
d. Bidding and Negotiating Phase $  11,700.00
e. Construction Phase S 29,900.00
f.  Post-Construction Phase S 7,312.00

Engineer may alter the distribution of compensation between individual phases noted
herein to be consistent with services actually rendered, but shall not exceed the total
Lump Sum amount unless approved in writing by the Owner and Agency.

The Lump Sum includes compensation for Engineer’s services and services of Engineer’s
Consultants, if any. Appropriate amounts have been incorporated in the Lump Sum to
account for labor costs, overhead, profit, expenses (other than any expressly allowed
Reimbursable Expenses), and Consultant charges.

In addition to the Lump Sum, Engineer is also entitled to reimbursement from Owner for
the following Reimbursable Expenses: None

The portion of the Lump Sum amount billed for Engineer’s services will be based upon
Engineer’s estimate of the percentage of the total services actually completed during the
billing period. If any Reimbursable Expenses are expressly allowed, Engineer may also bill
for any such Reimbursable Expenses incurred during the billing period.

Exhibit C -Compensation Packet BC-1: Basic Services (other than RPR) — Lump Sum Method of Payment

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 1




Period of Service: The compensation amount stipulated in Compensation Packet BC-1 is
conditioned on a period of service not exceeding 36 months. If such period of service is
extended, the compensation amount for Engineer's services shall be appropriately adjusted
with concurrence of the Owner and Agency.

Exhibit C -Compensation Packet BC-1: Basic Services (other than RPR) — Lump Sum Method of Payment
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professlonal Engineers, American Counclil of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 2




COMPENSATION PACKET RPR-2:
Resident Project Representative — Standard Hourly Rates

Article 2 of the Agreement is supplemented to include the following agreement of the parties:

C2.04  Compensation for Resident Project Representative Basic Services — Standard Hourly Rates Method
of Payment

A. Owner shall pay Engineer for Resident Project Representative Basic Services as follows:

i]l;

Resident Project Representative Services: For services of Engineer’s Resident Project

Representative under Paragraph A1.05.A of Exhibit A, an amount equal to the cumulative
hours charged to the Project by each class of Engineer’s personnel times Standard Hourly
Rates for each applicable billing class for all Resident Project Representative services
performed on the Project, plus related Reimbursable Expenses and Engineer’s Consultant’s
charges, if any. The total compensation under this paragraph is estimated to be
$81,520.00 based upon full-time RPR services on an eight-hour workday, Monday through
Friday, over a 100 day construction schedule.

B. Compensation for Reimbursable Expenses:

1.

For those Reimbursable Expenses that are not accounted for in the compensation for
Basic Services under Paragraph C2.01, and are directly related to the provision of
Resident Project Representative or Post-Construction Basic Services, Owner shall pay
Engineer at the rates set forth in Appendix 1 to this Exhibit C.

Reimbursable Expenses include the expenses identified in Appendix 1 and the following:
transportation (including mileage), lodging, and subsistence incidental thereto; providing
and maintaining field office facilities including furnishings and utilities; subsistence and
transportation of Resident Project Representative and assistants; toll telephone calls,
mobile phone charges, and courier charges; reproduction of reports, Drawings,
Specifications, bidding-related or other procurement documents, Construction Contract
Documents, and similar Project-related items. In addition, if authorized in advance by
Owner, Reimbursable Expenses will also include expenses incurred for the use of highly
specialized equipment.

The amounts payable to Engineer for Reimbursable Expenses, if any, will be those
internal expenses related to the Resident Project Representative Basic Services that are
actually incurred or allocated by Engineer, plus all invoiced external Reimbursable
Expenses allocable to such services, the latter multiplied by a factor of 15%.

The Reimbursable Expenses Schedule will be adjusted annually {as of 2017) to reflect
equitable changes in the compensation payable to Engineer. Changes will not be
effective unless and until concurred in by the Owner and Agency.

Exhibit C — Compensation Packet RPR-2: Resident Project Representative Services—
Standard Hourly Rates Method of Payment.
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 1




G

Other Provisions Concerning Payment Under this Paragraph C2.04:

1. Whenever Engineer is entitled to compensation for the charges of Engineer’s
Consultants, those charges shall be the amounts billed by Engineer’s Consultants to
Engineer times a factor of 15%.

2. Factors: The external Reimbursable Expenses and Engineer’s Consultant’s factors
include Engineer’s overhead and profit associated with Engineer’s responsibility for the
administration of such services and costs.

3. Estimated Compensation Amounts:

a. Engineer’s estimate of the amounts that will become payable for specified services
are only estimates for planning purposes, are not binding on the parties, and are
not the minimum or maximum amounts payable to Engineer under the Agreement.

b. When estimated compensation amounts have been stated herein and it
subsequently becomes apparent to Engineer that the total compensation amount
thus estimated will be exceeded, Engineer shall give Owner and Agency written
notice thereof, allowing Owner to consider its options, including suspension or
termination of Engineer's services for Owner's convenience. Upon notice Owner
and Engineer promptly shall review the matter of services remaining to be
performed and compensation for such services. Owner shall either exercise its
right to suspend or terminate Engineer's services for Owner's convenience, agree to
such compensation exceeding said estimated amount, or agree to a reduction in
the remaining services to be rendered by Engineer, so that total compensation for
such services will not exceed said estimated amount when such services are
completed. If Owner decides not to suspend Engineer's services during
negotiations and Engineer exceeds the estimated amount before Owner and
Engineer have agreed to an increase in the compensation due Engineer or a
reduction in the remaining services, then Engineer shall be paid for all services
rendered hereunder.

4. To the extent necessary to verify Engineer’s charges and upon Owner’s timely request,
Engineer shall make copies of such records available to Owner at-eest at no cost.

Exhibit C — Compensation Packet RPR-2: Resident Project Representative Services—
Standard Hourly Rates Method of Payment.
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 2




COMPENSATION PACKET AS-1:
Additional Services — Standard Hourly Rates

Article 2 of the Agreement is supplemented to include the following agreement of the parties:

C2.05 Compensation for Additional Services — Standard Hourly Rates Method of Payment

A.  Owner shall pay Engineer for Additional Services, if any, as follows:

1.

General: For services of Engineer’s personnel engaged directly on the Project pursuant
to Paragraph A2.01 or A2.02 of Exhibit A, except for services as a consultant or witness
under Paragraph A2.01.A.20, (which if needed shall be separately negotiated based on
the nature of the required consultation or testimony) an amount equal to the
cumulative hours charged to the Project by each class of Engineer’s personnel times
Standard Hourly Rates for each applicable billing class for all Additional Services
performed on the Project, plus related Reimbursable Expenses and Engineer’s
Consultant’s charges, if any.

B. Compensation For Reimbursable Expenses:

1

For those Reimbursable Expenses that are not accounted for in the compensation for
Basic Services under Paragraph C2.01 and are directly related to the provision of
Additional Services, Owner shall pay Engineer at the rates set forth in Appendix 1 to this
Exhibit C.

Reimbursable Expenses include the expenses identified in Appendix 1 and the following
categories:  transportation (including mileage), lodging, and subsistence incidental
thereto; providing and maintaining field office facilities including furnishings and utilities;
toll telephone calls, mobile phone charges, and courier charges; reproduction of reports,
Drawings, Specifications, bidding-related or other procurement documents,
Construction Contract Documents, and similar Project-related items; and Consultants’
charges. In addition, if authorized in advance by Owner, Reimbursable Expenses will also
include expenses incurred for the use of highly specialized equipment.

The amounts payable to Engineer for Reimbursable Expenses, if any, will be the
Additional Services-related internal expenses actually incurred or allocated by Engineer,
plus all invoiced external Reimbursable Expenses allocable to such Additional Services,
the latter multiplied by a factor of 15%.

The Reimbursable Expenses Schedule will be adjusted annually (as of 2017) to reflect
equitable changes in the compensation payable to Engineer. Changes will not be
effective unless and until concurred in by the Owner and Agency.

C.  Other Provisions Concerning Payment for Additional Services:

1

Whenever Engineer is entitled to compensation for the charges of Engineer's
Consultants, those charges shall be the amounts billed by Engineer’s Consultants to
Engineer times a factor of 15%.

Exhibit C - Compensation Packet AS-1: Additional Services —
Standard Hourly Rates Method of Payment.
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 1




2. Factors: The external Reimbursable Expenses and Engineer’s Consultant’s Factors
include Engineer’s overhead and profit associated with Engineer’s responsibility for the
administration of such services and costs.

3. To the extent necessary to verify Engineer’s charges and upon Owner’s timely request,
Engineer shall make copies of such records available to Owner atcest at no cost.

Exhibit C - Compensation Packet AS-1: Additional Services -
Standard Hourly Rates Method of Payment.
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright © 2014 National Soclety of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 2




This is Appendix 1 to EXHIBIT C, consisting of 1 pages,
referred to in and part of the Agreement between
Owner and Engineer for Professional Services dated
May 1, 2017.

Reimbursable Expenses Schedule

Reimbursable Expenses are subject to review and adjustment per Exhibit C. Rates and charges for
Reimbursable Expenses as of the date of the Agreement are:

Mileage (auto) Federal Reimbursement Rate

Meals $40 per day allowance for personnel that are
staying overnight (if required).

Lodging At cost (if required)

Exhibit C - Appendix 1: Reimbursable Expenses Schedule.
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 1




This is Appendix 2 to EXHIBIT C, consisting of 2
pages, referred to in and part of the Agreement
between Owner and Engineer for Professional
Services dated March 7, 2017.

Standard Hourly Rates Schedule

A. Standard Hourly Rates:

1. Standard Hourly Rates are set forth in this Appendix 2 to this Exhibit C and include
salaries and wages paid to personnel in each billing class plus the cost of customary and
statutory benefits, general and administrative overhead, non-project operating costs,
and operating margin or profit.

2. The Standard Hourly Rates apply only as specified in Article C2.
B. Schedule:

Hourly rates for services performed on or after the date of the Agreement are:

Title Hourly Title Hourly

Rate Rate

Principal Civil Engineer $140 Planner $125
Senior Engineer $130 Building Inspector II $80
Engineer I1I $120 Building Inspector I $65
Engineer 11 $110 Designer 11 $100
Engineer 1 $100 Designer I $90
Engineer in Training II $90 GIS Analyst II $125

Engineer in Training I $80 GIS Analyst I $110
Senior Hydrogeologist $140 GIS Specialist $90
Hydrogeologist I1I $120 GIS Technician $80

Hydrogeologist II $100 Water Rights Specialist ITI $150
Hydrogeologist I $80 Water Rights Specialist [T $125
Electrical Engineer $150 Water Rights Specialist I $100
Environmental Scientist $105 Water Rights Technician III $90
Construction Inspector III $95 Water Rights Technician II $80
Construction Inspector IT $85 Water Rights Technician I §70
Construction Inspector I $75 Professional Surveyor $125
Project Assistant $70 Survey Technician IT $85
Admin III $80 Survey Technician I $70
Admin II $65 1 Man Survey Crew $125

Admin I $50 2 Man Survey Crew $165

Intern $45 3 Man Survey Crew $240

NOTE: Different survey labor rates will apply on prevailing wage projects. Rates for
prevailing wage projects will be provided on a case by case basis.

Exhibit C - Appendix 2: Standard Hourly Rates Schedule.
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 1




RUS Bulletin 1780-26
Exhibit C
Page 1

RUS CERTIFICATION PAGE

PROJECT NAME: Storey County S Mile Water Line Project

The Engineer and Owner hereby concur in the Funding Agency required revisions to E-500. In addition,
Engineer certifies to the following:

All modifications required by RUS Bulletin 1780-26 have been made in accordance the terms of the license
agreement, which states in part that the Engineer “must plainly show all changes to the Standard EJCDC
Text, using ‘Track Changes’ (redline/strikeout), highlighting, or other means of clearly indicating additions
and deletions.” Such other means may include attachments indicating changes (e.g. Supplementing
Conditions modifying the General Conditions).

SUMMARY OF ENGINEERING FEES

Note that the fees indicated on this table are only a summary and if there is a conflict with any provision of
Exhibit C, the provisions there overrule the values on this table. Fees shown in will not be exceeded
without the concurrence of the Agency.

Basic Services S 209,774.00
Resident Project Observation S 81,520.00
Additional Services S 8,708.00

TOTAL: S 300,002.00




RUS Bulletin 1780-26
Exhibit C
Page 2

Any adjustments to engineering fees or changes to maximum estimated values must be approved by the
Agency and must include a table of what specific category or categories of fees are being changed, what
fees were before and after the change, and the resulting total fee.

. %AA-—- 71417

Enginger Date

BRENT FARR  pPresipenT

Name and Title

Owner Date

Name and Title

Agency Concurrence:

As lender or insurer of funds to defray the costs of this Contract, and without liability for any payments
thereunder, the Agency hereby concurs in the form, content, and execution of this Agreement.

Agency Representative Date

Name and Title



This is EXHIBIT D, consisting of 5 pages, referred
to in and part of the Agreement between
Owner and Engineer for Professional Services
dated March 7, 2017.

Duties, Responsibilities, and Limitations of Authority of Resident Project Representative

Article 1 of the Agreement is supplemented to include the following agreement of the parties:

ARTICLE 1 - SERVICES OF ENGINEER

D1.01 Resident Project Representative

A.

Engineer shall furnish a Resident Project Representative (“RPR”) to assist Engineer in
observing progress and quality of the Work. The RPR may provide full time representation or
may provide representation to a lesser degree. RPR is Engineer’s representative at the Site,
will act as directed by and under the supervision of Engineer, and will confer with Engineer
regarding RPR’s actions. Full time Resident Project Representation is required unless
requested in writing by the Owner and waived in writing by the Agency.

Through RPR's observations of the Work, including field checks of materials and installed
equipment, Engineer shall endeavor to provide further protection for Owner against defects
and deficiencies in the Work. However, Engineer shall not, as a result of such RPR
observations of the Work, supervise, direct, or have control over the Work, nor shall Engineer
{including the RPR) have authority over or responsibility for the means, methods, techniques,
sequences, or procedures of construction selected or used by any Constructor, for security or
safety at the Site, for safety precautions and programs incident to the Work or any
Constructor’s work in progress, for the coordination of the Constructors” work or schedules,
or for any failure of any Constructor to comply with Laws and Regulations applicable to the
performing and furnishing of its work. The Engineer (including RPR) neither guarantees the
performances of any Constructor nor assumes responsibility for any Constructor’s failure to
furnish and perform the Work, or any portion of the Work, in accordance with the
Construction Contract Documents. In addition, the specific terms set forth in Exhibit A,
Paragraph A1.05, of this Agreement are applicable.

The duties and responsibilities of the RPR are as follows:

1. General: RPR’s dealings in matters pertaining to the Work in general shall be with
Engineer and Contractor. RPR’s dealings with Subcontractors shall only be through or
with the full knowledge and approval of Contractor. RPR shall generally communicate
with Owner only with the knowledge of and under the direction of Engineer.

2. Schedules: Review the progress schedule, schedule of Shop Drawing and Sample
submittals, schedule of values, and other schedules prepared by Contractor and consult
with Engineer concerning acceptability of such schedules.

3. Conferences and Meetings: Attend meetings with Contractor, such as preconstruction
conferences, progress meetings, job conferences, and other Project-related meetings

Exhibit D - Resident Project Representative.
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 1




(but not including Contractor’'s safety meetings), and as appropriate prepare and
circulate copies of minutes thereof.

4. Safety Compliance: Comply with Site safety programs, as they apply to RPR, and if
required to do so by such safety programs, receive safety training specifically related to
RPR’s own personal safety while at the Site.

5. Liaison:

a. Serve as Engineer’s liaison with Contractor.  Working principally through
Contractor’s authorized representative or designee, assist in providing information
regarding the provisions and intent of the Construction Contract Documents.

b. Assist Engineer in serving as Owner’s liaison with Contractor when Contractor’s
operations affect Owner’s on-Site operations.

c. Assist in obtaining from Owner additional details or information, when required for
proper execution of the Work.

6. Clarifications and Interpretations: Receive from Contractor submittal of any matters in
question concerning the requirements of the Construction Contract Documents
(sometimes referred to as requests for information or interpretation—RFIs), or relating
to the acceptability of the Work under the Construction Contract Documents. Report to
Engineer regarding such RFls. Report to Engineer when clarifications and interpretations
of the Construction Contract Documents are needed, whether as the result of a
Contractor RFl or otherwise. Transmit Engineer’s clarifications, interpretations, and
decisions to Contractor.,

7. Shop Drawings and Samples:
a. Record date of receipt of Samples and Contractor-approved Shop Drawings.

b. Receive Samples that are furnished at the Site by Contractor, and notify Engineer of
availability of Samples for examination.

c. Advise Engineer and Contractor of the commencement of any portion of the Work
requiring a Shop Drawing or Sample submittal, if RPR believes that the submittal
has not been received from Contractor, or has not been approved by Contractor or
Engineer.

8. Proposed Modifications:  Consider and evaluate Contractor’s suggestions for
modifications to the Drawings or Specifications, and report such suggestions, together
with RPR’s recommendations, if any, to Engineer. Transmit Engineer’s response (if any)
to such suggestions to Contractor.

9. Review of Work; Defective Work:

a. Report to Engineer whenever RPR believes that any part of the Work is defective
under the terms and standards set forth in the Construction Contract Documents,
and provide recommendations as to whether such Work should be corrected,

Exhibit D - Resident Project Representative.
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 2




removed and replaced, or accepted as provided in the Construction Contract
Documents.

b. Inform Engineer of any Work that RPR believes is not defective under the terms and
standards set forth in the Construction Contract Documents, but is nonetheless not
compatible with the design concept of the completed Project as a functioning
whole, and provide recommendations to Engineer for addressing such Work. ; and

c.  Advise Engineer of that part of the Work that RPR believes should be uncovered for
observation, or requires special testing, inspection, or approval.

10. Inspections, Tests, and System Start-ups:

a. Consult with Engineer in advance of scheduled inspections, tests, and systems start-
ups.

b.  Verify that tests, equipment, and systems start-ups and operating and maintenance
training are conducted in the presence of appropriate Owner’s personnel, and that
Contractor maintains adequate records thereof.

c. Observe, record, and report to Engineer appropriate details relative to the test
procedures and systems start-ups.

d. Observe whether Contractor has arranged for inspections required by Laws and
Regulations, including but not limited to those to be performed by public or other
agencies having jurisdiction over the Work.

e. Accompany visiting inspectors representing public or other agencies having
jurisdiction over the Work, record the results of these inspections, and report to
Engineer.

11. Records:

a. Maintain at the Site orderly files for correspondence, reports of job conferences,
copies of Construction Contract Documents including all Change Orders, Field
Orders, Work Change Directives, Addenda, additional Drawings issued subsequent
to the execution of the Construction Contract, RFIs, Engineer’s clarifications and
interpretations of the Construction Contract Documents, progress reports,
approved Shop Drawing and Sample submittals, and other Project-related
documents.

b. Prepare a daily report or keep a diary or log book, recording Contractor’s hours on
the Site, Subcontractors present at the Site, weather conditions, data relative to
questions of Change Orders, Field Orders, Work Change Directives, or changed
conditions, Site visitors, deliveries of equipment or materials, daily activities,
decisions, observations in general, and specific observations in more detail as in the
case of observing test procedures; and send copies to Engineer.

c. Upon request from Owner to Engineer, photograph or video Work in progress or
Site conditions.

Exhibit D - Resident Project Representative.
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 3




d. Record and maintain accurate, up-to-date lists of the names, addresses, fax
numbers, e-mail addresses, websites, and telephone numbers (including mobile
numbers) of all Contractors, Subcontractors, and major Suppliers of materials and
equipment.

e. Maintain records for use in preparing Project documentation.

f.  Upon completion of the Work, furnish original set of all RPR Project documentation
to Engineer.

12. Reports:

a. Furnish to Engineer periodic reports as required of progress of the Work and of
Contractor’s compliance with the progress schedule and schedule of Shop Drawing
and Sample submittals.

c.  Furnish to Engineer and Owner copies of all inspection, test, and system start-up
reports.

d. Immediately inform Engineer of the occurrence of any Site accidents, emergencies,
acts of God endangering the Work, possible force majeure or delay events, damage
to property by fire or other causes, or the discovery of any potential differing site
condition or Constituent of Concern.

13. Payment Requests: Review applications for payment with Contractor for compliance
with the established procedure for their submission and forward with recommendations
to Engineer, noting particularly the relationship of the payment requested to the
schedule of values, Work completed, and materials and equipment delivered at the Site
but not incorporated in the Work.

14. Certificates, Operation and Maintenance Manuals: During the course of the Work, verify
that materials and equipment certificates, operation and maintenance manuals and
other data required by the Contract Documents to be assembled and fumished by
Contractor are applicable to the items actually installed and in accordance with the
Contract Documents, and have these documents delivered to Engineer for review and
forwarding to Owner prior to payment for that part of the Work.

15. Completion:

a. Participate in Engineer’s visits to the Site regarding Substantial Completion, assist in
the determination of Substantial Completion, and prior to the issuance of a
Certificate of Substantial Completion submit a punch list of observed items
requiring completion or correction.

b. Participate in Engineer’s visit to the Site in the company of Owner and Contractor,
to determine completion of the Work, and prepare a final punch list of items to be
completed or corrected by Contractor.

Exhibit D - Resident Project Representative.
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 4




c. Observe whether all items on the final punch list have been completed or
corrected, and make recommendations to Engineer concerning acceptance and
issuance of the Notice of Acceptability of the Work (Exhibit E).

Resident Project Representative shall not:

1.

Authorize any deviation from the Construction Contract Documents or substitution of
materials or equipment (including “or-equal” items).

Exceed limitations of Engineer’s authority as set forth in this Agreement.

Undertake any of the responsibilities of Contractor, Subcontractors, or Suppliers, or any
Constructor.

Advise on, issue directions relative to, or assume control over any aspect of the means,
methods, techniques, sequences or procedures of the Work, by Contractor or any other
Constructor.

Advise on, issue directions regarding, or assume control over security or safety practices,
precautions, and programs in connection with the activities or operations of Owner or
Contractor.

Participate in specialized field or laboratory tests or inspections conducted off-site by
others except as specifically authorized by Engineer.

Accept Shop Drawing or Sample submittals from anyone other than Contractor.

Authorize Owner to occupy the Project in whole or in part.

Exhibit D - Resident Project Representative.
EICDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 5




This is EXHIBIT E, consisting of 2 pages, referred
to in and part of the Agreement between
Owner and Engineer for Professional Services
dated March 7, 2017.

EJCDC=

ENGINEERS JOINT CONTRACT
DOCUMENTS COMMITTEE

NOTICE OF ACCEPTABILITY OF WORK

PROJECT: Storey County 5 Mile Water Line Project
OWNER: Storey County

CONTRACTOR:

OWNER’S CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT IDENTIFICATION:
EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT:
ENGINEER: Farr West Engineering

NOTICE DATE:

To: Storey County
Owner

And To:

Contractor

From: Farr West Engineering
Engineer

The Engineer hereby gives notice to the above Owner and Contractor that Engineer has recommended
final payment of Contractor, and that the Work furnished and performed by Contractor under the above
Construction Contract is acceptable, expressly subject to the provisions of the related Contract
Documents, the Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services dated , and the
following terms and conditions of this Notice:

Exhibit E - Notice of Acceptability of Work.
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 1




CONDITIONS OF NOTICE OF ACCEPTABILITY OF WORK

The Notice of Acceptability of Work (“Notice”) is expressly made subject to the following terms
and conditions to which all those who receive said Notice and rely thereon agree:

By:

This Notice is given with the skill and care ordinarily used by members of the engineering
profession practicing under similar conditions at the same time and in the same locality.

This Notice reflects and is an expression of the Engineer’s professional opinion.

This Notice is given as to the best of Engineer’s knowledge, information, and belief as of
the Notice Date.

This Notice is based entirely on and expressly limited by the scope of services Engineer
has been employed by Owner to perform or furnish during construction of the Project
(including observation of the Contractor's work) under Engineer's Agreement with
Owner, and applies only to facts that are within Engineer's knowledge or could
reasonably have been ascertained by Engineer as a result of carrying out the
responsibilities specifically assigned to Engineer under such Agreement.

This Notice is not a guarantee or warranty of Contractor’s performance under the
Construction Contract, an acceptance of Work that is not in accordance with the related
Contract Documents, including but not limited to defective Work discovered after final
inspection, nor an assumption of responsibility for any failure of Contractor to furnish
and perform the Work thereunder in accordance with the Construction Contract
Documents, or to otherwise comply with the Construction Contract Documents or the
terms of any special guarantees specified therein.

This Notice does not relieve Contractor of any surviving obligations under the
Construction Contract, and is subject to Owner’s reservations of rights with respect to
completion and final payment.

Title:

Dated:

Exhibit E — Notice of Acceptability of Work.
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 2




This is EXHIBIT F, consisting of 2 pages, referred
to in and part of the Agreement between
Owner and Engineer for Professional Services
dated May 1, 2017.

Construction Cost Limit - NOT USED

Exhibit F — Construction Cost Limit.
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 1




Exhibit F — Construction Cost Limit,
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright © 2014 National Soclety of Professional Engineers, American Councll of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 2




Insurance

This is EXHIBIT G, consisting of 3 pages, referred
to in and part of the Agreement between
Owner and Engineer for Professional Services
dated May 1, 2017.

Paragraph 6.05 of the Agreement is supplemented to include the following agreement of the parties:

G6.05 Insurance

A. The limits of liability for the insurance required by Paragraph 6.05.A and 6.05.B of the
Agreement are as follows:

1. ByEngineer:

a. Workers’ Compensation:
b. Employer’s Liability --
1) Bodily injury, each accident:
2) Bodily injury by disease, each employee:
3) Bodily injury/disease, aggregate:
c. General Liahility --
1) Each Occurrence:
2) General Aggregate:
d. Excess or Umbrella Liability --
1) Per Occurrence:
2) General Aggregate:
e.
1)
f.  Professional Liability —
1) Each Claim Made
2) Annual Aggregate
2. ByOwner:
a. Workers’ Compensation:
b. Employer’s Liability --

Statutory

$1,000,000
$1,000,000
$1,000,000

$2,000,000
$4,000,000

$1,000,000
$1,000,000

Automobile Liability --Combined Single Limit (Bodily Injury and Property Damage):

1) Bodily injury, Each Accident

$1,000,000

$2,000,000
$4,000,000

Statutory

$2,000,000

Exhibit G - Insurance.

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Pagel




B.

2) Bodily injury by Disease, Each Employee $2,000,000
3) Bodily injury/Disease, Aggregate $2,000,000
4)

General Liability --

1) General Aggregate: $10,000,000
2) Each Occurrence (Bodily Injury and Property Damage): $10,000,000

Additional Insureds:

1.

The following individuals or entities are to be listed on Owner’s general liability policies
of insurance as additional insureds:

NONE

NONE

NONE

NONE

[other]

3.

The Owner shall be listed on Engineer's general liability policy as provided in
Paragraph 6.05.A.

Exhibit G - Insurance.

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Counclil of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. Allrights reserved.
Page 2




This is EXHIBIT H, consisting of 2 pages, referred to
in and part of the Agreement between Owner and
Engineer for Professional Services dated May 1,
2017.

Dispute Resolution

Paragraph 6.09 of the Agreement is supplemented to include the following agreement of the parties:
H6.08 Dispute Resolution

A. Mediation: Owner and Engineer agree that they shall first submit any and all unsettled claims,
counterclaims, disputes, and other matters in question between them arising out of or relating to
this Agreement or the breach thereof (“Disputes”) to mediation. Owner and Engineer agree to
participate in the mediation process in good faith. The process shall be conducted on a
confidential basis, and shall be completed within 120 days. If such mediation is unsuccessful in
resolving a Dispute, then (1) the parties may mutually agree to a dispute resolution of their

choice, or (2) either party may seek to have the Dispute resolved by a court of competent
jurisdiction.

Exhibit H - Dispute Resolution.
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright @ 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 1




This is EXHIBIT 1, consisting of 3 pages, referred
to in and part of the Agreement between
Owner and Engineer for Professional Services
dated May 1, 2017.

Limitations of Liability —= NOT USED

Exhibit | - Limitations on Liability.
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services,
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 1




This is EXHIBIT J, consisting of 1 pages, referred
to in and part of the Agreement between
Owner and Engineer for Professional Services
dated May 1, 2017.

Special Provisions — NOT USED

Exhibit J - Special Provisions,
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 1




This is EXHIBIT K, consisting of 2 pages, referred
to in and part of the Agreement between
Owner and Engineer for Professional Services
dated May 1, 2017.

AMENDMENT TO OWNER-ENGINEER AGREEMENT
Amendment No.

The Effective Date of this Amendment is:
Background Data
Effective Date of Owner-Engineer Agreement:
Owner: Storey County
Engineer: Farr West Engineering
Project: Storey County 5 Mile Water Line Project
Nature of Amendment: [Check those that are applicable and delete those that are inapplicable.]
Additional Services to be performed by Engineer
Modifications to services of Engineer
Modifications to responsibilities of Owner
Modifications of payment to Engineer
Modifications to time(s) for rendering services
- Modifications to other terms and conditions of the Agreement

Description of Maodifications:

Additional site surveying and control; project staking at key locations limited to 4 site
visits and 200 shots.

Agreement Summary:

Original agreement amount:

Net change for prior amendments:
This amendment amount:
Adjusted Agreement amount:

W N NN

Change in time for services (days or date, as applicable):

Exhibit K -~ Amendment to Owner-Engineer Agreement.
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 1




The foregoing Agreement Summary is for reference only and does not alter the terms of the Agreement,
including those set forth in Exhibit C.

Owner and Engineer hereby agree to modify the above-referenced Agreement as set forth in this
Amendment. All provisions of the Agreement not modified by this or previous Amendments remain in
effect.

OWNER: ENGINEER:

Storey County Farr West Engineering
By: By:

Print Print

name: name:

Title: Title:

Date Signed: Date Signed:

Exhibit K~ Amendment to Owner-Engineer Agreement.
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright © 2014 National Soclety of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 2




From: Nelson, John - RD, Carson City. NV

To: Chuck Reno; Goodfellow, Lisa - RD, Carson City, NV

Cct Couch, Cheryl - RD, Carson City, NV; Cherie Nevin (cnevin@storevcounty.org); Greg Lyman
Subject: RE: Storey County 5-Mile Water Line Project - Draft Contract

Date: Friday, June 23, 2017 10:06:14 AM

We have reviewed the proposed contract and concur with the contents therein. Once the County
has reviewed and signed we will be ready to sign our concurrence.

If you have any questions please feel free to contact me.

John Nelson | State Engineer (Nevada)

Rural Development

U.S. Department of Agriculture

1390 South Curry Street | Carson City, NV 89703
Phone: 775.887.1222 ext 112

http://www.rd.usda.gov/nv

; itted to the fut i ! it

"Estamos dedicados al futuro delas comunidades rurales”
This electronic message contains information generated by the USDA solely for the intended
recipients. Any unauthorized interception of this message or the use or disclosure of the
information it contains may violate the law and subject the violator to civil or criminal
penalties. If you believe you have received this message in error, please notify the sender and
delete the email immediately.

From: Chuck Reno [mailto:chuck@farrwestengineering.com]

Sent: Monday, June 12, 2017 8:25 AM

To: Nelson, John - RD, Carson City, NV <john.nelson4@nv.usda.gov>; Goodfellow, Lisa - RD, Carson
City, NV <lisa.goodfellow@nv.usda.gov>

Subject: Storey County 5-Mile Water Line Project - Draft Contract

John and Lisa,

Attached is the draft contract we sent to Storey County for review. The contract language is the
same as the VC Sewer plant. We have not received comments back from Storey County yet, but we
suspect they will be minor. We thought we would have you review it also for USDA conformance.
Please see email below for further explanation in the costs allocations.

Let me know if you have any questions.

Thanks,






FARR WEST
ENGINEERING

Chuck Reno, P.E., W.R.S.
Senior Engineer

Farr West Engineering
5510 Longley Lane

Reno, NV 89511

Main: (775) 851-4788

Direct: (775) 853-7264

Cell: (775) 225-0096

Fax: (775) 851-0766

www. farrwestengineering.com

From: Chuck Reno

Sent: Friday, May 19, 2017 12:42 PM

To: Cnevin@storeycounty.org

Cc: Lucas Tipton <lucas@farrwestengineering.com>; Brent Farr <brent@farrwestengineering.com>

Subject: Storey County 5-Mile Water Line Project - Draft Contract

Cherie,

Attached is the contract for the 5-Mile Water Line Project for the County’s review. Please note, we
used the Sewer Plant contact as our base for this contract. | know the Sewer Plant contract was
heavily reviewed by the County; it is hopeful this new contract review will be quick and easy.

The PDF file is 70 pages long. On PDF page 45 of 70 is shows the breakdown of the different
categories like we discussed in our meeting a few weeks back. However, for ease of billing review for
the County and USDA, we'll break the invoices into 3 major tasks as shown on PDF page 53 of 70.
The billing tasks will be:

Task-1: Basic Services (Lump sum — total of items a-f from page 45)
Task-2: Resident Project Observation (T&M)
Task-3: Additional Services (T&M)

Let me know if you have any questions.

Have a great weekend!

FARR WEST
ENGINEERING

Chuck Reno, P.E., W.R.S.
Senior Engineer

Farr West Engineering
5510 Longley Lane



Reno, NV 89511

Main: (775) 851-4788
Direct: (775) 853-7264
Cell: (775) 225-0096
Fax: (775) 851-0766

: 3 :



gs DA USDA, Rural Development

NV 1780, Guide 14

= =
— United States Department of Agriculture Letter of Conditions
(Rev. 04/2013)

December 22, 2016

Storey County

Attn: Marshall McBride, Chairman
P.O. Box 176

Virginia City, NV 89440

SUBJECT: Recipient Name: Storey County
Project Name: Storey County 5 Mile Water Line Project
Type of Project: Water Application
CFDA NUMBER - 10.760 Water and Waste Disposal Systems for Rural
Communities
Loan: $2,126,000

Dear Chairman McBride:

This letter establishes conditions which must be understood and agreed to by you before further
consideration may be given to your application. The loan will be administered on behalf of the
Rural Utilities Service (RUS) by the State and Area staff of USDA Rural Development, both of
which are referred to throughout this letter as the Agency. Any changes in project cost, source of
funds, scope of project, or any other significant changes in the project or applicant must be reported
to and concurred with by the Agency by written amendment to this letter. If significant changes are
made without obtaining such concurrence, the Agency may discontinue processing of the
application.

All conditions set forth under Section Il — Requirements Prior to Advertising for Bids must be met
within 180 days of the date of this letter. If you have not met these conditions, the Agency reserves
the right to discontinue the processing of your application.

If you agree to meet the conditions set forth in this letter and desire further consideration be given to
your application, please complete and return the following forms within 5 days:

Form RD 1942-46, “Letter of Intent to Meet Conditions”
Form RD 1940-1, “Request for Obligation of Funds”
NV 1780 Guide 31 - Conflict of Interest Policy

After you sign and return the forms to the Agency, the request will be processed and loan funds will
be approved and obligated. The loan will be considered approved on the date the Form RD 1940-1,
“Request for Obligation of Funds,” is signed by the approving official.

Rural Development « Nevada State Office
1380 South Curry Street * Carson City, NV 89703
Voice 775,887.1222 - Toll-Free Fax 855.816.1209

USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer and lender.



Extra copies of this letter are being provided for use by your engineer, attorney, auditor, bond
counsel and accountant. All parties may access information and regulations referenced in this letter
at our website located at www.rd.usda.gov.

The conditions are as follows:

SECTION 1 - PROJECT DETAIL

1. Project Description — Funds will be used to construct a new water transmission line for the
Storey County Water System.

Facilities will be designed and constructed in accordance with sound engineering practices and must
meet the requirements of Federal, State, and local agencies. The proposed facility design must be
based on the Preliminary Engineering Report (PER) as concurred with by the Agency.
2. Project Funding — The Agency is offering the following funding for your project:

Agency Loan $2,126,000

TOTAL PROJECT FUNDING: $2,126,000
This funding is offered based on the amounts stated above.
Any changes in funding sources following obligation of Agency funds must be reported to the
processing official. Project feasibility and funding will be reassessed if there is a significant change
in project costs after bids are received. If actual project costs exceed the project cost estimates, an

additional contribution by the Owner may be necessary.

3. Project Budget — Funding from all sources has been budgeted for the estimated expenditures as
follows:

Project Costs: Total Budgeted:
Construction $1,630,400
Contingency $162,990
Engineering Fees — includes the following:
Preliminary Engineering/Environmental $55,442
Engineering Design $81,520
Environmental/Archaeological $32,608
Construction Engineering $48,912
Resident Project Representation (Inspection) $81,520
Interest on Interim Financing $16,304
Legal Fees - Bond Counsel $16,304
TOTAL $2,126,000

Obligated loan funds not needed to complete the proposed project will be deobligated prior to start
of construction. An amended letter of conditions will be issued for any changes to the total project
budget.

Page 2 of 23



SECTION II — LOAN TERMS

4. Repayment — The interest rate will be the lower of the rate in effect at the time of loan
approval or the time of loan closing, unless you request otherwise. Should the interest rate be
reduced, the payment will be recalculated to the lower amount.

Your loan will be scheduled for repayment over a period of 40 years. Payments will be equal
annual amortized installments, beginning one year after closing. For planning purposes, use a
1.375% interest rate and an amortization factor of 32.67 which provides for an annual payment
of $69,457.00. The precise payment amount will be based on the interest rate at which the loan
is closed, and may be different than the one above.

The payment due date will be established as the day that the loan closes. Due dates falling on
the 29th, 30th, and 31st day of the month will be avoided.

S. Security— The loan will be secured by a Revenue bond with first lien position in the amount of
$2,126,000. The bond will be fully registered as to both principal and interest in the name of the
United States of America, Acting through the United States Department of Agriculture.

The bond and any ordinance or resolution relating thereto must not contain any provision in
conflict with the Agency Loan Resolution, applicable regulations, or its authorizing law. In
particular, there must be no defeasance or refinancing clause in conflict with the graduation
requirements of 7 U.S.C. 1983.

Additional security requirements are contained in RUS Bulletin 1780-27, “Loan Resolution
(Public Bodies).” A draft of all security instruments, including draft bond resolution, must be
reviewed and concurred in by the Agency prior to advertising for bids. The bond resolution and
Loan Resolution must be duly adopted and executed prior to loan closing.

6. Electronic Payments — Payments will be made on the day your payment is due through an
electronic preauthorized debit system. You will be required to complete Form RD 3550-28,
“Authorization Agreement for Preauthorized Payments,” for all new and existing indebtedness
to the Agency prior to loan closing. It will allow for your payment to be electronically debited
from your account on the day your payment is due.

7. Construction Completion Timeframe — All projects must be completed and all funds

disbursed within five years of obligation. If funds are not disbursed within five years of
obligation, you must submit to the Agency a written request for extension of time with adequate
justification of circumstances beyond your control. Requests for waivers beyond the initial
extension will be submitted to the Assistant Administrator for concurrence decision.

8. Disbur f Funds — Agency funds will be disbursed into the borrower’s

depository account through an electronic transfer system. SF 3881, “ACH Vendor/
Miscellaneous Payment Enrollment Form,” must be completed and submitted to the Agency
prior to advertising for bids.

Any applicant contribution will be the first funds expended, followed by other funding sources.
Interim financing or Agency loan funds will be expended after all other funding sources unless a
written agreement is reached with all other funding sources on how funds are to be disbursed
prior to start of construction or loan closing, whichever occurs first.

Page 3 of 23



9. Reserves — Reserves must be properly budgeted to maintain the financial viability and
sustainability of any operation. Reserves are important to fund unanticipated emergency
maintenance and repairs, and assist with debt service should the need arise. The following
reserves are required to be established as a condition of this loan:

a. Debt Service Reserve — As a part of this Agency loan proposal, you must establish a
restricted debt service reserve fund equal to at least one annual loan installment. It should be
funded at the rate of 10% of one annual payment per year for ten years or until the balance is
equal to one annual loan payment. Ten percent of the proposed loan installment would
equal $578.81 per month; this amount should be deposited monthly until a total of $69,457
has accumulated. Prior written concurrence from the Agency must be obtained before funds
may be withdrawn from this account during the life of the loan. When funds are withdrawn
during the life of the loan, deposits will continue as designated above until the fully-funded
amount is reached.

b. Short-Lived Asset Reserve — In addition to the debt service reserve fund, you must
establish a short-lived asset reserve fund. The short-lived asset reserve is not a restricted
account, and it is expected to see withdrawls from this fund as well as deposits. Based on the
preliminary engineering report, you must deposit at least $35,060 into the short-lived asset
reserve fund annually for the life of the loan to pay for repairs and/or replacement of major
system assets. It is your responsibility to assess your facility’s short-lived asset needs on a
regular basis and adjust the amount deposited to meet those needs.

Current assets can also be used to establish and maintain reserves for expected expenses,
including but not limited to operation and maintenance, deferred interest during the
construction period, and an asset management program,

SECTION III -REQUIREMENTS PRIOR TO ADVERTISING FOR BIDS

10. Environmental Requirements — At the conclusion of the proposal’s environmental review
process, specific action(s) were determined necessary to avoid or minimize adverse
environmental impacts. As outlined in the Environmental Report dated December, 2015, the
following actions are required for successful completion of the project and must be adhered to
during project design and construction:

Biological Resources

Nesting birds may be disturbed during construction and as such during nesting season from
April through September a biologist will provide a survey to assure that no nesting birds are
present in the area of construction.

Invasive Species of Weeds
Identify and flag all noxious and invasive weed populations present in the project area;

Treat or contain any weed populations that may be impacted or disturbed by construction
activity;

Provide training to construction workers and equipment operators on the identification of
weeds to be avoided, Certify that all construction material sources are weed-free, Minimize

Page 4 of 23



ground disturbance and vegetation removal as much as possible and practical, Re-vegetate
or otherwise prevent the establishment of weeds in all areas of the job site.

Historic and Cultural Properties

Buried components associated with the dirt road are unlikely within the project area.
However, should any unanticipated discoveries of subsurface features occur, work will cease
and the federal agencies, SHPO, and consulting parties will be notified. In this event,
specific mitigation and/or avoidance protocols will be determined by the lead federal agency
in consultation with the SHPO and other interested parties. Work will not resume until
consulting parties have had opportunity for comment and the lead federal agency has given
notice to proceed. Within these parameters, the undertaking poses no adverse effect to the
eligibility of this resource and no further management is reccommended.

Air Quality
Watering of the construction site will be required to reduce fugitive dust.

The project as proposed has been evaluated to be consistent with the National Environmental
Policy Act. Other Federal, State, tribal, and local laws, regulations and or permits may apply or
be required. Ifthe project or any project element deviates from or is modified from the
originally-approved project, additional environmental review may be required.

11. Engineering Services — You have been/will be required to complete an Agreement for
Engineering Services, which should consist of the Engineers Joint Contract Documents
Committee (EJCDC) documents as indicated in RUS Bulletin 1780-26, “Guidance for the Use
of EJCDC Documents on Water and Waste Projects with RUS Financial Assistance,” or other
approved form of agreement. The Agency will provide concurrence prior to advertising for
bids, and must approve any modifications to this agreement.

12. Contract Documents, Final Plans, and Specifications

a. The contract documents must consist of the EJCDC construction contract documents as
indicated in RUS Bulletin 1780-26 or other Agency-approved forms of agreement.

b. The contract documents, final plans, and specifications must comply with RUS Instruction
1780, Subpart C — Planning, Designing, Bidding, Contracting, Constructing and Inspections,
and must be submitted to the Agency for concurrence prior to advertising for bids along with
an updated cost estimate. The Agency may require another updated cost estimate if a
significant amount of time elapses between the original submission and advertising for bids.

c. The use of any procurement method other than competitive sealed bids must be requested in
writing and approved by the Agency.

13. Legal Services — You may be required to execute a legal services agreement with your attorney
(if you are not using the services of the district/county attorney) and bond counsel, for any legal
work needed in connection with this project. The agreement should stipulate an hourly rate for
the work, with a “not to exceed” amount for the services, including reimbursable expenses.
RUS Bulletin 1780-7, “Legal Services Agreement,” or similar format may be used. The Agency
will provide concurrence prior to advertising for bids. Any changes to the fees or services
spelled out in the original agreement must be reflected in an amendment to the agreement and
have prior Agency concurrence.

Page S of 23



14. Property Rights — Prior to advertising for bids, you and your legal counsel must furnish
satisfactory evidence that you have or can obtain adequate continuous and valid control over the
lands and rights-of-way needed for the project. Acquisition of necessary land and rights must
be accomplished in accordance with the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property
Acquisition Policies Act. Such control over the lands and rights will be evidenced by the
following:

a. Right-of-Way Map — Your engineer will provide a map clearly showing the location of all
lands and rights-of-way needed for the project. The map must designate public and private
lands and rights and the appropriate legal ownership thereof.

b. Form RD 442-20, “Right-of-Way Easement” — This form may be used to obtain any
necessary easements for the proposed project.

c. Form RD 442-21, “Right-of-Way Certificate” — You will provide a certification on this
form that all right-of-way requirements have been obtained for the proposed project.

d. Form RD 442-22, “Opinion of Counsel Relative to Rights-of-Way” — Your attorney will
provide a certification and legal opinion on this form addressing rights-of-way, easements,
and title.

e. Preliminary Title Work (Title Opinion) — When applicable, your attorney will provide a
preliminary title opinion for any property related to the facility, currently owned and to be
acquired, along with copies of deeds, contracts or options for purchasing said property.
Form RD 1927-9, “Preliminary Title Opinion,” may be used.

The approving official may waive title defects or restrictions, such as utility easements, that do
not adversely affect the suitability, successful operation, security value, or transferability of the
facility. Any such waivers must be provided by the approving official in writing prior to closing
or the start of construction, whichever occurs first.

You are responsible for the acquisition of all property rights necessary for the project and for
determining that prices paid are reasonable and fair. The Agency may require an appraisal by
an independent appraiser or Agency employee in order to validate the price to be paid.

15. System Policies, Procedures, Contracts, and Agreements — The facility must be operated on

a sound business plan. You must adopt policies, procedures, and/or ordinances outlining the
conditions of service and use of the proposed system. Mandatory connection policies should be
used where enforceable. The policies, procedures, and/or ordinances must contain an effective
collection policy for accounts not paid in full within a specified number of days after the date of
billing. They should include appropriate late fees, specified timeframes for disconnection of
service, and reconnection fees. A draft of these policies, procedures, and/or ordinances must be
submitted for Agency review and concurrence, along with the documents below, before closing
instructions may be issued unless otherwise stated.

a. Conflict of Interest Policy — Prior to obligation of funds, you must certify in writing that
your organization has in place an up-to-date written policy on conflict of interest. The
policy will include, at a minimum: (1) a requirement for those with a conflict or potential
conflict to disclose the conflict/potential conflict; (2) a clause that prohibits interested
members of the applicant’s governing body from voting on any matter in which there is a
conflict, and (3) a description of the specific process by which the governing body will
manage identified or potential conflicts.

Page 6 of 23



You must also submit a disclosure of planned or potential transactions related to the use of
Federal funds that may constitute or present the appearance of personal or organizational
conflict of interest. Disclosure must be in the form of a written letter signed and dated by
the applicant’s official. A negative disclosure in the same format is required if no conflicts

are anticipated.

Sample conflict of interest policies may be found at the National Council of Nonprofits

website, https://www.councilofnonprofits.org/tools-resources/conflict-of-interest, or in

Internal Revenue Service Form 1023, Appendix A, “Sample Conflict of Interest Policy,” at
http://www.irs.gov/pub/irs-pdf/i1023.pdf. Though these examples reference non-profit
corporations, the requirement applies to all types of Agency borrowers.

Assistance in developing a conflict of interest policy is available through Agency-contracted
technical assistance providers if desired.

b. Contracts for Other Services/Lease Agreement — Drafts of any contracts or other forms of
agreements for other services, including audit, management, operation, and maintenance, or
lease agreements covering real property essential to the successful operation of the facility,
must be submitted to the Agency for review and concurrence prior to advertising for bids.

Fully executed copies of any policies, procedures, ordinances, contracts, or agreements must be
submitted prior to loan closing, with the exception of the conflict of interest policy, which must
be in place prior to obligation of funds.

16. Closing Instructions — The Agency will prepare closing instructions as soon as the
requirements of the previous paragraphs are complete, as well as a draft of the security
instrument(s). Closing instructions must be obtained prior to advertising for bids.

17. Interim Financing — For all loans exceeding $500,000, where loan funds can be borrowed at
reasonable interest rates on an interim basis from commercial sources for the construction
period, such interim financing will be used to preclude the necessity for multiple advances of
Agency loan funds. You must provide the Agency with a copy of the interim loan financing
agreement for review prior to advertising for bids. The Agency approving official may make an
exception when interim financing is cost prohibitive or unavailable.

18. Construction Account — You must establish a construction account for all funds related to the
project. Construction funds will be deposited with an acceptable financial institution or
depository that meets the requirements of 31 CFR Part 202. A separate account will not be
required for Federal funds and other funds; however, the recipient must be able to separately
identify, report, and account for all Federal funds, including the receipt, obligation and
expenditure of funds. Financial institutions or depositaries accepting deposits of public funds
and providing other financial agency services to the Federal Government are required to pledge
adequate, acceptable securities as collateral, in accordance with 31 CFR Part 202. All funds in
the account will be secured by a collateral pledge equaling at least 100% of the highest amount
of funds expected to be deposited in the construction account at any one time. Your financial
institution can provide additional guidance on collateral pledge requirements.

Agency funds will be disbursed into the borrower’s depository account through an electronic
transfer system. SF 3881, “ACH Vendor/Miscellancous Payment Enrollment Form,” must be
completed and submitted to the Agency prior to advertising for bids.

Page 7 of 23



19. System Users — This letter of conditions is based upon your indication at application that there
will be at least 485 residential users and 221 non-residential users on the existing system when
construction is completed.

Before the Agency can agree to the project being advertised for construction bids, you must
certify that the number of users indicated at application are currently using the system or signed
up to use the system once it is operational.

If the actual number of existing and/or proposed users that have signed up for service is less
than the number indicated at the time of application, you must provide the Agency with a
written plan on how you will obtain the necessary revenue to adequately cash flow the expected
operation, maintenance, debt service, and reserve requirements of the proposed project (e.g.,
increase user rates, sign up an adequate number of other users, reduce project scope, etc.).
Similar action is required if there is cause to modify the anticipated flows or volumes presented
following approval.

20. Proposed Operating Budget - You must establish and/or maintain a rate schedule that
provides adequate income to meet the minimum requirements for operation and maintenance
(O&M), debt service, and reserves. Prior to advertising for bids, you must submit a proposed
annual operating budget to the Agency which supports the operation, maintenance, debt service,
and reserves, as well as your proposed rate schedule. The operating budget should be based on
a typical year cash flow after completion of the construction phase and should be signed by the
appropriate official of your organization. Form RD 442-7, “Operating Budget,” or similar
format may be utilized for this purpose. It is expected that O&M will change over each
successive year and user rates will need to be adjusted on a regular basis.

Technical assistance is available at no cost to help you evaluate and complete a rate analysis on
your system. This assistance is available free to your organization. If you are interested please
contact our office for information.

21. Permits —The owner or responsible party will be required to obtain all applicable permits for the
project. The consulting engineer must submit written evidence that all applicable permits
required prior to construction have been obtained with submission to the Agency of the final
plans, specifications, and bid documents.

22. Vulnerability Assessment/Emergen onse Plan (VA/ERP) — The Agency requires all
financed water and wastewater systems to have a VA/ERP in place. Borrowers with existing
systems must provide a certification that a VA/ERP has been completed prior to advertising for
bids. The VA/ERP documents themselves are not submitted to the Agency. The VA/ERP must
address potential impacts from natural disasters and other emergency events. In particular, it
should include plans to address impacts of flash flooding in areas where severe drought or
wildfires occur. The documents should be reviewed and updated every three years at a
minimum.

For VA/ERP requirements throughout the life of the loan, see Section VII. Technical assistance
at no cost is available in preparing these documents.

23. Bid Authorization — Once all the conditions outlined in Section II1 of this letter have been met,
the Agency will authorize you to advertise the project for construction bids. Such advertisement
must be in accordance with applicable State statutes.

Page 8 of 23



SECTION 1V - REQUIREMENTS PRIOR TO START OF CONSTRUCTION

24. Bid Tabulation — Immediately after bid opening, you must provide the Agency with the bid
tabulation and your engineer’s evaluation of bids and recommendations for contract awards. If
the Agency agrees that the construction bids received are acceptable, adequate funds are
available to cover the total project costs, and all the requirements of Section III of this letter
have been satisfied, the Agency will authorize you to issue the Notice of Award.

a. Cost Overruns. If bids are higher than expected, or if unexpected construction problems are
encountered, you must utilize all options to reduce cost overruns. Negotiations, redesign,
use of bidding alternatives, rebidding or other means will be considered prior to
commitment of subsequent funding by the Agency. Any requests for subsequent funding to
cover cost overruns will be contingent on the availability of funds. Cost overruns exceeding
20% of the development cost at time of loan approval or where the scope of the original
purpose has changed will compete for funds with all other applications on hand as of that
date.

b. Excess Funds. If bids are lower than anticipated at time of obligation, excess funds must be
deobligated prior to start of construction except in the cases addressed in this paragraph. In
cases where the original PER for the project included items that were not bid, or were bid as
an alternate, the State Office official may modify the project to fully utilize obligated funds
for those items. Amendments to the PER, ER, and letter of conditions may be needed for
any work not included in the original project scope. In all cases, prior to start of
construction, excess funds will be deobligated. Excess funds do not include contingency
funds as described in this letter.

25. Contract Review — Your attorney will certify that the executed contract documents, including
performance and payment, if required, are adequate and that the persons executing these
documents have been properly authorized to do so in accordance with RUS Instruction
1780.61(b).

Once your attorney has certified that they are acceptable, the contract documents will be
submitted to the Agency for its concurrence. The Notice to Proceed cannot be issued until the
Agency has concurred with the construction contracts.

26. Final Rights-of-Way — If any of the rights-of-way forms listed previously in this letter contain
exceptions that do not adversely affect the suitability, successful operation, security value, or
transferability of the facility, the approving official must provide a written waiver prior to the
issuance of the Notice to Proceed. For projects involving the acquisition of land, you must
provide evidence that you have clear title to the land prior to the issuance of the Notice to
Proceed.

Final Title Work — Your attorney must furnish a separate final title opinion on all existing real
property related to the facility, now owned and to be acquired for this project, as of the day of
loan closing or start of construction, whichever occurs first. Form RD 1927-10, “Final Title
Opinion” may be used.

27. Insurance and Bonding Regquirements — Prior to the start of construction or loan closing,
whichever occurs first, you must acquire and submit to the Agency proof of the types of

Page 9 of 23



insurance and bond coverage for the borrower shown below. The use of deductibles may be
allowed, providing you have the financial resources to cover potential claims requiring payment
of the deductible. The Agency strongly recommends that you have your engineer, attorney, and
insurance provider(s) review proposed types and amounts of coverage, including any exclusions
and deductible provisions. It is your responsibility and not that of the Agency to assure that
adequate insurance and fidelity or employee dishonesty bond coverage is maintained.

a. General Liability Insurance — Include vehicular coverage.

b. Workers’ Compensation — In accordance with appropriate State laws.

c. Fidelity or Employee Dishonesty Bonds — Include coverage for all persons who have
access to funds, including persons working under a contract or management agreement.
Coverage may be provided either for all individual positions or persons, or through blanket
coverage providing protection for all appropriate workers. During construction, each
position should be bonded in an amount equal to the maximum amount of funds to be under
the control of that position at any one time. The coverage may be increased during
construction based on the anticipated monthly advances. After construction and throughout
the life of the loan, the amount of coverage should normally approximate the total annual
debt service of all outstanding Agency loans. The Agency will be identified in the fidelity
bond for receipt of notices. Form RD 440-24, “Position Fidelity Schedule Bond,” or similar
format may be used.

d. National Flood Insurance - If the project involves acquisition or construction in designated
special flood or mudslide prone areas, you must purchase a flood insurance policy at the
time of loan closing.

e. Real Property Insurance — Fire and extended coverage will normally be maintained on all
structures except reservoirs, pipelines and other structures if such structures are not normally
insured, and subsurface lift stations except for the value of electrical and pumping
equipment. The Agency will be listed as mortgagee on the policy when the Agency has a
lien on the property. Prior to the acceptance of the facility from the contractor(s), you must
obtain real property insurance (fire and extended coverage) on all facilities identified above.

Insurance types described above are required to be continued throughout the life of the loan. See
Section VIIL

29. Initial Civil Rights Compliance Review — The Agency will conduct an initial civil rights

compliance review of the borrower prior to loan closing or start of construction, whichever
occurs first, in accordance with 7 CFR 1901, Subpart E.

SECTION V - REQUIREMENTS PRIOR TO LOAN CLOSING

30. Multiple Advances - Multiple advances of Agency funds will be used. Loan closing will occur
prior to when the funds are needed, and all of the items detailed in the sections above, as well as
the items listed in this section, must be completed prior to closing.

31. Vulnerability Assessment/Emergency Response Plan (VA/ERP) - The Agency requires all

financed water and wastewater systems to have a VA/ERP in place. Borrowers with existing
systems must provide a certification that a VA and ERP are completed prior to authorization to
advertise for bids. The VA/ERP documents are not submitted to the Agency. Technical
assistance is available in preparing these documents at no cost to you. The VA/ERP must
address potential impacts from natural disasters and other emergency events. In particular, it
should include plans to address impacts of flash flooding in areas where severe drought or

Page 10 of 23



wildfires occur. The documents should be reviewed and updated every three years at a
minimum.

32. Other Requirements — All requirements contained in the Agency’s closing instructions, as well

as any requirements of your bond counsel and/or attorney, must be met prior to loan closing.

a. System for Award Management. You will be required to maintain a Dun and Bradstreet
Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) number and maintain an active registration in
the System for Award Management (SAM) database. Renewal can be done on-line at:
http://sam.gov. This registration must be renewed and revalidated every twelve (12) months
for as long as there are Agency funds to be expended. See Appendix A.

To ensure the information is current, accurate and complete, and to prevent the SAM
account expiration, the review and updates must be performed within 365 days of the
activation date, commonly referred to as the expiration date. The registration process may
take up to 10 business days. (See 2 CFR Part 25 and the “Help” section at http:/sam.gov).

b. Litigation. You are required to notify the Agency within 30 days of receiving notification
of being involved in any type of litigation prior to loan closing or start of construction,
whichever occurs first. Additional documentation regarding the situation and litigation may
be requested by the Agency.

¢. Certified Operator. Evidence must be provided that your system has or will have, as
defined by applicable State or Federal requirements, a certified operator available prior to
the system becoming operational, or that a suitable supervisory agreement with a certified
operator is in effect.

SECTION VI — REQUIRE URING CONSTR 10N AND
CONSTRUCTION

33. Resident Inspector(s) — Full-time inspection is required unless you request an exception. Such

34.

requests must be made in writing and the Agency must concur with the request. Inspection
services are to be provided by the consulting engineer unless other arrangements are requested
in writing and concurred with by the Agency. A resume of qualifications of any resident
inspector(s) will be submitted to the owner and Agency for review and concurrence prior to the
pre-construction conference. The resident inspector(s) must attend the pre-construction
conference.

Preconstruction Conference — A preconstruction conference will be held prior to the issuance
of the Notice to Proceed. The consulting engineer will review the planned development with
the Agency, owner, resident inspector, attorney, contractor, other funders, and other interested
parties, and will provide minutes of this meeting to the owner and Agency.

35. Inspections - The Agency requires a pre-construction conference, pre-final and final

inspections, and a warranty inspection. Your engineer will schedule a warranty inspection with
the contractor and the Agency before the end of the one-year warranty period to address and/or
resolve any warranty issues. The Agency will conduct an inspection with you of your records
management system at the same time, and will continue to inspect the facility and your records
system every three years for the life of the loan. See Section VII of this letter.

Page 11 of 23



36. Change Orders — Prior Agency concurrence is required for all Change Orders.

37. Payments — Prior Agency concurrence is required for all Invoices and Partial Payment
Estimates before Agency funds will be released. Requests for payment related to a contract or
service agreement will be signed by the owner, project engineer, and contractor or service
provider prior to Agency concurrence. Invoices not related to a construction contract or service
agreement will include the owner’s written concurrence.

38. Use of Remaining Funds — Applicant contribution and connection or tap fees will be the first
funds expended in the project, followed by non-Agency sources of funds. Remaining funds
may be considered in direct proportion to the amounts obtained from each source and handled as
follows:

a. Remaining funds may be used for eligible loan purposes, provided the use will not result in
major changes to the griginal scope of work and the purpose of the loan remains the same.

b. Loan funds that are not needed will be applied as an extra payment on the Agency ,
indebtedness unless other disposition is required by the bond ordinance, resolution, or State
statute.

39. Technical, Managerial and Financial Capacity - It is required that members of the Board of

County Commissioners and other governing members possess the necessary technical,
managerial, and financial capacity skills to consistently comply with pertinent Federal and State
laws and requirements. It is recommended members receive training within one year of
appointment or election to the governing board, and a refresher training for all governing
members on a routine basis. The content and amount of training should be tailored to the needs
of the particular individual and the utility system. Technical assistance providers are available
to provide this training for your organization, often at no cost. Contact the Agency for
information.

40. Reporting Requirements Related to Expenditure of Funds

a. Financial Audit— An annual audit under the Single Audit Act is required if you expend
$750,000 or more in Federal financial assistance per fiscal year. The total Federal funds
expended from all sources shall be used to determine Federal financial assistance expended.
Expenditures of interim financing are considered Federal expenditures.

All audits are to be performed in accordance with 2 CFR Part 200, as adopted by USDA
through 2 CFR Part 400. Further guidance on preparing an acceptable audit can be obtained
from the Agency. The audit must be prepared by an independent licensed Certified Public
Accountant, or a State or Federal auditor if allowed by State law, and must be submitted
within 9 months of your fiscal year end.

If an audit is required, you must enter into a written agreement with the auditor and submit a
copy to the Agency prior to the advertisement of bids. The audit agreement may include
terms and conditions that the borrower and auditor deem appropriate; however, the
agreement should include the type of audit to be completed, the time frame in which the
audit will be completed, and how irregularities will be reported.

b. Reportin b nd Executi mpensation — You as a recipient of Federal funds
and your first-tier contractors are required by 2 CFR Part 170 to report disbursements to

Page 12 of 23



subrecipients in accordance with Appendix B of the CFR and www.fsrs.gov. Your Agency
processing office can provide more information.

SECTION VII — SERVICING REQUIREMENTS DURING THE TERM OF THE LOAN

41. Prepayment and Extra Payments - Prepayments of scheduled installments, or any portion
thereof, may be made at any time at the option of borrower, with no penalty.

Security instruments, including bonding documents, must contain the following language
regarding extra payments, unless prohibited by State statute:

Prepayments of scheduled installments, or any portion thereof, may be made at any time at
the option of borrower. Refunds, extra payments and loan proceeds obtained from outside
sources for the purpose of paying down the Agency debt, shall, after payment of interest, be
applied to the installments last to become due under this note and shall not affect the
obligation of borrower to pay the remaining installments as scheduled in your security
instruments.

42. Graduation - By accepting this loan, you are also agreeing to refinance (graduate) the unpaid
loan balance in whole, or in part, upon request of the Government. If at any time the Agency
determines you are able to obtain a loan for such purposes from responsible cooperative or private
sources at reasonable rates and terms, you will be requested to refinance. Your ability to refinance
will be assessed every other year for those loans that are five years old or older.

43. Security/Operational Inspections — The Agency will inspect the facility and conduct a review
of your operations and records management system and conflict of interest policy every three years

for the life of the loan. You must participate in these inspections and provide the required
information.

44. Annual Financial Reporting/Audit Requirements — You are required to submit an annual

financial report at the end of each fiscal year. The annual report will be certified by the appropriate
organization official, and will consist of financial information and a rate schedule. Financial
statements must be prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP), and must include at a minimum a balance sheet and
income and expense statement. The annual report will include separate reporting for each water and
waste disposal facility, and itemize cash accounts by type (debt service, short-lived assets, etc.)
under each facility. All records, books and supporting material are to be retained for three years
after the issuance of the annual report. Technical assistance is available at no cost with preparing
financial reports.

The type of financial information that must be submitted is specified below:

a. Audits — An annual audit under the Single Audit Act is required if you expend $750,000 or
more in Federal financial assistance per fiscal year. The total Federal funds expended from
all sources shall be used to determine Federal financial assistance expended. Expenditures
of interim financing are considered Federal expenditures.

All audits are to be performed in accordance with 2 CFR Part 200, as adopted by USDA
through 2 CFR Part 400. Further guidance on preparing an acceptable audit can be obtained
from the Agency. It is not intended that audits required by this part be separate and apart

Page 13 of 23



from audits performed in accordance with State and local laws. To the extent feasible, the
audit work should be done in conjunction with those audits. The audit must be prepared by
an independent licensed Certified Public Accountant, or a State or Federal auditor if allowed
by State law, and must be submitted within 9 months of your fiscal year end.

If an audit is required, you must enter into a written agreement with the auditor and submit a
copy to the Agency prior to the advertisement of bids. The audit agreement may include
terms and conditions that the borrower and auditor deem appropriate; however, the
agreement should include the type of audit or financial statements to be completed, the time
frame in which the audit or financial statements will be completed, what type of reports will
be generated from the services provided, and how irregularities will be reported.

b. Financial Statements — [f you expend less than $750,000 in Federal financial assistance per
fiscal year, you may submit financial statements in lieu of an audit which include at a
minimum a balance sheet and an income and expense statement. You may use Form RD
442-2, “Statement of Budget, Income and Equity,” and 442-3, “Balance Sheet,” or similar
format to provide the financial information. The financial statements must be signed by the
appropriate borrower official and submitted within 60 days of your fiscal year end.

45. Annual Budget and Projected Cash Flow - Thirty days prior to the beginning of each fiscal
year, you will be required to submit an annual budget and projected cash flow to this office. With
the submission of the annual budget, you will be required to provide a current rate schedule, and a
current listing of the Board or Council members and their terms. The budget must be signed by the
appropriate borrower official. Form RD 442-2 or similar format may be used.

Technical assistance is available at no cost to help you evaluate and complete a rate analysis on
your system, as well as completing the annual budget. If you are interested, please contact our
office for information.

46. Vulnerability Assessment/Emergency Response Plan (VA/ERP) - You will be required to

submit a certification to the servicing office every three years that the VA/ERP is current and covers
all sites related to the facility. The documents themselves are not submitted to the Agency. The
VA/ERP must address potential impacts from natural disasters and other emergency events. In
particular, it should include plans to address impacts of flash flooding in areas where severe drought
or wildfires occur. The documents should be reviewed and updated every three years at a
minimum.

47. Insurance. You will be required to maintain insurance on the facility and employees as
previously described in this letter for the life of the loan.

48. Statutory and National Policy Requirements — As a recipient of Federal funding, you are
required to comply with U.S. statutory and public policy requirements, including but not limited to:

a. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 — Under Section 504 of the Rehabilitation
Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. 794), no handicapped individual in the United States
shall, solely by reason of their handicap, be excluded from participation in, be denied the
benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving
Agency financial assistance.

Page 14 0f 23



b. Civil Rights Act of 1964 — All borrowers are subject to, and facilities must be operated in
accordance with, Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq.) and 7
CFR 1901, Subpart E, particularly as it relates to conducting and reporting of compliance
reviews. Instruments of conveyance for loans subject to the Act must contain the covenant
required by Paragraph 1901.202(e) of this Title.

c. The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990 — This Act (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.)
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability in employment, State and local
government services, public transportation, public accommodations, facilities, and
telecommunications.

d. Age Discrimination Act of 1975 — This Act (42 U.S.C. 6101 et seq.) provides that no
person in the United States shall on the basis of age, be excluded from participation in, be
denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity
receiving Federal financial assistance.

e. Limited English Proficiency (LEP) under Executive Order 13166 - LEP statutes and
authorities prohibit exclusion from participation in, denial of benefits of, and discrimination
under Federally-assisted and/or conducted programs on the ground of race, color, or national
origin. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 covers program access for LEP persons.
LEP persons are individuals who do not speak English as their primary language and who
have a limited ability to read, speak, write, or understand English. These individuals may be
entitled to language assistance, free of charge. You must take reasonable steps to ensure that
LEP persons receive the language assistance necessary to have meaningful access to USDA
programs, services, and information your organization provides. These protections are
pursuant to Executive Order 13166 entitled, “Improving Access to Services by Persons with
Limited English Proficiency” and further affirmed in the USDA Departmental Regulation
4330-005, “Prohibition Against National Origin Discrimination Affecting Persons with
Limited English Proficiency in Programs and Activities Conducted by USDA.”

Agency financial programs must be extended without regard to race, color, religion, sex, national
origin, marital status, age, or physical or mental handicap. You must display posters (provided by
the Agency) informing users of these requirements, and the Agency will monitor your compliance
with these requirements during regular compliance reviews.

49. Compliance Reviews and Data Collection — The Agency will conduct regular compliance

reviews of the borrower and its operation in accordance with 7 CFR Part 1901, Subpart E, and 36
CFR 1191, Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Accessibility Guidelines for Buildings and
Facilities; Architectural Barriers Act (ABA) Accessibility Guidelines. Compliance reviews will
typically be conducted in conjunction with the security inspections described in this letter. If
beneficiaries (users) are required to complete an application or screening for the use of the facility
or service that you provide, you must request and collect data by race (American Indian or Alaska
Native, Asian, Black or African American, White); ethnicity (Hispanic or Latino, Not Hispanic or
Latino); and by sex. The Agency will utilize this data as part of the required compliance review.

SECTION VIII - RE - C
Non-compliance with the conditions in this letter or requirements of your security documents will

be addressed under the provisions of 7 CFR 1782 and other applicable regulations, statutes, and
policies.

Page 15 of 23



We look forward to working with you to complete this project. [f you have any questions, please
contact Lisa Goodfellow, Community Programs Specialist at 775-887-1222 ext. 114 or by e-mail at

Lisa.Goodfellow@nv.usda.gov

Sincerely,

Lol Lpuet

Cheryl Couch

Community Programs Director

Attachments

cc:  Sarah Adler, State Director Nevada via email only sarah.adler@ny.usda.gov

USDA Rural Development
Pat Whitten, County Manager via email only at pwhitten@storeycounty.org
Storey County
Hugh Gallagher, Comptroller via email only at hgallagher@storeycounty.org
Storey County
Cherie Nevin, Storey County via email only at cnevin@storeycounty.org
David A. Pringle, Auditor via email only at dpacpaltd@gmail.com
Keith Loomis via email only at kloomis@storeycounty.org
Deputy District Attorney, Storey County
Kendra Follett, Bond Counsel via email only kfollett@shermanhoward.com
Sherman & Howard, LLC
Lucas Tipton, P.E. via email only Lucas@FarrWestEngineering.com

Farr West Engineering

Page 16 of 23



FORMS and BULLETINS:

Form RD 440-24, “Position Fidelity Schedule Bond™

Form RD 442-2, “Statement of Budget, Income and Equity” — not attached
Form RD 442-3, “Balance Sheet” — not attached

Form RD 442-7, “Operating Budget” — not attached

Form RD 442-20, “Right-of-Way Easement”

Form RD 442-21, “Right-of-Way Certificate”

Form RD 442-22, “Opinion of Counsel Relative to Rights-of-Way”
Form RD 1927-9, “Preliminary Title Opinion”

Form RD 1927-10, “Final Title Opinion™

Form RD 1940-1, “Request for Obligation of Funds”

Form RD 1942-46, “Letter of Intent to Meet Conditions”

Form RD 3550-28, “Authorization Agreement for Preauthorized Payments” — not attached

SF 3881, “ACH Vendor/Miscellaneous Payment Enrollment Form”

RUS Bulletin 1780-26, “Guidance for the Use of EJCDC Documents on Water and Waste Projects

with RUS Financial Assistance”
RUS Bulletin 1780-27, “Loan Resolution (Public Bodies)”
NV 1780 Guide 8 — User Documentation
NV 1780 Guide 12 — Vulnerability Assessment
NV 180 Guide 24 — Graduation Certification
NV 1780 Guide 31 — Conflict of Interest Policy

Page 17 of 23



Appendix A
2 CFR Part 25

SYSTEM FOR AWARD MANAGEMENT AND UNIVERSAL IDENTIFIER REQUIREMENTS

A. Requirement for System for Award Management

Unless you are exempted from this requirement under 2 CFR 25.110, you as the recipient must
maintain the currency of your information in the SAM until you submit the final financial report
required under this award or receive the final payment, whichever is later. This requires that you
review and update the information at least annually after the initial registration, and more
frequently if required by changes in your information or another appendix.

B. Requirement for unique entity identifier

If you are authorized to make subawards under this award, you:

1.

Must notify potential subrecipients that no entity (see definition in paragraph C of this
appendix) may receive a subaward from you unless the entity has provided its unique
entity identifier to you.

2. May not make a subaward to an entity unless the entity has provided its unique entity
identifier to you.
C. Definitions

For purposes of this appendix:

I=

Page 18 of 23

System for Award Management (SAM) means the Federal repository into which an
entity must provide information required for the conduct of business as a recipient.
Additional information about registration procedures may be found at the SAM Internet
site (currently at hitp:/www.sam.gov).

Unique entity identifier means the identifier required for SAM registration to uniquely
identify business entities.

Entity, as it is used in this appendix, means all of the following, as defined at 2 CFR part
25, subpart C:

A Governmental organization, which is a State, local government, or Indian Tribe;
A foreign public entity;

A domestic or foreign nonprofit organization;

A domestic or foreign for-profit organization; and

A Federal agency, but only as a subrecipient under an award or subaward to a non-
Federal entity.

cao0 o

Subaward:

a. This term means a legal instrument to provide support for the performance of any
portion of the substantive project or program for which you received this award
and that you as the recipient award to an eligible subrecipient.



b. The term does not include your procurement of property and services needed to carry
out the project or program (for further explanation, see 2 CFR 200.330).

c. A subaward may be provided through any legal agreement, including an agreement
that you consider a contract.

5. Subrecipient means an entity that:

a. Receives a subaward from you under this award; and
b. Is accountable to you for the use of the Federal funds provided by the subaward.

Page 19 of 23



Appendix B
2 CFR Part 170

Reporting Subawards and Executive Compensation

a. Reporting of first-tier subawards.

1.

Applicability. Unless you are exempt as provided in paragraph d. of this appendix, you must
report each action that obligates $25,000 or more in Federal funds that does not include
Recovery funds (as defined in section 1512(a)(2) of the American Recovery and
Reinvestment Act of 2009, Pub. L. 111-5) for a subaward to an entity (see definitions in
paragraph e. of this appendix).

Where and when to report.

i You must report each obligating action described in paragraph a.l. of this appendix
to http://www.fsrs.gov.

ii. For subaward information, report no later than the end of the month following the
month in which the obligation was made. (For example, if the obligation was made
on November 7, 2010, the obligation must be reported by no later than December 31,
2010.)

What to report. You must report the information about each obligating action listed in the
submission instructions posted at http://www.fsrs.gov.

b. Reporting Total Compensation of Recipient Executives.

1.

Applicability and what to report. You must report total compensation for each of your five
most highly compensated executives for the preceding completed fiscal year, if—

1. the total Federal funding authorized to date under this award is $25,000 or more;
il in the preceding fiscal year, you received—

(A) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenues from Federal procurement
contracts (and subcontracts) and Federal financial assistance subject to the
Transparency Act, as defined at 2 CFR 170.320 (and subawards); and

(B) $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues from Federal procurement contracts
(and subcontracts) and Federal financial assistance subject to the Transparency Act,
as defined at 2 CFR 170.320 (and subawards); and

iii. The public does not have access to information about the compensation of the
executives through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986. (To determine if the public has access to the

Page 20 of 23



compensation information, see the U.S. Security and Exchange Commission total
compensation filings at http://www.sec.gov/answers/execomp.htm.)

2. Where and when to report. You must report executive total compensation described in
paragraph b.1. of this appendix:

i As part of your registration profile at https://www.sam.gov.

ii. By the end of the month following the month in which this award is made, and
annually thereafter.

c. Reporting of Total Compensation of Subrecipient Executives.

1. Applicability and what to report. Unless you are exempt as provided in paragraph d. of this
appendix, for each first-tier subrecipient under this award, you shall report the names and
total compensation of each of the subrecipient's five most highly compensated executives for
the subrecipient's preceding completed fiscal year, if—

i in the subrecipient's preceding fiscal year, the subrecipient received—

(A) 80 percent or more of its annual gross revenues from Federal procurement contracts
(and subcontracts) and Federal financial assistance subject to the Transparency Act,
as defined at 2 CFR 170.320 (and subawards); and

(B) $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues from Federal procurement contracts
(and subcontracts), and Federal financial assistance subject to the Transparency Act
(and subawards); and

it The public does not have access to information about the compensation of the
executives through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the
Intemal Revenue Code of 1986. (To determine if the public has access to the
compensation information, see the U.S. Security and Exchange Commission total
compensation filings at http://www.sec.gov/answers/execomp.htm.)

2. Where and when to report. You must report subrecipient executive total compensation
described in paragraph c. 1. of this appendix:

i To the recipient.
ii. By the end of the month following the month during which you make the subaward.
For example, if a subaward is obligated on any date during the month of October of a
given year (i.e., between October 1 and 31), you must report any required
compensation information of the subrecipient by November 30 of that year.
d. Exemptions
If, in the previous tax year, you had gross income, from all sources, under $300,000, you are

exempt from the requirements to report:

Page 21 of 23



ii.

Subawards, and

The total compensation of the five most highly compensated executives of any
subrecipient.

e. Definitions. For purposes of this appendix:

1. Entity means all of the following, as defined in 2 CFR part 25:

1

ii.

iil.

A Governmental organization, which is a State, local government, or Indian tribe;
A foreign public entity;

A domestic or foreign nonprofit organization;

A domestic or foreign for-profit organization;

A Federal agency, but only as a subrecipient under an award or subaward to a non-
Federal entity.

2. Executive means officers, managing partners, or any other employees in management
positions.

3. Subaward:

ii.

iii.

This term means a legal instrument to provide support for the performance of any
portion of the substantive project or program for which you received this award and
that you as the recipient award to an eligible subrecipient.

The term does not include your procurement of property and services needed to carry
out the project or program (for further explanation, see Sec. _ .210 of the
attachment to OMB Circular A-133, “Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations”).

A subaward may be provided through any legal agreement, including an agreement
that you or a subrecipient considers a contract.

4. Subrecipient means an entity that:

ii.

Receives a subaward from you (the recipient) under this award; and

[s accountable to you for the use of the Federal funds provided by the subaward.

5. Total compensation means the cash and noncash dollar value earned by the executive during
the recipient's or subrecipient's preceding fiscal year and includes the following (for more
information see 17 CFR 229.402(c)(2)):

i.

Page 22 of 23

Salary and bonus.



it

iii.

iv.

vi,

Page 23 of 23

Awards of stock, stock options, and stock appreciation rights. Use the dollar amount
recognized for financial statement reporting purposes with respect to the fiscal year
in accordance with the Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123
(Revised 2004) (FAS 123R), Shared Based Payments.

Earnings for services under non-equity incentive plans. This does not include group
life, health, hospitalization or medical reimbursement plans that do not discriminate
in favor of executives, and are available generally to all salaried employees.

Change in pension value. This is the change in present value of defined benefit and
actuarial pension plans.

Above-market earnings on deferred compensation which is not tax-qualified.
Other compensation, if the aggregate value of all such other compensation (e.g.

severance, termination payments, value of life insurance paid on behalf of the
employee, perquisites or property) for the executive exceeds $10,000.



Pasition 3

Form RD 1942-46 UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE FORM APPROVED
(Rev. 6-10) RURAL DEVELOPMENT OMB NO. 0575-0015
OMB NO. 0570-0062

LETTER OF INTENT TO MEET CONDITIONS

Date 12-22-2016

TO: United States Department of Agriculture
USDA Rural Development

(Name of USDA Agency)

1390 South Curry St.
Carson City, NV 89703

(USDA Agency Office Address)

We have reviewed and understand the conditions set forth in your letter dated 12-22-2016 It is our intent to meet all of

them not later than 06-22-2017

Storey County

(Name ofAssociation)
s g it

Marshall McBride, Chairman

(Title)

According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, an ‘?my may not conduct or sponsor, and a persons is not ired to respond 10 a collection of information
unless it displays a valid OMB conirol number. The valid OMB control number for this information collection is 0575-0015 and 0570-0062. The time required lo
complete this information collection is estimated to average | hour per response, including the iime for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources,
gathering and maintaining the data. needed, and compleiling and reviewing the collection of information.

Form RD 1942-46 (Rev. 6-10)



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: August 1, 2017 Estimate of time required: 10 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ |

1. Title: Recommendation to award contract to successful bidder for the construction of the
Virginia City Sewer Improvement Project Phase II.

2. Recommended motion: [ move to award contract to the successful bidder (TBD) for the
construction of the Virginia City Sewer Improvement Project Phase II in the amount of
(TBD.)

3. Prepared by: Cherie Nevin
Department: Community Services Telephone: 847-0986

4. Staff summary: PLEASE NOTE THAT BIDS FOR THIS PROJECT WILL BE OPENED
ON 07/21/17. THE BID TABULATION SHEET WILL MADE AVAILABLE TO YOU
PRIOR TO THE COMMISSION MEETING DATE.

The project includes replacement of wastewater collection lines throughout Virginia City.

S. Supporting materials: Contract Documents are available for reference at the Commissioners
Office

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required: \u/
District Attorney
8. Reviewe :
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

@ﬁ@nty Manager Other agency review:

0. Board action:
[] Approved

[ Approved with Modifications
[1] Denied [

Continued

[S ) S

Agenda Item No.



USDA

=
United States Department of Agriculture

February 23, 2017

Marshall McBride, Chairman via: e-mail
Storey County Commissioners

P.O.Box 176

Virginia City, NV 89440

SUBJECT:  Storey County — Virginia City & Gold Hill Wastewater System Replacement —
Plans, Specification and Contract Documents Concurrence — Authorization to go
to Bid

Dear Mr. McBride:

The USDA Rural Development has reviewed the Plans and Specifications submitted to us on
February 3, 2017 and concur with the submittal. Based on our review of the Plans,
Specifications, and the Contract Documents, we hereby authorize you to go to bid on this
proposed project. Any addendum issued during the bid process must be submitted to me for
concurrence. Do not award the contract until we issue an approval to award letter,

If you have any questions, please call John Nelson at 775-887-1222 ext. 112 or email at

john.nelson4@nv.usda.gov.

Sincerely,

ohn Nelson, P.E., P.L.S.
State Engineer
USDA Rural Development (Nevada)

cc: Cherie Nevin, Storey County via: e-mail
Greg Lyman, Farr West Engineering via: e-mail
Cheryl Couch, USDA RD via: e-mail
Lucas Tipton, Farr West Engineering via: e-mail

Rural Development  Nevada State Office
1390 South Curry Street « Carson City, NV 88705
Voice 775.887.1222 + Fax 855.816.1209

USDA Is an equal opportunity provider, employer and lender.



ARTICLE 3 — BIDDER’S REPRESENTATIONS

3.1 In submitting this Bid, Bidder represents that:

A. Bidder has examined and carefully studied the Bidding Documents, and any data a‘nd
reference items identified in the Bidding Documents, and hereby acknowledges receipt of
the following Addenda:

Addendum No. Addendum, Date
Addendum 1 June 16, 2017 Addendum 5 7/20/17
Addendum 2 June 25, 2017 APGADUN S /IS0 07/26/’ 7
Addendum 3 June 26, 2017
Addendum 4 July 13, 2017

B. Bidder has visited the Site, conducted a thorough, alert visual examination of the Site and
adjacent areas, and become familiar with and satisfied itself as to the general, local, and
Site conditions that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work.

C. Bidder is familiar with and has satisfied itself as to all Laws and Regulations that may affect
cost, progress, and performance of the Work.

D. Bidder has carefully studied all: (1) reports of explorations and tests of subsurface
conditions at or adjacent to the Site and all drawings of physical conditions relating to
existing surface or subsurface structures at the Site that have been identified in the
Supplementary Conditions, especially with respect to Technical Data in such reports and
drawings, and (2) reports and drawings relating to Hazardous Environmental Conditions, If
any, at or adjacent to the Site that have been identified in the Supplementary Conditions,
especially with respect to Technical Data in such reports and drawings.

E. Bidder has considered the information known to Bidder itself; information commonly
known to contractors doing business in the locality of the Site; information and
observations obtained from visits to the Site; the Bidding Documents; and any Site-related
reports and drawings identified in the Bidding Documents, with respect to the effect of
such information, observations, and documents on (1) the cost, progress, and performance
of the Work; (2) the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of
construction to be employed by Bidder; and (3) Bidder’s safety precautions and programs.

F. Bidder agrees, based on the information and observations referred to in the preceding
paragraph, that no further examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, or data
are necessary for the determination of this Bid for performance of the Work at the price bid
and within the times required, and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of
the Bidding Documents.

G. Bidder is aware of the general nature of work to be performed by Owner and others at the
Site that relates to the Work as indicated in the Bidding Documents.

H. Bidder has given Engineer written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or
discrepancies that Bidder has discovered in the Bidding Documents, and confirms that the
written resolution thereof by Engineer is acceptable to Bidder.

I.  The Bidding Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of all
terms and conditions for the performance and furnishing of the Work.

EJCDC® C-410, Bid Form for Construction Contracts.
Copyright © 2013 Natlonal Society of Professional Engineers, American Councll of Engineering Companies,
and Amerlcan Society of Civil Engineers, All rights reserved,  Page 2




The submission of this Bid constitutes an incontrovertible representation by Bidder that
Bidder has complied with every requirement of this Article, and that without exception the
Bid and all prices in the Bid are premised upon performing and furnishing the Work
required by the Bidding Documents.

ARTICLE 4 — BIDDER'S CERTIFICATION

4.1 Bidder certifies that:

A

This Bid is genuine and not made in the interest of or on behalf of any undisclosed
individual or entity and is not submitted in conformity with any collusive agreement or
rules of any group, association, organization, or corporation;

Bidder has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other Bidder to submit a false
or sham Bid;

Bidder has not solicited or induced any individual or entity to refrain from bidding; and

Bidder has not engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, or coercive practices in competing
for the Contract. For the purposes of this Paragraph 4.01.D:

1. “corrupt practice” means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting of anything of
value likely to influence the action of a public official in the bidding process;

2. “fraudulent practice” means an intentional misrepresentation of facts made (a) to
influence the bidding process to the detriment of Owner, (b) to establish bid prices at
artificial non-competitive levels, or (c) to deprive Owner of the benefits of free and
open competition;

3.  “collusive practice” means a scheme or arrangement between two or more Bidders,
with or without the knowledge of Owner, a purpose of which is to establish bid prices
at artificial, non-competitive levels; and

4. ‘“coercive practice” means harming or threatening to harm, directly or indirectly,
persons or their property to influence their participation in the bidding process or
affect the e execution of the Contract.

ARTICLE 5 — BASIS OF BID
5.1 Bidder will complete the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents for the following

price(s):

BASE BID SCHEDULE

l:f:.' Description Eg;';?::yd Unit | Unit Price A"I;%la‘I{
I A I V-2 el
2 | 8"PVC SDR-35 Pipe Nl 4,2&?‘” LF | § $
3| Type 1-A 48" Sewer Maphqai(5__— EA |$ $
4 | Type 1-B 48" Sewer M&nHole 2 EA [$ $
e Type Il (Drop).48"and 60" Sewer : EA | g s
Manhel
6.~ Type V 60" Sewer Manhole 2 EA | $ $
~ 7 Abandon Sewer Manhole 17 EA | § $

EJCDC® C-410, Bid Form for Construction Contracts.
Copyright ® 2013 Natlonal Saclety of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Soclety of Clvil Engineers. All rights reserved,

Page 3




Remove and Dispose of Existing
. Asbestos Concrete Pipe 1,300 LF |$ $ /
Sewer Service Connection with i
0 Cleanout 367 EA $‘A6|ﬂ,//$/
10 | 3" AC Patch Paving 393,980 WORN-® —  |$
11 | 4" AC Patch Paving 86,00 || S8 $
12 | Striping and Pavement Marking > 1V2ALS |$ $
Water Main Vertical Realignment 6 (&)
13| (Contingent Item) o /A EA | $ 3
14__| Final Soils Placement (ContingepiAt€m) | 20,000 | CY |§ $
15 | Traffic Control g 1 LS | s $
16 BMP and StormwaterProtection 1 LS [ $ $
17 | Over Excavation (Contingent Item) 250 cY | $ $
18 | Jack and Bore 22 | EA |$ $
19 _|-Concrete Restoration (Contingent Item) 1,000 SF | $ $
/26' Rock Excavation (Contingent Item) 100 Cy | § $
TOTAL BASE BID (Items 1-20) PRICE - § (without alternates)
$
In Words
BID ALTERNATE A - NORTHWEST CORNER OF SYSTEM
Item , Estimated : Total
No. Description Quantity l.injt Pﬁnit P ? i b’u{
A1 | 8" PVC SDR-35 Pipe 5,349 A LIS\ - $
A2 | Type 1-A 48" Sewer Manhole . f&(ﬁlﬁ"‘ $ $
Sewer Service Connection with 4> -
A3 | Cleanout / s =l b g
A4 | 3"AC Palch Paving™ 53744 | SF [$ $
Remevsand Dispose of Existing
_PE 'fsbestos Concrete Pipe =40 LF 19 $
TOTAL ALTERNATE A BID (Items A1-AS5) PRICE - $ (without base bid)
$
In Words
BID ALTERNATE B — EASTERN INTERCEPTOR
Item Estimated ; ; Total
No. Description Quantity U%t / imwl _AmBunt
B1 | 8" PVC SDR-35 Pipe 5886 DT/ IS |3
B2 | Type 1-A 48" Sewer Manhole (4T 26T LF |8 $
Type Ill (Drop) 48" and 60" Sewer.-
= Manhole L EA IS $
B4 | Sewer Sevice Connection with Cleanout 22 EA | $ $
B5| 3" AC Patch Paving 24,312 SF [ § $

EJCDC® C-410, Bld Form for Construction Contracts.
Copyrlght © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civll Engineers. All rights reserved. Page 4




B6 |[NDOTACPatchPaving ., _ aAV/DEYG[DSF | $ y$
B7 | NDOT Grind and 0ver|a;h(3_(j__JE_L-'—éf.24ﬁ—;"SF‘ $ $
__B8-—{-Jackand Bore - 27| | EA [$ $
TOTAL ALTERNATE B BID (Items B1-B8) PRICE - $ (without base bid)

In Words

Bidder acknowledges that (1) each Bid Unit Price includes an amount considered by Bidder to be
adequate to cover Contractor’s overhead and profit for each separately identified item, and (2)
estimated quantities are not guaranteed, and are solely for the purpose of comparison of Bids,
and final payment for all unit price Bid items will be based on actual quantities, determined as
provided in the Contract Documents.

Unit Prices have been computed in accordance with Paragraph 13.03.B of the General Conditions.

The requirements of Nevada Revised Statues (NRS) shall apply to this project. The BIDDER is
responsible for compliance with all applicable statues. These statutes include, but are not
limited to:

A. NRS 338.020: Hourly and daily rate of wages must not be less than prevailing wage in
County.

B. NRS338.080: Exemptions

C. NRS338.141: Bids to include certain information concerning subcontractors; requirements
for substitution of named subcontracts.

D. NRS338.147: Award of Contract to Contractor who submits best bid.

ARTICLE 6 = TIME OF COMPLETION

6.1 Bidder agrees that the Work will be substantially complete and will be completed and ready for
final payment in accordance with Paragraph 15.06 of the General Conditions on or before the
dates or within the number of calendar days indicated in the Agreement.

6.2 Bidder accepts the provisions of the Agreement as to Liquidated Damages.

ARTICLE 7 = ATTACHMENTS TO THIS BID

7.1 The following documents are submitted with and made a condition of this Bid:
A. Required Bid security in the form of a Bid Bond (EJCDC C-430);

B. List of all first-tier subcontractors and name of the prime contractor (Section 00440). This
shall include both the “5% Subcontractor List” and the “1% Subcontractor List”, within the
required timeframe per NRS Chapter 338.141;

C. Required Bidder Qualifications Statement with supporting data including List of Project
References (EJCDC C-451);

D. Evidence of authority to do business in Storey County and the State of Nevada;

EJCDC® C-410, Bid Form for Construction Contracts.
Copyright © 2013 National Soclety of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers, All rights reserved. Page 5




E. Signed EEQ Compliance Statement (Section 00460);

F. Signed USDA Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary
Exclusion (Section 00470);

G. Signed Certification for Contracts, Grants and Loans (Form 1940-Q) (Section 00480);

H. Signed Contractor’s Waiver (Section 00490); and

. Contractor's License No.. 0023739

(may be combined with another attachment).

ARTICLE 8 ~ DEFINED TERMS

8,01  The terms used in this Bid with initial capital letters have the meanings stated in the Instructions
to Bidders, the General Conditions, and the Supplementary Conditions,

EICDC® C-410, Bid Form for Construction Contracts.
Copyright ® 2013 National Society of Professional Enginears, American Council of Engineering Companles,
and Amaerlcan Saclety of Clvil Engineers, All rights reserved. Paga 6




ARTICLE 5 -

Ames Construction

BASIS OF BID

7121/17

5.1 Bidder will complete the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents for the following price(s):
BASE BID SCHEDULE

Item No. Description - Estimated |[Unit Unit Price Total Amount
Quantity
1 Mobilization/Demobilization (not to exceed 5% of 1 LS $628,710.00 $528,710.00
the base bid)
2 8" PVC SDR-35 Pipe 43,787 LF $112.50 | $4,926,037.50
3 Type 1-A 48" Sewer Manhole 192 EA $9,300.00 $1,785,600.00
4 Type 1-B 48" Sewer Manhole 2 EA $6,400.00 $12,800.00
5 Type Il (Drop) 48" and 80" Sewer Manhole 9 EA $17,900.00 $161,100.00
6 Type V 60” Sewer Manhole 2 EA $42,000.00 $84,000,00
7 Abandon Sewer Manhole 17 EA $760.00 $12,920.00
8 Remove and Dispose of Existing Asbestos 1,300 LF $50.00 $65,000.00
Concrete Plpe
9 Sewer Service Connection with Cleanout 367 EA $2,400.00 $880,800.00
10 3" AC Patch Paving 303,980 SF $2.70 $1,063,746.00
11 4" AC Patch Paving 86,032 SF $3.20 $275,302.40
12 Striping and Pavement Marking 1 LS $57,400.00 $57,400.00
13 Water Main Vertical Realignment (Contingent 30 EA $5,435.00 $163,050.00
Item)
14 Final Soils Placement (Contingent Item) 20,000 CY $8.90 $178,000.00
15 Traffic Control 1 LS $278,500.00 $278,500.00
16 BMP and Stormwater Protection 1 LS $20,500.00 $20,500.00
17 Over Excavation (Contingent [tem) 250 cY $21.40 $5,350.00
18 Jack and Bore 3 EA $59,320.00 $177,960.00
19 Concrete Restoration (Contingent ltem) 1,000 SF $6.00 $6,000.00
20 Rock Excavation (Contingent ltem) 100 CcY $110.00 $11,000.00
TOTAL BASE BID (Items 1-20) (without alternates) ) $10,693,775.90

In Words $ Ten Million-Six Hundred Ninty Nine Thousand-Sixty Five Dollars and Ninety Cents.

BID ALTERNATE A — NORTHWEST CORNER OF SYSTEM

Iltem No. Description Estimated |Unit Unit Price Total: Amount
Quantity ;
A1l 8" PVC SDR-35 Pipe 5,349 LF $93.00 $497,457.00
A2 Type 1-A 48" Sewer Manhole 27 EA $8,850.00 $238,950.00
A3 Sewer Service Connection with Cleanout 45 EA $2,236.00 $100,620.00
A4 3" AC Patch Paving 53,744 SF $2.30 $123,611.20
A5 Remove and Dispose of Existing Asbestos 440 LF $50.00 $22,000.00
Concrete Pipe
TOTAL ALTERNATE A BID (ltems A1-A5) (without base bid) $982,638.20

In Words $ Nine Hundred Eighty Two Thousand-Six Hundred Thirty Eight Dollars and Twenty Cents.




Ames Construction

7217117
BID ALTERNATE B — EASTERN INTERCEPTOR
Item Description Estimated Unit Unit Price Total Amount
No. Quantity
B1 8" PVC SDR-35 Pipe 5,886 LF $90.00 $529,740.00
B2 Type 1-A 48" Sewer Manhole 26 LF $8,900.00 $231,400.00
B3  |Type lll (Drop) 48" and 60" Sewer Manhole 1 EA $11,900.00 $11,000.00
B4  |Sewer Service Connection with Cleanout 22 EA $2,470.00 $54,340.00
BS |3" AC Patch Paving 24,312 SF $2.60 $63,211.20
B6 |NDOT AC Patch Paving 2,818 SF $10.90 $30,716.20
B7 |NDOT Grind and Overlay 9,244 SF $6.75 $62,397.00
B8 |Jack and Bore 2 EA $88,210.00 $176,420.00
TOTAL ALTERNATE B BID (ltems B1-B8) (without base bid) $1,160,124.40

in Words $ One Million-One Hundred Sixty Thousand-One Hundred Twenty I'our Dollars and Fourty Cents.




ARTICLE 9 - BID SUBMITTAL

BIDDER: [Indicate correct name of bidding entity]

Ames Construction, Inc.

By: ., —;
[Signature] —~— =% s )
[Printed name] John Tripi, Ir. /Vice Pﬁ?id t of Engineering

- — — ——
(If Bidder is a corporation, a limited liability company, a partnership, or a joint venture, attach
evidence of authority to sign.)

s\ MoK 00k

) Michelle Tacke
[Printed name]

, Procurement Coordinator
Title:

Submittal Date: 7/21/17

Address for giving notices:

Ames Construction, Inc.

3737 West 2100 South

West Valley City, Utah 84120

Telephone Number: 801-977-8012

-977-8059
Fax Number: SOASINES

Contact Name and e-mail address: John Tripi, Jr.

Johntripi@amesco.com

Bidder’s License No.: 0023739

(where applicable)

EJCDC® C-410, Bld Form for Construction Contracts,
Copyright © 2013 Natlonal Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companles,
and Amerlcan Soclety of Civil Engineers, All rights reserved,  Page 7




LICDC=

TR I SELRH YOS CRL IR

PENAL SUM FORM

BID BOND

Any singular reference to Bidder, Surety, Owner or other party shall be considered plural where applicable.

BIDDER (Name and Address):

Ames Construction, Inc.
3737 West 2100 South
West Valley City, UT 84120

SURETY (Name, and Address of Principal Place of Business):

Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America
One Tower Square
Hartford, CT 06183

OWNER (Name and Address):
Storey County
PO Box 435
Virginia City, NV 89440
BID
Bid Due Date: July 21, 2017

Description (Project Name— Include Location): Virginia City and Gold Hill Wastewater Improvement Project;
Virginia City, Nevada

BOND
Bond Number: Bid Bond
Date:  July 21,2017
Penal sum Five Percent (5%) of Total Amount Bid $ 5%

(Words) (Figures)
Surety and Bidder, intending to be legally bound hereby, subject to the terms set forth below, do each cause
this Bid Bond to be duly executed by an authorized officer, agent, or representative.

BIDDER SURETY
&mes Construction, Inc. Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of

(Se America (Sea:)

Bidder’'s Name and Corporate Seal Sureyga nd orporate Seal

Signature S nature (Attach Power of Attorney)

Michael J. Kellen John E. Tauer

Print Name Print Name

Secretary/Chief Financial Officer Attorney-in-Fact

Title Title
Attest: /(,a/)ll "\M Attest: Q—;’”’“ T~

Signature Signature B

. Surety Account Representative
Title Title

Note: Addresses are to be used for giving any required notice.
Provide execution by any additional parties, such as joint venturers, if necessary.

EJCDC® C-430, Bid Bond (Penal Sum Form), Published 2013.
Prepared by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.
Page 1 of 2




EJICDCES PENAL SUM FORM

LARUREAS COUTIEE

1. Bidder and Surety, jointly and severally, bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and
assigns to pay to Owner upon default of Bidder the penal sum set forth on the face of this Bond. Payment of the
penal sum is the extent of Bidder's and Surety’s liability. Recovery of such penal sum under the terms of this Bond
shall be Owner’s sole and exclusive remedy upon default of Bidder,

2. Default of Bidder shall occur upon the fallure of Bidder to deliver within the time required by the Bidding
Documents {or any extension thereof agreed to In writing by Owner) the executed Agreement required by the Bldding
Documents and any performance and payment bonds required by the Bidding Documents.

3. This obligatlon shall be null and void if:

3.1 Owner accepts Bidder’s Bld and Bldder delivers within the time required by the Bidding Documents (or any
extenslon thereof agreed to in writing by Ownert} the executed Agreement required by the Bidding
Documents and any performance and payment bonds requlired by the Bidding Documents, or

3.2 All Bids are rejected by Owner, or

33 Owner fails to issue a Notice of Award to Bidder within the time specified in the Bldding Documents {or any
extension thereof agreed to In writing by Bidder and, if applicable, consented to by Surety when requlred
by Paragraph S hereof),

4. Payment under this Bond will be due and payable upon default of Bidder and within 30 calendar days after
recelpt by Bldder and Surety of written notice of default from Owner, which notice wlill be given with reasonable
promptness, Identifying this Bond and the Project and including a statement of the amount due.

5. Surety walves notice of any and all defenses based on or arising out of any time extension to Issue Notice of
Award agreed to In writing by Owner and Bldder, provided that the total time for issuing Notlce of Award including
extensions shall not In the aggregate exceed 120 days from the Bid due date without Surety’s written consent.

6. No suit or action shall be commenced under this Bond prior to 30 calendar days after the notice of default
required In Paragraph 4 above is received by Bidder and Surety and in nc case later than one year after the Bid due
date.

7. Any suit or action under this Bond shall be commenced only in a court of competent jurisdiction located in the
state in which the Project is located.

8. Notices required hereunder shall be in writing and sent to Bidder and Surety at their respective addresses shown
on the face of this Bond. Such notices may be sent by personal delivery, commercial courier, or by United States
Registered or Certified Mail, return receipt requested, postage pre-paid, and shall be deemed to be effective upon
receipt by the party concerned.

9. Surety shall cause to be attached to this Bond a current and effective Power of Attorney evidencing the authority
of the officer, agent, or representative who executed this Bond on behalf of Surety to execute, seal, and deliver such
Bond and bind the Surety thereby.

10. This Bond Is intended to conform to all applicable statutory requirements. Any applicable requirement of any
applicable statute that has been omitted from this Bond shall be deemed to be included herein as if set forth at
length. If any provision of this Bond conflicts with any applicable statute, then the provision of said statute shall
govern and the remalnder of this Bond that is not in conflict therewlth shall continue in full force and effect,

1. The term “Bid” as used herein includes a Bid, offer, or proposal as applicable.

EJCDC® C-430, Bid Bond {Penal Sum Form), Published 2013.
Prepared by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee,
Page 2 of 2




CORPORATE ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Stale of__Minnesota )
) ss
Counly of Dakota )
On this 21st day of July 2017 before me appeared Michael J. Kellen
to me personally known, who, being by me duly sworn, did say that he/she is the_Secretary/Chief Financial Offlcer
of Ames Construction, Inc. , a carporation, that the seal affixed to the

foregoing instrument is the corporate seal of said corporation, and that said instrument was executed in
behalf of said corporation by authority of its Board of Directors, and that said Michael J. Kellen
acknowledged said instrument to he the free act and deed pf said corporatlon

(AN e

Notary Public N J\' oy County, i\)/f
AMlEJ KRAU%O My commission expires 3
: GTARY PUBLIC- MINN
& Myr::omm‘ssm Expires an. 31,2020
SURETY ACKNOWLEDGMENT
State of Minnesota
) 8s

County of Hennepin )

On this _21st __ day of July 2017 | pefore me appeared John E. Tauer "
to me personally know, who being by me duly sworn, did say that (s)he is the Attorney-in-Fact of
Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America , a corporation, that the seal

affixed to the foregoing instrument is the corporate seal of said corporation and that said instrument was
executed in behalf of said corporation by authority of its Board of Directors; and that said
John E. Tauer acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and deed of said corporation.

RAAAN A " &/‘j
gy LIN ULVEN e

.w%'_é NOTARY PUBLIC - MINNESOTA

%.# My Commission Expires Notary Public Ramsey County, Minnesota
s January 31, 2020 y o

WAMAMAMAMAMAMAMAMMAMAMANNY 1t My commission expires 1/31/2020




A
TRAVELERS]

POWER OF ATTORNEY
Farmington Casualty Company §t. Paul Mercury Insurance Company
Fldelity and Guaranty Insurance Company Travelers Casualty and Surety Company
Fidelity and Guaranty Insurance Underwriters, Ing, Travelers Casualty and Surely Company of Amerlca
. Paul Fire and Marlne Insurance Company Unlted States Fldelity and Guaranty Company
S, Paul Guardlan [nsurance Company
Attorney-In-Facl No, 231753
Surety Bond No, or Project Description: Virginia City and Gold Hill Princlpal: Ames Construction, Inc.

Wastowater Improvement Project; Virginia City, Nevada
Obligee: Storey County

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That Farmington Casualty Company, St. Paul Fire end Marine Insurance Company, St. Paul Guardian
lnsurance Company, St, Paul Mercury Insurance Company, Travelers Casually and Surety Company, Travolers Casually and Surety Company of
Amerlca, and Unlted States Fidollty and Guaranty Company are corporations duly organized under the laws of the State of Connectleut, that Fidelity and
Guaranty Insurance Company Is a corporation duly organized under lhe laws of the Stale of lowa, and thal Fldelity and Guaranty Insurance
Underwrlters, Inc. Is a corporatlon duly erganized under the laws of the State of Wisconsin (herein collectively called the "Companles®), and that the
Companles do hereby make, constitute and appolnt John E. Tauer, R. W, Frank, Craig Remick, Rachel Thomas, Nicole Stillings, Joshua R.
Loftis, Brian J. Oestrelch, Sandra M. Doze, Jerome T. Quimet, Kurt C, Lundblad, Melinda C. Blodgett, R. C. Bowman, R. Scotl Egginion,
Ted R, Jorgensen, Emlly Kelser, and Lin Ulven of the Clty of Minneapolis State of Minnesota, thelr true and lawful Attorney(s)-in-Fact, each in
lhelr separate capacity If more than one Is named above, to sign, execute, seal and acknowledge eny and all bonds, recognizances, conditional
undertakings and olher wrltings obllgatory In the nature thereof on behalf of the Companles In their business of guaranteelng the fidelity of persons,
guaranteolng the performance of contracts and executing or guaranteelng bonds and undertakings requlted or permitted In any acllons or proceedings
allowad by law.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Companles have caused thls inslrument to be slgned and thelr corporate seals to be hereto affixed, this 30th day of
January, 2017,

Farmington Casualty Company Sl. Pau! Morcury Insurance Company

[Adelity and Guaranty Insurance Company Travelers Casvalty and Surety Company

Fidelity and Guaranty Insurance Underwtrilors, Inc. Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America
St. Paul Fire and Marine Insurance Company Unlted States Fldelity and Guaranty Company

Sl, Paul Cuardlan |nsurance Company

State of Conneclicut . -

By:
Cily of Harlford ss. Robert L. Raney, Senior Vice Prosident

On this the 30th day of January, 2017, before me personally appeared Robort L. Raney, who acknowledged himsolf to be the Senlor Vice President
of Farminglon Casualty Company, Fidelity and Guaranly Insurance Company, Fldellty and Guaranty Insurance Underwrlters, Inc,, St. Paul Fire and
Marlne Insurance Company, Sl. Paul Guardian Insurance Company, Si. Paul Mercury Insurance Company, Travelers Casually and Suroty Company,
Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of Ametlea, and United States Fldellty and Guaranty Company, and that he, as such, belng authorized so to do,
exacuted the foregolng instrument for the purposes therein contalned by signing on behalf of the corporatlons by himself as a duly authorized offlcer.

o ¢ ATatantt

Marle C. Tetreaull, Naotary Public

In Witness Whereof, | hereunto sol my hand and offlclal soal.

My Commisslon explres the 30th day of June, 2021.




=
E};“[C{?Cﬁ PENAL SUM FORM
DOCUMENTE COMMITIEE

BID BOND

Any singular reference to Bidder, Surety, Owner or other party shall be considered plural where applicable.

BIDDER (Name and Address):

SURETY (Name, and Address of Principal Place of Business):

OWNER (Name and Address}:

BID
Bid Due Date:
Description (Project Name— Include Location):

BOND
Bond Number:
Date:
Penal sum $

(Words) (Figures)
Surety and Bidder, intending to be legally bound hereby, subject to the terms set forth below, do each cause
this Bid Bond to be duly executed by an authorized officer, agent, or representative,

BIDDER SURETY
(Seal) (Seal)
Bidder’s Name and Corporate Seal Surety’s Name and Corporate Seal
By: By:
Signature Signature {Attach Power of Attorney)
Print Name Print Name
Title Title
Attest: Attest:
Signature Signature
Title Title

Note: Addresses are to be used for giving any required notice,
Provide execution by any additional partles, such as joint venturers, if necessary.

EJCDC® C-430, Bid Bond (Penal Sum Form). Published 2013,
Prepared by the Englnaers Jalnt Contract Documents Committee.
Pagelof2




< =
L}SQ%—;—Q PENAL SUM FORM
1. Bldder and Surety, Jointly and severally, bind themselves, thelr heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and
assigns to pay to Owner upon default of Bidder the penal sum set forth on the face of this Bond, Payment of the
penal sum is the extent of Bidder’s and Surety’s liability. Recovery of such penal sum under the terms of this Bond
shall be Owner’s sole and exclusive remedy upon default of Bidder.

2. Default of Bidder shall occur upon the failure of Bidder to deliver within the time required by the Bidding
Documents (or any extenslon thereof agreed to in writing by Owner) the executed Agreement required by the Bidding
Documents and any performance and payment bonds required by the Bidding Documents.

3. This obligatlon shall be null and void if:

3.1 Owner accepts Bidder’s Bid and Bidder delivers within the time required by the Bidding Documents (or any
extension thereof agreed to in writing by Owner) the executed Agreement required by the Bidding
Documents and any performance and payment bonds required by the Bidding Documents, or

3.2 Al Bids are reJected by Owner, or

3,3 Owner fails to Issue a Notice of Award to Bidder within the time specified in the Bidding Documents (or any
extenslon thereof agreed to in wrlting by Bldder and, if applicable, consented to by Surety when required
by Paragraph 5 hereof},

4. Payment under this Bond will be due and payable upon default of Bidder and within 30 calendar days after
receipt by Bidder and Surety of written notice of default from Owner, which notice will be given with reasonable
promptness, ldentifying this Bond and the Project and including a statement of the amount due.

5. Surety walves notice of any and all defenses based on or arising out of any time extension to issue Notice of
Award agreed to In writing by Owner and Bidder, provided that the total time for issuing Notice of Award including
extensions shall not in the aggregate exceed 120 days from the Bid due date without Surety’s written consent.

6. No sult or action shall be commenced under this Bond prior to 30 calendar days after the notice of default
required in Paragraph 4 above s received by Bidder and Surety and In no case later than one year after the Bid due
date.

7. Any suit or action under this Bond shall be commenced only in a court of competent jurisdiction located in the
state in which the Project is located.

8. Notlces required hereunder shall be in writing and sent to Bldder and Surety at their respective addresses shown
on the face of this Bond. Such notices may be sent by personal delivery, commerclal courier, or by United States
Registered or Certified Mail, return receipt requested, postage pre-paid, and shall be deemed to be effective upon
recelpt by the party concerned.

9. Surety shall cause to be attached to this Bond a current and effective Power of Attorney evidencing the authority
of the officer, agent, or representative who executed this Bond on behalf of Surety to execute, seal, and deliver such
Bond and bind the Surety thereby.

10. This Bond Is intended to conform to all applicable statutory requirements. Any applicable requirement of any
applicable statute that has been omitted from this Bond shall be deemed to be included herein as If set forth at
length. If any provision of this Bond conflicts with any applicable statute, then the provision of sald statute shall
govern and the remainder of this Bond that is not in conflict therewlth shall continue in full force and effect.

11. The term “Bid” as used herein includes a Bid, offer, or proposal as applicable.

EJCDC® C-430, Bld Bond (Penal Sum Form). Published 2013,
Prepared by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.
Page2of 2




5% SUBCONTRACTOR LIST

Per NRS Provision 338.141, each Bid submitted must include the name of the prime contractor and each
first tier subcontractor who will provide labor or a portion of the Work on the public work to the prime
contractor for which the first tier subcontractor will be paid an amount exceeding five (5) percent of the
prime contractor’s total bid.

If a Bidder fails to provide a complete list, their Bid shall be deemed not responsive. Subcontractors must
not be on a disqualified status with the State Public Works Board.

Listed hereinafler is the list of the prime contractor and first tier subcontractors who will be employed and
the scgregation of the Work each will perform if the Contract is awarded to the party or parties listed
herein.

First tier subcontractor is defined as a contractor who contracts directly with a prime contractor to provide
labor, materials, or services for a construction project. NRS 338.141(8)(a).

Work to be Performed Percentage Subcontractor’s Name, Address, and License
of Total Number
Contract
L ALC BRI N7 (Prime Contractor)
; H473| Bires EmsthucTos, 7S,
SWRENTRACT D 2725 ] 210 e
Wes7 UL&Lu.», ci7y, uT S4126  “L3BY
2. (Subcontractor)
3. (Subcontractor)
4. (Subcontractor)
Sa (Subcontractor)
6. (Subcontractor)

NOTE: Additional numbered pages may be attached if needed,

Starey County 00440-1 FWE #983
Virginia City and Gold Hill Wastewater Improvement Project Subcontractor Lists Contract Documents (June 2017)




1% SUBCONTRACTOR LIST

Per NRS Provision 338.141, within 2 hours after the completion of the opening of the Bids, the Bidders
who submitted the three lowest bids must submit a list that contains the name of the prime contractor and
each first tier subcontractor who will provide labor or a portion of the Work on the public work in an
amount exceeding 1 percent of the prime contractor’s total bid or $50,000, whichever is greater.

If a Bidder fails to provide a complete list, their Bid shall be deemed not responsive. Subcontractors must
not be on a disqualified status with the State Public Works Board.

Listed hereinaflter is the list of the prime contractor and first tier subcontractors who will be employed and
the segregation of the Work cach will perform if the Contract is awarded to the party or parties listed
herein.

First tier subcontractor is defined as a contractor who contracts directly with a prime contractor to provide
labor, materials, or services for a construction project. NRS 338.141(8)(a).

Work to be Performed Percentage Subcontractor’s Name, Address, and License
of Total Number
Contract
1. A(,(_, LR NOT7 (Prime Contirac ro:)
S ZHC

273 e ZIRS
NES7 K6 Cipg, UTgap 20 0023724

2. (Subecontractor NG
AL \ Boec clsioy [ (065 | K Ly Boar, N

@,L;i\f,‘ifpi?, 8940 279684
3. (Subcontractor)
a. (Subcontractor)
5 (Subcontractor)
0. (Subcontractor)

NOTE: Additional numbered pages may be attached if needed.

Starey Cowngy 00440-2 FIVE 6983
Virginia City and Gold Hill Wastewater Iimprovement Project Subcontractor Lisis Contract Documenis (June 2017)




BIDDER QUALIFICATIONS STATEMENT

THE INFORMATION SUPPLIED IN THIS DOCUMENT [S CONFIDENTIAL TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

SUBMITTED BY:

Ames Construction, Inc.
Offtclal Name of Firm:

Address: 3737 West 2100 South

West Valley City, Utah

84120

Farr West Engineering
SUBMITTED TO:
Virginia City and Gold Hill Wastewater Improvement Project
SUBMITTED FOR:
. Storey County, 100 Toll Road/OO Box 435 Virginia City, NV 89440
wner:

Virginia C d Gold Hill Wastewater Im t Project
Project Name: ginia City and Gold H stew provement Pro)

Wastewater Improvement Project
TYPE OF WORK:

CONTRACTOR'S CONTACT INFORMATION

Contact Person: John Triph, Jr.

Vice President of Engineering

Title:

801-977-8012
Phone:

Johntripi@amesco.com
Email:

AFFILIATED COMPANIES:
N/A
Name:

EJCDC' C-451, Quallfications Statement,
Copyright © 2013 Natlonal Soclety of Professional Engineers, American Councll of Engineering Companies,
and American Soclety af Civil Engineers, All rights reserved.
Page 10f 12




Address:

0. TYPE OF ORGANIZATION:

O

(] LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP

Name of Owner:
Dolng Business As:
Date of Organization:
PARTNERSHIP

Date of Organization:

Type of Partnership:

Name of General Partner(s):

CORPORATION
State of Organization:
Date of Organlzatlon:
Executlve Offlcers:

- President:

- Vice President(s):

- Treasurer:

- Secretary:

State of Organization:

Date of Organization:

Minnesota

July 10, 1963

Raymond G. Ames

Tony Ames

Raymond G. Ames

Michael J. Kellen

EJCDC’ C-451, Quelifications Statement,
Copyright © 2043 Natlonal Soclety of Professional Englneers, Amerlcan Councll of Engineering Companles,
and Amerlcan Soclaty of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved,

Page 2 of 12




Members:

[] JOINT VENTURE

Sate of Organlzation:

Date of Organizatlon:

Form of Organization:

Jolnt Venture Managing Partner

- Name:

- Address:

Joint Venture Managing Partner

- Name:

- Address:

Joint Venture Managlng Partner

- Name:
- Address:
7. LICENSING

Nevada

Jurisdictlion:
Contractor's Licanse/Unlimited

Type of License:

License Number: 0023739

EJCDC’ ¢-451, Qualifications Statement.
Copyright ® 2013 Natlonal Soclety of Professlonal Englneers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Soclety of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved,
Page 3 of 12




Utah
Jurlsdiction:

Contractor's License/Unlimited
Type of License:

241617-5501
License Number:

8. CERTIFICATIONS CERTIFIED BY:

N/A
Disadvantage Business Enterprise:

Minority Business Enterprise:

Woman Owned Enterprise:

Small Business Enterprise:

Other ( )

9. BONDING INFORMATION

Traveler
Bonding Company: ;

150 S Fifth Street, #2800
Address:

Minneapolls, MN 55402

Brlan Oestreich
Bonding Agent:

€s02
Address:

Brian Qestrelch
Contact Name:

612-349-2400
Phone;

350 million
Aggregate Bonding Capaclty:

+100 million
Available Bonding Capacity as of date of this submittal:

10. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Financial Instltution: U.S Bank

U.S Bank Cent
Address: ank Lenter

800 Nicolet Mall/Minneapolls, MN 55402

John Frazier
Account Managet:

EJCDC® C-451, Qualifications Statement.
Copyright © 2013 National Soclety of Profasslonal Englneers, American Councll of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Enginears, All rights reserved.
Page 4 of 12




11,

12.

-303-
Phone: 612-303-3720

CONSTRUCTION EXPERIENCE:
Current Experience:

List on Schedule A all uncompleted projects currently under contract (If Joint Venture lIst each participant's
projects separately).

Prevlous Expetience:

List on Schedule B all projects completed within the last 5 Years (If Joint Venture list each participant's
projects separately).

Has firm listed in Section 1 ever failed to complete a construction contract awarded to it?
CIves (3 no
If YES, attach as an Attachment details including Project Owner's contact information.

Has any Corporate Officer, Partner, Joint Venture particlpant or Proprietor ever falled to complete a construction
contract awarded to them In their name or when acting as a principal of another entlty?

Jves Mno
If YES, attach as an Attachment detalls including Project Owner's contact Information.

Are there any judgments, claims, disputes or litigation pending or outstanding involving the firm listed in Section
1 or any of Its officers {or any of its partners if a partnership or any of the Individual entitles if a joint venture)?

[Jves (¥ NO

If YES, attach as an Attachment details including Project Owner's contact information.

SAFETY PROGRAM:

Andy Anderson
Name of Contractor's Safety Officer: v

Include the following as attachments:

Provide as an Attachment Contractor's {and-Contractors-propased-Subcontractorsand-Supplersfurnishing
HMMWWWHMWWMMQ 0OSHA No. 300 and
300A - Log & Summary of Occupational Injuries & llInesses for the past 5 years.  See attached

Provide as an Attachment Contractor's {and-Contractors-propesed-Subcontractorsand-Suppliers-furnishing
or-performing-Work-having-a-valuein-excess-of 10-percentof-the total-ameunt-of-the-Ble}-list of all OSHA

Citations & Notifications of Penalty (monetary or other) received within the last 5 years {indicate disposition
as appllcable) - |IE NONE SO STATE. See attached

Provide as an Attachment Contractor's {and-Contractors-propesed-Subeontractorsand-Suppliers-furnishing
or-performing-Work-having-a-vatuetn-excess-of-10-percent-of-the total-amount-of-the-Bid) list of all safety

EJCDC’ €451, Qualifications Statement,
Copyright ® 2013 National Soclety of Professlonal Englneers, American Council of Engineering Companles,
and American Society of Civll Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 50f 12




cltatlons or violations under any state all recelved with(n the last 5 years (Ihdicate disposition as applicable} -
IF NONE SO STATE.  None

Provide the following for the firm listed in Section V {and-for-each-propesed-Subsontractor—furnishing-or
performing-Work-having-a-velue-in-excess-of-10-percentof the totalamount-of the Bid) the followIng (attach

additional sheets as necessary):

Worlers' compensation Experlence Modification Rate (EMR) for the last 5 years:

YEAR 2016 EMR 0.58
YEAR 2015 EMR  0.72
YEAR 2014 EMR _0.71
YEAR 2013 EMR _ 0.75
YEAR 2012 EMR  0.76

Total Recordable Frequency Rate (TRFR) for the last 5 years:

YEAR 2016 TRFR  0.86
YEAR 2015 TRFR 0.0

YEAR 2014 TRFR ~ 0.28
YEAR 2013 TRFR ~ 0-20
YEAR 2012 TRFR 142

Total number of man-hours worked for the last 5 Years:

YEAR 2016 TOTAL NUMBER OF MAN-HOURS 928,156
YEAR 2015 TOTAL NUMBER OF MAN-HOURS 765,483
YEAR 2014 TOTAL NUMBER OF MAN-HOURS 722,745
YEAR 2013 TOTAL NUMBER OF MAN-HOURS 765,815
YEAR 2012, TOTAL NUMBER OF MAN-HOURS 1,546,401

Provide Contractor's {and-Contractor'spropesed-Subcontractors-and-Supplersfurnishing-or-performing
Work-having-a-value-in-excess-of-10-pereent-of the-tetal-amount-of-the-Big} Days Away From Work, Days of

Restricted Work Activity or Job Transfer (DART) incidence rate for the particular Industry or type of Work to
be performed by Contractor {and-each-of Contractor's-propased-Subcontractors-and-Suppliers) for the last 5

years:;

YEAR 2016 DART 0.21
YEAR 2015 DART 0.0
YEAR 2014 DART 0.0
YEAR 2013 DART  U-26
YEAR 2012 DART 023

EJCDC’ C-451, Qualifications Statement,
Copyright © 2013 Natlonal Soclety of Professional Engineers, Amerlcan Councll of Engineering Companies,
and American Soclety of Clvil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 6 of 12




13. EQUIPMENT:
MAJOR EQUIPMENT:

List on Schedule C all pleces of major equipment avallable for use on Owner's Project.

EJCDC" C-451, Qualifications Statemant.
Copyright © 2013 Natlonal Soclety of Professional Englneers, American Councll of Enginaering Companles,
and American Saclaty of Civll Englnaers. All rights reserved.
Page 7 of 12




| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE INFORMATION SUBMITTED HEREWITH, INCLUDING ANY ATTACHMENTS, IS TRUE TO THE BEST
OF MY KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF.

Ames Construction, Inc.
NAME OF ORGANIZATION: -

. A SXN =

John Tripi, Jr. Vice President;f{r@eering

TITLE:

paTED: _//20/17

NOTARY ATTEST: W&W

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME

THIS j_?,[!))(‘n DAY OF ], 20471

KENDRA DIDDEN
Notary Public State of Utsh
My Commission Expires on:
Juze 2, 2021

NoTARY pusLic - state of_ \UTAN
MY comMission expires: 0~ Y - 02|

REQUIRED ATTACHMENTS
1. Schedule A (Current Experience).
2. Schedule B (Previous Experience).
3. Schedule C (Major Equipment).
5. Evidence of authority for individuals listed in Section 6 to bind organization to an agreement.
6. Resumes of officers and key individuals (including Safety Officer) of firm named in Section 1.
7. Required safety program submittals listed in Section 12,

8. Additional items as pertinent.

EJCDC’ C-451, Qualifications Statement,
Copyright © 2013 National Soclety of Professional Engineers, American Councll of Engineering Companies,
and American Soclety of Civil Engineers, All rights reserved.
Page 8 of 12




SCHEDULE A

CURRENT EXPERIENCE
Project Name Owner's Contact Person Deslgn Englneer Contract Date Type of Work Status Cost of Work
Red Rock Hydoelectric Name: WMIMPA  /Thomas Heller Nasme: Ralph Watt 7/14
Addrass: 3724 W Avera Drive, Stoux Falls, | Company: mw ’;""‘“'“"" 60% $255,643,800
o ower
Teluphm&:r:’ 57§Q1§'9§§Q 6963 Telephone: 312-831-3000 Complety
Nama; NOQT /Pedro Rodriguez Name:  Matt Horcocks 1/16
USA Parkway i $75,923,2
Address: 1263 SStewart St, Carson Clty | Company: Horocks Deslgn Bulld Complete 5,923,220
- NV, 89712 H
Telephene: 575.888-7320 Telephone: 801-201-2365 s
Name: CUWCO Name: Adam Murdock 9/16
Olmstead Hydroejectrlc Address: 355 W Unlversity Pkwy, Orem | company: cHam Hydroelectric 3% $25,914,440
Utah 84058 Power Complete
Telephone:gp1-226-7 Telephone: 385-474-8540
Name: PacifiCorp Name: chad Tomfinson 5/16
Naughton FGD Ponds 1 & 2 Address: 825 NE Multnomah St, 306 Company: MWH Pond Rectamation 55% 11,865,125
Portland, OR 97232 601.617-2890 Complety
Tolephone: gp3-g13-7100 Telephone:
Name: |pav/Mindy DeCarolls Name; Brett Paxton
Salt Lake Airport BP4 Address: 4051 W. Terminal Dr, SLC, UT | Company: HTNB 11/18 Excavation 23% 7,960,000
84122 301-6 Complete
Telephone! 801-321-2397 Telephone: 1-656-2101
Name: HDIV/Mindy DeCarolis Nama: BrettPaxton
:IPI; Lake Alrport Apron Paving Address: ::i;’zw' Terminal Dr, SLC, UT Company: HTNB 5/17 Alrport Demo ::" taF 20,808,196
Telephone: ggs.391.2397 Telephane:  801-656-2101
Name: ypjv/Mindy DeCarolls Namo: Brett Paxton
Salt Lake Alrport PB3 Address; 4051 W. Terminal Dr, SLC, UT | Company; HTNB 1/16 Demo, earthwork,  {g7% 30,005,000
84122 sewer, water Complete
Telephone: gq 4 254 5397 Telephone;  801-656-2101 storm drain

EJCDC" C-451, Qualifications Statament,

Copyright © 2013 Natlona| Soclety of Professional Engnaers, American Councll of Engineering Compantes,
and American Soclaty of Civil Englneers, All rights resarved.

Page 9 of 12




SCHEDULE B

PREVIOUS EXPERIENCE (Include ALL Projects Completed within last S years)

Project Nama Owner's Contact Person Design Engineer Contract Date Type of Work Status Cost of Work
A, Name; UDOT Name: Jon Glichrist
el L 4501 South 2700 West 4/15 Deslgn Bulld, highway 28
Adt’mwslc, UT 84114 Company: wsp bridge underground Complete) $28,468,000
Telephona: 801-965-4000 Telephone: ~ 801-288-3234 utilitles
Name: yooT Name: Brad Johnson ) TR
! . 4501 South 2700 West ) 2/10 Design Bulld Highwayf o0 0 1ta
. Address: g ¢ UT 4114 Company: HOR bridge pipe/utilities pletel - $1 billion
Telephone;801-965-4000 Telophone: 801-653-7310
Namb: Newmont Mining Name: Ryan Baker N
4/15 Mine slte and
Long Canyon Mine Site Address; 0363 SFiddler's Green Clrcle | company:  New Fleld afyestructure Complete| 16,717,700
Sulte 800, Greenwood Village, '
Telephoneco 80111 303-863-7414 Telephone: 303-294-0950 earthwork, water
storm sewer pipo
Name: gﬂagglulpsl%s\l Solution Minlng Name: Kevin Jennings 5/15
am .
Magaum Sawtooth Brine Pond 2 | s jqress; 3165 € Milirack Dr, #330 COmPANY:  New Fields Pond Construction | Complete | - 54,712,846/
olladay, UT 84121 . 720-218-4364 5,147,371
Telephomyam_szo_ano Telaphone:
Name: Barrlck Cortez Mine Name: Car! Burkhalter
Phase IV Talllng Ralse & Cell 4 Address: He 66 Box 1250 Crescent Valley] Company: AMEC = Taillngs, Dam complete | 37,500,178
Expanslon NV 89821 203-433-0262 Constructlon
Telephone: 775-748-1001 Telephone: i piping.
+ PacifiCor| : Chad Tomlinson
Bridge Gl FGD Pond 1 i ’ s Pond Reclamation
Jim Bridge Closure o Address: 825 NE Multnomah St, #906 Company: MWH 5/16 plpe and pump Complete]  $6,222,494
Portiand, OR 97232 statlon
Telephoneigga.g13-7100 Telephone;  801-617-3390
Neme: Provo Rlver Water Use Assoc. Name: Adam Murdock 20 miles 126" ST
Provo Canal Enclosure Address: 285 W 1100 N Company: CHZM csnd pipe, i Completel h 226,
Pleasant Grove, UT 84062 undergroun
Telephone: 801-796~8770’ Telephone: 385-474-8540 sewer/water

E)CDC C-451, Quelifications Statamen

L

Copyright © 2013 Natl

i Soclety of Profess) N

Page 100f 12

t

Countll of Enginaering Companles,
and Arnerican Soclety of Cvll Enginears. Al rights raserved,




SCHEDULEB

PREVIOUS EXPERIENCE (Include ALL Projects Completed within last 5 years)

Profect Name Owner's Contact Person Deslgn Englneer Contract Date Type of Work Status Cost of Work
Name: RleTinta /gick Hanson Name;  CH2M-HIll
KUC Water Relocation Address: 4700 W Daybreak Pkwy Company:  CHZM-hlll 9/13 New Pipeline Compl $1,05,520
South Jordan, UT 84035 Corrldor
Telephone: 801-204-2000 Telephona:  385-474-8500
Frovo Westslde Connector Nama: UDgT/John Higgins Name: John Hiaglns po—
4501 52700 W, Highway, earthwork,| Complete
Address: ' Company: \J g
**¥1c, uT8a114 T 514 g g $17,208,545
Telephone: 801-227-8000 Telaphone: 801-227-8000 station
Name; UPRR/  Connle Winkler Nama: leff Telg -
omplete
R I Address: 1400 Douglas Streat, Omaha, | Company: HDR, Inc. 9/1% Rallroad Bridge P $7,772,229
NE 0750 and Causeway
Telephone: 40, 544 7244 Telephone:  402-399-1051
Name: NDOT /Larry Boge, P.E Name: Sajid Sulahrla, P.E
Install precast box
NDOT US95 Englneering R f
0 SESSRNE Address: 310 Gallett! Way, Sparks, NV | Company: NpOY Hydraulics L culverts Complete] $845,800
89431 X
Telephone: 7756381253 Telephone: 775-888-7538
Name: Name:
Address: Company:
Telephone: Telephone:
Name: Name:
Address: Company:
Telephone: Telephone:
Name: Name:
Address: Company:
Telephone: Telephone:
EICDC" C-451, Quallfications Statement,
Copyright @ 2013 | Soclaty of Profi | Engl , Amarican Councll of Engineering Companles,
and Arnerlean Soclety of Clvll Engineers. All rights resarvad.

Page 110l 12




SCHEDULE C - LIST OF MAJOR EQUIPMENT AVAILABLE

ITEM PURCHASE DATE CONDITION ACQUIRED VALUE
8 each Blades CAT 14 or 140 varous good various
6 ea CAT D6 Dozers various good varlous
10 ea Forklifts 8000 Ibs varlous good varlous
10 ea Skidsterer Loader varlous good various
12 ea Wheel Loaders 938-980 varlous good varlous
4 ea Boom Trucks vralous good varlous
15 ea Compactor varlous good varlous
15 ea Excavator CAT 320-349 varlous good varlous
10 ea Slde Dump Trucks varlous good . various
5 ea End Dump Trucks varlous good varlous
20 ea Plckup Trucks varlous good various
4 ea Service Trucks various good varous
varlous good varlous

2 ea Fuel Trucks

EJCDC” C-451, Quallfications Statemant,
Copyright © 2013 Natlons| Saclety of Profasslonal Englneers, American Councll of Engineering Companlas,
and American Soclaty of Civll Englneers. All rights reservad,
Page 12 of 12




EEOQ COMPLIANCE STATEMENT

This statement relates to a proposed contract with __AAmes Construction, Inc.

(Name of borrower or grantee)

who expects to finance the contract with assistance from either the Rural Housing Service (RHS), Rural Business-Cooperative
Service (RBS), or the Rural Utilities Service (RUS) or their successor agencies, United States Department of Agriculture
(whether by a loan, grant, loan insurance, guarantee, or other form of financial assistance). 1am the undersigned bidder or
prospective contractor. [ represent that:

1. I[x] have,|[ ] have not, participated in a previous contract or subcontract subject to
Executive Order 11246 (regarding equal employment opportunity) or a preceding similar
Executive Order.

2. If1 have participated in such a contract or subcontract, I [ x] have, [ ] have not, filed all
compliance reports that I have been required to file in connection with the contract or
subcontract,

If the proposed contract is for $50,000 or more and I have S0 or more employees, I also represent that:

3, I[x]have,[ ] have not, previously had contracts subject to the written affirmative action
program requirements of the Secretary of Labor.,

4. If1 have participated in such a contract or subcontract, 1 [X] have, [ ] have not, developed
and placed on file at each establishment affirmative action programs as required by the rules
and regulations of the Secretary of Labor.

T understand that if I have failed to file any compliance reports that haye been required or me, I am not eligible and will not be
eligible to have my bid considered or to enter into the proposed contract unless and until I make an arrangement regarding such
reports that is satisfactory to either the RFIS, RBS, or RUS, or to the office where the reports are required to be filed.

I also certify that I do not maintain or provide for my employees any segregated facilitics at any of my establishments, and that
I do not permit my employees to perform their services at any location, under my control, where segregated facilitics are
maintained. I certify further that I will not maintain or provide for my employees any segregated facilities at any of my
establishments, and that I will not permit my employees to perform their services at any location, under my control, where
segregated facilities are maintained. Iagree that a breach of this certification is a violation of the Equal Opportonity clause in
my contract. As used in this certification, the term “segregated facilities” means any waiting rooms, worlk areas, rest rooms
and wash rooms, restaurants and other eating areas, time clocks, locker rooms and other storage or dressing areas, parking lots,
~ drinking fountains, recreation or entertainment areas, transportation and housing facilities provided for employees which are
segregated by explicit directive or are in fact segregated on the basis of race, creed, color, ot national origin, because of habit,
local custom, or otherwise. I further agree that (except where I have obtained identical certifications from proposed
subcontractors prior to the award of subcontracts exceeding $10,000 which are not exempt from the provisions of the Equal
Opportunity clause; that T will retain such certifications in my files; and that I will forward the following notice to such proposed
subcontractors (except where the proposed subcontractors have submitted identical certifications for specific time periods):
(See Reverse).

According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, an agency may nof conduct or sporisor, and a person Is nof required fo respond to o collectlon of Information unless It displays
a valid OMB control number. The valid OMB control nuntbar for this Information collection Is 0575-0018. The fime required to complete this information collection is estimated to
average 10 minutes per response, Inehuding the tinte for reviewing insiructions, searching existing data.sources, gathering and nicintaining the data needed, and completing and
reviewing the collection of Information.

Pasition 6 RD 400-6 (Rev. 4-00)

Storey County 00460-1 FWE #983
Virginia City and Gold Hill Wastewater Improvement Projeci Contract Documents (June 2017)



NOTICE TO PROSPECTIVE SUBCONTRACTORS OF REQUIREMENTS FOR
CERTIFICATIONS OF NON-SEGREGATED FACILITIES

A certification of Nonsegregated Facilities, as required by the May 9, 1967, order (32F.R. 7439, May 19, 1967) on
Elimination of Segregated Facilities, by the Secretary of Labor, must be submitted prior to the award of a subcontract
exceeding 510,000 which is not exempt from the provisions of the Equal Opportunity Clause. The certification may be
subimitted either for each subcontract or for all subcontracts during a period (i.e., quarterly, semiannually, or annually)

NOTE: The penalty for making false statements in offers is prescribed in 18 U.S.C. 1001.

Date: —7/2..0//7 / Q\M; @
77 7 Slgnalme of Bidder or me;
3737 West 2100 South, WVC, UT 84120 - ~=

Address (including Zip Code)

Storey Cowunty 00460-2 FWE H983
Virginia City and Gold Hill Wastewater Improvement Project Contract Docinents (June 2017)



U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility
and Voluntary Exclusion — Lower Tier Covered Transactions.

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Executive Order 12549, Debarment and
Suspension, 7 CFR Part 3017.510, Participants’ responsibilitics. The regulations were published as Part
1V of the January 30, 1989, Federal Register (pages 4722-4733). Copies of the regulations may be
obtained by contacting the Department of Agriculture agency with which this transaction originated.

(BEFORE COMPLETING CERTIFICATION, READ INSTRUCTIONS ON NEXT PAGE)

(1) The prospective lower tier participant certifies, by submission of this proposal, that neither it nor
its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal

department or agency.

2) Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in
This certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal.

Ames Construction, Inc. Virginia City-Gold Hill Wastewater Improvements

Organization Name PR/Award Number or Project Name

John Tripi, Jr./Vice President of Engineering

Name(s) and Title(s) of Authorized chresepmlive(s)

7/20/17

( Signalure(s) N Bate d

N
~—
——
———————— B

Form AD-1048 (1/92)

Storey County 00470-1 FIVE #983
Virginia Citv and Gold Hill Wastewater Improvement Project Contract Documents (June 2017)



Instructions for Certification

i; By signing and submitting this form, the prospective lower tier participant is providing the
certification set out on the reverse side in accordance with these instructions.

2 The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when this transaction was entered into. If it is later determined that the prospective lower tier participant
knowingly rendered an erroncous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal
Government, the department or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies,
including suspension and/or debarment.

3. The prospective lower tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the person to which
this proposal is submitted if at any time the prospective lower tier participant learns that its certification was
erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

4, The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and “voluntarily
excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of rules
implementing Executive Order 12549. You may contact the person to which this proposal is submitted for
assistance in obtaining a copy of those regulations.

of The prospective lower tier participant agrees by submitting this form that, should the proposed
covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a
person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency with which this transaction originated.

6. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this form that it will include this
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion — Lower
Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations
for lower tier covered transactions.

7. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the
covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method
and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principles. Each participant may, but is not required
to, check the Nonprocurement List.

8. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a
participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary
course of business dealings.

9. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 5 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered
transaction knowingly entered into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred,
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available
to the Federal Government, the department or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue
available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment,

Form AD-1048 (1/92)

Storey County 00470-2 FWE #1983
Virginia City and Gold Hill Wastewater Improvement Project Contract Documents (June 2017)



RD Instruction 1940-Q
Exhibit A-1

CERT AT 0 ONTRACTS, GRANTS AND LOANS
The undersigned certifics, to the best of his or her knowledge and belicf, that:

1.No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or cmployee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection
with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant or Federal loan, and the
extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant or loan.

2.If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an ofticer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant or loan, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard From — LLL,
“Disclosure of Lobbying Activities,” in accordance with its instructions.

3.The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents
for all subawards at all tiers (including contracts, subcontracts, and subgrants under grants and loans) and
that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into
this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
cach such failure.

John Tripi, Jr,

: 7/22//7
(Name) L_/,J/&_———“

Vice President of Engineering

(Title)

(08-21-91) PN 171

Storey Connty 00480-1 FWE #983
Virginia City and Gold Hill Wastewater Improvement Project Contract Documents (June 2017)



CONTRACTOR'S WAIVER

Public Works Project No. ST-2017-051
Contract

As a condition of award of the said Contract, the undersigned Bidder
acknowledges that he is aware of the provisions of Nevada Revised Statute 338.160,
which provides for investment of Contract retainage, and the payment of interest
thereon to the Contractor after completion of the project.

The undersigned Bidder further agrees to waive and does hereby waive all his
rights to investment of and payment of interest on retainage, as provided by said
statute, upon the understanding that the regulations of the lending agency prohibit such
investment and that, without this waiver, loan and/or grant funds for this project will
not be available.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, Bidder has executed these presents this

20 dayof __ o [y 0/ 7

Ames Construction, Inc.

Bidder
John Tripi, Jy s
By .
Title Vice President of Engineering x

N
NOTE: This instrument should be executed by the officer who executes the contract
and in the same manner.

Storey County 00490-1 FWE #983
Virginia City and Gold Hill Wastewater Improvement Project Contract Documents (hiune 2017)



RUS Bulletin 1780-26
Exhibit I
Page 1

CERTIFICATE OF OWNER’S ATTORNEY AND AGENCY CONCURRENCE

CERTIFICATE OF OWNER’S ATTORNEY

PROJECT NAME: Virginia City Gold Hill Wastewater Improvements

CONTRACTOR NAME: Ames Construction, Inc.
I, the undersigned, . ,the duly authorized andacting legal
representative of ,do hereby certify as

follows: Ihave examined the attached Contract(s) and performance and payment bond(s) and the
manner of execution thereof, and I am of the opinion that each of the aforesaid agreements is
adequate and has been duly executed by the proper parties thereto acting through their duly
authorized representatives; that said representatives have full power and authority to execute said
agreements on bebalf ofthe respective paidies named thereon; and that the foregoing agreements
constitute valid and legally binding obligations upon the parties executing the same in accordance
with the terms, conditions, and provisions thereof.

Name Date

AGENCY CONCURRENCE

As lender or insurer of funds to defray the costs of this Contract, and without liability for any
payments thereunder, the Agency hereby concursin the form, content, and execution ofthis
Agreement,

Agency Representative Date

Name

Storey County 00495-1 FWE #983
Virginia Clty and Gold Hill Wastewater Improvement Profect Contract Documents (Jume 2017)



WRITTEN ACTION OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
AMES CONSTRUCTION, INC.

The undersigned, constituting all the members of the Board of Directors of Ames
Construction, Inc., a Minnesota corporation (the “Company”), acting pursuant to
Minnesota law and the bylaws of the Company, hereby adopt the following resolutions as
set forth below with the same force and effect as if said resolution were duly adopted at a
meeting of the Board of Directors held for that purpose:

EXECUTION OF BIDS, PROPOSALS AND CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

WHEREAS, the Company has been, and will continue to submit bids and proposals,
execute contracts and perform contracting work through its regional offices; and

WHEREAS, Owners of projects the Company is pursuing require that bids, proposals
and contract documents be signed by an officer of the Company or an agent authorized by
the Company to bind the Company; and

WHEREAS, it is desirable, necessary, and in the best interest of the Company to grant
authority to regional representatives of the Company to execute and deliver bids,
proposals and contract documents; therefore it is: -

RESOLVED, that after providing the President of the Company with details of
the particular bid, proposal or contract documents to be signed, and after receiving
approval to proceed, the following individuals shall be authorized to execute and
deliver bids, proposals, contracts, and other documents related thereto, and to do
all things otherwise legal, necessary and proper to carry out their terms on behalf
of the Company:

Southwestern Region
John A, Ames, Senior Vice President
Gerard F. Miller, Regional Vice President of Engmeenng

Western Region
Mark R. Brennan, Senior Vice President
John R. Tripi, Jr., Regional Vice President of Engineering

Midwest Region
Ronald L. Ames, Senior Vice President
Emil J. Trebesch, Regional Vice President of Engineering



Rocky Mountain Region

Tony R. Ames, Regional Vice President

Robert P. Gillis, Regional Vice President of Engineering
Thomas B, Flick, Regional Vice President of Design-Build

AND

RESOLVED, that either the President or the Chairman of the Board of Directors
of the Company may, when he determines it to be necessary and in the best
interests of the Company, authorize any other responsible employee of the
Company to execute and deliver bids, proposals and other documents related
thereto. Such authorization shall be in writing.

AND

RESOLVED, that the resolutions in this Written Action shall supersede prior
resolutions on the same subject to the exient inconsistent with this Written Action.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Written Action to
become effective the 25" day of August, 2011.

CONSTITUTING THE ENTIRE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS



TONS

jiving
ccep-
late is

ithout
of the
ment.
.ﬂicer.

wation,
in the
or the
ylaws,

OFFICERS

Subdivision 2 permits the board to re-
move an officer with or without cavse by a
simple majority, in recognition of the fact
that an er has no txed t to his
position as an officer. Al the offl-

cer may have an action for damages under

a valid emplayment contract with the cor-
poration for removal without cause prior
to the expirstion of the contract, such a
contract must be established independent-
ly of the election or appointment to the
office.

Of course, the board may not have the
power to remove an officer if a sharehold-
er control agroement under section
302A.457 has mandated that a certain per-

D

§ 302A.361

son shall hold & certain office. Unless the
sharcholder agreement is modified, the
board has no power to remove that person
from office.

Subdivision 3 merely stutes that vacan-
cies may be flled in a variety of ways,
inchiding by implication, pursuant to sec-
tion J02A.30S, )

Any offics filled under this subdivision is
filled for the remaindar of the term, if any,
for which the original officer was elected,
If the rerm was indefinite, or if no term

was specified, the vacancy shall be filled
without reference to the term.

Libeary References

Corporations =291 to 295,
C.1.S. Corporations 8§ 723, 732 et seq.

302A.351. Delegation

Unless prohibited by the articles or bylaws or by a resolution approved by the
affirmative vote of a majority of the directors present, an officer elected or
appointed by the board may, without the approval of the board, delegate some
or all of the dutles and powers of an office to other persons. An officer who
delegates the duties or powers of an office remains subject to the standard of
conduct for an officer with respect to the discharge of all duties and powers so
delegated.

Laws 1981, c. 270, § 53, eff. July 1, 1981,

Reporter’s Notes—1981
By Berr Black, Reporter

Sourca; dutiey to persons Hlling subordinate &oai
e exots i 4y S md'd;? s
F . sble for ges to the corpora-
o;::: i RO - tlon for the actions of those persons if the

officer has vialated the standard of con-

Change From Former Law: duct set forth in section 302A.331 in the

Prior Minnesotz law did not address this
lssue.

Genera] Commeant:

This section explicitly gives the elected
or appointed officers the power 10 assign

course of delegating dutles to, or failing to
supervise, those persons. However, the
articles or bylaws, or a resolution of the
board may prohihit the officers from dele-
gating some or all of their dutles.

Library Refercnces

Corporations ©=305.
C.J.S. Corporations § 758 et seq.

302A.361. Standard of conduct

An officer shail discharge the duties of an office in good faith, in a manner

the officer reasonably believes to be in the best interests of the corporation, and
131




Pk

£,
Eg’g Ames Qualifications
‘f*a\\" COI’ISthCtIOI’I |nC and Experience

\?

,1

JOHN TRIPI
VICE PRESIDENT OF ENGINEERING

He is currently assigned to Ames Western Region as Vice President of
Engineering. As Vice President of Engineering he is responsible for the
management of field engineering and construction project estimating. He is also
responsible for providing technical and field support to our mining and rock
excavation projects and overseeing all drilling and blasting company wide.

He has been employed by Ames Construction Inc. for the past 31 years. He has
experience in project management including field engineering, estimating, project
controls, cost control, QA/QC, subcontract administration and safety. He
previously worked on a variety of mining, heavy and highway projects as a
Foreman, Project Engineer and Project Manager.

John's experience and responsibilities include management and supervision of
supervisors, project managers, engineers, and estimators for the company in the
estimating, management scheduling and construction of various General
Engineering construction and design-build projects including; roads, highways,
water retention dams, hydro-electric power plants, plant site, mine site facilities,
mine tailings dams and leach pads, contract mining, residential infrastructure,
airports, underground utilities (all types), water & waste water plants, pumping
stations, railroad and railroad facilities, process piping and site development
projects. His demonstrated ability in the scope of work on these projects,
includes excavation, grading, drainage, utilities, electrical, ATMS, concrete
structures, bridges, crushing, asphalt and concrete paving, and all other features
of work required for complete construction of the above work.

John has been responsible for overseen and estimated projects ranging from
$100,000.00 to over $1 billion for the above type work.

Major Ames projects he has worked on include:

-Red Rock Hydroelectric Project

-Legacy Parkway Segment 1 & 2

-Pegasus Gold Black Pine Contract Mining Project
-Kennecott Smelter/Refinery/Tailings Projects
-Melco Contract Mining Project

-Interstate |-35E Highway

-Sulphur Creek Dam & Reservoir

-Jim Falls Hydroelectric Project

-Kennecott Modernization Project

-Roosevelt Lake Dam & Bridge

-Gem State Hydroelectric Project



(9%, Ames Qualifications
.; COI’\StI‘UCtIOI‘I, |nC and Experience

;\

,.
'-'2
...

h
F

-sq
= e

9

JOHN TRIPI page 2

Prior to joining Ames, he worked as a Blasting Engineer for a Colorado base
contractor and as an Associate Engineer for a mining company.

Education:

M.S., Mining Engineering, University of Missouri, Rolla, 1984
B.S., Mining Engineering, University of Missouri, Rolla, 1982
Member -Society of Explosive Engineers

-Society of Mining Engineers

-American Society of Civil Engineers

-Dispute Review Board Foundation

Contractor License Qualified Person in AZ, CA, ID, NV, UT

06/17



Ames _ . Qualifications
COI’ISthCtIOﬂ, |nC. and Experience

Tim Odell

Western Region Senior Vice President

Tim is a Senior Project Manager (PM) for Ames who has managed large transportation DB projects as
Deputy Project Manager and Deputy Director, and managed both best-value and fixed-price
procurement method DB projects. These include large complex projects that involved integrating
multiple phases to minimize user disruptions, and coordinating with multiple local governmental
jurisdictions, regulatory agencies, public and private utility companies, and client representatives. Tim
played a key role in completing these projects with minimal inconvenience to stakeholders, creating an
atmosphere of innovation and cost-saving measures, meeting both the contractor’s and client’s budgets,
and ensuring compliance with quality specifications with safety records well below the industry

RELEVANT PROJECT EXPERIENCE . SRS
UDOT, I-15 CORE Design-Build, Utah County, UT Years of Experience:
| Deputy Project Director 3

Ames PM/JV Deputy Project Director responsible for overall construction of the project. This $1.1-billion
fixed-price best-value procurement involved reconstructing 24 miles of I-15 through Utah County
including widening 10 interchanges and 63 bridges, and became the fastest billion-dollar public highway
project built in U.S. history. Planning techniques such as using lane closures on off-peak hours, ABC, and
performing off-line work in interchanges prior to reducing traffic were used to reduce impacts to the
traveling public. Tim brings to the Point experience in minimizing traffic impacts during construction as
demonstrated the project receiving over 90% of the allowable incentives for closure reductions on I-15
CORE. Mainline I-15 was constructed with a designed 40-year life concrete pavement with portions
constructed with a concrete overlay. Project quality was ISO 9001 compliant with over 58,000 items
inspected and over 16,000 control points.

MnDOT, TH 212 Design-Build, Minneapolis, MN Years of Experience:

| Deputy Project Manager 3
Ames PM/JV Deputy Project Manager responsible for overall construction of a $238-million DB, best-
value project. Project involved constructing 11 miles of new freeway through an urban corridor, 7
interchanges, 28 bridges, 10 million cubic yards of earthwork, concrete and bituminous pavement, and
drainage/utility installations. The project was adjacent to several highly environmentally sensitive areas,
and required coordination with 4 cities and 2counties. Tim brings experience in balancing scope with
client budget considerations as evidenced by the project receiving AASHTO's 2007 National Value
Engineering Award.

MnDQOT, ROC 52 Design-Build, Rochester, MN Years of Experience:

| Deputy Project Manager 3
Ames PM / JV Deputy Project Manager responsible for overall construction of a $232 million DB, best-
value project. Project involved reconstructing 10 miles of freeway construction including 11
interchanges, 26 bridges, concrete mainline pavement, MOT, retaining walls, and utility installations.
Project executed in multiple phases while maintaining traffic and causing minimal disruption to the
public. First best-value MnDOT DB project. Tim brings experience completing large projects ahead of
schedule — the project received the maximum schedule incentive for early completion.




. Ames _
& Construction, Inc.

EDUCATION

Relevant education:

BS, Civil Engineering, University of Minnesota, 1992

Relevant professional registrations:
Professional Engineer:
MN 41293

Numbers of years with Ames:
20

®

Qualifications
and Experience

Ames PM / Joint Venture (JV) Deputy Project Director for I-15 CORE Design-Build

Ames PM / JV Deputy Project Manager for TH 212 Design-Build
Ames PM / JV Deputy Project Manager for ROC 52 Design-Build

References

* Todd Jensen, UDOT
Statewide Quality Director
ToddJensen@utah.gov
801-860-6221

* Jon Chiglo, MnDOT
Division Director, Engineering Services
jon.chiglo@state.mn.us
651-366-4826

* Terry Ward, MnDOT
Project Manager
Terry. ward@state.mn.us
507-286-7688




ﬁ""ﬁ Ames

*‘3&3 Construction, Inc.®

Andy Anderson
Regional Safety/HR Manager

Years in the Industry
17

Years with Ames
14

Education
B.S. Construction
Management

Utah Valley State
College

Certifications
See List

Training
See List

Summary

Andy is currently the Division Manager of Health, Safety and Human
Resources for Ames Western Region. As the Division Manager, Andy
develops, implements, coordinates and enforces the corporate safety,
health, and human resource programs for all projects administered through
the Western regional office. Andy also supervises a team of safety
supervisors, HSE technicians and administrative assistants assigned to
various commercial, industrial and mining projects throughout the western
states to maintain corporate HSE goals. He reports to the Corporate HSE
Director.

Relevant Experience

Division Manager of Health, Safety and Human Resources, Western Region,
West Valley City, Utah

Andy'’s responsibilities include:

o Develop and administer site specific Safety, Health and
Environmental Action Plans

o Conduct training in accordance with the Mine Safety and Health
Administration 30 CFR

o Part 48 Surface Mines and Part 46 Sand and Gravel Mines

e Perform audits to ensure compliance with MSHA/OSHA, client and
company regulations

¢ Accident/Incident Investigations including root cause analysis
» Develop Job Safety Analysis/Risk Assessment
« Prepare and conduct formal craft and supervisory safety meetings

Conduct Industrial Noise Dosimetry and administer Hearing
Conservation Program

Andy has acquired the following training and certifications throughout his
career:

¢ Registered Safety Officer through the International Board of
Environmental Health and Safety

¢ Certified Instructor from the US Dept. of Labor Mine Safety and
Health Administration (MSHA) for

o Part 48 Surface Metal/Non-Metal Mines
* Competent Person designation for MSHA Part 46 Sand and Gravel

0114



l'??\ | Ames

e Mine Training

¢ OSHA 10-hr Construction Safety 01/2001

e OSHA 30 hr Construction Safety 01/2004

e Low Level Radioactive Waste Worker Training

e First Aid-CPR Certified 01/2004

e Fall Protection “Competent Person”

o Accident Investigation Course, St. Paul

e D-2000 Confined Space Entrant/Attendant/Supervisor

¢ National Safety Council Supervisors Development Program

o Forklift Operators Trainer in accordance with 29 CFR 1910.178
o Traffic Control Supervisor certified through UDOT

o Environmental Control Supervisor certification through UDOT

» Trench Safety/Excavation Awareness Program

e MSHA certification for Industrial Hygiene, Noise and Dust Sampling
o Certificate of Completion for Timberline Estimating Software

¢ Certificate of Completion for Primavera P3 Scheduling Software

Andy Anderson 01/14



gé&

p S
S
T

9
UL

Ames Construction, Inc?

Greg Lahr
Safety Manager

Years in the Industry
26

Years with Ames
11

Education
B.S. Engineering

Cal State University
Northridge

Certifications
MSHA Certified
Instructor

American Red Cross
First Aid and CPR
Certified Instructor

Competent Person
Instructor

Training

OSHA 30 Hour
OSHA 10-Hour
OSHA 500

OSHA HAZWOPER
Zero Harm

UDQT Traffic Control
Maintainer

OHSA Competent
Person

KUC & Barrick
Contractor Orientation

Various company safety
and management
training courses

Summary

Greg has spent his entire career managing project safety and environmental
compliance throughout the western United States. As a Project Safety
Manager, Greg develops, implements, trains, and manages projects’ site
specific health and safety and environmental plans in addition to the
corporate health and safety and environmental plans. He travels to project
sites assisting the Regional Safety Manager in conducting safety audits,
storm water prevention plan audits, develops safety hazard analyses and
various industry and company trainings. Greg also conducts incident
investigations performing a root cause analysis.

Relevant Experience

Site Safety Manager, Red Leaf Resources Phase |, Vernal, Utah

Greg recently managed the site specific safety program on the
approximately 400 acre site development project for Red Leaf Resources.
The project scope of work included 300,000 cubic yards of earthwork for site
preparation and grading, 1.1 million cubic yards of drilling and blasting for
rock excavation, material processing, water pond construction, material pad
construction, and haul road construction for a proprietary project in eastern
Utah.

Field Safety Manager, Western Region Mining Group, Carlin, Nevada

Greg has been overseeing the implementation of the corporate safety,
health and environmental plans for the western region out of the Carlin,
Nevada area office. Greg's responsibilities included frequent travel to
various mining and construction sites to perform safety audits, sound level
surveys, dust monitoring, safety hazard analysis and safety training. He
assisted the Regional Safety Manager in conducting OSHA and MSHA
training, jobsite safety orientations and developing new safety policies and
procedures to address the changes in the industry.

Safety Manager, I-15 CORE Project, Utah County, Utah, $1.2 billion

Greg was the Safety Manager on this major joint-venture, design/build
highway widening project along the |-15 corridor from Lehi Main Street to
Spanish Fork. The project will add an additional two lanes in each direction,
extend the express lane from University Parkway in Orem to Spanish Fork,
rebuild and reconfigure 10 freeway interchanges, replace and restore 61
bridges. Greg’s role on the project is one of the most demanding and time
consuming in monitoring all field work, including that of subcontractors,
along the entire 24 mile corridor of the project. In addition, he performed the
safety orientation of new hires and a majority of the training for the project's

02/15



Ames Construction, Inc?

personnel such as; rigging, fall protection, trenching and excavation, forklift operations, OSHA, and first
aid.

Safety Manager, Chevron Refinery, Salt Lake City, Utah, Total of Projects $14 million

Greg oversaw the safety with all field work activities performed by Ames personnel during construction
at the Chevron Refinery. His role involved direct task training, assisting in work plan JSAs creation,
and implementation and refinement of safety work practices in conjunction with Chevron safety
personnel. Most of the work at the site involved labor intensive piling and concrete activities. No
accidents were reported over the four-year period onsite which demonstrates the proactive approach
taken to safety by Greg and Ames.

Safety/Environmental Supervisor, Bull Mountain Rail Spur, Yellowstone and Musselshell Counties, Montana,
$105 million

Greg managed the safety and environmental plans on this design-build project to construct a new 36-
mile long rail spur near Billings, Montana. The project was completed under an unusually aggressive
schedule, completing in only one year with many remarkable achievements, including 11 million cubic
yards earthwork in less than nine months, five bridges in seven months, and 3 million cubic yards
drilled and blasted rock excavation. Work was conducted 24 hours-a-day, 7 days-a-week during both
summer and winter seasons. Construction operations were confined in narrow right-of-way with
challenging railroad grade and curve restrictions and numerous county and private road improvements.
The project was constructed during one of the coldest winters in Montana history. The project followed
an A-B-C shift method which ran equipment 24 hours-a-day, 7 days-a-week to keep the fill material
“live” and prevent freezing so that it could pass quality testing. Greg developed and performed all new
orientation training performed and ongoing task training over the course of the project.

Greg Lahr 02/15



Ames Construction, Inc?

Jose Acosta

Pipe Superintendent

Years in the Industry
10

Years with Ames
10

Education
High School Diploma

Certifications
None

Training

Various company safety
and management
training courses

Summary

Jose has shaped his career over the last 10 years with Ames as a Pipe
Foreman and Pipe Superintendent. His experience installing pipe includes
numerous types of pipe including, reinforced concrete pipe, ductile iron,
PVC, HDPE, CMP, carbon steel and ranging from 4-inches to 126-inches in
diameter. He has played an integral role in supervising and training craft
personnel on pipe installation procedures, scheduling, work layout,
inspection and testing. His attention to detail has proven valuable to every
project he has been a part of and has resulted in projects completing on
time and within budget with minimal quality issues.

Relevant Experience

Pipe Superintendent, NA5 Data Center, Los Luncas, New Mexico

Jose was pipe superintendent for Ames on the NA5 Data Center in New
Mexico. He was responsible for installing 10,000 If of 24"-72" storm/sewer
10-30 feet deep and manholes, 18,000 If of 6" to 10" PVC sanitary sewer
and 62 manholes along with 6,000 If of 6” to 12" water line, valves and fire
hydrants.

Pipe Superintendent, USA Parkway, Reno, NV

This project consisted of construction 14 miles of new 4 lane highway from
Interstate 80 to US 50 in Storey and Lyon County, NV. Jose was Ames
Pipe Superintendent responsible for storm drain installation consisting of
11,7000 If of 18 to 60" RCP pipe.

Pipe Superintendent, Rio Tinto-US Borax Pond R-7 and FCC 1, Boron, California $6.5
million

Jose was the Pipe Superintendent on this new pond construction for US
Borax operations. The pond was a1 million square foot pond with 136,000
cy of excavation and embankments placed. The pond had a leak detection
system, was lined with 1 layer of GCL followed by HDPE liner. Jose was
responsible for installing a 20 foot vertical turbine pump along with 1.5to 8
inch HDPE pipe and associated piping. Leak detection instrumentation was
installed under the liners with remote readouts.

Pipe Foreman, I-15 CORE Project, Utah County, Utah, $1.085 billion

Jose was a Pipe Superintendent on this major joint-venture, design/build
highway widening project along the |-15 corridor from Lehi Main Street to
Spanish Fork. The project added an additional two lanes in each direction,
extended the express lane from University Parkway in Orem to Spanish
Fork, rebuilt and reconfigured 10 freeway interchanges, replaced and/or
restore 61 bridges, and provided additional improvements to relieve traffic
congestion to meet future anticipated travel demands. Jose was responsible

07117



Ames Construction, Inc?

for multiple utility relocations involving over 15,000 If 6" to 24" ductile iron pipe water pipe valves fittings
fire hydrants, over 18,000 If of 8" HDPE pipeline, multiple culvert crossings.

Piping Foreman, Provo Reservoir Canal Enclosure, Utah County, Utah,
$131 million

Jose was the Piping Foreman on this project that included supply and installation of 19.4 miles
(102,145 linear feet) of 126-inch diameter welded carbon steel pipeline to enclose an existing canal that
ran through urban areas of Utah County. The project also included construction of air valve and blow-
off structures, 40 turnout structures, crossing of 34 city streets. Jose was responsible for the
installation and rerouting of 167 utility conflicts including 4” to 12" sewer and 6" to 24" water line.

Jose Acosta 07/17



B A 3 e N A e T e R 8 R e R A e T Ty T e S R el
L J02040 YHSO g%uﬁsaﬂow: SR BITHOI HRP SWI IO SRIASS AL IO SASGIR SBU M0GE Suiod

Ave aseq nok g 2688.:8?08?&5:8 sheidsip Y SSaqn BOIEUOGILY 10 LONN3Re 34 0 PUOJS & RRINbEoU
2R SUQRIS] UOTBULIGU! J0 UCRIRH0T UG AaAD) Pz UL PUB ‘PaPa3L SED 940 JgeS PUB LEUEES 'TOJINRSY B MARL
05U Buapiioul “esundsz) sed ST £3 S0RsaNE Q) PREWIGES I UOGRUIIIVI 0 UOGIRRY S 0y Uaipang Bugadal oing

210ZZ4/L 200y4 p Jeak ay3 Burmoijog deak o jo g¢ [udyof | enugay woyy abed Arwiung sty Isod
02I5 185256

. 0 sasssUll) S3GG Y (9} 0 LogIpUcs

wa.aﬁnﬂn,.uﬁna»ﬂ_wgmg?33393?5%»#:@55_% Koeidsey (€)

o o o CoTm ey e 0 s507) Bugesp {g) i) 1aposi Udg (2)

0 Buliasiod (¥} 0 Anfuy (1)

‘oult e nsas Aeus Juanindop. sny Buikystes Sbuimoy

(Z179es “53) twouw 4 TSOTVN} UOREDISSEID IBtisnpu} wRolSURY ION ()

(G1.2 DI 8:3) Wivow 3 (DIS) Logestasse1) [eigensu] plepieg T sasm UOIRLASS):  0M WOy Aeme
SATERI0I8S 1BYIQ Jo wystiegqol yusm. - shep ypwsases suesp
NOLLOMELSNOG AAVIH AVAMH 30 Jequunli [ejo . SISED J0 JPGUINU [ejo |

(s3s1 yony Jajous 10 useinuery *B-s) uonduasap Anstipin

SRUQ SR VI0C  PR5S SUL0J BSAY; S0} SUCRINCIC $53008 84 UO SiRISp Jewumy 1o} ‘ajns Burdasypiesey SISO U-
_ ‘CEPO6L ULD B2 285 WopNnbe )10, 108 U0 YISO B O} ssexce pou sty aSe Ay Amgiue S)
DUT UOHONGSUOY) SOy SUWEN USRS JNOA U 008 WO YHSO 8 mapsi 0] 6L 3 aney Sangeruasaidal 1y pue ‘seokojdr.iauney $eaibydis

. 0. A SISED OV pRY 1S4 g Bogaygjo 0 28ed Lione wray sougus sy popDE @AnA ams Bunew
sowmﬁeﬁ.ugism_nﬂm_ MOBq SFEIC) B S USYL %gégigé oy unod Bo 2 Bursey

gggggge&ug%Sg sead ay) Huung pRUNISC SaSSAU

DEWBITE G oo o3kodds ey 40 S3uNfLs 0u .43 "al5ed ArRUILNS S IBIBIO3 ISTUF $0BL e AG PRranco SUAUSITEISa Iy
it ue mm_g_.:_ U] polejay-4I0pA JO meE:w

. @ VAL A (Y00Z/L0 "Aoy) Y0DE Wwio4 S, YHSO



uauosaoxﬂ, S e uosan x
e aary 0045, QL 1£ATC BN PIEALH . 100 2 0 Fuodsas & paxea s
e oA gﬁii%%vﬁ inﬂli?ggzi

@ g Supern] “asuoisal séd sanum g5 25eiiaEa) X 3 40 UOGIN00 S0 40 vamng Sumodas5angd

PUZ Herode “ang a8 Seuus A SGpapnouy A 10 159G Syl 0L TRIR pUS ISUNOND SIA PSS AR | 113 AIe0 |

“buy © upynsas e Juswuindop sn Bukkisys Abumony

o3 913 AQ PIRAGD 2G4 S Buimoliop Jea 3 §0 0f Jdy 6} rbﬂx.:.—@u Esau&gu.ﬁg

uiglzr
J = WS RE:

Je=h
152 $2aRDKWS e &g Pajiom Sinoy R0

SSRAOI0UIS §o SBQUERS STRSAR PNLY

SvIZZL

e

— ey S— it et e

{z129¢x “6-a) Unowy b SIVN) UOGEONSSHS RSy UESHRUV (ION. HO

— e —

(5128 215 ~B°3) weong 1 {OFS) LOTEIRSSENY [ROSHPUI PRpURIS

TeS2D IERICTL UCSIOMSDU K Jusuen SAQP T SHSeD
JIGC JO JaqUIMIEOY  GOf iwh SHSED 10 JaquUITIY (210 JPISGWOUII0]  SYRIP 0 JSquny fo )

S B

SUBG] IS G SUCSIAQIS SSROCE B4 YO SYRIED UV A1 "OFL Buydoenicasy SYHSO U
SEV0EL HHD B2 995 FRRANLS ST J0 LOE WU YHSO 4.0} SSI008 PEitils SAY CSrR Aoy Aeue sy
008 BUC YHSO ) 2N 0) WY 2 JMSY SURUTESRICU NG P S sy Seehopduz

- T DM SSSED OU PRy nok yf “B0) a4t 10 ted fups Won sy B peppe 3 nof ans bugieus
BORY ST DU UM URY: AIOBRES (0eS 1Q) S0BUL NOA SIS ERpARTS 3yl Jnon ‘BoT Su Busn

NOLLANMYLSNGO ANVAH AZ7AWH
(s:9pen o0y iojous jo-okiaesfueyy “Bie) topdysssp Agsapuy
U] UCTONZSUD)) SSUTY WD ADOASIGEISE N0
ﬂé&&%—
Juoe Nhﬁr«}&ﬁkﬂﬁﬂ A A M A e e A e i, A I 21 s PP S .

Joqe mo Haﬁ..&wq N

@ YLOZ  JeaA

ue ww::-:_ _ooua_wm

gsggwﬂagﬁguﬁigﬂg Je2A 3y tUunp PAUNTOD SIS
h%&&gggbggg»& e A2 paraneo n

Eatial St M W e vl W P g S

.,Ax._o>> 96 meE:w
ooziosed) YQOE WHOH S,VHSO



Syeoeds sule)

TXSB-TEELEE

Padied ysu |

Spjcdoon

“ouy © vy Ynsed L Wioncop spi Buiiee) Guwmorny

ary ubis .....w....,,.

RIS . sk
ise] ssafojdtls ke Aq panuom SInoy FRI0)

uogEuLo Wwamkopiug h 2

— — — — —, —

(rzege o) trowef 3 (SIIVN) AIRSYISSELS FAASTPU] VEARWY WON O

(SLZENS 5o} weotat 1 TOIST UOISONSSRID [RUTSTIPU] PEPLETsy

NOUIPRLSNOD ANVIH AVAAH
(smgmg xong sorot: JBrargsepwey “6°8) vonduosep Ansrpur

NA ag Apsng 3

BB VASO RO RKiLRTH SN gsgsaeuﬂnﬁ A0
Atz et 1) qEmN PIU00 NG PRA AR T séedsipy Ewu!nuanua&u.auaﬁe
IRTAT SRS DGR > pUB ITIAn0D pUR P P AR Sl R (IR DI I
gsﬁmﬁﬂgxgmgsg  LORSULRJ O UATA0Y SR KL TRRING SUIodas 23g

Jeak sy Buwnmorioy 1204 543 Jo of (udy O3 1. Aierugog woy ebed Keurwng sup 1504

0 sassaulit 200 By {9) ] uomIPUCH

‘ Asjendsay (c)
0 sso Buiresy (5) ) rposig upig (2)
Q. Bunosiod (f) Knfu) {3)
AT T T v ela. =g o .r Jltbtﬂ.»‘( %m*{h« S
.E. r:l.!.l.”wli 'bll.ﬁ:w} A

(x})
i
UoROMIST 40 Jojsurg qof S SemisAs
30 SAEP 0 JOGUINY JRI0L josequnu o]
L v ST Y . ST
e R s
TR e B~
) {1}
o .
sose uopIgsa)
SIqERISs St o Jeysued qof sk

LA :ﬂmw) O R
a.n 3 ..WWM“. . SR ..WWWWN AR
UL} ST S0} SUSIACIE SSIITT O L0 SpRFED JRUNT OF U BUKdaNiRRToM SYHSO
u'GEH0SL M30 62958  JERANDS 53170 05 HHOL YRS O3 O) SS3702 pajy 2sey OSje Aoyt Aauus
u&EeﬁE%bﬁ!&)ﬂQ@ﬂ&sg?giggE%m

» o 5 39550 0v PRzt POK §) SO0] Y FO 30RY SRS Wiy SStfjua g paspe annof auns Suojeis

WP SO O] A LY KIGILD YDLD 305 SR NOK SBUFSS enpunr kg 3 o s Gush

UoNBULIOUL JUBYSIqE;ST
109128 ‘ov pInoxide
uh) PO I\Mu.%&tgtlﬁhvw et PR BT B O e i T LS BT o L ST P
W 1052 pr¥ Qajesp
8a3%§o§.&3 SH

AV €10z te9p

R e T EL RS MOTLOTED LI MR ¢ e e o R AR

DIHILOS D S 55 D) e Kpraa 0} £07) 23 MDY O SEGLUSUBY] 200K S BULND PRISTIOD SEISUUL.
£ SoUfe O B URns “efied [eurung SAf Srdwed Snw 5] Moy AQ PaISATD SJUSWISYTRISS Iy

3 Wy e e Y

.mwoé:.: v:a saunfuj uwum_cm §o>> 10 EmEE:m

(voozrio w2} WO W04 S,YHSO



‘uollesado pue ssauaseme “Jom Ajwixoud
Anwixoid uo siojeiado pue uonesiyinou ‘Bulules) 10§ SUonEUD |€41949
WL : = Ot gt d < Auedwo
2y1 pauiesydy -ajod Jamod a11m An8 Buizijigess ajod |eowos|e BRO ¥ SYL'ES t_m\son_u Vo v102/92/L0
01 950J2 003 SACLP J03es3dQ ue uo a1im Ang paejuod Jojesadp -
Toloid "pauawWnNIop paiedy
18 pa30aLI0d Aduapyaq 10U 1O 31eNbapeur uoadsul |B2LII[T 19H0 T 007 $ welidoid v v107/90/T1
Buppiom 21055q sauy 1oddns | "31nsodxa PaljIOA ON  UOIBARIXD
ue aAue (s)Auedwod Ayjan ue ut duij Ayjin papjoddnsun ue punose BYI0T 00S°TS pauuejd an S102/9T/10
P : o PajJOM SMILD JNO pue Jsuuew Appwn
|13UN Yem 0] paSIAPE SM3J)
e ul puodsal 0} pajies Auedwod AN
'SJ9lle(q 31340U00 "0SLS 031 006S Woly
dlpuey Ajojes dJow 01 MOY puB |  pI2NPaJ UOIIRUD |elauas [pajedeA uoliel)
sasnpadoad Suppeq Yiplaop uo | snowas “diy 01 sulydews pasned yuswdinbs 1esueo 1 0SLS WISPEY A ST0C/L2/80
sJojerado pauiesias Auedwo) papeo) Apadoidwi soresado Yipjo4
“waopne|d
*10$$24dwW0 Jie U0 LIy
U0 pie0g 301 pajledsul pue uoradsul Suissiw ! uo Aduaya 12U auue
w03 uoRadsul J0ssaIdWOd :._Emo ! wn_mw_E.O._wwg > >m>>. .M p Yo v 00SS p *ld V) STOZ/TE/80
Jie papinoad ‘weidold pasinay 1d -BUISSII pIeoq 5% AEM
12Ysinduiixa aily pasejday *19YsSIN3UIIXd 341} U0 3inssald MO 1BY0 T 00€$ 219jdwo) 'S 9t0z/Le/L
*SaNSSI 21N1nj pIOAR A
# 3Jmny ploe 03 SAep £ SN yum passgde
uryum pa1ajdwod sem Suluiesy
Buueauidus sjos “jpuuostad Sey wuy BuLIS3UIBU S|10S 3pISine Jno pue Snouas [ 00Z‘¢S | @2191dwo) AN L10Z/L2/t
’ ’ ’ g @dA] e se | payjIsse|d sawy °|10s D adA| :
Sus Ie Joj uiuesy Jaysaya. B Ul youaq e SuiAey 10} SSLUY pad
paysune| AjoleIpawiw sawry tHusg INEY 104 V PRI VHSO
X3
NOILDV FALLOTIIOD SNOLLVILID Ewraw. A | B | 9dAY | w5 | pemad

(£T0Z/8T/€- €T0¢/T/€) YVIA S *AYOLSIH NOILVLID YHSO




"spJezey ul ysned pue sjuiod

*Ja1sdwinp jo pua

youd uo Suiuren paieitul | Jaylo paysnd sshojdwa JBYlO “JopeO] pue | SNoJas | 000°€S ‘8oiqun 0D groz/62/v
pue u3)y Ayajes panssf | Jaisdwinp 984e) e usamiag poois adAo[dw]
‘apwm Auedwod ‘juswdinba
paleniul J9ysasyar Sujuied| uorpayosd [jes yum paddinbs Ajny ,
1238 uoa30:d |[2} 35N 03 SNousS 1 000°eS psuueld NW | €10Z/L0/TT

S19)10M IO} panssi ud|e Ajajes

Sem pue pauiesy Apadoid sem 3y "palinbaz
se uol19330.d |8} Jeam 0} pajie} saAojdwg




| S Lt 1 3 S | [E—

AMES
CONSTRUCTION,
INCORPORATED

~ Project Safety Manual

“Submittal Copy



- ——

‘-.- — /\‘ ;w--‘ — .| - :\-A- § o

L

1\

AMES ,
CONSTRUCTION,,
INCORPORATED

PROJECT SAFETY MANUAL

“Seféty i No'Necident



O -

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Lot

EXBOULIVE SUMMANY...itiieermssminmsmsmmrorsssmmsnssssisvesssmaessssatasssstsonss e —
lntdeUCﬁonu.'..m RO NI ANAQY AR R TR LRI NODRANNG u'-nn LLLE

Safety, Health and Security Duties........... POO———
Sumrvlsor Duﬂesu-n'n:b‘lll“u-gosgul;ll'lnuunn”qu-unra.-lmunul.\g Apnaaavsnpdinnarisiposiponabian
“’a‘n‘ng ----------------- BeshbEdanIRRIRaTIOd Vesesan ARFEERORRBE AL pRRA NN TINRNY e anqusIRbyaINTIITY 1eddrovanne pruNeE Y yesunen

Accident Reporting Procedu’r‘es ........................ TR — R
E""tp!cyﬁe ln,bl’)‘ ST T COOYRTTIPaNIPeRiTEn e aniisansianvesesnnbohentNs resRmLaayRaT YR n e €'y
(SRR — ovesepee b e e preima T bR AL s RS s e B8 ——
General Liab"lty ........... sescaa 'nu"uu-,u,o|~;-;Auu¢-|---n-u-c.----; ...... sebetnsrasrenduIaraLEIFesinainany
Accident Investigation ........ ey S ————————s e S
Photography/Dowmantation ............ ssesnavodsavhiissndessusisn Fusnais R —
livestigation TIPS asesasuismonsmmssaseane NP avsassepsrpesrers oA R ShiSamsed
Foreman's First Report of IJUny...csmsisssissimssserssssssssesessis ponvaGHUARIRI RSO AR s 10
Employee's First Report of Mjunyu.amses e RS TR w11

PAGE
1
P LT LR LR L LT e TR EL R TR LI g 2
3
3
4
5
B
5
B.
8
7
8

. Project Incldent Report FOM. waw e amimassmismics Gansvart v e daravansssauRasoWs w12

Fire Provention - Fire Protaction...mseesrcesmesssmssassssarssanas s 19
Jobsite Layout.....ceses FRTENE— e N B —— e, BERT 18
Smoking Policy...ue. ST i iR T PSS AR SRR TR TR AYS ST — « 18
Fire Extinguishers....u.. RSP R RSO RSN AR S Sy A1 DS S — wiiee 18

FIre SafotYomssiemmesaamssmssscsnssrasansssasissrsess T ———— 14
FireBtﬂnguisherlnspectlonRepm il ——————ere (i

Flrst Ald - Wdical SeMceSnou.-pcn--'--..uuuu:v--, ........ T Ly Uratabavinue T L) 17
TraiNOd Person ONeSIB.. v amsirassmsrsersisnrasssaserassrsncsssasessessase e e 18
Emergency Phone NUMBEIS.... ..ottt 18

HOUSEKERPING. . ievarermasivnisamsimsnmennans PSR R A S RAP S VASIOS o TsU VR e aATe S 19
GUIdBINES ey cuereessarsisrarmanmuessssasisncars

INSPECHIONS .. vieiseiossasemsersesiasiosssmemmassassssross consavenpaavesseRsuSIEIRU SO RORYRSE R 20
OSHA Requirements.......s... S e R i AT A —— w20 -
WAITEAS s coeorapsas ssassossparmsssassssmonas SR RISy T Y SO — . arh (20
Procadure for INSPecioNS...m. . Sese s s bb sy - vosven 21

Mine Safety and Health Act 0f 1977 connimencmniiinssansssms st 26



s a———

— P

———

—_—

.{,\
t‘

.....

10.

11.

12,

18,

14.

15.

Occupational Safety and Health Act 0f 1970, scewmisimsscersases TR A,
Job Safety and Health Protection FOrm.......oewia seeqadssauavasaRast HRSLIMLSITA AL roraese

Onamation Of NGW Employees QAARUTANREIIRDENY Hnunguoc.‘.lnu--urk’v)-uuuvnuouo‘ln--na

Sample Program IS L L L L R T e e e R T PR LRI T ER LR AL L L AL I A LT
Slgn InSheet AIANNYSsascanaR PERT IR IR IR ARIRLNL - e

skshgmsnatasagnsaisngbatIbvRRaIp un--u‘rn'fnu- EETTT

Project Rules nt REgUIBHONS . st ssmmrssssisesiis sossssmssasssmsessssssmmsasies

SafetyVlolatnon Pollcy ....... e e amaad b Ap AR A SR R SRS SRR R bR
Erﬁorcemem ST PR AT I AT L EE R LR R Y LLLLL A OI,N LS CRLLRLUE TR S LS

PesmamasetanEn FretasEtavne

VlOlaﬁQnSu TTYLLLILIE I L L L LRI T sevvsnian Lontansuasiorana uua--u-.-.4..‘6;-.-‘-‘-.-n-‘n’-’.unu-;u-nunnu
Repem ViOIQthS ----------------- e L P UL DAL L L LT T ForenanIBBNRAR andsssrvtseny YheasENsas ARG
Praject Safety Rula VIOKZHION FOIM,eu seanerssissmrnimaiossvessosrorsnansasyarsonpissssas

empavhisanar

Tool Box Safety Meatzngs ...................... RS e S S
WeBkly MESHING. «vvrracninrversinsencrssnnssnianmnseses praresmeniesesasbanes R S e
'Slgn IR SNBEL.. fuipasc strsonsardenrstivisassomassieapassasersansron W P S
Programs and Dtrecﬁves
151  Assured Eﬁuipment Ground Prograim...vessecsemsss s s sasesssssesmassasars
162  Battery Storage/Charging Installation .
163  Blasting end 11 USS Of EXPIOSIVES. ...verriessiusssonssnssss esssssssssrsivessrons
15.4 Compreséed GBS v erremsesseeemteermsestsssssssrmssassssssesses N I
15,5  Confined Space ENtry PrograM... .. vewrmsssminssirsammsssnsisin.
158  Crane INSPECHON. cu..w wusssrmssssicssnesmmiamniosensespissmessras s passsesasisasspssssmanissasons
TR B O ——
15.8  EXCaVationSu.um s dsavessisnnadasenn LareiniRess TN DR R O RS IS RAORSR AR 1A OY
15.9  Eyeand Face Protection......c.cvu. e e
16.10 Fusl Storage and Hefueling
15.41  Ground Fault Circult Interpreters (GFCI '8)use TP P
15.12  Hazard CommuniCation PrograMu. s imeresmsessammamensimmsiasssseis

15'.13 Heating Portable/Temporary.. e s sramsboiin et

30
31

32
32
32

38

34 '

34
34
35
38

v 37

37
38..

39

a1

45
47
67
68
74
81

84
86
88
o4
67
98



o ———
b

RN |

i
s v ot . o

~o mwya

(713

15/ Programs and Diractives Continusd........,... o —— dotnsoreisbmmrite iamaveorastiaissams

15.14
16.15
' 16,16
15,47
15.18
16.19
15.20
15.21
16.22
15.23

Hat Work Procgturs.... .. e duamsmsssinessmsmpsnsmosapune 99

Lock-Out Procedure...u.wmsae: TR SR CRO ivraitotsn w104
Material Handling EquIPmMent....caeiemmmmnmnoemisissens 107
Motor VBhicle INSPECHON CROCKISE...xurumusisserscsmessimesmsmsssmsssssscsisssinns 112
Blght To KNOW PrograiMl e isrssmssesmimmosoascinmerseassssesorsssssatssasnonrs '1'14'
S AULIS..pcr sy 152
Subeontractor REQUINBIMIBILS. ... msss s ssrecsiessmssssmsasssassosssasinscn e 178

Weldlr'g and oumnguiuo'tu‘nAu-nhuu.--onuluun\n'nonp.d'unnunlunnununtn-nnn“ 175



e - ~

Southern Nevada Offlce Northern Nevada Offlce
2310 Carporata Clrcls, Sulta 200 9670 Gateway Drive, Sulte 100

[y STATE CONTRACTORS BOARD Rl ewees el
The Nevada State Contractors Board certlfies that

AMES CONSTRUéTION INC

! Lloensed slnce Aprﬂ 18; ’(986

l

Ucense No 0023739 :

; !

L

Is duly licensed as a cpntractobln the f Ilowmg classiﬂcatlon( ): I

PRINCIPALS: LIMIT: Unlimited
RAYMOND G AMIES, President EXPIRES: 04/30/2018
RICHARD JAMES AMES,COB W 3

TODD MARTIN GODERSTAD Quellfied I~ "
JOHN ROBERT TRIPI,Quallfied Individual '

%f«\@ ‘%@Jﬁb“”

Chalrman, Nevada State Corfttactors Board

STATE OF NEVADA ‘. STATE OF NEVADA
GONTRACTORS LICENSE STATE CONTRACTORS BOARD

0870 Galeway Drlve, Sulte 100 Reno, Navada 88521
THIS 18 TO CERTIFY THAT THE COMPANY way
LISTED BELOW IS LICENSED N THE STATE OF 2310 Corporate Circlo, s'uite 200 Henderson, Nevada 89074

NEVADA FOR THE CLASSIFICATION(S) HOWN:

AMES CONSTRUCTION INC POCKET CARD RE-ORDER FORM

2000 AMES DR LIC. NO. i T : . =
BURNSVILLE MN 56306 0023739 . Enssd m hcovsr o 606 . -
e : Flrm Nama
Liminlimited 04/30/2018 i
Class: A ‘ ; Llcense No.
Doto: By:

AMES CONSTRUGTION INC
2000 AMES DR
BURNSVILLE MN 55308

(NSPO Rov. 8-15) (0) 2797 &R



STATE of NEVADA

Storey County Business Licensing ' ‘ ,’.ﬁ. @uunt of &t
P O Box 526 b R p of Storey

Virginia City NV 89440 - BuSlneSS Llcellse

T o T T

e L Vet

%
= Lo L

)

AMES CONSTRUCTION, INC,

TRIPI, JOHN R,

1135 TERMINAL WAU #207 Located: 1705 PERU DR
RENO NV 89502 MCCARRAN

e R G S A Tt b el & ST

L0 A LT

e e P
N e T

,._‘
e
i3

Issue Date: 5/30/17 Class; C License #: 18-2341

SRS

i Was

AMES CONSTRUCTION, INC., having paid the required Storey County business license fee(
s) in the amount of $ 206.00 is hereby granted permission to transact business under

this CONTRACTOR license for the period 7/01/17 through 6/30/18 in conformance with
and subject to the County Commissioners of Storey County, Nevada.

i W Pt

e SN

v

Ko DEETI BELTI DI DL ST P

Conditions:

2T Wrss,
S

23>
e
s T T P TR

~ COUNTERSIGNED ~

Tl At )

IHugh Gadlagher — Sworey County Comptroller Deant Flapmore =~ Comm 5 Assigned Administrator

P TP RAL S SR
e T TR

o s

A L SN g IS e G P e T
-

¢
»
|
ﬁ
h
}
%
|
>i

s

W
74

o T

D

==

TN <7

-

Please Post in Conspicuous Place

LT AT
A

S b
-4

Account: # 018033
** NON-TRANSFERABLE **

DL T

(775) 847-0966 ~ TFax (775) 847-0935 ~ buslic@storeycounty.org

RO LoD Y A T R S LD

T L D T T ST €T

it S

S
e SO




[LES2 20 6 S W W (VP SIS O [n 5ok i i SRS £ 7% SR Bt (6} S S WY/ S B Lo AL S TERTR il 4 LI § v PP S S St s 53 L= 1 B A B P SN 1o [b A A R - il S0 3 2 Sy 1 i
References

PacifiCorp — Closure of FGD Ponds 1 and 2 at Naughton — Landon Hatch, (801) 220-4431, cell (801) 656-84838.
Ames is currently 50% complete with this project for PacifiCorp which involves borrow excavation, capping
existing FGD Pond 1 & 2, placing GCL clay liner, installing dewatering system and covering GCL liner with cover
soil.

Kennecott Utah Copper — Kennecott Tailing Dam- Erick Franco, (801) 204-3526- Scope of work includes over 125
million cubic yards dam construction, and over 1 million linear feet of pipe installation (HDPE and Carbon Steel)
for the past 18 years. Operations run 24 hours a day, 365 days a year with tailing placement occurring nine
months of the year.

Portage — Moab UMTRA Project-Kirk Briscoe, (435) 564-3425 x 3- Ames is currently performing 2 million cubic
yards of excavation of the Crescent Junction Disposal cell,

Newmont-Long Canyon Mine-Gordon Mountford, (775) 7778-2835-Mass earthwork project for a new mine
complex west of Wendover, Nevada and includes topsoil stripping, road construction, waste rock storage
facility, heap leach pad, sediment basin mine complex, and landfill.

T T T e T e T e S T S g T S S B T e e e e e T e U P D PR vl

A

1 Ames Construction, Inc?



1 ISIOTIEELS | S FIs | O0efiEcrels | Ocoo0iarols | osuevrels | SResorRus | eesssIwTIs | FPEIOL SITINTY YiLA Pig vy ]

MU S ey 1 oiSwWIT Likt ¢ Srastii § sl ¢ sziwt
2y [ T oor IS (e LIS [N & SRS s beon ¥
I 3 Yo tey I 353 [T ) 3 L
OLFE i3 00 0318 L3 O RAILS & AR
i o e 3 [T i ik, S K 5 i
o il 00 0OCRE 053 T3 00 001 | 413 [comcs_ |oories  boot  Jo el HXOLL WL
o [ (IS e Xt G [oosones  Jonoewors  feesact  Jw ooy Jeowmvan I ET
BTN o IS B
wesls  peten XY s
SUvit 4 o €
HTR 53 i Tt
W ATE 3 Y v 3
POm1L ! s -
WALCIvS, B i 3
D0'ESESLLOIS
ot Wi 3
DO = o
EECRUL i o
e el
ST
e T =
3 T
s e 000 938 D00 2% G0 S5 TN TN s 0 siEe I.UZJ -
o wLE T H £0T $L =3 CIE & £ o vl
NV e TSt (ORI () WRILE S ML [T Y o
NRvEE oee Ll L s TR 0 A
WO I3 el K53 oUTE o v ;3 I wory ey 818, i} =5 R
S an it [y Doy TS T ¥ Goeay, ™ Vs
005 155 Sy oovs Loy cuces (TS [T Wi FIis) TR W03 0I5 Do ot e i TV R
000 ot ity Ei3 £ [CIVeEs 3 0 iAs. W eecus woain 20005 15 IS ST IS 29 PUn iy (Se) 101 AL
Sroo 015 BETETRS e =303 AT 268'% ETTE) e w0 o Sooeees DD WITLS [0 000 75 B o Y
0 0et et 13 WO feari [N =0 [Py Wivs o S A Ik g T e v
(AT w Oichud et @ i i s ity kT (T Y C U s W aviirw ol 3 S SCUAS A
'3 s [ 000 W i3 5 000 00%S. % s 0Tk % 5 L Sees G0 LT WO 3 | = T
AViGL GOy W01 Y. V| il E 401 | Soma 180 | z [ Somaien | wwr | S B ) =g - L=
xvian i 0 : . v ] A ano 3 — = = -

LT07"1Z 4o *Avpug
1990014 JuawaA0d W] 1NEM)ISEAL [[IH PO PUE Q1) EluBaA
SHA0 A NIGNg SJuno)y A0
WY 04 ONINAJO dld



FARR WEST

ENGINEERING

July 25,2017

Storey County Board of Commissioners

Re: Bid Acceptance of Virginia City and Gold Hill Wastewater Improvement Project
Dear Commissioners:

Farr West Engincering compiled the bid information following the bid opening for the Virginia City and
Gold Hill Wastewater Improvement Project on July 21, 2017. Ames Construction, Inc. (Ames) is the
apparent low bidder with a bid price of $10,693,775.90.

Farr West Engincering has evaluated Ames’ Bid and finds that it complies with the prescribed requirements
of the Bid Form, and therefore is considered “responsive”. We have also performed a due diligence check
on Ames by checking references, System for Award Management, Nevada State Contractor’s Board,
Secretary of State, and the Labor Commissioner. The references were all positive; the consensus is that
they are qualified to perform and complete the work associated with this project. A search with the
Contractor’s Board shows no disciplinary action against Ames and they are within their licensed limits. A
search for debarment on the System for Award Management shows no action. A search of the Secretary of
State shows that they are in current and good standing. Lastly, a search of the Labor Commissioner shows
no action as well.

Ames has over 50 years of experience in the construction industry and has performed similar projects in
the past. Based on a review of their bid and background check, Farr West finds Ames as being a
“responsible” Bidder and we recommend awarding them the Construction Contract.

I have attached the bid tab for your reference.

If you have any questions or require additional information regarding this letter, please feel free to contact
me.,

Sincerely,

Lucas Tipton,
Principal Engineer

Attached: Bid Tabs and Bid Submittal Package

5510 Longley Lane * Reno, Nevada 89511 + (775) 851-4788 + Fax (775) 851-0766
421 Court Strect *Elko, Nevada 89801 = (775) 738-2121 = Fax (775) 738-7955
www. farrwestengineering.com



l ~ l xl N —
. _—
JCDC=
ErGINLERS JINT CONIAGE
BOCEMONTS COMMIT I

NOTICE OF AWARD

Date of Issuance:

Owner: Storey County Owner's Contract No.:  ST-2017-051

Engineer: Farr West Engineering Engineer's Project No.: 983

Project: Virginia City and Gold Hill Contract Name: Virginia City and Gold Hill
Wastewater Improvement Project Wastewater Improvement Project

Bidder: Ames Construction, Inc.

Bidder’s Address: 3737 West 2100 South, West Valley City, Utah 84120

TO BIDDER:

You are notified that Owner has accepted your Bid dated [_July, 21, 2017_] for the above Contract, and that
you are the Successful Bidder and are awarded a Contract for:

the base bid.
[describe Work, alternates, or sections of Work awarded]

The Contract Price of the awarded Contract is: $_10,693,775.90 (ten million six hundred ninety three thousand
seven hundred seventy five dollars and ninety cents) [note if subject to unit prices, or cost-plus]

[ 5 ] unexecuted counterparts of the Agreement accompany this Notice of Award, and one copy of the
Contract Documents accompanies this Notice of Award, or has been transmitted or made available to
Bidder electronically. [revise if multiple copies accompany the Notice of Award]

IX] a set of the Drawings will be delivered separately from the other Contract Documents.

You must comply with the following conditions precedent within 15 days of the date of receipt of this Notice
of Award:

1. Deliver to Owner [_5_]counterparts of the Agreement, fully executed by Bidder.

2. Deliver with the executed Agreement(s) the Contract security [e.g., performance and payment bonds]
and insurance documentation as specified in the Instructions to Bidders and General Conditions,

Articles 2 and 6.

3. Notice of Award is contingent on Agency approval of the Contract, per form 495-1.
4. Other conditions precedent (if any):

Failure to comply with these conditions within the time specified will entitle Owner to consider you in default,
annul this Notice of Award, and declare your Bid security forfeited.

Within ten days after you comply with the above conditions, Owner will return to you one fully executed
counterpart of the Agreement, together with any additional copies of the Contract Documents as indicated in
Paragraph 2.02 of the General Conditions.

Owner: Storey County Public Works

Authorized Signature
By:
Title:

Copy: Engineer

EJCDC" C-510, Notice of Award.
Prepared and published 2013 by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.
Pagelofl




July 26, 2017

Marshall McBride, Chairman via USPS & e-mail
Storey County Commissioners

P.O. Box 176

Virginia City, NV 89440

SUBJECT: Storey County Sewer Project Contract - Concurrence to Award Contract to
Ames Construction Inc. - $10,693,775.90

Dear Mr. McBride:

The USDA Rural Development has reviewed and concurs in Low Bid
Award to Ames Construction Inc. for the above referenced project in the
amount of $10,693,775.90.

The USDA Rural Development requests that the contract documents be
prepared to include insurance requirements and all documents including
technical specifications in one document. We will need five bound
original sets. The contract documents must be completely signed including
our agencies concurrence prior to the Pre-Construction Conference. We
need several days to complete our review before we can sign the
concurrence certificate.

If you have any questions, please call me at 775-887-1222 ext. 112, or
email me at john.nelsond@nv.usda.gov

Sincerely,

s ( Nebuon

ohn Nelson, P.E. & P.L.S.
State Engineer
USDA Rural Development (Nevada)

ce: Lucas Tipton, P.E. Farr West Engineering via e-mail
Lisa Goodfellow, USDA Rural Development via e-mail
Cherie Nevin, Storey County via e-mail



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: August 1, 2017 Estimate of time required: 45 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required | ]

1. Title: WORKSHOP — DISCUSSION ONLY - NO POSSIBLE ACTION: Discussion and
comments from the Commissioners, staff and the public regarding the possibility of participating
in an Economic Development Financing Proposal pursuant to Senate Bill 1 of the 2015 Nevada
Legislative Special Session (SB 1). Also participating will be Jeremy Aguero with Applied
Analysis and Cory Hunt with the Governor’s Office of Economic Development. Project
parameters include constructing an effluent water pipeline from the Truckee Meadows Water
Reclamation Facility (TMWREF) to the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center (TRI). The estimated cost of
the pipeline ($35 million) will be paid for from the proceeds of bonds issued by the State of
Nevada pursuant to SB 1. The bonds would be repaid from incremental tax revenues generated
within TRI. A tax increment area may be created pursuant to NRS Chapter 278C which would
incorporate all of TRI within which a portion of increased tax revenues would be dedicated to
repayment of the bonds.

2. Recommended motion: None. Workshop & Discussion Only with No Possible Action

3. Prepared by: Pat Whitten
Department: Commissioner’s Office Telephone: 847-0968

4. Staff summary: Plcase see Page 2

S. Supporting materials:  Economic Development Financing Proposal — June 2017

6. Fiscal impact: Yes

Funds Available: Future Incremental State and County Revenue  Fund: Various
Comptroller

7. Legal review required: Yes

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

( ,&’J/County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—_—
e bt

Agenda Item No.



4. Staff Summary:

During the workshop, presentations will be made by Jeremy Aguero, Principal analyst with
Applied Analysis and possibly Cory Hunt with the Governor’s Office of Economic Development.
The primary topic of discussion will be our potential to participate regionally in the importation of
treated effluent from the TMWREF to the TRI. There are essentially 3 working components
associated with this project; those being:

1. Construction and financing of a 13 mile pipeline from TMWRF to the TRI. The
projected cost on this is approximately $35 million. This is the singular project
component we would be involved with.

2. On-Site system improvements within the TRI in the estimated amount of $30 million.
We are not considering involvement in this component.

3. Valuations and negotiations on the actual transfer of water from TMWREF to TRI. We
are not involved in this component.

Legislation passed in the 2015 Special Session of the Nevada Legislature provides for the potential
creation by the Board of County Commissioners of a Tax Increment Area (TIA) within which
portions of increased tax revenues could be directed to repayment of bonds issued by the State to
cover pipeline construction costs. It is important to note that this is a multi-step process which
includes:

1. Today’s workshop to publicly discuss key factors and analysis underlying the pipeline
project and our potential participation.

2. A follow-up meeting tentatively scheduled for August 15", to consider possible
approval of our final application submittal to the Governor’s Office of Economic
Development (GOED) for consideration. Please note we are still not obligated or
bound to participate at this point.

3. If submitted, GOED has 45 days to determine the acceptability and conformity of our
application and will notify us as to if it is a “qualified” project.

4. The process then comes back to the Board of County Commissioners to potentially
establish a TIA thru additional public meetings. If established, we are then committed
to participate and portions of increased tax revenues would be dedicated as a source of
repayment of the bonds.

There is substantially more information involved in a project of this scope that can hopefully be
best provided thru public presentation and discussions during the workshop and subsequent
meetings.

Staff’s recommendation is simply to weigh and consider what you hear at the workshop, ask any
and all questions you may have and make sure you have sufficient and solid answers to potentially
base your future decisions on.



auijadid 191eM Juan|y)3 191U [eLSNPU| OUY doye]

1VSOd0dd INIINYNIH
INJWdO13A30 JINDNOD3

~£10Z 3ANN

e ——
e e i e =

= S AT A




auljadid 131eM wan|yj3 191ua) [eliisnpuj ouay aoyej \..vn/

1vSOd0dd SINIINYNIA INIWDOTIA0 JINONDDT =

(ajendoiddy papiAocid
pawaa( j|) yoeloid [epiwgng Aseuiwijaid |esodo.d Buioueui4
ay) jo Juawdojaaa( pue pue uonesijddy juswdo|aAa(] d1wouod]y
Buioueui4 10} saulawI| ay} Jo snjels s.Qjuno) Aa10)g
|enuajod ssnasiq JuaLing ayj} s9zuewwng JO M3IAIDAQ U 3PIAOId

saAnoalqQ uoijejusasaid

Z abeq



sulfadid 131eM JUaN|}3 J)UBY [eLASNPU| OUBY BOUE|  ~EEN

17S0d04d INIINVNIS ININAO13A30 JIWONDT3 =)
aioldl

’ U5 =1
VM NN L

s UDJMS
m..lnv.J. m:.“:E.icI 53 ..‘, e L

LNINAOTIIAIA DINONODT ™

LN H T ONTYHOHV]
juedijddy olland ajeAlld

siale|d Aoy

|esodold Buioueulq Juswdojanag 21wouooy
o s.fluno9 £a10)g jo MaIAIBAQ ue apinoig




auyjadid Jajepm Juanjyyd 133U 7 [RLIISNPU| OUIY aoye|

1VS0d0dd INIINVNIA INIWdOT13A30 JINONDTT uy\

- 9
VAN L
*
aoIyL et
S uoI3eIapISuon SPREAN
sqor N O iapun .
NHRAENT,  clera eui. ONTY
" AT
juswdojansg (sjuswanoldwy ayg-up)  (syuswsanoidwi 83is-}40) 1a)ep
u_Eocoom m:_mmmuo#_ 131em auljadid Jajep UENTTE|
w2 MBIIAIDAQ }o3loagd

Jesodoid Buroueuid juswdojaaaq o1wouosy

p obeg s.fjuno) £a10)g JO MAIAIBAQ UR BpIAOIg



auijadi4 1ajep JUINY}3 191UBY [BIISNPU| OURY 3oye] arf‘..“

1vSOd0Yd INIINYNIA INIWAOT13AI0 JINDNDDT =2

&
UOIIITIA UOoIjllIN VAN L
0EST GEST N’
aioidl
uoijeiapisuon wg zx b
maoq HIALNIDD THIFLS ML houp-: /
ONR HOHYL «3000id 9y L, Dviﬁ
. S e
juswdojane( (sjuswanoidwy ayg-uQ)  (spuswanoidw| a)s-10) 1a)epp
Jlwiouod3 m:.mmmoo& 13Jep auljadid Jajem wanyg

e -H = §

MBIIAIDAQ )o3louagd

|esodold Buiaueui yuswdojarag d1wouody

bl s.A3uno) Aa10)g JO MaIAIBAQ UB BpIAOId




auladid 1a1epm Juan|y3 I8jua) [BLISNPU| OU3Y 3oye]

1VS0d0dd INIINVNI INJWdOTIAI0 JIWONDD] ¢

‘uoissag [e10eds GL0Z 9yl wou si (1 gS) | lilg S1euaS aousieyal ay] 0N S

v funwgos Spadod s oy
Supiasad pue saamosar pranien oy paieja) sasodind ureuas
101 SUONRTIGO MVIS JO 2DURNSSE M) SUILPAOT  Suoisiaosd
1.:..3. nam .c.::d,.:. z.._ v &:::E,.v.:. LSy 10

asioxa pAojchus v:s nv:; asn ?_n IR HRRTT{UTER]
mpdajie o Sunuaaed  suoisiaoad  3msiaas aford

« BPEASN JO B]e]S ay]
aunenb & 01 gonejar ur panpuea sixaload s pue sdafor
AQ b@:mm\ mmmtbm.Nmec.\ .\mQ.NO .\o mm.\.t&\gomm mmb:OQ W.SLR.E |EanEy .__.«._._»Jmo_ swzi Eva..am_fs T o._,cm.nmm

o Appuihiaum v Fwzoopne paford v oEns o nonrixda
10 UDNONIISUOD dY) )0 1ITNUOD 10 adiaas ier 1431

JO Spe820.d 8y} woly paoueul 8q pinom spsfosd ol o ol pan iy e

UL GOISS| LoD =2~E§_£E_ [euoidas v w:::os__

ainjonujseljul Y] yoiym o} juensind jesodosd o ot

Buroueuly JuswidojeAsp JILIOLOIS Ue 8D Sy m___ﬂcmw,mmmamﬁm_“__mu_,_m__:m”“w_.umvw”w%

0} Jiuiqns Aew jsfoud paiyenb ey jo justwdojenap g_.___;__..e aL

ay) poddns o} spelo.d ainjonise.yul soueuy 5 Bt o £ 1o Jeee e

ON b odu e m.s m‘\mﬁ\h mm:\ Ekmhmb Nmﬁt btm NQQEQ&®>OQ JUISUAT M1 JO UNOWE Y O SUONPINDI]  SuysIeeisa

1820/ 8y} JO uoiolpsLNf 8y} UIYlIM Pajedo) st i g s

aq J/Im Jasfoid paiiienb e jey) 8o oY) Woly 890U AT ooy ; .
SoAIB0al Jel) JusLWLLIBA0B [220] & yoium o] Juensind

SUOISINO /d YSI/qe}se (119 SIY} JO 62-6) SUOII8S, pifioekivgentin f - _.,.H.Jw_“__mw_“ o m._-,,._.w_u_h,._w f Ny

HALAVITD

MNING Yy Ry oy 0 Spuos :.-:Sm:——:

SIOYAL AY) O 2IDUNUC)—] DN [JI§] MRUAS

(5L02) Lgs :uone|siba Buljqeusy

|esodoid Buioueuiq uswdojarsq oiwouody
s.fQjuno9 £210)8 Jo MaIAIBAQ Ue BpIAoid

g abey



auljadid 131eM JUBN|Y§F 13)UY [BI1ISNPU| OUSY 30ye| \Mﬂﬂ:/

1vSOd0¥d ANIINYNI INIWDOT13AI0 JIWONDDT L=

aujadid J33eM JUBN(HT J21UY [RUISNPL| OLU3Y J0YBL

Ajuno) A810}g JO SIBUOISSIWIWOY JO pJeog 1VSO404d ANIINYNI
8y} Jo |eroidde pue mainel 0} 108lQNS = INIWAOTIAIT TIWONDT3

piemuo} sanow Buroueul Aue ai049q
paje|dwod aq |m 1ey) sway Buipusd =

UoISSILANS 8y} JO 3)ep 8y} JO
Se uoljew.ojul a|qe|IeA. 1saq au) SUIBJUOY) =

d4Q3/Wod SISAjeuypaljddy MMM
'Je 9|qejieAe ale SHqIyxe
bunoddns |je pue juswnoop Alewwng =

/10Z "0 8unf uo paji4 =

paji4d uoissiuqgng Ateuiwi|aigd

papinoid eplwqgng Areujwijalg
pue uoijesljddy ay} jo snjejg JuaLIng sy} sazuewwng

| abed



auljadid 1912 M Juan|y] 181U [eLIISNPU] OUY 30Ye| P

{

1vS0d0dd INKINVNI INIWdOTIAI0 JINONDDT =

‘(suonoLsal InjonuIseul 0u 9'1) JUSWUOIIAUS PAUIBASUOOUN UB SBWNSSE IN0-pjing pajosiold :9joN
pauueld  }ingm

Sasnoyalep
lejoy MaN Buumoenuepy meN  uonnquisig MeN  siBlua) ejeq MeN Youms RIS

e (OOSeEE

o w0 (] w O uw o w
< (3 (9] o™ N ~ AT
SUOI|II| Ut 1884 aienbg

w0
s

L10¢

uondiosqy pue j}nQ-pling J1yL

papinoid [epiwqng Areujwijaid
pue uonealjddy ay) Jo snjeig Jualing ayj sazlewwng

g abey



auljadid 131eM JUBN|JJT 193U [BISNPU| OUSY 30YR] 22

1vSOd0dd INIINYNIA INIWADTIAI0 JIWONDDT L=

"(suonauisal sinjon.Iseul OU “8'1) JUSWUOJIAUS PAUIBLSUOIUN UE SBWNSSE JN0-ping pajaalold 810N
pauueld  jing m

sasnoyalepn
[leloy MaN Buunoejnuepy maN  uolnquIsSIg MeN  SJBJUSY BleQ MON YoUMS B|sa|

Yol

o
—

o
<~

(o=} w0 o w0 o
< o o o™ (9]
suoll|Iy Ul }ea4 aienbg

wn
<

020¢

uondiosqy pue 3nQ-pjing JIAL

papiroid [epiwqgng Aeulwijaig

6 abey pue uoneal|ddy ayj Jo snjejg Jualing sy} Sazuewwng



awadid 191ep Juanyyy3 13)ua) (B1IISNPU| OUBY 30YE] xunn/

TSOd0Nd ANIINYNIA INIWDOTIAID JINONDZT L=

"(suonouisal ainjonyse.yul ou “a'1) JUSWILIOJIAUS PAUIBJISUOIUN U SBLINSSE In0-pjing pajoalold ;910N
pauueld  jingm

sasnoyalep
le}ay MaN Buunjoejnuely MON  UOBNQUISIJ MBN  SIBJUSY) BIB(] MON YoUMs B|sa)

(== R Y o/
—

w
~

o Lo (e o (=)
<r o o ™ (]
SUOIIIN Ul }934 alenbg

w0
<f

G0¢

uondiosqy pue nQ-pling J1yL

papirold [epiwgng Aseuiwijaid

01 sbeg pue uoijedl|ddy ayj jo snjeis JuslIng ay} sazLewwns



aupadi4 191 M Unj17 131U |eLIISNPU OURY JoYe| \k!/

1vS0dOd INIINVNIA INIWDOT13A30 JINDONDDT ¢

‘(suonoLysal BINONJISEIUI OU “*91) JUSWILOIIAUD PAUIBASUOIUN UB SBWNSSE JN0-pjing pajoalold ;810N
pauueld  jingm

SaSNOyBIBAN
llejoy MaN Buunioejnuely meN  uonnquisig MaN  SIBjUS) Ble( MaN youms B|se |

w0

()
—

uw [em] w0 () w o w
b S <t o o ™~ N -
SUOI|IIj\ Ul 1884 81enbg

0€0¢

uondiosqy pue 3nQ-pjing J1y.L

papiroid [epiwgng Aseulwijaid

L obeg pue uonedljddy ay} Jo snjejs Jualing ay} SAZIBWWNS




aunadid Ja1ep uanjyy3 131ua) [RLISNPU] oudYy aoye] \.mW./

vSOd0¥d INIINYNI INIWADTIAI0 JINONDDT &

"(suonoujsal ainjonseul OU “9°1) JUSLUUONAUS PaUIBIISUOIUN UB SBWNSSE Jno-pjing paoslold :8joN
psuueld  Jingm

$3SNOYaI_MN
lejoy MaN Buunioejnuejy MaN  uOBNQUISIQ MON  SIBJUS)) BlB(] MaN YoUms B|sa|

0

g

0l
2

Gl 'S
@

e
&

G >
=

0€ &
=
w

Ge

)2

G

Ge0c

uondiosqy pue jnO-pling 91yl

pPapInoid [epiwgng Aseuiwijaig

71 obey pue uopjedljddy ayj jo snjels JualIng ay) sazuewwng




auljadid 1a1eM JUBN}}F 193U [BLIISNPU| OURY B0YyE) w\.}/

1vS0d0dd INIINVYNIS INIWdDTIAI0 JINONDTT °

“(suonouysal 8NoNIISELUI OU “9'1) JUBWILOJIAUS PAUIBASUOIUN UB SBWNSSE Jno-pjing pajoslold ;810N
pauleld  }ing m

Sasnoyalepy
Ie}oy MaN Bulnjoejnuep MON  UONNGUISIJ MBN  SI91USY) Ble(] MON YOUMS B|Sa |

0w o uw
~

(] 0 o o (]
< o o N N
suol||Ipy Ul }984 alenbg

(Yo
~

0v0¢

uond.iosqy pue Jno-pling J1y.L

papinold [eRiwigng Aleujwijaid

o\ obeg pue uonesijddy ayj Jo snjejs Jualing ayj saziewwng



auljadid 181ep JuaNjT 19)ua) [BLIISNPU| OUIY 3oYR)

\MJ
1vVSOd0¥d INIINVNI INIWdOT13AI0 JINONDDT & \xw.\

'(SUONOL}SBI BINJONISEIUI OU “8'1) JUSWUOIIAUS PAUIRJISUOIUN UE SBWNSSE IN0-pjing pajoslold ;910N
pauueld  jingm

sasnoysiepp
[le19y MaN Buunoejnuepy meN  uolnquisSig MaN  SIBlu) Ble( MaN YoIms BjSa |

o
ponted

w0
o™N

(e}
N
SUOI||IAl Ul 1884 aienbg

Ge
0y
G

Gv0c

uond.iosqy pue }no-pling Jjdl

paplinoid [epiwgng Ateujwijaig

— pue uonesljddy ayj Jo snjejs Juainy ay} sazuewwWNG



autjadid 191e M WUBN)JYT 131UB) [BIIISNPU| OUIY BoYe] \.M.if,.,.

-~

1vSOd0¥d INIINYNIA INIWAD13A30 JINONDTT L=

620°'9£6'82$ 51509 193l04d 9)S-HO [e10L
GL9'6L1 LS s}s0)) buussuibug pue “Aousbunuo?) ‘uipy
0S1LvEE' LS S1S07) UONONJSU0Y uoie)g dwnd
09Z'2ey'02$ $1S07) UONONAISUOY) auladid
109 357 Juawa|g j99foid

S3S09 }oaload 9318410 Jo Atewnwing

papinoid [epiwqng Ateujwijalg

5| abey pue uoijedljddy ayj Jo snjelg Jualing ay} sazuewwng



auljadid Ja1ep Juanjyy3 Jajua) |eLISNpu| ouay aoye] \m..h/

1vSOdOd INIINYNIA INIWDOTIAI0 JINONDDT =

(saseyaind [eusiepy pue juswdinb3) (Jloiheq)
Xe] s pue sajes Xe] ssauisng paiipon

saxe] Auadoid |eay

}oaloid a9y} 10} SnNuUaAay JO S224n0S

papInod [epiwgng Areuiwijaid
pue uonesljddy ay} Jo SNeJS JULINY aY) SAZLBWWNS

9 abed



auljadid 1a1ep Juanjy)3 131ua) [eLIISNpU] ouay aoyej

g /
7

1SOd0Yd SNIINYNH ININAOTIA0 JINONDT3 -

XB] 8S(] R S9|eS X ssauisng paipop = xe| Ausdold [euosiad xe] Ayadold [esy m

S

L L L
S S
v D

QL

& ®
0$

0Z$
0v$
| | | 08$
001$

0z1L$

SUOIIIIN

1) 4%
SJuUsWa}eqy JO JoN ‘Senuaasy dljgnd |ejoL

SI9NUIAIY 2ljqnd pa3jo3aloid

papiAoid [eRiwqgng Aseulwifaig
pue uonedljddy ay3 Jo snjeIS JudLINY BY) SAZIIBWIWNG

/| 8bed



auijadid 191ep Juanyyj3 133U [eLSNPuU| OudY oye| \myfx.

YS0dOYd NIINVNH ININOTIAI0 JINONDDT L=

Xe| 9S(] @ S9|eS Xe| sseuisng pauipojy #  xe] Auadoid [euosiad xe| Auadoid [eoy m

0$

018
0z$
0c$
0v$

0G$
09$

0/$
=

08$

Suol

068
SJuswWaleqy JO JoN ‘SanudAsY 2ljqnd [eluswalou|

SINUIAIY Jljgnd poa3oaloag

papinoid [eplwqgng Ateuiwijaid

ol abey pue uonedljddy ay) jo snjejs JudLINg Sy} SAZUBWWNG



m_.___wa_n_ 131E A Juanj}iy 18jua]) [elysnpuj ouay aoyej .-\nqlf

1v30d0d INIINVNI INFWdOT13A30 JINONDTT &

Jea | (Juos4 dn spaso0id WOy pied) sanlasay 99IAIeS 1qa( palinbay
X0'€ (3010198 18 0} 9AE[EY MO|4 YSeD) wnuwiulyy) 8beienor) paiinbay
SIeaA 7 18114 (Buiziuowy-uoN) pouad AjuQ-isessiuj
L0€°€01 'S JUnowy 82IAJBS 198(] [Bnuuy Buiziowy
SIeaA G7 wi9|
%€0 ¥ PBIA/B1EY 1S8.8)U|
9%9'986°C$ wniwaid
000'G5G'8Z$ Junowy Jed
anjep suondwnssy

Arewnwing Buiosoueuid puog

papirold [epiwqgng Azeulwijaid

— pue uonesijddy ayj Jo snjejs Jualing ayj sazuewwng



auljadid 1ajep Juanyyj3 13jua) (eLSNpU) 0UlY aoye|

1VS0d0dd GNIINYNI INIWdOTIAI0 JINONDIT {\

9v9°LpS 1LES sas() [el0l
88¢ Aouabunuo)
809'G8l Juno9JsIq S J8)lIMIBPUN
000°00¢€ aoUBNss| JO 1S0)
0625012 pun4 aAlasay 80IAIBS 193(]
000°056'82$ pun josloig
sas()

9v9'L¥S LES $991n08 [}0]
9v9'986'C wniwaldg
000'G55'82$ JUNOWY ey
$99.N0g

S9SM pue $224nho¢g

papiroid [epiwgng Aseulwijaid

oy pue uones||ddy ayj Jo snjelg JusLIng sy} Sazuewwng



| Z 8bed

auljadid 1818 M JUBN|}§F 13U [BLISNPU| OUBY 30YER)

1VSOdOdd INIINYNIA INIWDOTIAI0 JINONDDS

XIC'LE
XGpy 9€
X6.'GE
Xp0'GE
X6 Ve
X20've
X9C LE
Xy L' EE
X0G'9€E
XEQ'EE
X1GTE
XG6'9¢
X00'€C
X0Z'¢C
X8E'LC
X€G'0C
X0L'6)
X968}
X11'8)
XEZ' 0}
XGE'6

X608

TR

X39°c

Owo.m

N

oley abeiono)

£E6'£E€'8LS
GLY'SGL9L$
696 ¥0Z'GL$
108'G89°€L$
L9€°/61'2L$
66695 1L$
96'G8€'8.$
v0Zv20’LL$
L97'6¥2'9L$
#56'20L'0L$
182'06£'89%
L1£'659'9G8
056'19€'8Y$
88y L¥9'9v$
89L'GE6 T¥$
L£0°'0ZZ'er$
610225 LY
99.7c8'6E$
G501 '8e$
AT YA
£6v289'6L$
1G2'920°LL$
680°15.'9%

6£66.6 1%

08v'8L1 %S

9l6'v/2'cS
ETELE I

0%
000'500'2$
000°GL6'C$
000°0€2'G$
000°09%°2$
000°0}1'6$
000°089'01$
000°G2L'ZLS$
000°009°€1$
000656171 $
000°G¥Z'9L$
000'G¥'LLS
000°G¥9'8L$
000092618
000°028°02$
000'0€8°1Z$
000'66.22$
000'G12'€2$
000'G65 723
000°G¥¥'GZ$
000°092'9Z$
000°050'22$
000°G18'22$
000'655'8Z$
000'655'8Z$
000'G85'82$

ajue|eg buipug

052501 2$
0G2'G0L2$
005'L0L2$
000°€0} 2$
006501 Z$
00001 2$
0GL'€0L'C$
000'G01 Z$
062'201'2$
052201 2$
0G2'€0LC$
052201 2$
000'€0} 2$
000101 '2$
005°1012$
0GL'¥01'C$
0G)°10L2$
05200128
0SL'¥01'2$
0S€204 TS
00050} ¢$
€980} C$
£90°201 2$
€9029¢'}$
£909¢'}$
0$

juawdAed [ejo|

052°001$
052'G61$
005'98Z$
000'€€$
00G'G5¥$
000'v€S$
052'809%
000°'089$
0SL'Ly/L$
052°C18$
052'¢/8%
0522¢6$
000'886$
000'L¥0'L$
005°160'L$
0SLBEL'LS
051°18L°L$
06L02Z'L$
0SLYST'L$
05€'282'L$
000GLE'LS
€98'6£€ LS
£9079E'L$
£90°79€'LS
£90729¢'1$
0$

1S919)U]

000'500C$
000°0L6°L$
0005181
0000€L'L$
000'059°L$
000°025°}$
0005671 $
000°GZy'1$
000'55€"1$
000'06Z°1$
000°0€Z'L$
000°0L}$
000'GLL'LS
000'090°1$
000'0L0°L$
000°G96$
000°026$
000°088$
000'058$
0006189
000068
000'G9.$
000°0v.$
0$

0$

0$
jedisund

000°500C$

000'G16'c$

000°0€.'G$

000°09%°L$

000'0L1'6$

000'089°01$
000621 CL$
000°009°€L$
000'G56'71$
00057291 $
000'GL¥'LLS
000'6¥9°84$
00009264 $
000028°0¢$
000'0€8'L.2$
00066223
000'G}.°€2$
000665 7Z$
000°Gt¥'GZ$
000'092'92$
000°050°£Z$
000618°22$
000'555'82$
000955 '82$
000°555'82$
000655 '82$

aoue|eq e

£V0C Je3A
Cv0C 1BOA
BAVAELLIN
0v0C JedA|
6E0C Jes\
8E0C 1ea\
LEOT 1BBA|
9E0C fEd)]
GEQC 1es\
vEQC JesA
€E0C Jes
CE0C 1B3A]
LE0T fea
0E0C 1eaA
620Z JesA
820C 1B\
IRAVALESIN
920¢ Jes;
RTAVALEIN
I{AVALEN
£C0¢ Jeaj
[AAVALEI
120C JBS A
020¢ 1eap
610C JESA

81L0C Jes\
0€ aunp buipu3 1ea)

aINpayos juawiiedsay puog

papirold [epiwgng Aseulwijaig
pue uoinealjddy ay} jo sniejs Jualing ay} sazuewwng

-~




Page 22

Ee
o
4+
|
O

-;
©

2

o
Q.

<
<%

i

ot

o
o
2]
=

b
(S

—

wv

=0
=
5]
S
B
=

(&)
eb)

<

=
w
o)
N
=
(1]
=
=
=
75

Preliminary Submittal Provided

Bond Coverage Ratio (3.0x Min.)

20.0
15.0
10.0

<
Te)
N

40.0
35.0
30.0

{

Tahoe Reno Industrial Center Effluent Water Pipeline

—d
=
%!
(=]
0
=
=
=
]
=
]
=
=
=
b,
from—s
=
[
-3
=
=]
o
LJ
—_—
[
=
2
>3
=]
=
=]
]
Ll

i

g/




aul[adid 1a1epm Wuan|§§3 131Ua) jBISNPU OUBY B0YE] \..q.)rf

1VSOd0Yd INIINVNI ININDOTIAI0 JINONDDT =

uoiuido Ayjigeoljddy abepp buljieasid ;119 =

Ue|q 9oUeINSU| UononJsu0y) pue juswdoeasd 0l 9 =
SjuawWwaalby [e20IdlU| 609 =

Juswaaiby suonesadp pue Juswabeuel 809 =
oSed|oy 9leIS /09 =

Juswaalby Juswdojersd 90’9 =

Juswaaiby Ajinoag 108loid paiend 09 =
Juswaalby JusWasINqWIBY 00 =

JUsWaaIbY 84NjoniSelju| €00 =

Juswaalby Buioueuld ;70’9 =

sjuawaailby buipusad

papinold [epiwgng Aleujwijaid
_ocm:o_ﬁmo__&e.m;:omEBmEESow:ummn_hmessm

¢z abeq



auljadid 131eM Jusnjy3 18U jELIISNPU] OUIY 0YR]

VSOd0Nd INIINYNIA INIWAOTIAI0 JINONDDT S

"UOISIASI PUB M3IABJ [BLIRJEW 0} 103IqNS pUE SAI)US) 8l SauljdwWI | BjoN

.".

uoye|dwo) Joafoid [jeIsAQ

JuswdojeAs(] ainjonJiselu|

9INJONJISEAU] 3NS-UQ

uawdojeAs( ainjonsiselul
. aouenss|/bunaepy puog
sjuawaalby Jayl0 % |edos|

leaciddy 309

sbuyalig 4309
uoneoiiddy fenu|

3INJoNJISeljuf 93IS-H0
VO €D 20 LO|vO €O 2O LO|ZL L OL 60 80O L0 90 SHSVL
610¢ 810¢ L10¢

(eanejua)) aulawiy 3oafoid

(a1enidosddy pawaaq ) 108loid oy} jo Juswdojanaq
pue Buioueuidq Joj sauljdawi] |ei3ud}0d SSNISIQ

yz abed



aujjadid 12)1epM Jusny3 131Ud) [BLIISNPU| QudYy 3oye]

1VSOdO¥d INIINYNIA INJWdOTIAI0 JINONDD3 %




auljadid JaleM Juanyy)3 191ud) |eLISNPU| OUY doye]

1VS0d0wd INIINVNIS
INJWdO13A30 JIKONDI3




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: August 1, 2017 Estimate of time required: 15
minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [ X ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Consideration and possible action to approve Resolution No. 17-467 authorizing the
Fire Chief to prohibit discharge of firearms in wildland areas during times of high fire danger.

2. Recommended motion: I move to approve Resolution 17-467 authorizing the Fire Chief to
declare a temporary prohibition on discharge of firearms in wildland areas and authorize
the chairman to sign.

3. Prepared by: Keith Loomis
Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964

4, Staff summary: NRS 244.364(3) authorizes the Boards of County Commissioners to prohibit
by ordinance or regulation the unsafe discharge of fircarms. The discharge of firearms in
wildland areas during times of high fire danger has lead to numerous wildland fires. The
resolution would prohibit the discharge of firearms in wildland areas whenever the Fire
Chief of the Storey County Fire Protection District determines that due to fire conditions
the discharge of firearms in wildland areas should not be allowed.

5. Supporting materials: Resolution No. 17-467

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

X District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
]

[] Denied [ Continued



RESOLUTION NO. 17- 467

RESOLUTION Prohibiting the Discharge of Firearms in Wildland Areas
When Warranted by Fire Conditions.

WHEREAS, NRS 244.364(3) authorizes the Boards of County Commissioners to

prohibit by ordinance or regulation the unsafe discharge of firearms.; and,

WHEREAS, A wet winter followed by hot summer weather has resulted in the

accumulation of a large amount of dry vegetation throughout Storey County; and,

WHEREAS; The accumulation of dry vegetation has created dangerous wildland fire

conditions throughout Storey County, and,

WHEREAS, Other jurisdictions in Nevada have already experienced significant

wildland fires, and

WHEREAS, At least nine of these wildland fires are suspected to have been caused by

target shooting in wildland areas, and:

WHEREAS, The United States Department of Agriculture, Forest Service has instituted
a temporary shooting ban in the Carson Ranger District of the Humboldt Toiyabe National

Forest, and,

WHEREAS. It is in the interest of public health, well-being and safety to restrict the

discharge of firearms during times of high fire danger.

NOW THEREFORE IS IT HEREBY RESOLVED THAT THE FOLLOWING

REGULATION BE IMPLEMENTED AS SET FORTH FOLLOWING;



. The discharge of firearms in the wildland areas of Storey County is temporarily prohibited
whenever the Chief of the Storey County Fire Protection District determines that
environmental conditions pose a significant wildland fire danger and that the discharge of
firearms in the wildland areas as designated in a map prepared by the fire chief should be
prohibited.

. The temporary prohibition on the discharge of firearms will remain in effect for so long as
the Chief of the Storey County Fire Protection District determines that the prohibition should
remain in effect.

. The fire chief’s determination must be contained in a writing which sets forth the area within
which the prohibition should be applicable and sets out the length of time the prohibition
should remain in effect.

. This regulation does not prohibit any federal, state or local law enforcement officer, fire
fighting officer or search and rescue officer from discharging a firearm in the performance of
lawful duty.

. This regulation does not prohibit licensed hunters who are hunting during a designated
hunting season from discharging firearms in accordance with applicable local, state and

federal regulations.

ADOPTED this day of , 2017

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF STOREY COUNTY

By:

MARSHALL McBRIDE, Chairman

ATTEST:

VANESSA STEPHENS
Storey County Clerk/Treasurer



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: August 1,2017 Estimate of time required: 15 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [ X ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Consideration and possible approval of appointment of Anne Delahay as the appraiser to
appraise the value of the parcel of real property located at 10 S. B Street in Virginia City,
Nevada.

SFY

. Recommended motion: [ move to approve the appointment of Anne Delahay as the appraiser
to appraise the value of the parcel of real property located at 10 S. B Street in Virginia
City, Nevada.

3. Prepared by: Keith Loomis
Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964

4. Staff summary: The County is considering making an offer to purchase the parcel of land at 10
S. B Street in Virginia City. Under NRS 244.275 in order to purchase real property, the
value of the property must be appraised and its value fixed by an appraiser appointed for
that purpose by the Board of County Commissioners. Ms. Delahay has previously
provided appraisals of properties in Virginia City.

5. Supporting materials: None

6. Fiscal impact: Cost of Appraisal
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

X  District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[1] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

e



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: August 1, 2017 Estimate of time required: 1 min

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: For possible action approval Resolution 17-466 Designating the County Courthouse as
the public location for auctions conducted pursuant to NRS 107.080

2. Recommended motion Approve Resolution 17-466 Designating the County Courthouse as the
public location for auctions conducted pursuant to NRS 107.080

3. Prepared by: Jessie Fain /Keith Loomis

Department: Administrative Telephone: 847-0968

4. Staff summary: Procedural matter per NRS 107-080 and Senate Bill 267
S. Supporting materials: Resolution 17-466, SB 267

6. Fiscal impact: none

Funds Available: n/a Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Administrative

-/:2 “:_ County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[ ] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[r— —
—_— —

Agenda Item No



RESOLUTION 17-466

RESOLUTION DESIGNATING THE COUNTY COURTHOUSE AS THE PUBLIC
LOCATION FOR AUCTIONS CONDUCTED PURSUANT TO NRS 107.080

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 267 of the 79" Session of the Nevada Legislature (SB 267)
amended NRS 107.081(2) to state that all sales of real property must be made at the public
location in the county designated by the governing body of the county for that purpose; and

WHEREAS, prior to SB 267’s passage, real property auctions conducted pursuant to
NRS 107.080 were required to be conducted at the courthouse for the county; and

WHEREAS, SB 267 did not provide a default provision where real property auctions
conducted pursuant to NRS 107.080 are to take place between the effective date of SB 267, and
the date the County designates a location for real property auctions conducted pursuant to NRS

107.080; and

WHEREAS, SB 267 was to become effective upon passage and approval, which
approval occurred on May 25, 2017; and

WHEREAS, real property auctions conducted pursuant to NRS 107.080 were in progress
and scheduled to take place at the County’s Courthouse between the effective date of SB 267 and
the date the County designates a location for real property auctions conducted pursuant to NRS
107.080; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the public that the County’s Courthouse remain
the designated location for real property auctions conducted pursuant to NRS 107.080:

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of County Commissioners that:

1. Pursuant to NRS 107.081, the public location for sales of real property pursuant to
NRS 107.080 is hereby designated as the County’s Courthouse located at 26 S. B
Street, Virginia City, NV 89440.

2. To the extent authorized by law, this designation is retroactively effective to May 25,
2017, the date of the approval of SB 267 by Governor Sandoval.

This resolution shall be effective on the 1% day of August, 2017.

PROPOSED AND ADOPTED this 1st day of August, 2017.

Page 1 of 2



THOSE VOTING AYE:

THOSE VOTING NAE:
STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Marshall McBride, Chairman

ATTEST:

CLERK TO THE BOARD

Page 2 of 2



Nevadalegal

support services

June 13, 2017

Storey County Board of County
26 South B Street

Virginia City, NV 89440

Re: Request for designation of a location for real property auctions conducted pursuant to
NRS 107.080
Storey County Board of County,

During this most recent session of the Nevada State Legislature, Senate Bill 267 was enacted (a
copy of which is enclosed, “SB 267) which amended NRS 107.081(2) to require that all sales of real
property conducted pursuant to NRS 107.080 (“Auctions™) be held at a public location in the county
designated by this Board. SB 267 failed to provide, however, a default provision designating an interim
location where Auctions were to be conducted after the enactment of SB 267 but prior to this Board’s formal
designation of a location for such Auctions (“Interim’).

As you may be aware, our company, Nevada Legal Support Services, is the entity primarily
responsible for conducting Auctions within this jurisdiction. Prior to SB 267’s passage, these Auctions
were held at the courthouse for the county (“County Courthouse”). In order to avoid disrupting any of the
ongoing Auctions during the Interim, we have not made any effort to move the Auction location away from
the County Courthouse nor do we have any desire to do so in the future as the County Courthouse is both:
(a) casily accessible by the public; and (b) widely regarded by interested parties as the traditional location
for Auctions within this jurisdiction.

For the above reasons, we respectfully request this Board:

1. Designate the County Courthouse, which is located at 26 S. B Street, Virginia City, NV

89440 as the location for sales of real property conducted pursuant to NRS 107.080; and



Nevada legal |

Support services

24 Ratify, confirm and approve nun pro tunc any sales of real property made pursuant to NRS
107.080 which took place at the County Courthouse between the enactment of SB 267 and the adoption of
the attached resolution as having taken place at the required designated location in this jurisdiction.

Thank you in advance for your consideration in this matter. Should you have questions or require
any additional information, please feel free to contact me by phone or email.

Respectfully, )

Ty 9y

Stephanie Sibley

Nevada Legal Support Services, LLC

930 S. 4th Street, Suite #200
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

(702) 382-2747 Phone



Senate Bill No. 267-Senators Ford and Harris

CHAPTER..........

AN ACT relating to real property; revising provisions governing the
auction of property pursuant to the power of sale under a
deed of trust; revising provisions requiring certain
mortgagees and beneficiaries of a deed of trust to provide
certain contact information to the Division of Financial
Institutions of the Department of Business and Industry;
providing for the continuation of certain provisions relating
to an expedited process for the foreclosure of abandoned
residential property; and providing other matters properly
relating thereto.

Legislative Counsel’s Digest:

Under existing law, the trustee under a deed of trust concerning owner-
occupied housing has the power to sell the property to which the deed of trust
applies, subject to certain restrictions. (NRS 107.080, 107.085, 107.086) Existing
law requires such a salc to be made: (1) in a county whose population is less than
100,000 (currently all counties other than Clark and Washoe Counties), at the
courthouse in the county in which the property or some part thereof is situated; or
(2) in a county whose population is 100,000 or more (currently Clark and Washoe
Countics), at the public location in the county designated by the governing body of
the county for that purpose. (NRS 107.081) Section 1 of this bill removes the
population cap to require any such sale to be made at a public location in the county
designated by the governing body of the county for that purpose.

Existing law requires a financial institution that is a mortgagee or beneficiary of
a deed of trust under certain residential mortgage loans to provide to the Division of
Financial Institutions of the Department of Business and Industry the name and
certain contact information of a person to whom: (1) a borrower or a representative
of a borrower must send information and notices to facilitate a mediation under the
Foreclosure Mediation Program; and (2) a unit-owners’ association must mail
notices concerning the foreclosure of the association’s lien on a unit, Existing law
further requires the Division to maintain this information on its Internet website and
provide a prominent display of; or a link to, this information on the home page of
its Internet website. (NRS 657.110) Section 1.5 of this bill requires any morigagee
or beneficiary of a deed of trust under a residential mortgage loan to provide the
Division with such contact information.

Senate Bill No. 278 of the 2013 Legislative Session (S.B. 278): (1) established
an expedited process for the foreclosure of abandoned residential property: and (2)
authorized a board of county commissioners or the governing body of an
incorporated city to establish by ordinance a registry of abandoned residential real
property and a registry of real property in danger of becoming abandoned. (Chapter
330, Statutes of Nevada 2013, p. 1543) The provisions of S.B. 278 expirc by
limitation on June 30, 2017, Section 2 of this bill extends the prospective expiration
of the provisions of S.B. 278 to June 30, 2021.

@ 79th Session (2017)



=1

EXPLANATION - Matter in bolded italics is ncw; matter b brackets | 4 H is material 10 be omited

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, REPRESENTED IN
SENATE AND ASSEMBLY, DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. NRS 107.081 is hereby amended to read as follows:

107.081 1. All sales of property pursuant to NRS 107.080
must be made at auction to the highest bidder and must be made
between the hours of 9 a.m. and 5 p.m. The agent holding the sale
must not become a purchaser at the sale or be interested in any
purchase at such a sale.

2. Allsales of real property must be made
—f{a)-tn-a-county—with-a-population-of-less-than-100,000, at the
courthouse-in-the-county-in-which-the property or some-part-thereof

ith-a-population-of -100,000-or-mere} at the
public location in the county designated by the governing body of
the county for that purpose.

Sec. 1.5. NRS 657.110 is hereby amended to read as follows:

657.110 1. A} Each morigagee or beneficiary of a deed of
trust under a residential morigage loan, including, without
limitation, a bank, credit union, savings bank, savings and loan
association, thrift company or other financial institution which is
licensed, registered or otherwise authorized to do business in this
State , fand-which-is-the-mortgagee or-beneficiary of a deed of trust

Sidentt } shall provide to the Division of
Financial Institutions the name, street address and any other contact
information of a person to whom:

(a) A borrower or a representative of a borrower must send any
document, record or notification necessary to facilitate a mediation
conducted pursuant to NRS 40.437 or 107.086.

(b) A unit-owners’ association must send any notice required to
be given pursuant to NRS 116.3116 to 116.31168, inclusive.

2. The Division of Financial Institutions shall maintain on its
Internet website the information provided to the Division pursuant
to subsection 1 and provide a prominent display of, or a link to, the
information described in subsection |, on the home page of its
[nternet website.

3. As used in this section:

(a) “Borrower” means a person who is a mortgagor or grantor of
a deed of trust under a residential mortgage loan.

(b) “Residential mortgage loan” means a loan which is primarily
for personal, family or household use and which is secured by a

I.Eﬁ. 79th Session (2017)



3

mortgage or deed of trust on owner-occupied housing as defined in
NRS 107.086.
Sec. 2. Section 7 of chapter 330, Statutes of Nevada 2013, at
page 1555, is hereby amended to read as follows:
Sec. 7. This act becomes effective on July 1, 2013, and
expires by limitation on June 30, {2647} 2021.
Sec. 3. This act becomes effective upon passage and approval.

20 e 17

g 79th Session (2017)



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

LIQUOR BOARD

Meeting date: 8/1/17 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ |

1. Title: First reading for On-sale Liquor License. Applicant is Turk Cobell, managing member of
Electric Avenue Hotel LLC located at 795 USA Pkwy., McCarran, Nevada.

2. Recommended motion: I motion to approve as part of the consent agenda the first reading,
an On & Off sale Liquor License for Electric Avenue Hotel LLC located at 795 USA

Pkwy., McCarran, Nevada.
3. Prepared by: Brandy Gavenda, Administrative Assistant %’

Department: SCSO Telephone: 775-847-0959

4. Staff summary: First reading for On-sale Liquor License. Applicant is Turk Cobell, managing
member of Electric Avenue Hotel LLC located at 795 USA Pkwy., McCarran, Nevada.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda letter

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
~ X Department Head Department Name: Gerald Antinoro

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[1] Denied

] Approved with Modifications
Continued

,_”_,
nd

Agenda [tem No.



STOREY COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE

Gerald Antinoro
Sheriff

July 18, 2017

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office
Pat Whitten, County Manager

Fr: Brandy Gavenda %

Please add the following item(s) to the August 1, 2017 Commissioners Consent
Agenda:

LICENSE BOARD

First Reading:

A. General Business License - Turk Cobell, Managing Member, 795 USA Pkwy.,
McCarran

LIQUOR BOARD

First Reading:

B. On & Off Sale Liquor License — Turk Cobell, Managing Member, 795 USA
Pkwy., McCarran

PO Box 498
205 South C Street
Virginia City, NV 89440
Office: (775) 847-0959 Fax: (775) 847-0924



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: August 1, 2017 Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution 17-468 approving certain
findings made by the Director of the Department of Business and Industry of the State of Nevada
pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes Section 349.580 relating to the financing of a solid waste
disposal facility project located in the County of Storey; and providing other matters relating
thereto.

2. Recommended motion: [, (Commissioner), move for approval of Resolution 17-468
approving certain findings made by the Director of the Department of Business and Industry of the
State of Nevada pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes Section 349.580 relating to the financing of a
solid waste disposal facility project located in the County of Storey; and providing other matters
relating thereto.

3. Prepared by: Pat Whitten

Department: Commissioner’s Office Telephone: 847-0968
4. Staff summary: Please see Page 2
5. Supporting materials:  Draft Resolution 17-468

Director’s Findings
Resolution 17-463

6. Fiscal impact: No

Funds Available: N/A Fund: _ Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
_ District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
_ Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
/?)U_%my Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—_——
[ Y-

Agenda Item No.



4. Staff summary: The Board of Commissioners approved Resolution # 17-463 at their June 30,
2017 Special Meeting evidencing support of Fulcrum Sierra Biofuels efforts to obtain bonding and
funding support thru the Nevada Department of Business & Industry. As part of that process, the
Director of the Department of Business & Industry has determined certain findings which are
outlined on pages 4 thru 7 (S-1) of the Director’s Findings provided. The Director represents the
Findings comply with NRS 349.580 (2) and is recommending approval of the provided resolution
by the Board of Commissioners. Please note provision # 4 on the draft resolution specifies that
“nothing in this resolution obligates the County in any way with respect to the Project or the
Bonds. This is simply the next step to support Fulcrum in obtaining bond financing thru the State.
Staff recommends approval of Resolution 17-468.

Special Note: Please consider draft resolution language as subject to change in minor but
important areas. Our District Attorney’s Office is reviewing and considering suggested changes.



RESOLUTION NO. 17-468

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF
THE COUNTY OF STOREY APPROVING CERTAIN FINDINGS MADE
BY THE DIRECTOR OF THE DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND
INDUSTRY OF THE STATE OF NEVADA PURSUANT TO NEVADA
REVISED STATUTES SECTION 349.580 RELATING TO THE
FINANCING OF A SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL FACILITY PROJECT
LOCATED IN THE COUNTY OF STOREY; AND PROVIDING OTHER
MATTERS PROPERLY RELATING THERETO.

WHEREAS, Fulcrum Sierra BioFuels, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
(“Fulecrum”™), a wholly owned subsidiary of Fulcrum BioEnergy, Inc. (the “Operator”), has
applied to the Director of the State of Nevada Department of Business and Industry (the
“Director”) for the issuance of industrial development revenue bonds (the “Bonds”) pursuant to
Nevada Revised Statutes (“NRS”) Sections 349.400 to 349.670 for the purpose of assisting in the
financing of a facility to be used for the disposal of solid waste and conversion to renewable fuel
products to be owned by Fulcrum and operated by the Operator, consisting of real and personal
property to be located at 3600 Peru Drive in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center in Storey County,
Nevada (the “Project™); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to NRS Section 349.580, the Director, after reviewing the
application and other materials submitted to the Director, has made certain findings with respect
to the financing of the Project as are provided in the “Findings of the Director of the State of
Nevada Department of Business and Industry Pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes 349.580(2)
Relating to the Financing of an Industrial Project to be Located in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial
Center, Storey County, Nevada” (the “Director’s Findings”™), contained in a Memorandum of
Findings, dated July 14, 2017, addressed to the Nevada State Board of Finance and the Storey
County (the “County”) Board of County Commissioners (the “Board of County
Commissioners”); and

WHEREAS, the Director requests in the Director’s Findings that the Board of County
Commissioners approve the Director’s Findings pursuant to Section 349.580(2); and

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners has reviewed the Director’s
documents and heard testimony before the Board of County Commissioners concerning the
Director’s Findings;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners of
Storey County, Nevada the following:

l. The Director’s Findings be and the same hereby are approved pursuant to NRS
Section 349.580(2), based upon the materials submitted by the Director and other material
submitted to the Board of County Commissioners and testimony described above in the final
preamble hereto. This approval is made for the purposes of NRS Section 349.580(2). It is not (i)
an analysis of the Bonds or the appropriateness or risks of the Bonds as investments, (ii) a
guarantee, or (iii) a finding that there is no risk in the Project, the Bonds or both.

Page 1 of 2



2. The approval in Paragraph 1 is based upon the satisfaction of the requirements of
the Director.

3. The Clerk-Treasurer of the Board of County Commissioners is hereby authorized
and directed to mail a certified copy of this Resolution to the Director.

4. Nothing in this Resolution obligates the County in any way with respect to the
Project or the Bonds.

5. If any action taken herein is found to be unenforceable, the remaining actions and
provisions of this Resolution shall remain valid and enforceable unless and until the Board of
County Commissioners determines otherwise.

6. The County Manager and County Attorney are authorized to take all steps
necessary to carry out the actions taken herein and to carry out the purpose and intent of this
Resolution.

7. This Resolution shall be effective upon its passage and approval.

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 1st day of August, 2017.

AYES:
NAYS:
Marshall McBride
Chairman
ATTEST:

Vanessa A. Stephens
County Clerk-Treasurer

Page 2 of 2



BRIAN SANDOVAL BRUCE H. BRESLOW
Governor Director

STATE OF NEVADA

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY
OFFICE OF THE DIRECTOR

MEMORANDUM OF FINDINGS

TO: Nevada State Board of Finance and Storey County Board of County
Commissioners

FROM: Bruce Breslow, Director, State of Nevada Department of Business
and Industry

DATE: July 14, 2017

RE: Memorandum of the Director Substantiating Findings Pursuant to Nevada

Revised Statutes 349.580(2) and 349.590 relating to the issuance of industrial
revenue bonds for the Fulcrum Project

BACKGROUND

Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 349.400 through 349.670, inclusive, (the “Act”) authorize
the Director of the State of Nevada Department of Business and Industry (the “Director”) to issue
industrial development revenue bonds for financing projects owned, operated, or used by one or
more obligors for industrial uses, including assembling, fabricating, manufacturing, processing or
warehousing.

The State Board of Finance (the “Board of Finamcc”) and the Board of County
Commissioners of Storey County, Nevada (the “County Commissioners™) are being asked to
approve findings of the Director in connection with a proposed issuance of approximately
$150,000,000 Director of the State of Nevada Department of Business and Industry Environmental
Improvement Revenue Bonds (Fulcrum Sierra BioFuels, LLC Project), Series 2017 (Green Bonds)
(the “Bonds™). Fulcrum Sierra BioFuels, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, validly
authorized to do business under the laws of the State of Nevada (“Fulcrum™) has requested the
Director issue Bonds on its behalf. Proceeds from the Bonds will be used for the purpose of
assisting in the financing of an approximately 19.4-acre solid waste disposal facility to be owned
by Fulcrum and operated by Fulcrum BioEnergy, Inc. (the “Operator”), and consisting of real and

Carson City: 830 College Parkway, Suite 100 Carson City, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 884-2996 - Fax (775) 684-2098

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suile 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
www business.nv.gov



personal property to be located at 3600 Peru Drive in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, in Storey
County, Nevada (the “Project”).

Fulerum submitted its application for this industrial development bond financing to the
Director in April 2017 (the “Application™). A summary memorandum of the Application and
proposed financing prepared by the financial advisor to the Director is attached hereto as
Exhibit A. The Director and Fulcrum signed a Letter of Agreement as of May 10, 2017, setting
forth certain requirements and fees to be paid by Fulecrum for the bond financing. Pursuant to NRS
349.585 the Director received approval of the Office of Economic Development to finance the
Project on June 23, 2017, attached hereto as Exhibit B. The Director also received a resolution in
support of the Project from the County adopted June 30, 2017, attached hereto as Exhibit C. The
Director issued a certificate of private activity volume cap allocation dated June 26, 2017, attached
hereto as Exhibit D. A public hearing to receive public comment regarding the issuance of the
Bonds and necessary to satisfy the public approval requirement of Section 147(f) of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “TEFRA Hearing”) will be held on August 1, 2017.
Subject to final approval from the Board of Finance and the County Commissioners, the Bonds
will be sold in a negotiated, limited public offering and are expected to be issued by the end of
September 2017, subject to market conditions.

The Bonds and the interest due thereon will not be an obligation, debt or liability of the
State of Nevada or the Director and will not constitute or give rise to any pecuniary liability or
charge against the credit of the Director or the credit or taxing power of the State of Nevada, but
will be a limited obligation payable solely from loan payments made by Fulcrum, the guaranty of
the Operator and other revenues derived from the financing.

As a prerequisite to the issuance of the Bonds, attached are findings of the Director as
required by NRS 349.580(2) (the “Findings”) for approval by the Board of Finance and County
Commissioners. Additional considerations of the Director as set forth in NRS 349.590 (the
“Additional Considerations™) are also attached.

Additional documents relevant to the Findings and Additional Considerations have been
placed on file with the Ex-Officio Secretary of the Board of Finance and the County Manager of
Storey County and are available for review by the Board of Finance and County Commissioners.
A list of such additional documents is attached to the Findings. The Findings are based on the
totality of the record, and the Director has not attempted to list each element of the record which
has led to each of the determinations made in the Findings. The Director, in consultation with
financial professionals, legal counsel and bond counsel, represents the Findings comply with NRS
349.580(2) and recommends approval of the Findings by the Board of Finance and the County
Commissioners for the issuance of the Bonds.

If the Board of Finance and County Commissioners approve the Findings as required by
law, the financing may proceed. Effective upon receipt of the Board of Finance and County
Commissioners approvals, respectively, the Director will be deemed to have given the order to

Carson City: 1830 College Parkway, Sulte 100 Carson City, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 584-2999 - Fax (775) 684-2998

Las Vegas: 3300 W, Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702} 486-2758
www.business.nv.gov



authorize issuance of the Bonds pursuant to NRS 349.650. Such order while deemed given, will
be contingent upon the satisfaction of the following conditions:

1. Receipt of a Certificate of the Governor of the State of Nevada approving the
issuance of the Bonds in the form attached to the Findings as Exhibit E and necessary to satisfy
the TEFRA Hearing requirements.

2 Receipt of an unqualified opinion from Gilmore & Bell, P.C., bond counsel to the
State of Nevada Department of Business and Industry, that interest on the Bonds will be tax-
exempt for federal tax purposes. This opinion will be in a standard form acceptable to the
financial market. The financing will not go forward unless such opinion is delivered.

3. The final agreements related to the Bonds will be in forms acceptable to the
Director and its legal counsel.

Carson City: 1830 College Parkway, Suile 100 Carson Clty, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 684-2899 - Fax (775) 684-2998

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 496-2758
www.business.nv.gov



FINDINGS OF THE DIRECTOR OF THE STATE OF NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF
BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY PURSUANT TO NEVADA REVISED STATUTES 349.580(2)
RELATING TO THE FINANCING OF AN INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT PROJECT
TO BE LOCATED IN THE TAHOE-RENO INDUSTRIAL CENTER, STOREY COUNTY,
NEVADA

WHEREAS, Fulcrum Sierra BioFuels, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company validly
authorized to do business under the laws of the State of Nevada (“Fulcrum”) has submitted its
application dated April 28, 2017, as amended (the “Application™), to the Director of the State of
Nevada Department of Business and Industry (the “Director”) for the issuance of industrial
development revenue bonds in an amount not to exceed $150,000,000 (the “Bonds™); and

WHEREAS, proceeds from the Bonds will be used for the purpose of assisting in the
financing of an approximately 19.4-acre solid waste disposal facility to be owned by Fulcrum and
operated by Fulcrum BioEnergy, Inc. (the “Operator”), consisting of real and personal property to
be located at 3600 Peru Drive in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, in Storey County, Nevada (the
“Project”); and

WHEREAS, the Director has authority to issue the Bonds pursuant to the Nevada Revised
Statues, including Sections 349.400 through 349.670, inclusive, thereof (the “Act”); and

WHEREAS, Fulcrum, the Operator, and other interested parties have prepared and
submitted to the Director certain reports, records and other information related to the Project, and
the Director has reviewed such reports, records and other information and has otherwise
investigated the facts concerning the Project to enable the Director to make the following findings
in accordance with the Act;

NOW, THEREFORE, pursuant to Section 349.580(2) of the Act, the Director hereby finds
and determines as follows (the “Findings™):

1. Pursuant to Section 349.580(2)(a) of the Act, based on the Application and other
documents on file with the Director, the Project consists of land, buildings and other improvements
and all real and personal property necessary in connection therewith (excluding inventories, raw
materials, and working capital) which is suitable for construction, improvement, preservation,
restoration, rehabilitation or redevelopment of an industrial or other commercial enterprise.

2. Pursuant to Section 349.580(2)(b) of the Act, based on the Application, and other
documents on file with the Director, the Project will provide significant public benefits. The public
benefits include a $280 million investment in a solid waste facility in Storey County, Nevada (the
“County”) which is expected to add (a) 500 construction jobs; (b) 120 permanent, direct jobs; and
(c) more than 1,000 indirect jobs and provide other economic benefits to the County. See Exhibit
A for a summary of estimated economic benefits.

Carson City: 1830 College Parkway, Sulte 100 Carsen City, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 684-2999 - Fax (775) 684-2998

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 485-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
www business.nv.gov



3. Pursuant to Section 349.580(2)(c) of the Act, based on the Application, financial
statements of Fulcrum and the Operator, a letter of intent from XL Catlin to provide technology
performance insurance and other documents on file with the Director, Fulcrum and the Operator
have sufficient financial resources to place the Project in operation, continue or cause the
operations conducted at the Project to be continued, and meet the obligations of (a) Fulcrum under
the financing agreement (the “Financing Agreement™), and (b) the Operator under the guaranty
(the “Guaranty”’), each to be entered into in connection with the issuance of the Bonds.

4. Pursuant to Section 349.580(2)(d) of the Act, based on the Financing Agreement,
Indenture, and other financing documents on file with the Director, there are sufficient safeguards
to assure that all money provided by or through the State of Nevada Department of Business and
Industry will be expended solely for the purposes of the Project, including (a) certain provisions
in the Financing Agreement and other financing documents to be entered into in connection with
the issuance of the Bonds which set forth procedures ensuring that such moneys shall only be used
to pay for certain costs relating to the acquisition, construction and equipping of the Project, and
(b) the appointment of the Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee and
collateral agent with respect to the Bonds to ensure such procedures are correctly followed. See
Exhibit F hereto for related document extracts.

5. Pursuant to Section 349.580(2)(e) of the Act, based on the Application, a special
use permit issued by the County and other documents on file with the Director, the Project will be
compatible with the existing facilities in the area adjacent to the location of the Project.

6. Pursuant to Section 349.580(2)(f) of the Act, based upon the Application, including
the opinions of counsel to Fulcrum attached thereto, the certificate of Fulerum attached hereto as
Exhibit G and other documents on file with the Director, the Project has received all approvals by
local, state and federal governments which may be necessary at this time to proceed with the
construction, improvement, rehabilitation or redevelopment of the Project.

s Pursuant to Section 349.580(2)(g) of the Act, by submission of the Application for
financing, Fulcrum has requested the Director to issue the Bonds to assist in the financing of the
Project.

Carson City: 1830 Coliege Parkway, Suite 100 Carson City, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 684-2938 - Fax (775) 684-2998

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
WWWw.business.nv.gov



ADDITIONAL CONSIDERATIONS OF THE DIRECTOR OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY PURSUANT TO NEVADA REVISED
STATUTES 349.590 RELATING TO THE FINANCING OF AN INDUSTRIAL PROJECT TO
BE LOCATED IN THE TAHOE-RENO INDUSTRIAL CENTER, STOREY COUNTY,
NEVADA

Pursuant to NRS 349.590, as additional considerations required for the approval and issuance
of the Bonds, the Director has determined the following (the “Additional Considerations”). The
Director hereby requests the Board of Finance to make the same determinations.

Il Pursuant to Section 349.590(1) of the Act, based upon the Application, volume cap
allocation, and other documents on file with the Director, the total amount of funds necessary to be
provided by the Director through the issuance of the Bonds shall not exceed $150,000,000.

2. Pursuant to Section 349.590(2)(a) of the Act, the Director has received a 5-year
operating history from each of Fulcrum and the Operator. Further the Director has received assurances
based on covenants in the Indenture that all the Bonds will be sold only to qualified institutional buyers
as defined in Rule 144A promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities
Act”) and/or accredited investors as defined in Rule 501(a)(1), (2), (3) or (7) promulgated under the
Securities Act in minimum denominations of $100,000.

3. Pursuant to Section 349.590(3) of the Act, based upon the Application and other
documents on file with the Director, Fulcrum and the Operator are not currently rated by Moody’s
Investors Service, Standard and Poor’s, or Fitch Ratings, Inc.

4. Pursuant to Section 349.590(4) of the Act, based upon the Application and other
documents on file with the Director, there are no existing facilities of a like nature within the County.
The Director is not prohibited from financing the Project as provided in NRS 349.565.

3. Pursuant to Section 349.590(5) of the Act, the Director has considered the extent to
which the Project is affected by various federal, state and local governmental action, activities,
programs and development and has determined to issue the Bonds, including the consideration that the
Department of Defense is providing a grant of up to $67.5 million for the Project and that the Project
is deemed a National Security Program.,

6. Pursuant to Section 349.590(6) of the Act, neither Fulcrum nor the Operator have
maintained facilities appropriate to the community in Nevada for longer than ten years, but have
maintained facilitics since 2016.

These Findings and Additional Considerations are made only for the purposes of Sections
349.580 and 349.590, respectively, of the Act and do not constitute a guarantee of financial results
with respect to the Project or otherwise with respect to the business prospects of Fulcrum or the
Operator. These Findings are not intended as an analysis of the Bonds as investments or intended to
be relied upon by investors.

Carson City: 1830 College Parkway, Suite 100 Carson City, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 684-2999 - Fax (775) 684-2998

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
www.business.nv.gov



NOW, THEREFORE, the Director hereby requests, pursuant to Sections 349.580 and
349.590 of the Act, that the Nevada State Board of Finarice and the Board of County
Comumissioners of Storey County, Nevada epprove the Findings as set forth above and ovidence
such approval by execution of the certificate and adoption of the resolution, respectively, each in
the respective form attached hereto as Bxhibit H.

Dated this 14th day of July, 2017

DIRECTOR OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY

By.___ 7 £
‘Bmlow

§-1

Carson City: 1830 Collage Parlway, Bulte 100 Carson Gy, Nevasia 89706 - Telsphone [775) 804-2009 - Fusc (775 634-2998

Las Yegas: 5300 W.Soher Avonus, Suils 425 Les Voges, Nevads 89101 - Telsphons (202) 488-2750 - Fux (R02) 468 2758
ww bushess nv.g oy



EXHIBIT A

EXHIBIT B

EXHIBIT C

EXHIBIT D

EXHIBIT E

EXHIBIT F

EXHIBIT G

EXHIBIT H

LIST OF EXHIBITS
Financial Advisor Memorandum
Office of Economic Development Approval
County Support Resolution
Volume Cap Certificate

Form of Governor’s Certificate regarding the issuance of the Bonds for TEFRA
Hearing Purposes

Document Extracts Regarding Use of Funds
Certificate of Fulcrum Regarding Federal, State & Local Approvals

Form of Certificate of Approval by the State Board of Finance and Resolution of
Approval by the County Commissioners

ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTS ON FILE

1. Revenue Bonds for Industrial Development Act (NRS 349.400 — 349.670)

2. Regulations Pertaining to the Act (NAC 349.010-349.080)

3. Fulcrum Application

4, Trust Indenture (draft) between the Director and Bank of New York Mellon Trust

5. Financing Agreement (draft) by and between the Director and Fulcrum

6. Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum (draft) relating to the Bonds

7. Bond Purchase Agreement (draft) among the Director, Fulcrum and the underwriters
named therein

8. Guaranty (draft) of Fulcrum BioEnergy, Inc.

Carson City: 1830 College Parkway, Suite 100 Carson Clty, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 684-2999 - Fax (775) 684-2998
Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suile 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758

www.business.nv.gov



EXHIBIT A
FINANCIAL ADVISOR MEMORANDUM

A-1

Carson City: 1830 College Parkway, Suite 100 Carson Gity, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 684-2999 - Fax (775) 684-2938

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Sulte 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
www business.nv.gov



o,
LEWIS (il YOUNG
ROBERTSON & BURNINGHAM, wc.

AN INDEPEND EWT AMUNICIPAL FINANCIAL AOVISQRY
AVD CONSULTING FIRNY

July 12, 2017

Bruce H. Breslow

Director

Nevada Department of Business & industry
1830 College Pkwy Ste# 100

Carson City, NV 89706

Re: Fulcrum Sierra BioFuels, LLC
Environmental Improvement Revenue Bonds

Director Breslow:;

Acting in its capacity as Financial Advisor (FA) to the Nevada Department of Business & Industry (B&!),
Lewis Young Robertson & Burningham, Inc. (LYRB) provides this letter to complement your Findings to
be submitted to the Board of Finance addressing the Fulcrum Sierra BioFuels, LLC (Fulcrum) financing
application and the proposed issuance of approximately $150,000,000 Environmental improvement
Revenue Bonds (industrial development revenue bonds) ta finance the Fulcrum Project, as more fully
described below.

Introduction

Fulcrum approached the B&I, after meeting with Storey County, for an allocation of private activity
bonds to access tax-exempt financing for its Project summarized below. LYRB was tasked, along with
Gilmore & Bell, P.C., to review Fulcrum’s application and supplemental materials on the validity of the
application in concert with you Findings. This letter highlights segments of the review process.

ummary of Propased Project:

The Fulcrum Project will annually convert approximately 200,000 tons of waste diverted from the local
fandfill, into approximately 11 million gallons of low-carbon transportation fuel to be utilized primarily
for airline fuel, but also potentially for military purposes.

The entire Project is located in Storey County, Nevada and is being constructed in two phases. Phase 1,
located at 350 Saddle Court, Mustang, Storey County, is the Sierra Feedstock Processing Facility where
the waste is sized, sorted and processed to meet the specifications of the biorefinery. The Feedstock

BATEWAY FLAZA BUILDING TELEFPHQONE BQ1,596.0700
41 NORTH RIO GRANDE, SUITE 101 TALL FREE 800.581.1100
8ALT LAKE GITY, UTAR B4101 FAX BO1.596.2800

WWW.LEWIEBYQUNG.COM




facility is approximately 65,000 square feet with a capacity to process more than 1,500 tons of waste perlmﬂli
day and is strategically located on 10-acres adjacent to the Lockwood Regicnal Landfiil. The Feedstock
facility utilizes waste processing equipment, including shredders, waster screens, density separators,
magnets, eddy currents and other equipment to process and remove high value recyclable products

{metal and plastics) and inorganic material not suitabte for processing.

The Feedstock Processing Facility was completed in 2016 and has been cperational since that time.
Construction of Phase 1 was 100% financed through equity contributions; no proceeds from the Bonds
will be used to pay for the feedstock construction nor any related improvements.

Phase 2 of the Project, located at 3600 Peru Drive,
McCarran, Storey County, is the Sierra Biorefinery
where the feedstock is converted into a low-carbon,
renewable synthetic crude oll, or “syncrude.” This
Biorefinery is located on 19.4 acres, about 20 miles
east of Reno, Nevada and 10 miles east of the
Feedstock facility. The Biorefinery empioys
commercially proven equipment deployed in a
proprietary and innovative process utilizing a steam-
reforming gasifier that converts the waste into
syncrude. This syncrude product will be transported to
a Tesoro refinery to be further processed into ' 4 ~
transportation fuel. Pracessing System

Fulcrum has entered into a fixed-priced, guaranteed Engineering, Procurement, and Construction (EPC)
contract with an EPC Contractor for the construction of the Biorefinery. The Bonds will fund a portion of
the construction of Phase 2 of the Project which expected to begin operations in late 2019 or early 2020.

Additional site and facility photos are in Appendix A.

1. .
Biorefinery site w/ rendering overloy



>
-

=
=

Process and Product:

Fulcrum has developed and perfected the process of gasification and FT technologies, in connection
with other standard refining processes at a commercial level of operation to process waste diverted
from local landfills into jet fuel of a quality to be purchased directly by a major airline and for potential
military uses at competitive market pricing. Fulcrum has already demonstrated Its process at a fully-
integrated plant with over 2-years of successful operations.

Fulcrum expects to deliver approximately 11 mlllion gallons of syncrude per year at full capacity.
Fulcrum entered into agreements with its strategic partners to provide the waste (Waste Management
of Nevada), refine the syncrude (Tesoro Refinery & Marketing Com pany, LLC) and take delivery of the
final syncrude product {United Airlines and potential military clients).

Economic Impact to Nevada

Fulcrum anticipates that this Project will have a significant economic impact in creating significant jobs
from the initial construction phase into full-time permanent jobs, generating both new property and
sales tax revenues in addition to spurring economic value within the community with its employees
utilizing local services. In summary, Fulcrum anticipates the following benefits to the local economy:

= Construction
o  $280 million to fund construction of the Feedstock and Biorefinery projects
© Subsequently, Fulcrum expects to spend approximately $20-30 million to install a jet
fuel upgrading system
o Future plans include a 30 million gallon a year expansion totaling $450 million
« Job Creation
© Anticipated $4.0MM annual salary budget with the following likely positions and salary
ranges

= Management / Supervisor (7): $22.77/hour to $64.42/hour

=  Operators (28) : $24.88/hour to $32.82/hour

*  Maintenance (24} : $29.11/hour to $29.34/hour

* Equipment Operators (10): $17.25/hour

= Other (21): $11.61/hour

o Trucking - $1.0MM annually for 20 drivers at $24.04/hour

o Maintenance - $600,00 annually for a third-party employer for 10 personnel at
$28.85/hour

o Wastewater Treatment & ASU - $750,000 annually for a third-party for 10 personnel at
$36.06/hour

o Construction Jobs (500)

=  Construction labor will be hired by Fulcrum’s construction contractor under a
fixed-price EPC agreement.

*  Although the detailed hourly wage information is not available to Fulcrum, the
budgeted construction costs include an estimate of $60 million for the labor
portion of the fixed-price contract, which includes the various construction,
engineering & design subcontractors.

* Various jobs will include construction, engineering & design subcontractors

o Indirect jobs (1,000)
* Jobs generated within the community



» Taxes

———>

Ml

© Property taxes are estimated at $13 million over a 10-year tax abatement period

($ In Miltions) Amount Paid Amount Abated Amount Paid Amount Abated
10-Yr Total 10-Yr Total Annual Average Annual Average
Biorefinery $11.50 $11.50 $1.15 $1.15
Feedstock Facility 1.50 1.50 0.15 0.15
Total $13.00 $13.00 $1.30 $1.30

© Sales taxes of approximately $11 million generated during construction and over the 10-

year tax abatement period

* Additional sales tax will be generated through normal operations of the Project
and from employees living within the community

($ In Millions) |  AmountPaid | Amount Abated
During Construction

Biorefinery $3.90 $10.90
Feedstock Facility 0.34 0.95
10-Yrs of Operations

Biorefinery $6.20 $0.00
Feedstock Facility 0.60 0.00
Total $11.04 $11.85

Appraisal and Market Study

Fulcrum engaged Duff & Phelps, LLC (“D&P”) to provide an estimation of the fair market value of the
Project, a plant located in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center in the City of McCarran, Storey County,
Nevada, as if complete, as of May 31, 2017 (Valuation Date). Based on D&P’s analysis as detailed in its
report and exhibits, the Fair Market Value of the Plant is reasonably estimated at $340 million, as of the

Valuation Date.

Fulcrum engaged Nexant, Inc. to perform a market summary. The report’s findings are as follows:

»  Quality:

o “In summary, the Project’s FT Syncrude’s primary qualities overall are superior for the

production of transportation fuels compared to conventional crude oils being processed
at Tesoro’s Martinez refinery. A number of secondary characteristics, including poor
cold flow properties, a highly paraffinic naphtha fraction, and its oxygen content, make
the FT Syncrude somewhat more challenging to refine to finished products. However,
the plan to blend Fulcrum’s FT Syncrude in small percentages with conventional crude
oils will mitigate these issues, and based on Nexant’s review of the FT Syncrude’s
characteristics, Nexant concludes that the Project’s FT Syncrude overall is an easier and
less costly refinery feedstock to process than the types of conventional crude oils
typically processed at Tesoro’s Martinez refinery, and in the quantities being considered
will not require any modifications to the existing Martinez refinery.”



—
PHARL,

»  Competition: i

o “The Project is 2 one-of-a-kind, processing municipal solid waste into a FT syncrude
product that will be sold to Tesoro’s Martinez refinery located in the San Francisco Bay
area. Nexant evaluated the competitiveness of the Project against U.S. competitive
facilities and international imports.”

© “National: Nexant reviewed the potential competitiveness of the Project versus the
ongoing U.S. projects and concluded that there is almost no competition to the Project.
California refiners, especially in the targeted San Francisco area, are an attractive
market for the Project’s FT syncrude since the Project will have advantages due to
superior logistics, attractive costs for refiners, and limited competition from other FT-
based facilities.”

© “International: All the worldwide FT syncrudes produced today are captively processed
into intermediate or finished products on site. None of the synthesis activities suggest
that there is a potential for them to supply FT syncrude to the United States. As such,
Nexant does not foresee any international competition for the Project’s FT syncrude.”

Break-even analysis:

o “The breakeven value of the FT Syncrude, excluding environmental benefits, nearly
covers the Project’s cash costs when the price of WTI crude oil Is $70 per barrel.”

© “Nexant notes that this comparison does not provide a full picture of the economics of
the Project since it does not include the Project’s revenue streams associated with its
environmental benefits (RINs and LCFS credits}, which are expected to be significant. A
complete assessment of the economics of the Project should include these projected
revenues streams.”

Revenues & Expenditures Summary

Fulcrum anticipates generation of meaningful revenues from the Project in 2020 with full operations
commencing in 2022. Fulcrum will increase gallons produced over a 3-year period beginning with 6
million gallons in 2020 to 10.7 million gallons in 2022. Approximately 90% of the revenues are derived
from generating the syncrude with the balance realized from tipping fees, portfolio energy credits and
recyclables belng the Jargest component. As for expenditures, approximately 80% are comprised of
plant labor & maintenance, purchased natural gas & power and other operating and General &
Administrative. Other expenditures include catalyst and chemicals, operating cost contingency, property
tax and insurance and transportation. Fulcrum has engaged third party consultants to measure the
feasibility and integrity of the model by stressing the variables and inputs to the model. Conservative
inflators were incorporated accordingly.

In servicing the debt, Fulcrum projects 1.8x, 1.9x and 2.2x coverage in the first 3 years of operations with
an average of 2.4x coverage for the next 5-yrs. This is conservative in nature with contingencies
incorporated Into the model allows flexibility in managing future cash-flows,



30
Financing Summary ffrre

Fulcrum has requested $150,000,000 in bonds allocated to finance the Project supplemented with
significant equity and federal grants. At this time, the bond structure considers the following key
components:

« Sources:
o Bonds Issued: $150,000,000

o Fulcrum Equity Contribution: $78,700,000
o Department of Defense Grant: $67,500,000
o EPC Contractor Equity Contribution: $15,000,000
c Total Sources of Funds: $311,200,000
« Uses:

© Project costs: $234,900,000
® Fixed-priced Biorefinery EPC Contract: $202,400,000
® Feedstock Processing Facility EPC Cost: $32,500,000
o Non-EPC Costs: $21,100,000
* Includes EPC Scope Exclusions; Commission, Start-up and Taxes; Water Rights
and Utilities; Spare Parts and Small Equipment; and Development
o Financing Costs:
= Capitalized Interest (through 2020): $25,500,000
= Debt Service Reserve Fund: $12,000,000
» Costs of Issuance: $7,700,000
o Contingency: $10,000,000
+  Payments
o First interest payment will be in 2018
o First principal payment will be in 2021
*  The final principal payment is anticipated to occur in 2037
* There will be level debt service payments on the bonds

Estimated Draw Schedule

Fulcrum anticipates beginning construction of the Project in September of 2017 with final construction
completed in December 2019. Fulcrum has three main sources of funds for the Project being Investor
Equity ($129.55MM), Department of Defense Grant ($67.50MM) and the Tax-Exem pt Bonds issued
through the B&I ($150.00MM). It should be noted that Fulcrum has already expended approximately
$57.72MM for develop of Phase 1 of the Project. Fulcrum anticipates spending down the balance of the
funds for Phase 2 accordingly:

« Construction:
© September 2017 thru December 2019
o Total: $347.05MM
* This amount includes equity funds expended to date along with new energy risk
insurance
+ Use of Funds
o Investor Equity (§129.55MM)
= $57.72MM expended to date
* Balance to be expended October 2017 thru April 2018 and final payments
o Department of Defense Grant ($67.50MM)
*  Will be expended September 2017 thru May 2019



——

—

rrovTe
© Tax-Exempt Bonds issued through the B&I ($150.00MM) vifmre
*  Will be expended (after capitalized interest and COI is paid at closing) April 2018
thru October 2019 (including payment of capitalized interest through 2019)

Fulcrum will begin utilizing its Equity and Grants before expending bond proceeds.

Conclusion

In considering the various aspects of the transaction such as project scope, economic impact,
environmental benefit, lack of competition, comprehensive management, exhaustive planning and
overall value to the industry, County and State, the Fulcrum Project is very beneficial and should be
considered a positive asset to Storey County and the State of Nevada. The Fulcrum project, as proposed,
would provide a meaningful economic benefit in job creation and revenue generation to both the State
and County. Further, the Project is a productive use of the private activity volume cap.

LYRB concurs with the B&! Bond Counsel that the Fulcrum Project meets the requisite Nevada Revised
Statutes and should be presented to the Board of Finance for its approval.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss the Fulcrum financing application. Please contact me at {801)
456-3803 or by cell (801) 647-4823 or by e-mail david @lewisyoung.com.

Sincerely,

b >Q (‘120\'@——
David Robertson
Vice President



cAtAY,

FEEDSTOCK AND BIOREFINERY PHOTOS

FPF Site Layout



' 1
1 ==

Tipping floor

MSW Shredder ond Conveyar Moving MSW
Processing System




EXHIBIT B
OFFICE OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT APPROVAL

B-1

Carson City: 1830 College Parkway, Sulte 100 Carson City, Nevada 88706 - Telephone (775) 684-2999 - Fax (775) 684-2998

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 88101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
www.business.nv.gov



DETERMINATION AND APPROVAL OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
OFFICE OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PURSUANT TO NEVADA REVISED
STATUTES 349.585 RELATING TO THE FINANCING OF A PROJECT TO BE
LOCATED IN STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

WHEREAS, Fulcrum Sierra BioFuels, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
(“Fulcrum”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Fulcrum Bioenergy, Inc. (the “Operator”) has
submitted the attached application dated April 28, 2017 (the “Application™) to the Director of the
State of Nevada Department of Business and Industry (the “Director™) for the issuance of industrial
development revenue bonds in an amount not to exceed $150,000,000 (the "Bonds") for the
purpose of assisting in the financing of a biorefinery facility to be used for the disposal of solid
waste and conversion to renewable fuel products to be owned by Fulcrum and operated by the
Operator, consisting of real and personal property to be located on a 19.4-acre parcel at 3600 Peru
Drive in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, in Storey County, Nevada (the “Project™); and

WHEREAS, the Director has authority to issue the Bonds pursuant to the Nevada Revised
Statues, including Sections 349.400 through 349.670 thereof (the “Act™); and

WHEREAS, Fulcrum, the Operator and other interested parties have prepared and
submitted to the Director certain reports, records and other information related to the Project, and
the Director has reviewed such reports, records and other information and has otherwise
investigated the facts conceming the Project so as to enable the Director to make certain findings
in accordance with the Act; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 349.585 of the Act, the State of Nevada Office of
Economic Development (the “Office™) must, prior to the issuance of the Bonds, determine that the
Project is consistent with the State Plan for Economic Development and must approve the
financing of the Project;

NOW, THEREFORE, pursuant to Section 349.585 of the Act, the Office hereby
determines and approves as follows:

The Project is consistent with the State Plan for Economic Development developed by the
Executive Director of the Office pursuant to Subsection 2 of Section 231.053 Nevada Revised
Statutes.

Based upon the foregoing, the Project is hereby approved by the Office.

This determination and approval is made only for the purposes of Section 349.585 of the
Act and does not constitute a guarantee of financial results with respect to the Project or otherwise
with respect to the business prospects of Fulcrum or the Operator. This determination and approval
is not intended as an analysis of the Bonds as investments or intended to be relied upon by
investors.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the STATE OF NEVADA OFFICE OF ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT has caused this determination and approval 1o be made this Z2F° day of

SurE 2017

THE STATE OF NEVADA OFFICE OF
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

By: %}’l &W

Executive Director

S-1



EXHIBIT C
COUNTY SUPPORT RESOLUTION

C-1

Carson City: 1830 College Parkway, Suits 100 Carson City, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 684-2898 - Fax (775) 684-2098

Las Vegas: 3200 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 83101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
www.business nv.gov



RESOLUTION #17-463

A RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT FOR FULCRUM BIO-ENERGY

WHEREAS, on May 14, 2008, Fulcrum BioEnergy (then Fuicrum Sierra Biofuels,
LLC/IMS Nevada, LLC) was granted No. 2007-062 by the Storey County
Commissioners; and

WHEREAS, in 2009 the company was granted an amendment to the Special Use
Permit aliowing relocation to a larger parcel; and

WHEREAS, in 2014 the company was granted a subsequent amendment to the
Special Use Permit for modified processing and other considerations; and

WHEREAS, Fulcrum Bio-Energy is In compliance with the conditions of its special
use permit and is In good standing with Storey County. Fulcrum Bio-Energy and
Storey County have maintained continuous communication about the company’s
proposed design, future plans of construction and permitting; and

WHEREAS, Fulcrum Blo-Energy will undoubtedly serve as an economic
development englne for Storey County and the region.

THEREFORE LET IT BE KNOWN to all present that the Board of County
Commissioners of Storey County do hereby endorse and support Fulcrum Slerra
Biofuels, LLC/IMS Nevada LLC’s efforts to obtain bonding and funding support thru
the Nevada Department of Business & Industry.

PASSED and ADOPTED the 30th day of June 2017, by the following:

AYES: McBride, McGuffey and Gilman

NAYS:None

And Signed: ¢
Marshali McBride, Chairman

Atrested: %ﬂﬁdﬂﬁ%ﬁaﬁ_i
Vanessa A. Stephens, Clerk-Treasurer



EXHIBIT D
VOLUME CAP CERTIFICATE

D-1

Carson City: 1830 College Parkway, Suite 100 Carson Cty, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 684-2999 - Fax (775) 684-2068

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
www.business.nv.gov



STATE OF NEVADA

BRUCE H. BRESLOW
Diraclor

BRIAN SANDOVAL
Governor

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY
OFFICE OF THE DIRECTOR

Private Activity Bond
Certificate of Volume Cap Allocation

Pursuant to Section 146 of the United States Tax Reform Act of 1986, the undersigned duly
authorized official issues this certificate to Fulcrum Sierrn BioFuels, LLC on this date for the
purpose described below:

1. Name and Address of Initial Owner Fulcrum Sierra BioFuels, LLC

or User of Project:

2. Project Location & Description: The proceeds of the bonds will be used to
construct and equip a solid waste disposal
facility to be located in the Tahoe-Reno
Industrial Center, County of Storey, State of
Nevada

3. Principal Amount of Bonds: $150,000,000

4. Certificate Expiration Date: 45 days from the date of issuance.

5. Bond Counsel: Ryan R. Warburton
Gilmore & Bell, P.C,

15 West South Temple, Suite 520
Salt Lake City, Utah 84101

%4/

ce H Breslow
tor of the State of Nevada Department of
Business and Industry

Date: Jun, A4 . 2017

Carson City. 1830 College Parkway, Sulte 100 Carson Clty, Nevada 8%06 - Teleghone (775) 684-2993 - Fax (775} 684-2998

Las Vegas 555 E Washington Avenue,Suite 4600 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (02} 488.2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
www business.nv.gov



EXHIBIT E

FORM OF GOVERNOR'’S CERTIFICATE REGARDING THE
ISSUANCE OF THE BONDS FOR TEFRA HEARING PURPOSES

E-1

Carson Gity: 1830 College Parkway, Suite 100 Carson City, Nevada 88706 - Telephone (775) 684-2999 - Fax (775) 684-2998

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Sulte 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
www.business.nv.gov



CERTIFICATE BY THE GOVERNOR
REGARDING THE DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY’S ISSUANCE OF
SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL REVENUE BONDS

I, Brian Sandoval, Governor of the State of Nevada, DO HEREBY CERTIFY:

A public hearing was held on August 1, 2017, at the principal office of the Nevada
Department of Business and Industry Director’s office located at 1830 College Parkway, Suite
100, Carson City, Nevada 89706 to hear public comment on plans for the issuance and sale of up
to $150,000,000 Environmental Improvement Revenue Bonds (Fulcrum Sierra BioFuels, LLC
Project), Series 2017 (Green Bonds) (the “Bonds™) to assist in the financing of a solid waste
disposal facility to be located in Storey County, Nevada.

Notice for the hearing was given and the hearing was conducted in accordance with the
Report of Hearing. Such Notice and Report of Hearing are attached hereto as Exhibit A. Solely for
the purpose of satisfying the public approval requirements of Section 147(f) of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and for no other purpose, I hereby approve the plan of
financing for the issuance of the Bonds. This approval is not to be construed as a pledge of the
faith and credit of or by the State of Nevada, or of any agency, instrumentality, municipality, or
subdivision of the State of Nevada.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, I have set my hand

This day of - .2017.

BRIAN SANDOVAL
Governor, State of Nevada

E-2

Carson City: 1830 College Parkway, Suite 100 Carson City, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 684-2999 - Fax (775) 684-2998

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
www.business.nv.gov



EXHIBIT F
DOCUMENT EXTRACTS REGARDING USE OF FUNDS

F-1

Carson City: 1830 College Parkway, Suite 100 Carson City, Nevada 89706 - Telophone (775) 684-2989 - Fax (775) 684-2998

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 88101 - Telephone (702) 488-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
WWw.business.nv.gov



Extracts from Indenture of Trust

Section 5.02 Delivery of Series 2017 Bonds.

On the Closing Date, the Trustee shall deposit the proceeds of the Series 2017 Bonds, in
the aggregate amount of $ , as follows:

@ $ , allocable to the proceeds of the Series 2017 Bonds, to the Series
2017 Capitalized Interest Account held by the Trustee;

® s allocable to the proceeds of the Series 2017 Bonds, to the Series
2017 Cost of Issuance Account held by the Trustee;

(c) S§ , allocable to the proceeds of the Series 2017 Bonds, to the
Construction Collateral Account within the Construction Collateral Fund held by the Collateral
Agent; and

@ $ allocable to the proceeds of the Series 2017 Bonds, to the Series
2017 Debt Service Reserve Account of the Debt Service Reserve Fund held by the Trustee;

Section 5.03 Construction Fund.

(a) Subaccounts. The Trustee, upon direction from the Company on behalf of the
Director, shall open new subaccounts of the Construction Fund as specified by the Company for
the purpose of (i) depositing the proceeds of any Bond (other than proceeds to be applied to a
refunding of the Series 2017 Bonds) permitted to be incurred by the Bond Documents, (ii)
accounting for and payment of the capitalized interest or costs of issuance thereof, or (iii) for any
other purpose permitted by the Bond Documents. To the extent that a subaccount of the
Construction Fund is established, such proceeds may be used for the purposes for which such
Bonds are issued and applied or requisitioned solely as set forth in any related Supplemental
Indenture; provided, that the Company may, at any time, (x) open such subaccounts, (y) direct the
Trustee to retain any necessary amounts therein and (z) transfer any remaining funds therein to the
Revenue Fund; provided, further, that, for the avoidance of doubt, amounts on deposit in the other
accounts pursuant to this Indenture or any Project Accounts pursuant to the Collateral Agency
Agreement may not be transferred to such new subaccounts unless expressly permitted herein or
therein.

(b)  Series 2017 Capitalized Interest Account. Amounts on deposit in the Series 2017
Capitalized Interest Account shall be used to pay capitalized interest related to the Series 2017
Bonds or to reimburse any affiliate of the Company for capitalized interest actually paid by or on
behalf of the Company and eligible for reimbursement pursuant to the Tax Certificate. On any
date upon which capitalized interest is due and payable, and prior to any payments under Section
5.05(a) hereto, in accordance with schedule attached as Exhibit C hereto, the Trustee shall, without
further authorization, instruction or delivery by the Company of a Requisition, withdraw sufficient
funds to make such payments from the Series 2017 Capitalized Interest Account. Upon receipt of
interest earnings, the Trustee shall, without further authorization, instruction or delivery by the

F-2

Carson City: 1830 College Parkway, Suite 100 Carson City, Nevada 88706 - Telephone (775) 684-2998 - Fax (775) 684-2998

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
www.business.nv.gov



Company of a Requisition, transfer any interest earned on the Series 2017 Capitalized Interest
Account to the applicable subaccount of the Construction Collateral Account held by the Collateral
Agent for the payment or reimbursement of Tax-Exempt Project Costs pursuant to the Collateral
Agency Agreement. Upon the acceleration of the Series 2017 Bonds pursuant to Section 7.03
hereof, the amounts on deposit in the Series 2017 Capitalized Interest Account shall be applied in
accordance with Section 7.06 hereof, provided that if such acceleration shall be rescinded before
such application date, any unapplied amounts on deposit in such Series 2017 Capitalized Interest
Account shall continue to be applied as provided herein.

Any amount remaining in the Series 2017 Capitalized Interest Account upon the final
scheduled payment of capitalized interest on the Series 2017 Bonds, shall, without further
authorization, instruction or delivery by the Company of a Requisition, be transferred by the
Trustee to the Collateral Agent for deposit as follows: (i) if such transfer occurs prior to Trustee’s
receipt of written notice from the Company confirming the occurrence of the Final Acceptance
Date, to the applicable subaccount of the Construction Collateral Account of the Construction
Fund, and (ii) if such final disbursement occurs on or after the Trustee’s receipt of a certification
from the Company that the Final Acceptance Date has occurred, to the Revenue Fund.

(¢)  Series 2017 Cost of Issuance Account. Amounts on deposit in the Series 2017 Cost
of Issuance Account shall be used to pay the costs of issuance of the Series 2017 Bonds or to
reimburse the Company or any affiliate of the Company for costs of issuance of the Series 2017
Bonds actually paid by or on behalf of the Company and eligible for reimbursement, and amounts
on deposit in the Series 2017 Cost of Issuance Account shall be used to pay the costs of issuance
of the Series 2017 Bonds actually paid by or on bebalf of the Company and eligible for
reimbursement, all in compliance with the Tax Certificate, upon receipt of an executed COI
Requisition, in substantially the form attached to this Indenture as Exhibit D. The Trustee shall
from time to time withdraw sufficient funds from the Series 2017 Cost of Issuance Account to
fund disbursements made with respect to the Series 2017 Bonds on the date of issuance of such
Series 2017 Bonds. Any amounts remaining in the Series 2017 Cost of Issuance Account on the
90th day after the Closing Date shall be transferred by the Trustee to the applicable subaccount of
the Construction Collateral Account held by the Collateral Agent.

Section 5.04 [Reserved].

Section 5.05 Debt Service Fund. Pursuant to the Financing A greement, the Company shall
pay or cause moneys to be paid by the Collateral Agent to the Trustee for deposit in the accounts
within the Debt Service Fund described below at the times and in the amounts necessary for the
Trustee to make the transfers described below. Such amounts shall be paid by the Company in
accordance with Exhibit C hereto; provided, however, that the Company shall, from time to time,
prepare and provide to the Trustee an amended Exhibit C as may be required in connection with
any prepayments, optional redemptions or mandatory redemptions that result in a change in Debt
Service hereunder. The Trustee shall create, and shall apply money contained, in the accounts
described below at the following respective times in the manner hereinafter provided, which
accounts the Trustee hereby agrees to establish and maintain within the Debt Service Fund so long
as this Indenture is not discharged in accordance with Article IX and each such account shall

F-3

Carson City: 1830 College Parkway, Suite 100 Carson City, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 684-2989 - Fax (775) 684-2998

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Teiephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
www.business.nv.gov



constitute a trust fund for the benefit of the Bondholders, and the money in each such account shall
be disbursed only for the purposes and uses hereinafter authorized. Funds will be applied pro rata
across all Outstanding Series of Bonds.

(@)  Bond Interest Account. The Trustee, on each Interest Payment Date, shall
withdraw and apply from moneys on deposit in the Bond Interest Account, an amount
which shall be sufficient to pay interest payable on the outstanding Bonds on such Interest
Payment Date.

(b)  Bond Principal Account. The Trustee, on each Principal Payment Date,
shall withdraw and apply from moneys on deposit in the Bond Principal Account, an
amount equal to the principal due on Bonds on each date on which principal is due (other
than a Redemption Date). Money in the Bond Principal Account shall be used and
withdrawn by the Trustee on each date on which principal is due solely for the payment of
the principal of outstanding Bonds.

(¢}  Bond Redemption Account. The Trustee, on each Redemption Date, shall
withdraw and apply moneys on deposit in the Bond Redemption Account, amounts
required to pay the redemption price on Bonds to be redeemed prior to their stated maturity.
Money in the Bond Redemption Account shall be used and withdrawn by the Trustee on
each Redemption Date solely for the payment of the redemption price other than in the case
of a Sinking Fund Installment, which payments shall be made from the Bond Sinking Fund
Installment Payment Subaccount.

(d) Bond Sinking Fund Installment Payment Subaccount. The Trustee shall
deposit to the credit of the Bond Sinking Fund Installment Payment Subaccount within the
Bond Principal Account moneys deposited by the Company or the Collateral Agent to pay
each Sinking Fund Installment when due.

Extracts from Collateral Agency Agreement

Section 5.04 Construction Collateral Fund.

(@)  Construction Collateral Account. On the Closing Date, the proceeds of the
Series 2017 Bonds, net of all costs and expenses incurred in connection with the issuance thereof
and the costs and expenses of the borrowing of Loans related to the issuance of the Series 2017
Bonds under the Financing Agreement, amounts for the payment of which shall be deposited into
the Series 2017 Costs of Issuance Account under the Indenture, and net of the amounts to be
deposited into the Series 2017 Capitalized Interest Account and the Series 2017 Debt Service
Reserve Account, shall be deposited into a segregated subaccount of the Construction Collateral
Account and thereafter, any interest earned on such proceeds shall be deposited into the
Construction Collateral Account. Amounts on deposit in the Construction Collateral Account shall
be used to pay Tax Exempt Project Costs or to reimburse the Company or any affiliate of the
Company for any Tax Exempt Project Costs actually paid by the Company or on behalf of the
Company and eligible for reimbursement pursuant to the Tax Certificate. The Collateral Agent
shall from time to time withdraw funds from the Construction Collateral Account in accordance

F-4

Carson City: 1830 College Parkway, Suite 100 Carson City, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 684-2999 - Fax (775) 684-2998

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 83101 - Telephone (702) 488-2750 - Fax (702) 486-27568
www,business.nv.gov



with a Requisition delivered by the Company pursuant to Section 5.05. The Construction
Collateral Account is created solely for the benefit of the Trustee on behalf of the owners of the
Series 2017 Bonds and shall not be subject to any Lien in favor of any Person other than the
Collateral Agent solely for the benefit of the Trustee on behalf of the owners of the Series 2017
Bonds and shall be held by the Collateral Agent for the exclusive benefit of only such parties.

Section 5.05 Construction Collateral Fund Requisition Procedures.

(a)  Withdrawals from all sub-accounts of the Construction Collateral Fund,
collectively, may be made from time to time, subject to the terms and conditions of Section 5.04
and this Section 5.05 (to the extent applicable).

(b)  Subject to the last sentence of this clause (b) and other than as expressly
provided in Sections 5.04(b), 5.04(g), 5.04(h) and 5.04(k), the Company shall request
disbursements of monies on deposit in the Construction Collateral Fund (and any sub-account
thereof) by delivering to the Collateral Agent (with a copy to each Agent), not later than the second
(2°%) Business Day prior to the proposed date of disbursement, a withdrawal certificate (the
“Company Withdrawal Certificate”) signed by an Authorized Company Representative in the form
of Exhibit I attached hereto (together with a certificate of the Engineer in the form of Exhibit J
attached hereto (the “Engineer Withdrawal Certificate™), in each case, to the extent necessary for
compliance with Section 5.05(¢) and Section 5.05(d)) (collectively, a “Requisition”). Upon receipt
of each Requisition, the Collateral Agent shall make the payments set forth in such Requisition
out of money in the Construction Collateral Fund (and each sub-account thereof) as set forth in
such Requisition. For the avoidance of doubt, the Collateral Agent is not prevented by the two (2)
Business Day notice requirement from paying the obligations set forth in the Requisition prior to
the date of disbursement proposed in the Requisition. In making such payments the Collateral
Agent may conclusively rely upon the Requisition without further inquiry. Except as provided in
Sections 5.04(b) 5.04(g), 5.04(h), 5.04(k) and 5.04(1), any payments from the Construction
Collateral Fund shall be made by the Collateral Agent solely based on Requisitions received from
time to time pursuant to this Section 5.05. The opening of or requisitioning of amounts on deposit
in any new sub-accounts pursuant to Section 5.04(k) shall be made by the Collateral Agent solely
based on instructions received by the Collateral Agent from the Company.

(c)  Each Company Withdrawal Certificate shall set forth the funds requested to be
withdrawn and the applicable accounts and payees to which such funds shall be transferred (with
a description of the purpose therefor), referencing customary invoices, to the extent required, and
attaching (x) a Disbursement Endorsement, to the extent required, and (y) solely to the extent funds
are being requisitioned pursuant to such Requisition to pay the EPC Contractor, a lien waiver from
the EPC Contractor in accordance with the requirements of the EPC Contract, conditioned solely
upon payment of such requisitioned funds. Subject to Section 5.05(¢) and Section 5.05(f) hereof,
each Company Withdrawal Certificate shall include the following certifications of the Company
as of the date of proposed requisition:

(i) All amounts previously requisitioned pursuant to prior Requisitions for
the payment or reimbursement of Project Costs have been applied solely to pay or
reimburse Project Costs;

F-5

Carson City: 1830 College Parkway, Suite 100 Carsen City, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 684-2939 - Fax (775) 684-2098

Las Vegas: 3300 W, Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 83101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-27568
www.business.nv.gov



(i)  All amounts requisitioned in such Company Withdrawal Certificate
relate to Project Costs that have been or are reasonably projected to be incurred in
connection with the Project and none have been the basis for a prior Requisition that has
been paid;

(iii)  Solely to the extent funds are being requisitioned pursuant to such
Requisition to pay the EPC Contractor, no Act of Bankruptcy in respect of the EPC
Contractor has occurred and is continuing;

(iv)  No Funding Shortfall exists; and
(v)  No Event of Default has occurred and is continuing.

(d)  Subject to Section 5.05(¢) and Section 5.05(f) hereof, each Engineer
Withdrawal Certificate shall include the following certifications of the Engineer, in its reasonable
belief, as of the date of proposed requisition:

@) Based on its reasonable belief, no Funding Shortfall exists; and

(ii) Solely to the extent funds are being requisitioned pursuant to
such Requisition to pay the EPC Contractor, (A) the work performed by the EPC Contractor
pursuant to the EPC Contract to date has been performed in accordance with the terms of the EPC
Contract; (B) the amount being paid to the EPC Contractor pursuant to the applicable Requisition
does not exceed the amount then due and payable to the EPC Contractor under the EPC Contract,
and (C) in its reasonable belief, Provisional Acceptance can be achieved by the Outside Operations
Date.

(¢)  No funds shall be requisitioned under this Section 5.05 from any sub-account
of the Construction Collateral Fund with respect to the payment of interest on the Series 2017
Bonds unless no more funds are available in the Series 2017 Capitalized Interest Account under
the Indenture, and the only certification required to be made to requisition for due payment of
interest shall be a certification by the Company that as of the date of the proposed requisition, no
Financing Default Event has occurred and is continuing with respect to the applicable Bonds (each
such requisition solely of interest in accordance with this Section 5.05(e), an “Interest
Requisition™); provided that, following the funding by the Collateral Agent of any Interest
Requisition, the Collateral Agent shall request a certificate from the Engineer certifying that, based
on its reasonable belief, no Funding Shortfall then exists. If the Engineer cannot deliver such
certificate, the Collateral Agent shall withhold funding future Interest Requisitions unless and until
(i) the Engineer is able to deliver a certificate to the Collateral Agent certifying that, based on its
reasonable belief, no Funding Shortfall then exists or (ii) the Collateral Agent is instructed by the
Trustee (at the direction of the Holders or Beneficial Owners of at least a majority of the aggregate
principal amount of Series 2017 Bonds outstanding) to resume funding of such Interest
Requisitions without the delivery of such certificate; provided further that, notwithstanding any
instructions of the Holders or Beneficial Owners of Series 2017 Bonds, the Collateral Agent shall
not withhold funding of any requisitions that satisfy all the conditions that would otherwise apply
to requisitions of such amounts pursuant to this Section 5.05 (other than this clause (e)).

F-6

Carson City: 1830 College Parkway, Suite 100 Carson City, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 684-2999 - Fax (775) 684-2998

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 488-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
www business.nv.gov



® Notwithstanding any conditions set forth in this Section 5.05 (other than clause
(¢) above and clause (g) below) that would otherwise apply to withdrawals from any sub-account
of the Construction Collateral Fund subject to the requisition procedures of this Section 5.05, the
Collateral Agent shall fund a requisition that satisfies solely the following conditions (each such
requisition in accordance with this Section 5.05(f), a “Partial Requisition”) and no Engineer
Withdrawal Certificate shall be required:

@) Delivery by the Company to the Collateral Agent (with a copy to
each Agent), not later than the second (2") Business Day prior to the proposed datc of
disbursement, of a Company Withdrawal Certificate signed by an Authorized Company
Representative, which sets forth the funds requested to be withdrawn and the applicable accounts
and payees to which such funds shall be transferred (with a description of the purpose therefor),
referencing customary invoices, to the extent required, and attaching (x) a Disbursement
Endorsement, to the extent required, and (y) solely to the extent funds are being requisitioned
pursuant to such Partial Requisition to pay the EPC Contractor, a lien waiver from the EPC
Contractor in accordance with the requirements of the EPC Contract, conditioned solely upon
payment of such requisitioned funds; and

(ii) Such Company Withdrawal Certificate certifies solely that (A)
all amounts requisitioned in such Company Withdrawal Certificate relate to Project Costs that have
been or are reasonably projected to be incurred in connection with the Project and none have been
the basis for a prior Requisition that has been paid; (B) no Event of Default has occurred and is
continuing and (C) solely to the extent funds are being requisitioned pursuant to such Partial
Requisition to pay the EPC Contractor, no Act of Bankruptcy in respect of the EPC Contractor has
occurred and is continuing;

[provided that, following the funding by the Collateral Agent of each Partial Requisition, the
Holders or Beneficial Owners of Series 2017 Bonds may vote to withhold funding of future Partial
Requisitions from amounts on deposit in any sub-account of the Construction Collateral Fund
subject to the requisition procedures of Section 5.05 by a vote of not less than the Holders or
Beneficial Owners of at least a majority of the aggregate principal amount of Series 2017 Bonds
outstanding.] The Collateral Agent shall continue to fund Partial Requisitions until instructed by
the Trustee (at the direction of the Holders or Beneficial Owners of at least a majority of the
aggregate principal amount of Series 2017 Bonds outstanding) to withhold funding. Upon such
direction, the Collateral Agent shall withhold funding Partial Requisitions until instructed to
resume funding of such Partial Requisitions by the Holders or Beneficial Owners of at least a
majority of the aggregate principal amount of Series 2017 Bonds outstanding; provided further
that, notwithstanding any instructions of the Holders or Beneficial Owners of Series 2017 Bonds,
the Collateral Agent shall not withhold funding of any requisitions that satisfy all the conditions
that would otherwise apply to requisitions of such amounts pursuant to this Section 5.05.

3} Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company shall not be able to requisition for
the payment of Project Costs from any sub-account of the Construction Collateral Fund subject to
the requisition procedures of Section 5.05 to the extent any of the following events shall have
occurred and are continuing:

F-7

Carson City: 1830 College Parkway, Suite 100 Carson City, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 684-2999 - Fax (775) 684-2998

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
www.business.nv.gov



@) an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing;

(ii) solely to the extent funds are being requisitioned pursuant to such
requisition to pay the EPC Contractor and solely with respect to payments to the EPC Contractor,
an Act of Bankruptcy in respect of the EPC Contractor has occurred and is continuing;

(iii) a Disbursement Endorsement to the extent required to be
delivered with respect to a requisition has not been delivered with such requisition (until and unless
such Disbursement Endorsement is provided); or

(iv) solely to the extent funds are being requisitioned pursuant to a
requisition to pay the EPC Contractor and solely with respect to payments to the EPC Contractor,
a lien waiver from the EPC Contractor in accordance with the requirements of the EPC Contract,
conditioned solely upon payment of such requisitioned funds, has not been delivered with such
requisition (until and unless such lien waiver is provided);

in each case, as evidenced by the failure of the Company or the Engineer, as applicable, to provide
the applicable certification or accompanying attachments as part of the Requisition.

F-8

Carson City: 1830 College Pariway, Suite 100 Carson City, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 684-2999 - Fax (775) 684-2998

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suile 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
www busingss.nv.gov



EXHIBIT G
CERTIFICATE OF FULCRUM REGARDING FEDERAL, STATE & LOCAL APPROVALS

G-1

Carson City: 1830 College Parkway, Suite 100 Carson Ciiy, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 884-2099 - Fax (775) 684-2098

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
www.business.nv.gov



CERTIFICATE OF FULCRUM SIERRA BIOFUELS, LLC REGARDING FEDERAL,
STATE, AND LOCAL APPROVALS OF THE PROJECT

This certification is made by Fulcrum Sierra BioFuels, LLC, a Delaware limited
liability company validly authorized to do business under the laws of the State of Nevada
(“Fulerum”), in connection with the findings made by the Director of the State of Nevada
Department of Business and Industry (the “Director”) pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes
349.580(2)(b) relating to the issuance by the Director of the State of Nevada Department
of Business and Industry Environmental Improvement Revenue Bonds (Fulcrum Sierra
BioFuels, LLC Project), Series 2017 (Green Bonds), for the purpose of assisting in the
financing of an approximately 19.4 acre municipal solid waste to renewable fuels facility
to be owned, operated and managed by Fulcrum, and its affiliate, and consisting of real and
personal property to be located at 3600 Peru Drive in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, in
Storey County, Nevada (the “Project™).

THE UNDERSIGNED, DOES HEREBY CERTIFY THAT the Project has
received all approvals by local, state and federal governments which may be necessary at
this time to proceed with the construction, improvement, rehabilitation or redevelopment
of the Project,



IN WITNESS WIIERECF, 1 havs heteunto set thy sigriafure as. an atthorized
officer of Fulcrum thes 11th day of July, 2017. '

FULCRUM SIERRA BIOFUELS, LIL, a
Delaware mited hability company

RA e

Its VICE PRESID &Y

(Signature Page to Certificate of Fulcium Regardmg Federql, State, and Local
Apprevals of the Project)



EXHIBIT H

FORM OF CERTIFICATE OF APPROVAL BY THE STATE BOARD OF FINANCE
AND RESOLUTION OF APPROVAL BY THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

H-1

Carson City: 1830 College Parkway, Suite 100 Carson City, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 684-2999 - Fax (775) 684-23%8

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Sulte 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
www.business.av.gov



CERTIFICATE OF APPROVAL BY THE STATE BOARD OF FINANCE

The undersigned duly qualified Chief Deputy Treasurer and Ex-officio Secretary of the
State Board of Finance of the State of Nevada (the “Board of Finance”), does hereby certify as
follows:

1. The Board of Finance met on August 8, 2017, in a duly noticed open meeting at
which a quorum of the members of the Board of Finance were in attendance.

2. At such meeting the Board of Finance approved the Findings of the Director of the
Department of Business and Industry of the State of Nevada (the “Director”) dated as of July 14,
2017, relating to its Environmental Improvement Revenue Bonds (Fulcrum Sierra BioFuels, LLC
Project), Series 2017 (Green Bonds) (the “Bonds”) and reviewed the Additional Considerations
contained therein.

<1 The foregoing actions have not been amended, modified, rescinded and are now in
full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 1 have executed and delivered this Certificate on the date set
forth below.

Dated this day of August, 2017.
STATE BOARD OF FINANCE
By:
Tara Hagan
Chief Deputy Treasurer
Ex-officio Secretary
H-2

Carson City: 1830 College Parkway, Suite 100 Carson Clly, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 684-2999 - Fax (775) 684-2098

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
‘Www.business.nv.gov



RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF
THE COUNTY OF STOREY APPROVING CERTAIN FINDINGS MADE
BY THE DIRECTOR OF THE DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND
INDUSTRY OF THE STATE OF NEVADA PURSUANT TO NEVADA
REVISED STATUTES SECTION 349580 RELATING TO THE
FINANCING OF A SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL FACILITY PROJECT
LOCATED IN THE COUNTY OF STOREY; AND PROVIDING OTHER
MATTERS PROPERLY RELATING THERETO.

WHEREAS, Fulerum Sierra BioFuels, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
(“Fulcrum™), a wholly owned subsidiary of Fulcrum BioEnergy, Inc. (the “Operator”), has applied
to the Director of the State of Nevada Department of Business and Industry (the “Director”) for
the issuance of industrial development revenue bonds (the “Bonds”) pursuant to Nevada Revised
Statutes (“NRS”) Sections 349.400 to 349.670 for the purpose of assisting in the financing of a
facility to be used for the disposal of solid waste and conversion to renewable fuel products to be
owned by Fulcrum and operated by the Operator, consisting of real and personal property to be
located at 3600 Peru Drive in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center in Storey County, Nevada (the
“Project”); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to NRS Section 349.580, the Director, after reviewing the
application and other materials submitted to the Director, has made certain findings with respect
to the financing of the Project as are provided in the “Findings of the Director of the State of
Nevada Department of Business and Industry Pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes 349.580(2)
Relating to the Financing of an Industrial Project to be Located in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial
Center, Storey County, Nevada” (the “Director’s Findings”), contained in a Memorandum of
Findings, dated July 14, 2017, addressed to the Nevada State Board of Finance and the Storey
County (the “County”) Board of County Commissioners (the “Board of County Commissioners”);
and

WHEREAS, the Director requests in the Director’s Findings that the Board of County
Commissioners approve the Director’s Findings pursuant to Section 349.580(2); and

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners has reviewed the Director’s documents
and heard testimony before the Board of County Commissioners concerning the Director’s
Findings;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners of
Storey County, Nevada the following:

1. The Director’s Findings be and the same hereby are approved pursuant to NRS
Section 349.580(2), based upon the materials submitted by the Director and other material
submitted to the Board of County Commissioners and testimony described above in the final
preamble hereto. This approval is made for the purposes of NRS Section 349.580(2). Ttis not (i)

H-3

Carson City: 1830 College Parkway, Suite 100 Carson City, Nevada 89706 - Telsphone (775) 684-2999 - Fax (775) 684-2998

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Sulte 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
www.business.nv.gov



an analysis of the Bonds or the appropriateness or risks of the Bonds as investments, (ii) a
guarantee, or (iii) a finding that there is no risk in the Project, the Bonds or both.

2. The approval in Paragraph 1 is based upon the satisfaction of the requirements of
the Director.

3. The Clerk-Treasurer of the Board of County Commissioners is hereby authorized
and directed to mail a certified copy of this Resolution to the Director.

4. Nothing in this Resolution obligates the County in any way with respect to the
Project or the Bonds.

5. If any action taken herein is found to be unenforceable, the remaining actions and
provisions of this Resolution shall remain valid and enforceable unless and until the Board of
County Commissioners determines otherwise.

6. The County Manager and County Attorney are authorized to take all steps
necessary to carry out the actions taken herein and to carry out the purpose and intent of this
Resolution.

7. This Resolution shall be effective upon its passage and approval.

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS _ day of 2017.
AYES:
NAYS:
Marshall McBride
Chairman
ATTEST:

Vanessa A. Stephens
County Clerk-Treasurer

H-4

Carson Clty: 1830 College Parkway, Suite 100 Carson City, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 684-2999 - Fax (775) 684-2998

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 425 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 - Telephone (702) 486-2750 - Fax (702) 486-2758
www.business.nv.gov



RESOLUTION #17-463

A RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT FOR FULCRUM BIO-ENERGY

WHEREAS, on May 14, 2008, Fulcrum BioEnergy (then Fulcrum Sierra Biofuels,
LLC/IMS Nevada, LLC) was granted No. 2007-062 by the Storey County
Commissioners; and

WHEREAS, in 2009 the company was granted an amendment to the Special Use
Permit allowing relocation to a larger parcel; and

WHEREAS, in 2014 the company was granted a subsequent amendment to the
Special Use Permit for modified processing and other considerations; and

WHEREAS, Fulcrum Bio-Energy is in compliance with the conditions of its special
use permit and is in good standing with Storey County. Fulcrum Bio-Energy and
Storey County have maintained continuous communication about the company’s
proposed design, future plans of construction and permitting; and

WHEREAS, Fulcrum Bio-Energy will undoubtedly serve as an economic
development engine for Storey County and the region.

THEREFORE LET IT BE KNOWN to all present that the Board of County
Commissioners of Storey County do hereby endorse and support Fulcrum Sierra
Biofuels, LLC/IMS Nevada LLC's efforts to obtain bonding and funding support thru
the Nevada Department of Business & Industry.

PASSED and ADOPTED the 30th day of June 2017, by the following:

AYES: McBride, McGuffey and Gilman

NAYS:None

and signed AL ihi/ 7Bk

Marshall McBride, Chairman

Attested:




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: August 1, 2017 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Special Use Permit 2017-020 request by the applicant Asia
Union Electronic Chemicals — Reno, Inc. (property owner Waltham Road Industrial, LLC) to retrofit
an existing property and building to allow for the production, distribution and use of hazardous and
non-hazardous chemical products associated with the microelectronics industry. The subject property
is located at 1400 Waltham Way, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number
(APN) 004-091-81.

2. Recommended motion:
At the request of the applicant and in accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning
Commission, a request that this agenda item be continued to the August 17, 2017, Planning
Commission meeting and the September 5, 2017 Board of County Commissioners meeting. Storey
County staff concur with this request and recommend the Board of County Commissioners make a
motion to continue this item to be heard at the August 17, 2017, Planning Commission meeting to be
held at the Storey County Courthouse, 26 South “B” Street, Virginia City, Nevada, commencing at
6:00 p.m., and to be heard at the Board of County Commissioners September 5, 2017 meeting, to be
held at the Storey County Courthouse, 26 South “B” Street, Virginia City, Nevada, commencing at
10:00 a.m.

3. Prepared by: Kathy Canfield

4. Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.1144
5. Staff summary: See enclosed Staff Report No. 2017-020

6. Supporting materials: Enclosed Staff Report No. 2017-020

7.  FKiscal impact: None on local government,

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
8. Legal review required: District Attorney
9. Revigwed by:
Z Department Head Department Name: Planning
County Manager Other agency review:
10. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [1] Continued

Agenda Item No.



26 South B Street, PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440

Storey County
Planning Department
Storey County Courthouse

Phone 775-847-1144 - Fax 775-847-0949
planning@storeycounty.org

To:

From:

Meeting Date:
Meeting Location:
Staff Contact:

File:

Applicant:
Property Owner:
Property Location:

Request:

Motion for Continuance:

* L

VAL

Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Storey County Planning Department

August 1, 2017 at 10:00 a.m.

Storey County Courthouse, 26 South “B” Street, Virginia City, Nevada
Kathy Canfield

2017-020

Asia Union Electronic Chemicals — Reno, Inc.

Waltham Road Industrial LLC

1400 Waltham Way, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada

Special Use Permit 2017-020 request by the applicant Asia Union Electronic
Chemicals — Reno, Inc. (property owner Waltham Road Industrial, LLC) to
retrofit an existing property and building to allow for the production,
distribution and use of hazardous and non-hazardous chemical products
associated with the microelectronics industry. The subject property is
located at 1400 Waltham Way, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada,
Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 004-091-81.

The applicant has requested this agenda item be continued to the August
17, 2017, Planning Commission meeting and the September 5, 2017 Board
of County Commissioners meeting. Storey County staff concur with this
request and recommend the Board of County Commissioners make a
motion to continue this item to be heard at the August 17, 2017, Planning
Commission meeting to be held at the Storey County Courthouse, 26 South
“B” Street, Virginia City, Nevada, commencing at 6:00 p.m., and to be heard
at the Board of County Commissioners September 5, 2017 meeting, to be
held at the Storey County Courthouse, 26 South “B” Street, Virginia City,
Nevada, commencing at 10:00 a.m.



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: August 1, 2017 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

10.

Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Variance 2017-008 by Insurance Auto Auctions. The applicant
requests a use variance allowing a previously permitted non-conforming use to remain in-place under
its existing ownership conditions. The proposed use subject to the variance request is outdoor storage
of inoperable motor vehicles and auctioning of those inoperable vehicles at portions of subject
property located at 4086 Peru Drive, McCarran (Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center), Storey County,
Nevada, APN 005-071-16.

Recommended motion: The applicant has requested this agenda item be continued to the August 17,
2017, Planning Commission meeting and the September 5, 2017, Board of County Commissioners
meeting. Storey County staff concur with this request and recommend the Board of County
Commissioners make a motion to continue this item to the August 17, 2017, Planning Commission
meeting, to be held at the Storey County Courthouse, 26 South “B” Street, Virginia City, Nevada,
commencing at 6:00 p.m., and to continue this item to the September 5, 2017, Board of County
Commissioners meeting, to be held at the Storey County Courthouse, 26 South “B” Street, Virginia
City, Nevada, commencing at 10:00 a.m.

Prepared by: Kathy Canfield

Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.1144
Staff summary: See enclosed Staff Report No. 2017-008

Supporting materials: Enclosed Staff Report No. 2017-008

Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: ___Comptroller
Legal review required: ____ District Attorney
Reviewed by:
epartment Head Department Name: Planning
__ County Manager Other agency review:

Board action:
[] Approved

(
] Denied [

] Approved with Modifications
] Continued

Agenda Item No.



26 South B Street, PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440

Storey County

Planning Department
Storey County Courthouse

Phone 775-847-1144 — Fax 775-847-0949
planning@storeycounty.org

To:

From:

Meeting Date:
Meeting Location:
Staff Contact:

File:

Applicant:
Property Owner:
Property Location:

Request:

Motion for Continuance:

Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Storey County Planning Department

August 1, 2017 at 10:00 a.m.

Storey County Courthouse, 26 South “B” Street, Virginia City, Nevada
Kathy Canfield

2017-008

Insurance Auto Auctions

Robert P. Ellis and Sandra D. Ellis Living Trust

4086 Peru Drive, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada, APN 005-071-16

Variance 2017-008 by Insurance Auto Auctions. The applicant requests a
use variance allowing a previously permitted nonconforming use to remain
in-place under its existing ownership conditions. The proposed use subject
to the variance request is outdoor storage of inoperable motor vehicles and
auctioning of those inoperable vehicles at portions of subject property
located at 4086 Peru Drive, McCarran (Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center),
Storey County, Nevada, APN 005-071-16.

The applicant has requested this agenda item be continued to the August
17, 2017, Planning Commission meeting and the September 5, 2017, Board
of County Commissioners meeting. Storey County staff concur with this
request and recommend the Board of County Commissioners make a
motion to continue this item to the August 17, 2017, Planning Commission
meeting, to be held at the Storey County Courthouse, 26 South “B” Street,
Virginia City, Nevada, commencing at 6:00 p.m., and to continue this item to
the September 5, 2017, Board of County Commissioners meeting, to be held
at the Storey County Courthouse, 26 South “B” Street, Virginia City, Nevada,
commencing at 10:00 a.m.



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 8 -01-17 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License Second Readings -- Approval

2. Recommended motion: Approval

3. Prepared by: Sarah Dillon
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966
4. Staff summary: Second readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved unless, for various reasons, requested to be continued to the next meeting. A
follow-up letter noting those to be continued or approved will be submitted prior to the
Commission Meeting. The business licenses are then printed and mailed to the new
business license holder.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
____District Attorney
. 8. Reviewed bx
X Depz ncntxrkid Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:

[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications

[] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No.



To:

Re:

Storey County Community Bebvelopment

A

s
P O Box 526 + Virginia City NV 89440 + (775) 847-0966 + Fax (775) 847-0935 + buslic@storeycounty.org
July 24,2017
Vanessa Stephens, County Clerk/Treasurcr vstephens@storeycounty.org
Pat Whitten, County Manager PWhilten@sloreycounty.org

Business License Inspections
Commissioner’s Meeting: August 1st, 2017

Storey County Building Department has inspected and found that the following businesses meet code requirements
necessary to operate in the county:

LICENSING BOARD
SECOND READINGS:

A. ALUMAG AUTOMOTIVE - Contractor / 5421 Kietzke Lane ~ Reno, NV(Installation)
DESALITECIIL, INC - Contractor/ 1 Gatcway Centcr -~ Newton, MA(Water Treatment System)
LYNX CONTROL SYSTEMS - Contractor / PO Box 138 ~ Israel (Control Systems)
ENCORE AUTOMATION, LLC —Contractor /50Corporate Dr. Auburn Hills, MI (Installation)
ROE PAINTING, INC — Contractor /~ PO Box 7351 Boise, ID (Painting Contractor)
DAN MILLS CONSTRUCTION NEVADA, INC —Contractor / Po Box 19760~Reno, NV (Framing Sub-
Contractor)
HESCO SERVICES, INC. — Contractor / 862 West Fine Drive ~ Salt lake City, UT (Contractor)
CHAMPION EMPLOYMENT GROUP - General / 10358 Gratiot Ave, Columbus MI (Staffing )
VERUS ASSOCIATES NEVADA, LLC —Professional/ 9210 Prototype Dr. #101 Reno, NV(Engineering)
M & L ELECTRICAL, INC — Contractor / 6060 Scottsville Rd, Bowling Green KY (Electrical Contractor)
SLE ELECTRONIC GMBH - Contractor /5421 Kietzke Lane ~ Reno, NV( (Design)
HIRATA ENGINEERING INCORPORATED - Professional /5421 Kietzke Lane ~ Reno, NV (Design)
. GIROUX GLASS, INC —Contractor / 850 W. Washington Blvd, #200, L.os Angeles, CA (Safety Evaluation)
BELAY ENGINEERING CO. — Professional / 2328 Walsh Ave #1., Santa Clara, CA(Contractor)
XION TECHNOLOGY, LL.C — Contractor/ 4650 Wedekind Rd #2 , Sparks NV (Installation)
AMADA MACHINE TOOLS AMERICA, INC. — Contractor / 2324 Palmer Dr., Schaumbung, IL (Installation)
NORBLAST, LLC — Contractor / 4650 Wedekind Rd #2 , Sparks NV (Installation)
CTH INDUSTRIAL SERVICES, LLC - Professional/ 7550 Bluewater Hwy, Saranac, MI (Engineering)
PRECISION CONTROL SYSTEMS GROUP, LLC - Professional /29355 W 9 Mile Rd, Farmington, MI
(Computer Programming)
J & R TADROS, INC. - Professional / 130950Trail Dust Ave, San Diego, CA (Consultant)
SEYI-AMERICA, INC. - Professional/ 17534 Von Karman Ave, Irvine, CA (Metal Stamping)
CDWDIRECT, LLC - Professional /200 N. Milwaukee Ave, Vernon Hills IL (Direct Marketer)
. BETS SERVICIOS PROFESSIONALES — Professional /5421 Kietzke Lane ~ Reno, NV (Engineering)
BECK FACILITY SERVICES, LLC —Contractor / 147 Jackson St., Newnan, GA (Janitorial)
ACCLAIMED INSPECTION SERVICES, INC —Professional- 598 Damonte Ranch Prkwy # B112, Reno,
NV (Inspector)
Z. TOOLING SYSTEMS GROUP — Contractor /4315 3 Mile Rd, Grand Rapids, MI (Manufacturing)
AA.R.E LEWIS REFRIGERATION, INC, — Contractor/ PO BOX 92 ~ Creston, IA ( Refrigeration Contractor )
BB. PINNACLE HEATING & AIR CONDITIONING - Contractor / 5301 Longley Lane Bldg. #201,Reno,
NV(HVAC)
CC. EMPLOYBRIDGE — General / 5580 Mill St., Reno, NV (Staffing)
DD. SUMMIT FIRE PROTECTION OF MN CO. - Contractor / 575 Minnehaha Ave W, St. Paul, MI (Design)
EE. STEYER ASSOCIATES, INC General/ 115 Hall Brothers Loop #104, Bainbridge Island, WA (Staffing)
FF. 3R AUTOMATION, INCOPORATED- Contractor/5421 Kietzke Lane ~ Reno, NV(Automation)

PEOROZEICASNEQ HETOR

<rE<eH



Storey County Community Bebelopment

\ !
o

Busginess @M Licensing

P O Box 526 + Virginia City NV 89440 « (775) 847-0966 +« Fax (775) 847-0935 * huslic@storeycounty.org

GG. COMPLETE ROBOTICS, INC — Professional — 3509 Elizabeth lake Rd~ Waterford , MI (Computer
Programing)

HH. CBR ENTERPRISES, LLC - Professional /5421 Kietzke Lane ~ Reno, NV (Project Management )

II. TECNOEFFE, LLC — Contractor / 4650 Wedekind Rd. # 2, Sparks, NV (Installation)

JJ. CENTERAL STRIPING SERVICE, INC - Contractor / 3489 Luyung Dr.,Rancho Cordova, CA(Roadway
Stripping)

KK. BLACK & VEATCH CORPORATION — Pro /425 Apollo Dr, ~ Lino Lakes MN ( sales)

LL. HOMEGROWN GASTROPUB - General / 719 D. Virginia St., Reno, NV (Mobile Food Truck)

MM. AUTOMATION ELECTRIC, INC. - Professional / 3983 S MCCarran Blvd.,, #491 , Reno, NV
(Troubleshooting)

NN. ALPHA ASSEMBLY SOLUTIONS - Contractor / 39 Main Street ~ Scottsville NY (Manufacturer)

00. NORTH AMERICAN MILLWORK, INC. — Contractor / 105 Catron Dr., Reno, NV (Contractor)

PP. ARMAC CONSTRUCTION, LLC — Cuuliactor / 343 Fairview Dr. #103 , Carson City, NV ( Excavalion)

QQ. CONCEPT SYSTEMS, INC. — Professional /1957 Fescue St. SE, Albany, OR (Field Service Tech.)

RR. RENO TAHOE ADVENTURES, LLC - Transpiration/ 18224 Fontana Ct.,~ Reno, NV (Tour Opcrations)

S§S.  US GRANITE- NEVADA, INC - Contractor / 5350 Capital Ct., #100, Reno, NV (Fabrication)

TT. COAST MACHINERY MOVERS OF NV, INC, —Transpiration/2431 Chico Ave, So El Monte,CA (Machinery
Moving)

UU. R & E AUTOMATED SYSTEMS- Professional /17500 23 Mile Rd . Macomb MI( Engineering)

VV. ABC EMPLOYMENT HOLDINGS, LLC General/ 6610 N Shadeland Ave., Indianapolis, IN (Staffing)

WW. MILLWRIGHTS 4 HIRE, LL.C - General/ 237 Lexington St. Lancaster, KY ( Staffing)

XX, QUALITY COMMUNICATIONS, INC Contractor/ 212 Muwray Strect ~ Garden City, ID (Cabling Contractor)

YY. RKIINSTRUMENTS,INC Profcssional/ 33248 Central Ave, Union City, CA ( Training)

ZZ. HUMAN RESOURCES UNLTD, INC, General — 3451 Dunckel Rd #200 Lansing, MI ( Staffing)

AAA.LEVEL ONE ROBOTICS & CONTROLS, INC - Pro- 401 Ryland St. #200A, Reno, NV (Software)

BBB. J.E, SIMAS FLOORS,INC. — Contractor/ 9400 S Virginia St. Reno, NV (Floor Covering — Sales, Install)

CCC.ENTEGEE, INC. - Professional/10151 Deerwood Park Blvd # 200, Jacksonville, F1 ( Robot Programing )

DDD. TOX -PRESSOTECHNIK L.L.C — Contractor — 4250 Weaver Prkwy, Warrenville, IL. (Manufacturing )

EEE. YOUNG FAIRBANKS NTERPRISES, LLC- dba — Kim’s Kool Treats- General — 2725 E 9™ St., Silver
Springs, NV ( Mobile Food Truck)

FFF. COMPRESSOR-PUMP & SERVICE, INC. — Professional- 3333 W. 2400 South., Salt Lake City, UT ( Salcs)

cc: Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office
Assessor’s Office Fire Department Commissioners’ Office
Tourism Office Comptroller’s Office Dispatch



CORRESPONDENCE



55 North R Streer
P.Q. Box 396

Where Art, History & Community Come Together Since 1964

V 1
Q“"\ ST. MARY'S ART CENTER

July 9, 2017

Dear Pat & County Commissioners,

On behalf of the Board of Trustees and our staff, we wish to thank you and appreciate all that the
County is doing to support our Art Center and care of this amazing property. This is clearly going
to be a high impact year for urgent maintenance and improvement projects. The new Wi-Fi,
beautiful paved driveway and extra funding support for the critical building assessment, restoration
and preservation work will be phenomenal.

Several of your Storey County leaders and staff are making critical things happen quickly, have
been very helpful resources, and are easy to work with. Several have joined the effort on a personal
level and volunteered time and resources outside of their roles as well.

On another note, an amazing volunteer designed beautiful landscaping improvements, obtained
phenomenal discounts and assembled volunteers to create a new level of organic beauty for the
exterior as well. We have planted a large amount of perennial plants and flowers to elevate the
presence of St. Mary's. We also have a beautiful new entrance sign and plantings to welcome
visitors.

Once the porch and balcony restoration is complete, St. Mary's Art Center is going to be truly
stunning. Our new programs and efforts inside will be visibly highlighted with these exterior
improvements and high-speed infrastructure. We will always have critical projects and ongoing
restoration requirements to preserve and care for this beautiful building and land, bur these 2017
and 2018 projects are a fantastic leap forward.

Thank you, truly. It is a pleasure to work with all of you and an honor to help protect, restore and
showcase this amazing historical cornerstone while offering and growing our own arts and history

programming, and contributing to the community. Together we are making great strides in
preserving this Comstock treasure.

Best Regardb;) “M, 77"%” p WJ—
P s, i
=l ey | WW

St. Mary’s Art Center Board of Trustees & Executive Director

Molly Burnet, President Don Bailey
Vanessa Stephens, Secretary & Treasurer Nolan Preece
Pamela Abercrombie Jack McGuffey
Tom Turman Gil Manrtin
Arika Perry

775.847.7774

aperry@stmarysantcenter.org

Virginia City. Nevada 89440 WWW.SHHTLATYSATTCCReLOrY




